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SECTION I GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABEREVIATIONS

Thiz information Memorandian wses certain defiitions and abbreviations wiich, maless the content otherwive
indicates or fmplies, shafl have the meanings avcribed 1o such termy hevein, and refererces io any legislation,
act, regulonon rule, prideling, palicy, croalar, notfffcation or clarification wifl invclade any amendmowly or re-
Enaciments thereto, from e ko Hmi.
Nonwithstanding the foregoing. terms in “Muin Provisions of the Arnicles of Association”™, “Siatement of Tax
Bengfiis®, “ludusiey @verview", “Business Overview”, “Risk Faciors®, "Restoted Audited Fimancial
Staterments ", "Cutstanding Livigation and Other Materiol Developmeniy ™ and “Scheme of Arrangement”. shall
have ihe meaning asciibed fo wach fermy i thoss Fedpeciive 1achions

COMPANY ANDSCHEME RELATED TERMS
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“RHL" or “Demerged Sayaji Hotels Limited

Company™

“SHPL" or “Resulting Saayaji Hinels (Pune) Limited

Comgany™ or "our Company”™,

“The Company’” or “we™ or "us”

or “pur™

*AHL™ Ahilya Hotels Limmited

“ADA™ ot "Articles” or The Aricles of Association of our Company, a3 amended froem Time 1o

“Ariicie of Associption™ tirme.

Appointed date April 01, 2022

Awdit Committee The audit commitee of our Company, constinted in accondance with
Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, For details, please refer to the chapler tithed "
Muanagement™ on page 83 of this Information Memorandum.

“Auditor” or “Siatuory The statwtory auditor of owr Company, being M= B L. Vv &

Auchor” Company, Chananed Accourinms.

“Board of Directars™ or “the The board of directors of our Company, including all dulv ¢onstijuied
Board™ or “our Board™ or “our Commivies(s) therent

Directoris)”™

Company Secretary and Company sccremry and compliance officer of our Company appolnted in
Compliznce Officer terms of Regulation 61 ) of the SEBI Lsting Regulatioss, 2015, being

M= Knmyvm Jaim.

“Composite Scheme of This compesite 3cheme of amal gamation & arrangement betvwesn Saywji
Amelgamation & Hotels Limited, Ahilys Hotels Limitad, Saynji Hotels (Indose) Limited
Armangement” or “Coemposite {Formerly known as Savaji Hotels (Vadodar) Limited), Sayaji Hotels
Scheme” or “Scheme™ (Pune) Limited and Savajii Hotels Mamagement Limited and ther

respaciivee sharcholders and Creditors under the provisions of wedions
230 jo 232, read with section 52 and 66 and otber applicable provisions
of the Companics Act, 201], sanctioned by the National Company Law
Triburmd ow July 11, 2023,

?T“*CF%
L
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The corporate office of ouwr Company situated &t Ambe Convenlion
Centre, Bypass Road Near Best Price, Hare Krishna Vikar, Nipania
Indore $32010, Madhya Pradesh, Indis

[ 0% cumulative redeemable preference shares of face value ¥ 100/- each

“Preference Shares

Drerverger Demerger means transfer and vesting of demerged undertakings from
Demerged Company to Resulting Company in terms of Section 2(194A)
of the Income-Tax Act, 1961,

Demerged Underaking 2 Uindertaking 2 means the entine Basoda business. as a going

concern as on the Appomnted Date for Demerger which includes and

consists of 3 star hotel (operaiad ender the brand “E{foted”) locaed a1

Kala Ghoda, Sayajiganj, Vadodara with centrally air conditioned rooms

and restauramts built on frechold land. The same includes all assets.

contracts, idemtified investments, rights, approvals, ficemses. powen,
debes outstanding, Habilities, duties, obligations, emplovees pertaining to
the Baroda busincss imcluding. but pot in any way limiled 1o, the

Fol bonwing -

a) all assets. us are movahle in nature pertaining wo and in relation o the
Baroda business, whether present or future of contingent, wngible or
Mmmmlnmmmdmﬁmm
furniture. fstures, appliances, acoessories, power lines, office
squipment, computers, communication  facilities, imstalintions,
vehicles, inventory and toods and plants, actiomable claims, oxment
Rssets, carnest moniss and sundry debtors, financial assen, identified
investment, outstanding loans and advances recoverable in cash or in
kind o¢ for value o be received. provisions, neceivables, fimds. ash
and hank balances and deposits including acerued intorest thereto
with Government. semi-Government, local and other authorities and
hodies. barks, cestomers. and other persons, nsurnces, the benchits
of any tank pusrantices, performance guarantess and letters of credit,
and tax refated essets, incleding but not limited to service mx input
credits, GST oredits or sa-of:

b) all conscns bemefits, registrations, rights, cntitlements, credits,
certificales, awards, sanctions, allsmenss, quotas, po objection
certificales, exemptions, concessions, subsidics, lbomies and
advarages including those relafing o privilegss., powers, Bilitss of
every kind and description of whaiioever nature and the benefils
thereto that pertain exclusively 10 the Baroda business;

o) ail contracts, agreementi, purchase orders’ service ondens, operation
and mmintemance contracts, memonnds of understanding
memoranda of underakings, memoranda of agreements, memcranda
of agreed poims, mimses of mectings, bids, tenders, expression of
miﬁtﬂﬂh{miﬂmﬁpﬂm-ﬂmm
aareementsy’ panchnamas for right of way, coquipment purchase
agrocmcits, agreement with customers, puchase and other
agreements with the supplicr manofacturer of goods’ service
providers, olfier armungements, eedertakings, deeds, boads, schemes,

3




wintsoever raiture and descri ption, whether written, oral or ctherwise
and oll righis, title interests, claims and bemefits thersunder
pertaining o the Baroda business;

dy all righs to e and avail telephones, telexes, Bcsimile, email.
internet, leased Tine connections and installsfions, utilites, dectricity
and other services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of ascets or
properties of othor interssts hald in trists, registrafions. confracis,
engagemenes, amangermenmss of all kind, privileges and all other fights,
casermenis, ibemties and advantags of whatsoever aaiure aad
wherespever siuated belonging 10 or in the ownership, power or
and in control of or vested in or granged in Bvour of or
enjoyed by SHL perimining 10 of in coanection with the Baroda
piminess and ail other interssts of whitsoever natwre belonging to or
in the ownesship, powe, possesston or control of or vested in or
granted in favour of er heid for the benefit of or emjoved by SHL and
pertmining 8o the Barods business

g) all the credits for taxes such 35 sales tax, hovery g service ax,
CEMVAT, GST. credits under Income-tax Act, 1961 that perinin 1o
the Baroda business. In case, there is any credit or GST, CENVAT,
inoomme tax. tax deducted ot sowrce, refunds et pertaining o Barods
haminess and paid or deemed to be paid by SHL but could not be
transferred, such amounts shall be appropriatey reimbarsed:

Fi  all books, reconds, files, papers. engineering and process information,
softwwe licenses (whether proprictary or otherwisz) oSt reports,
compiter programs, drawings, mamalks, dan, dstsheses inchsding
databases  fov  procorement. . commercal  and  manacement,
catalogues, qeotations. sales and sdvertising materiais, product
registrations, dossiers, product maskr cards, lists of presemt and
fwmer customers and suppliers incloding servics providers. other
supplier pricing information, amd all other books mnd recands,
whether in pysical or dectronic form thal pertain w0 the Haroda
buesi mess;

g) 3l debis, fisbilities, duties, taxes and obligations of SHL pertaining
1o the Barods busineis

h) all employees of SHL employed! engaged in the Barods bisiness as
on the Effective Date; and

i) all legal proceefings, including quasi-judical, arbitral md other
administrative proceedings of whatsoever namwe reiating o the
Baroda busineis.

Demerged Undertaiing 5

Dermerged Undertaking 3 means. Pune besiness, 25 a going concern &5 on
the Appainmed Date for Demerger which includes and contizis of Pune
hatel built on frechold land on the Rood. It was 3 greenfield project
set up in 2008, It carers to the districts of Minpewsd and Wikad
I howsss a 18D szsi Barbeque Nation on the roofiop aloag with three
banguet vemaes to cater to waddings and corporates. The same inclades
all assets, contracts, identified umlmﬂ!:l. rights. approvels, licenses,
powers, debis Lsalbil itz abii ermmloyes




pu-nﬂma;hik l‘un': hmnm incleding. but not in any way Iiﬂﬂi h.
the Fol borwing:

a}  all assets, as are movable in naturs periasining 1o and in relation to the
Pune bisineis, whether present or fotore or ¢oalingést, agible or
infangible, in posscssion or reversion, mneluding eloctrical fittings,
furniture, fixtores, appliances. sccessories, power lines. effice
equipmenl. computers, communication facilities, insmllations,
vehiches, inversory and tools end plams, actionable claims, comrent
unh,mlnmnlﬂdmﬁy&ttmm:mhm
invistment, oatstanding loans and sdvances recoversble in cash or in
kind or for value 10 be received. provisions, receivables, funds, cash
and including accrued interest thereto with Govemment, semi-
Government, local and other suthorittes and bodies. banks, costomers
amd other persors, insuwrances, the benefits of any tank gesrantoes,
performance guarantess and letiers of oredit, mnd tax reliad sssas,
including but not limited o service tax inpul credits, GST credits or
sei-offs;

by 2l consents benefits, registrations, rights, entitlements, crediie
certificates, awards, sanctions, allotments, qaoiss =0 objection
cettificates, exemptions. concssions, subsilics, libotiet and
advantages inclading those relating to privileges, powers, Bilities of
every kind and description of whatsoever mature and the benefits
thereto that pertain cxclusively to the Pune business:

cb  all contraers, agreements, purchase orders’ service orders, operation
and mairtanance contracts, memorznda of understanding, memoranda
of ondertakings, memarands of agreements, memorands of agreed
points, minates of meetings, bids, tenders, expression of isteres?, leter
of intent, hire and porchase amangements, ks’ loense
joint venture agreement, tenancy rights, agreements’ panchnamas for
vight of way. equipmen! porchase sgreements, agreement with
oustomers, purchase and other agreement with the supplicd
manafacterer of goods/ service providers, ofher mmangements,
undertakings, deeds, bonds, schemes, insumanee covers and claims.
clesrances and other Instruments of whatsoever nefure end
description, whether written, oral or clherwise and =l nighis, fifle,
interests, claims and bemefits thereunder pertaining o the Fune
bisiness;

d) all rights 1o wse and avail welephones, telexss, Bosimile, emmil,
imternet, leised line connections and instaliations, usilities. dlectmicity
and other services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of mssets of
properthes or other interests held in rests, registralions, contracts,
engagements, arrangsments of all kind, privileges and all other rights,
pagements, libertiss and advamtages of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever sitsated bedonging 1o of in the ownership, power or

and in control of or vested in or granted In favorr of or
ngupndh;.ﬁkﬂ.pﬂﬂhh:lnﬂn:mnﬁnnﬂhﬂumm
and all other interests of whatsocver nature belonging to or in the
pwhiership, power, pessession or control of or vested in or gramed in
favour of or held for the benefit of or enfoyed by SHL and peraining
to the Pune busines;




e:} nﬂhnﬂhﬁlﬂﬁm&xnﬁ:mm}'M.mm

CENVAT, GST. aedits under Income-tax Act, 1961 that pertain 1o
the Pune business. In case, there 15 any credit or GST, CENVAT,
income x, o dedooied ot sowrce, refinds dic. periainmg to Pune
business end paid or deemed to be paid by SHL but could not be
transferred, such amours shall be appropristcby reimbursad,

) ail books, records, files, papery, engineering and process information,
sofbware licenses {whether proprictary or olherwiss) et reposis,
computer programs, drewings, mansb, dsts desbesss inchuding
datahases for procurement, commercial and management, cialogues,
quotations, sales snd advertising mmlcrials, pradoct registrations,
dossiers, product master cands, fists of presenl and former tustomeTs
and suppliers including servioe providers, other cestomer
information, and sl ether books and records, whether in physical or
electronic form that pertain 1o the Pane basiness:

gl all debts, Habiliis, duties, taves and obligation: of 3HL peraining o
the Pune besiness,

k) all employees of SHL employed’ engaged in the Pone basisess 25 on
the Effective Date; and

il all degal procesdines, inclhuding quasijudicial, wbiral snd ofher
administrative proceedings of whatsoever nature reisting to the Pune
business.

Demerged Undertakings

Demerged Undertaking 2 and Demerged Undertaking 3. collectively.
known as Damerged Underalomg:

Threcions)

Diivectoe(s) of our Company, undess otherwise specified

Efective Dare

Auggust 0], 2025

Eligible Sharchokders.

Shall incan cligible holderts) of the aquity shares of Saysji Hols Limited
&= on the Record Dare

Edquity Shares

Unlzs otherwize specified, fully paid-up equity shares of our Company
of face valse of € 1-cach.

Group Companies

The companies {other fan Promotes(s) and Subsidiarics) with whom our
Company bad related party transactions, daring e pariod for which
financial information is disclosed in this Information Momorandum, 55
mwmmmﬁnﬂ:mm:dndm
ax considered muterial by the Board of Directors. For further dotils on
our Group Companies, see “Owur Group Companies™ on page 91 of this
Information Memorandum

Independent Director

A pon-executive independent director of our Compeny as per the
Companies Act, 200 3 and the SEBI Listing Regulstioes.

Infermation Memorandum

The information Memorindemn dsted 23 December, 2023 0 be fil
with the Siock Fxchangess in accordance with the sppficabic laws
prescribed by SEBL

L]
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Key managerial personnel of owr Company in terms

“KMP™ the Companies Act, 201) and as identified in chapter tithed “Ohur
Management ™ beginning on page 63 of this Information Memorandam,

Listing Agreement The Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges

WMOA" or “Memorandum™ or The memorandum of sssociation of our Company, &3 amended from fime

“Memarandum of Associntion™ | o Hme

Nt Worth et warth of our Company, in terms of Regulation 2 (1) (hh) of SEBI
ICDR Regulations,

Momination and Remmmeration | The commitiee of the board of directors constituled in accordance with

Commiries the SEBI Listing Regulstions and the Companies Act, 2013, For detils,
plesse refer to the chapler tithed “Owr Managemenr™ on page 63 of this
Information Memoranidumn,

Man-Executive Directons) A noti=executive director of our Compeay. unless otherwise specified.

“Promoters” of “our Racof Rarnk Dhanani, Keyum Razak Dhanant, Suchitrn Dhanani, Anisha

Promatens™ Racof Dhaseni, Rafiguandsa Magsood Merchant, Shamim Sheikh,
Marmir Mohmed lssail Memon Azhar Yusuf Dhanani, Bipasha
Diwnani, Sadiva Raool Diuanani, Saba Racol Dhaneni, Sumera Raoof
Dhanani, Sanya Dhanan, Zova Dianani, Zuber Y usuf Dhanani and Trust

Promoter Croug Persors and erfities constl our peomober groep in berms of
Regalation 2{1) (pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Restated Audited Financial The Restaled Avdited financial staterments of ouwr for the

Seatemants peniod ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
which comprises of the Restsiad Audited balance shesl, Restmied
Audived statement of proflt and kes and the Restated Audited cash flow
stnberrrent, together with The annexenes and notes therao disclesed in the
section titled “Reviaied Awdited Finamcigl Statemewts™ beginning on
pge 101 of his Information Memorandam

Record Dete September 05, 2023

Registered Office The registerad office of our Company situsted st (C3/F1), in Siva Vel
Apartment, Mo 2 Alagappa Nagar, Zamin Pallavaram Chennai-6001 17,

“RoC™ or "Registrar of e Registror of Compandes, Chennai.

Compunies”

=sayayi Hotel {Indore) Limited™
or “SHIL"

Sayafi Hoted (Indore) Limited (*SHIL™) previously known as Sayaph
Heotels { Vadodara) Limited (“SHVL")

SHIL

Sayaji Hotels Limited

SHML

Sayaji Hotels Maresgement Limised

-k
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CONVENTIONAL TERNMS & ABEREVIATIONS

Elim" bk el 1 P Ly o E . L= g

A Arnusl Genersl Meeting

BSE BSE Limited

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rase

CDSL Central Depository Sarvices (India) Limited

CIN Cewporate Identi fication [ Identity Number

Companies Aot 1956 Erstwhile Companies Act, 1936

Companics Act, 2013 Companies Act, 3013, read with the rufes, regulations, clarifications snd
msodificarions theveunder

Depositories MEDL {National Securities Depository Limited) and CDSL (Cemral
Depasitory Services Limitady, Deposhiorics registored with e SEBI
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and
Participants | Reguintions, |996, &5 smended from Tme o Hme.

Depositories Adt The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time 1o time.

DN Director ldentification Number

P Depasitory Particigant

DP 1D Depository Partcipamt’s Identity Number

ERITEA Earnings before [nterest, Tax, Depracistion and Amortiration

EGM Extraordirary Generzl Meeting

[ 373 Earrdngs Per Skare

X T YT Financial Year

FONR Actoint Forcign Currency Non-Resident Account

FI Foreign Direct Investrnent

FDI Policy The consolideted FDI Policy, effective from Augest 28, 2017, isued by
the Department of Indusirial Policy and Promotion, Mimstry of
Commerce and Industry, Government of India. and any modfications
thereto or substitufions thereof 1sswed foem Lime fo tme

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act 1990, gs amended from time to time
and the regulations fimmed there onder.

FEMA Rules Forsign Exchange Management (Non-Dett Instroments j Rules, 2019




Fis

FFl Regulations Securities il Board of India (Foreign Portfolio lnvestors)
Regulations, 2019, &s amended from tine to time,

FPis Fareign Potfobio nvestor regisiered with the SEBI under applicable laws

it [mdee

Fugitive econcimic offender

A individunl who s declared a fugifive economic offender under section
12 of the Fugitive Economic Offerders Act, 2018

FVCl Foreign Venture Capital Investor registered ender the Securities and
wm of India (Forcign Venture Capital Investor} Regulations,

Gor Giross, Donmestic Product

GOV Government Government of lndia

Girmtuily At The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

GST Act The Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

LT. Ao The Income-Tax Act, 1961, ns mmended from time 10 thme

ICAl Instauie of Chartered Aocountsnts of Tndia

“ICDR Regulations™or “SEBI | SEBI [ lssue of Capital 50d Disclosure Requirements ) Regulations, 2018,

ICDR Regulations™ o amended from time to time

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

IND AS Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, 2= notified under Rule 3 of Companies {Indian
Acrounting Standard) Rules, 201 5

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principies in India

INR Indian National Rupes

IT Authorifies Income Tax Authoritics

IT Rules The Income Tax Rules, 1962, &s amended from time to time

IFSC Indinn Financial System Code

IGST Imtegrated GST

MCA e The Ministry of Corporate Affirs, Gol

WIAT or "MLA” Mot Applicable




NAY Met Asset Value

Ml At Negotable Instruments Act, 1881

NOC Mo Objection Certificate

NSO National Securities Depenitory L imited
NSE National Stock Exchangs of Indiz Limted
P peer s am

P/E Ratio Price Eamings Rahio

PAN Pormanent Acoount Numbe

PAT Profit After Tax

FET Profit Befiore Tax

Pt Private

REI Reserve Bank of India

RBI Ac Thﬂﬂneﬂnlﬂhﬁnmlﬁl.umﬁﬁimmmﬁm
RoW'W Return on Net Worth

ROE Return o Equiry

"Rs or "INR or T [ndiam Rugpees

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 as amended from rime 1o thne

SCRE Secaurities Comtracts (Regolation) Rules, 1957

%EHI Securities and Excharge Board of Tndfia

SEBT Act Sa;uﬁmmdﬁm&ﬂdnfhﬁnﬁu.lﬁlﬂmﬂdﬁmm
tos time.

SEB] Cireular The circulsr fssed by the SEBL heng Ciculsr No

CFOVDIL3CIR201721 dated March 19, 2017, a5 amended by Circular
Nos. CFDUILICIRZ0IEZ  dated Jumuwry 3 2018
SERVHOCFDVDILIP/CIRI020215 dated November 3, 2020, a5
corsolidated in SEBVHO/CFINDIL L/CIR/P2021/0000000665 dated
Nowember 23, 2021 and SEBVHOCFD/POD-LRCIR 02393 dated
June 20, 2023 and any amendrnents thereof.

SEBI{LODR ) Regulations
SEBI Listing Regulstions

Securities and Exchange Hoard of India (Listing Obligations and
Diisclosurs Requirements} Regulations, 2013, s amended. including
instructions and carifications issced by SEBI from time 1o time
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Securitles and [xchange Roard ol India { Alvemative lnvestments Funds)

SEBI AIF Regulations
Regulations, 2013,
SEBI FP| Regalations Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors )

Regulations, 2014

SEBI FVCT Reguiations

Seauritics snd Exchange Boand of India (Foreign Vemtwre Capital
Investon) Regulations, 2000

SEBI SBED Repulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employes Benefits)
Regulations, 2014,

SEBI Imader Trading SERI (Prohibition of Inskder Trading) Regalations, 2015, o amended

Regulai o from time to time, mcluding imstroctions and darifications issoed by SEBI

From: thme 1o tme

SEBI Tukeover Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantinl Acquisition of Shares

Takeover Regulations and Tukeovers) Regulations, 201 1
Takeover Code

SGST Seute GST

Sec Section

SME Sawall Medium Enterprise

551 Undertaking Sl Scale Indusirial Underaking

Stock Exchange (1) BSE Limiwed

51T Securities Trassaction Tax

TAN Tax Deduction Account Number

LS. GAAP Generally scveptod scoounting principles in the United Stanes of Ametica
s Linder Section

LN Uinique Identi fieation Number

“US" or “ULE" or *USA" or Linkted Stutes of America

“United Stales™

“USD" or “LISS" or <§" United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America
wel With effect from

Wy Written Down Value

WD Whode-time Director

Willil defaudter A wilful defaulter, as defined under Regulation 2(1 K11} of the SEBI ICDR

Hegulatians, m.mmwhnﬁ‘whhhiaﬂu!uiudnnmﬁl




ufter by
Aﬂ.!ﬂli}nmﬂnnﬂ:ﬂthm'nﬁhﬂﬂnm
wil ful defaulter issucd by the RBIL

Ya¥
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TECHNICAL /GENERAL AND INDUSTRY mm TERMS OR ABBREVIATIONS

Banking, Financial Services and Insurance

Central Business Distrlct

Compounded Annual Growth Rate

Dividend Dristribution Tax

Foragn Divect Investment

Floor Space Index

High Net-wonh Individunl

Government of [ndia

m
CBD
CAGR
DoT
FIM
Fsl
HNI
G
ICRA

Investment Informsation and Crodit Rating Ageacy of India Limiked

:

Information Technology | nformation Technolog y enabled Servios

Multinat iomal Corponilion

Million Square Fes

SHHBBEE
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This [Information Memorandum contsins certain “forward-locking  stastements™. These (forward-looking
statements can penerally be identified by words or phrases such as “aim™, “snticipae™, “believe™, “opect”,
*estimate™, “intend”, “ohjective™, Splan®, “project™, Sshall®, Swill®, *will continee™, “will pesue” or other
words o phrases of similar meaning. Similady, sestements thar describe our semteaies obdectives, plans or goals
arc also forwsrd-looking statements. All foreward looking swtements are based on our current plans, estimates,
presumptions and expectations. and ane subfect to risks, uncertaintics and assumptions about us that could ause
wetund results pnd property valutions 1o differ materially from these contemplated by the relevent forvard-looking
sintement.

Our forward-looking statements conain information regarding, among other things, our financial condition, fimure
plens and basiness strategy. We have based these forward-looking stalements on our current expectalions and

q ns sbout future events. Althoogh we believe that these expectations and peojections we ressonable, such
forward-looking siatemends are inherently subjedt 0 rska, uncerimntics and sssumptions Hal coald ceise actual
results o differ matznally from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. This may be due w0
rsks or uncertalnties asiociated with our expectations with respect 1o, but not limited 1w

¢ (reneral politicel, social and econdmic conditions in India and other couniries;

Regubatory changss and the Company s ability to respond (o them;

Our ability to successfully implament our strategy, our growth and expeniion plans and rechaological
changes;

Charge in domestic and foreign lvws, regulations and taxes and change in the competition in the indosin;
Fluctnation of the operating cost;

Company™s abtlity to attract and reain geahified peraomme;

Any adverse outcome in the lcgal proceedings in which the Company is mvalved;

Strikes or work stoppages by oo ernplovess oF corEractual empiovess;

Increasing competition in, and the conditions of, the industry:

Changes in governmeni policies, including imtroduction of or adverse changes in tariff or non-tanfT bemers,
foreige direct investment policies, affecting the hospitality industry generally in India:

o Actidenis and maturyl Jissiers and

& Oaher foctors bevond oo conirnd.

For & further discussion of Setors that could cause our schiml results to differ, refer 1o section tilled “Risk
Fuacters™ beginming on page 21 of this [nformation Memorandum By their msture, cortsin market sk
disclosures are only estimates and could be maerially difleren from what aciually cecurs in the fulure. Further,
actuml results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements due 10 risks o
uncertainties or assumptions associated with the expectations with respect 1, but nat [imited ta, reguintory changes
pestaining o the mdostry in which owr Company operates amd our ability 10 respond 0 them, our sbiity m
successfully implemen ouwr strategy, oor growth and expansion, technological changes, our exposure o markes
risks, general economic and palitical conditions which have an impact on sor business sctivities or investments,
the monetary and fiscal policles of India, inflation, defivbon pranticipaied nrbulence in intorest mbes. foreign
exchange mies, eguity prices or other rabes or prives, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally,
changes in domestic laws, regulations 2nd taxes, changes in competition in its incustry and incidents of any ratarsl
calarnities. As a resal, actus! funire gains or losses coubd materially differ from those thal bave been estimated
and are nol & guaraniee of future performance.

These statements are hased on the management’s belief and sssumptions, which in tom sre basad on corentiy
available information. Although we believe the assumptions upan which these forward-lnoking matemenis e
basexd are reasonable, any of these sssumptions could prove o be inacowrate, and the forward-looking satements
based on these mssumptions could be incorrect. Future looking statements speak only as of the date of this
Informsation Memorandum. Neither we nor our Promaters, Directars, or any of their respective affifites have any
obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumsmnoes arising after the date hereol or
to reflect the ocowrrence of underlying  events, even if the undertying assumptions do nol come 1o fruition.




FRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

All references o “India™ are to the Republic of India and all referenees 1o the “Government™ ane o fhe Govarnmes
of Indi

Fimancial Data

Unless sinfed otherwise, the fimancial data in ihis Information Memosandum is derived Fom ow Restaied
Audited Financial Statements, D' Company publishes it Finangial Statements in Indian Ropees. Our Resteied
Audited Financial Siatements, including the report issied by the Statutery Aoditor, incladed in this Informstion
Memamndum, have been prepared in accordance with [nd AS.

Owr Company's Fissnesal Year commences on Apal | pd ends on March 31 of the following vear sccondingly,
gl references o & particulsr financial year, are to the |2 months period ended on March 31 of that vear. Unless
the context otherwise requires, all references o a vear in this Information Memomndum ane o a calendar year
and references to o Financial Year ore to March 31 ol that calendar vear.

Cerinin fipures contpingd in this nformation Memomndum, including foremaial mformation, have been subiect
0 rounding off adjestments. All decimals bave been rounded off to two decimal points. In censin instances. (i)
the sum or percentage change of soch numbers may not conform exactly (o the toial figure given; and (i) the
sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly o the tetal figure given for
thet column or row, Further, any fgores sourced from thirdeparty industry sowrces may be rounded ofT 1o other
than two decimal poeints 1o conform 1o their respective touress,

Curreney of Presents tion

All references to "Hupees™ or 7 or "RE.” or “INR” or “He&™ are to [ndiss Ropess, the official currency of the
Republic of India. in this Information Memormndum, our Company has presented certain nomerical isformation.
Figures for the Financial Year ended Manch, 2023 arc presentod in "Lakhs”.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and morket data ind varioos forecasts wsed throughout this Information
Memorandum kave been obtsined from publicly available infrmation, indusiey somrces and government
publications,

Industry sourees g5 well g5 government publications generally smte that the information contaimed in those
publications has been obtained from sources believed 0 be refinble bt their accomcy and completencss and
underl ¥ing assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliobility cannot be assured.

Although we believe that industry data used in thes Information Memorandum is refisble, it has not been
independemt| v verified by our Company and our affiliates or sdvisors. Such dats involves risks, onoerzinties and
numerous assemptions and is subject 1o change based on various fvdors, incleding those discussed inthe section
titled *Rizk Facters™ beginning pn page 21 of this Information Memorandum.

The dara used inthese sources may have been reclassified by us for the purposes of presenttion. Dwta from these
sources may also not be comparable. Furtber, the extent o which the industry and rarket dats presented in this
Information Memorandum 5 meaningful depends on the reader’s amilianty with and enderstanding of the
meathodologies used in compiling such data There are no standand data gathering methodologies m he indestry
inwhich we conduct our business. and methodologhes and assumptions may vary widdy among different industry
SOFTES.
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SECTION H-INFORMATION MEMORANDUM SUMMARY

This section is a suwmary of specific disclonres included fn this Information Memorandus and & ot
exhmEtive nor dows it prrport e Comialn o summary of all divclosures o deiails relevant (3 prospectie ITeesiors.
For addirionas informason axd further denmily with respect to any of the informaation semmorized befow, please
refer w the refevand sections of this fnformation Memorandum. Undess offwrwise stoted, the financial
issfarwciion in this section & derived from the Restaied Audited Fimonefol Stotewenty.

OVERVIEW OF INDUSTRY

India being one the most popalar trevel destinations acress the globe has resulted n the Indian toursam and
hospitality industry to emeérge as one of the key drivers of growthamang the services sector in India It is widely
acknowledged that the tourist and hospitality sector, which encompesses travel and hospitality services fike hatels
and restaurants, is a development agent, a catalyst for socioeconomic growth, and a significant soarce of foreign
exchange gains in many countries. India's rich and exguisite history, culiure, and diversity s showeased throagh
tourism while also providing significant economic benefits.

For mare detnils. please refer chapter titked “Paddustry Overdew ™ on page 53 of this Information Memorandum
OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS

Ow Company was originally incorporated as g Public Limited Company in name and siyle of “Snoafi Hoels
fPumej Limired ™ under the provistons of the Companies Aoy, 201 3 vide centificate of incorporation dated May 10,
2018 bearing Corporate [dentification Number USS2MTNIMNEPLL 2259 issued by Deputy Registrar of
Companies, Central Registration Centre.

The bsiness of the Compani 5

. To own, constroct, run render technical advice in constructing, furnishing and munning of, fake-over,
manage, cammy on the business of motel, hotel, restawrant, cafe, tavern. bars, refreshment rooms, boarding and
lodging house keepers, clubs, association in India and 1o provide lndgrng snd boarding, restaurant, aating hoasss,
takery, confectionery, bar, swimming pools and other facilities w0 the public induding wurists, visiors and
delegates coming to hadis from foreign countries and to allow Indian a3 well a5 forcign delogates w hold
irternati onal conferences, seminars o, wnd 1o give all facilitiss to members of delegations. missions fiorm abeoad
and foreign countries and to encourage and carry on and facilisic werist rade in India.

For further details, see "Ewsimess Overview ™ on page 59 of this Information Memorandum.
PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY

The Promoters of our Compeny are Raoof Razak Dharani, Kayum Razak Dharani, Suchitra Dhamani, Anisha
Raoof Dhanani, Rafiqunnisa Magsoad Merchant, Shamim Sheikh, Marsur Mohmed fsmall Memon, Azhar Yusul
Dhanani, Bipashe Dhanani, Sadiya Raoof Dhanasi, Saba Racof Dhanani, Sumers Racof Tharani, Sanya Dhanani,
Zoya Dhanani, Zuber Yusul Dhaman and Trusd.

SHAREHOLDING OF FROMOTERS AND FROMOTER GROUP

The shareholding of the Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group as on the date of this Informazion
Memorandum, ore detailed befow:

Equity Shares
ey
Promoters
1 Raool Rezak Dhanani 165674 £ T
- Kayum Rarsk Dhanani 164529 5.40%
3| Suchitra Dhanani 638,360 2095%




4 Anishi Raoof Dhanani 435079 1428%
5 Rafiquerisa Magsood Merchant e 0.1
& Shamim Sheikh i858 3A3%
T Masser Mohmed 1zmail Momon 17 0.00P
[ 1 Azhear Yusaf Dhanani 1.46,782 455
? Bipasha Dhanani B0% 0.29%
10 | Sadiya Rapof Dhanani $7,930 180%
it Saba Raool Dhanan 87,840 159%
12 | Sumera Raoof Dhanani B7.884 188%
13 | Samya Dbanani | 26,601 4.16%
14 | Zoya Dhanani | 26,601 4.16%
15 | Zuber Yusuf Dhanani il 0.00%
I6 Trust n 0.
Tital 22,53 406 TSN

Promaoter Group — MIL




Promoter Groop — NIL

S1ZE OF THE ISSUE

This Isswe 15 for listing of 30,46,605 fully peid Equity Shares of Rs.10 sach by the Company. pursuant to the
Composite Scheme. No Equity Shares nre proposed o0 be sold or offered purssamt to this Informafion
Memasrandim.

ORIECTS OF ISSUE
There are no objects of Issue exncept listing of 30,468,605 Equity Shares allotted puarsuant 0 the Scheme.
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Foliowing ure details as per the Restated Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the Period Ended
Scpbernber 30, 2023, Financial Yenr endesd March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

¥ m Lakls)

Equity Share Capital .66 304.66 5.00 500
Reserve & Surpius 5261 4537.386 i 1.85) {253}
Mer Warth b RS A 335 47
Total Reveme 3128461 LA ] [i]
Met ProfiviLoss yafer Tax (after comsidering Comprehensive 325 136697 (.55 {1.05p
Income)
EPS (inT) of face value T 10 cach
Hasic et W i ) 4554 .75 (L05)
Lol atedd 1117 4534 LT3 {L05)
MNet asset value pershare (in3) 18211 |58.%1 £.70 1w
" lrmnring .l:ﬁ'.id.id' Lkrmurer 17 thnv prdvaked

AUNTOR QUALIFICATHONS

There ere no qualifications which have oot been given effect o in the Resied Audited Financial Statements.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIHGATIONS
The sumnmary of cutstanding or pending litigations [:mﬂlmng the sffect of demergar) involving our Company.

I}m:nnnnclhn s applivable, o il 3 lnfo -:n!'-i:mu'nuhi <t cat below:
— - — - - —
e e
Criminal proceedings KIL NIL
Statutory or regulatory proceedings MIL MIL
Citber pending proceedings 1 A
i
)
.-n ..-"" E‘J-?f"ﬂp_h“"".,
/Sasl g
& = Y
e =
& 5
= B
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Statutory or regulatory proceedings I 6. 10
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RISK FACTORS

Please see the chapter “Risk facters ™ beginming on page 21 of this information Memorandum
SUMMARY OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As on the date of the Information Memorandum, the Company does not have sny contingent labifities.

SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Fellowing i3 the summary of relsted party tramsactions 3t per the Restated Audited Fimncial Statement of the
Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023, Mach 31, 2021 and March 31, 2011

{Figures in Ry Lok}

Sayaii Hotels Limited

Barbeque Natioa
Hespitality Limited

Savall Hotels | Imdore)
Lingted

004 ] g

Sayaji Hotels Limitesd 012 0 0.14

Sayaji Hotels Limited 242 o L

Sayaji Hotels
Management Limited
= Lasuming: e fect e Demrger iy Jaiy prindided
FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

There are/have been no fingncing arrangements wherehy the Promoters, member of Prometer (roup, the Direcioss
of our Promoter Group, the Directors of our Company snd their relatives have fmanced the purchase by aay ather
person of scourities of ous Company during the period of six months immediately preceding the dae of this
Information Memorandum.

AVERAGE COST OF ACQUISITION OF SHARES

The average cost of acquisition per Equity Share for the Promoters i3 not applicable ss the Equity Shares were
allotted pursuant 1o the Scheme.

ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH IN THE LAST ONE
YEAR

Our Company has not isseed any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the onc yoar preceding the
date of this [nformation Memormndem, excepl a3 et forth befow:




Uaie i milopmanr — — M. of + Faes Valee  Prosejwm pee
: T Raqwity - per Eigalty. | Bty Shidre
- Share haire TNHY
aliurihl (I HE}

ISSUE OF PREFERENCE SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH IN THE LAST
ONE YEAR

‘Our Company has not issued any Preference Shares fiw consideration other than cash in the | year proceding the
dare of this Information Memorardurm, except 15 sex forth below:

FWHE_I-I_HIIII . (Mnof '!m“i_p: Fe=mtiy per fotgw wlf Satmrr of
Vrtrdui e U Prelremie s Mewirmzmni comtbdir ol

Shires Freforeais sware (INH)
(1 Shurw
TN

6™ Saptember, 2023 B 100 KA Allotrnent Pursuant tothe
Prrsuant tothe ghorne
Compasite
- Scheme

SPLIT / CONSOLIDATION OF EQUITY SHARES IN THE LAST ONE YEAR

Cher Company has not undertaken any split or consolidation of Equity Shares during the last one yewr Fom the
date ol this. Information Memormndum, bowever oer Company s issued different cliss of share under the
scheme where the fiace value of The equity share capital of the Comgaey s Rs. 10V- per share upon effectiveness
of the Scheme.




SECTION IIi: RISK FACTORS

An invesiment in equity shares invadves o high dagree of rizk You showld carefully consider all the tafurmation
in thiz Information Memorandum, incltuding the risks oud uncersainries described befow, befre making an
imvesament {m she Equity Shares of our Company

[f umy of the follawing risks, or other risks that are no currently inown or are now deemed mmeaterial, acmally
accur, ciw Company 's beiness, resulty of operations and financial condition could suffer, the price of the Equity
Shewes could decting, and afl or part of your invesimens may be lovi. Unlexs otherwise staled our Compony b ot
i @ posdiion o specify or guantify the financial o other risks mentionsd hevein

Uless the coutext ofhervine Pequires, in thiy section, references to “we”, “is”, “owr”, “the Growp”, “our
Company " or “the Compeany " refers to Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Linvited am o consolidated bavis

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

i Our Company, and group companies aré Pparty o certain litigation snd claims. These begal
proceedings are pending ot dilferent levels of adjudication before various courts and regulatory suthorities.
Any adverse decision may make us liable to liabilitiesjpenalties and may adversely affect our reputative,
basiness and financial statws. A classification of these legal and other proceedings is givea below:

Our Company. and group companies are surrenily involved in legal provesdings in India which are peading a1
different levals of adjudication before the concerned authority. We cannat mssure yoa that these proceedings will
be decided in favour of our Company of growp comparics. Any adverse decision in such proceedings may render
us fiahle to penaities and may have & material sdverse effect on the financials and repusation of our Company or
group companies which ety in torn have sn adverse effect on our business.

A elnssification of these oustanding procecdings is given in the foll owing table:




[ : =F =
[[:-:— D ine iR :
Fctions by statutory or regulatory authontics | 60 10
[irect and indircct tax proceedings 10 Hi.l;
Crimitial proceedings apainst our Group Companiss 8 25.18
Actions by statutory of regulalory authorities 13 | 1934
Pdzterial civil higgation agminst cwr Groep Compaies 3 S8
Dutstanding cases before the Micro and Smal! Enterprises NE Nil
Facilitation Council

Criminal proceedings filed by our Group Companies 2 66.00
IMaterial civil litigation Gled by our Group Companies 4 249.80
Tax Proceadings I8 590,03

We cannot assuse you that sy of these on-going matters will be setiled in favour of our Compary, group
companies, Promoters andfor Directors, sespectively, or that no additional lability will arise oot of thete
proceedings. An adverse outcome in ary such procesding: may have an adverse effect on our basiness, financial
position, prospects, sesults of operations and our reputation. Further, we cannot assure vou that there will be no
new material legal and'or regulatory proceedings involving our Company, Promoters, Dhrectors andior group
companies in the fsure.

For further detatls on the outstanding litigation procesdings, plesse see "Ouitemding Litigation and Muierial
Developments®™ on page 117 of this Information Memorandum.

2 Our sperations are dependent on our abilily w atiract and retain qualified personncl, inclading our
senior management and any inahbility on oar part © do so, could sdversely aMect our business, results of
operations and fsancial condition.

Our maragerial and other employees manage our hotels and interact with our goests on 3 daily basis. They are
critical 1o maintaining the quadity and consistency of sur services and reputstion and the loss of the services of
our personnz may adversely affec owr business and operations. While we belisve that we currenily have adequste
qualifiad personnel for our operations, we may not be able 1o woatinunsly attract or retain such pesonngd, o
retdin them on acceplable terms. given the domand for such personnel. Competition for such personniel is intense,
and they may be limited in number in the cities in which we opersie or intend 10 expand. Moreover, it may sequine
B bong period of time $o hire dnd trein replacement personnel when our employes teminale their emplovment
with us. We believe that the inputs and experience of our Kev Managerial Personned and Sensor Management are
valuable for the development of our business and operations and the strategic directions taken by our Company.
We may experience changss in our key management in the futuse for reasons beyond our control and we cannot
assure you thiat we will be able to retain such personnel or find adequate replacements in a Gmely manner, or o
all. Any inability en our part (@ aftrect and retain qualified personnsd and senfor management could adversely
affect our business, resubts of operations and financial condition. For further details, “Onr Mamazement™ on pases
63 of this Information Memorandum,

. 1 The COVID-19 pandemic, or any fatnre pandemic or widesprend pablic health emergency, conld
affect sur business, financial condition, cash Mows and results of sperations.

The hespitality industry in India hes been severely affected by the global outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
since earfy 2020 due o reduced traveler traffic and govermment-mandated restrictions on movemneal. There

2




remains significant uncertainty regarding the Rl extent of the magnilude and duration of the COVID-19
pandemic, including potential new waves and veriants in the future, as well as possible future actions by the
Govemnment of India, which makes it inspossible for us to predict with certainty the impact thas the COVID-19
pandernic will have on our business, financial condition. cash flows and results of operations in the futore

4 The hospitality industry s intensely competitive and oar insbility o compete effectively may
sddversely affect oar business, results of operations and financial condition.

The hospitafity industry in Indin is intensely competitive and our hotels compete with large multinational and
Indian hotel companies, in each of the regions in which we operate. Some of our competiions who are hotel owners
may be larger than us, or develop alliances 1o compete 1zainst us, or have greater finencial and other resources.
We cannot assure you that hotels owned or managed by new or existing competitors will not lower mites or offer
besfter services or amenities or significantly expand or improve Bcilitfes in 2 markes in which we opomte, or that
we will be able 10 compete effectively in such conditioms. We may also face increased competition from badget
hotels, internet-based homestays and bostel aguregators end altemative accommodstion options such & luury
homestays and bed and break fasts

Our suceess is bwgely dependent upon our ability t compete in areas such as room rates, locaton of the propery,
quality of sccommedation, service levels and the quality and scope of other amenities, inciuding food and
bevernge facilities

L3 We are heavily dependeni on our Prometers, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel for the
continued success of our business through their continuing services and strategic goidun ce and support.

Or suecess heavily depends upon the continued services of our ey managerial personnsd, along with support of
our Promoters, W2 also depend significantly on our Key Managerial Personnel for executing owr dey-to-day
activities. The loss of any of oer Promoters, Directors and Key Managenal Persormel, or filure (o recruit saitabls
or comparable replacements, could have s adverse effect on us. The loss of service of the Prometers. Dircctors
and Key Masagerial Personned could serioasly impair the ability 1o continue 1o manage and expand the business
efficiently. For fisther details of our Directors and key mesnagerial personnel. please refer w0 Section “Owr
Managemgni™ on page 63 of this Information Memorndum

[ We hmve not commissioned an mdusiry report for the disclmures made in the chapier fitled
“Industry Overview” and made dischosures on the hasis of the data av silable on the internet and such data

has not been independ ently verified by us

We have not commissionad an indestry repor. We have sought consemt through an email dared August (4, 2023
from the gquoted website source for the disclosures which secd fe be made in the chapler Litlal “Indusiry
vervlew "™ on page 53 of this Information Memorandum. We have made disclosures in the said chapter on the
basiz of the mﬂnhﬂmwmmmmuuﬂm&ummnmmmmm We
have not independently verified such dsia. We cannot assure you that any sssumplicns made are comedt or will
not change and, accordingly, car position in the marias may differ from that presentad in this Informaiion
Memorandum. Further, the industry dats mentioned in this Information Memorandum or soures from which the
data has beer collected #re not recommendations o invest in owr Company. Accordingly, shareholders should
read the industry relsted disclosure in this Information Memoraadum in this context.

: In case of our fnability to obtain, renew or maintaia the statutory and reguistory Beences, permits
and approvaks reqaired te operate our business it muy have s material sdverse effect on our besiness.

Wie require certain statutory and regulatory permits. licenses and approvals 1o eperate our businsss. We believe
that we have obtained all the requisite permits and licenses which are adequate to run owr business. However,
there 1% ne assurEnce that there are no other statwtory/ regubarory requirements which we are requined 1o comply
with. Further, some of these approvals are granted for fixed periods of lime and need remewal from lime 10 time.
We ane required 10 renew such permits, licenses and approvals. Forther, certain licenses and registrations obtained
by our Company contain certain terms and conditions, which are required 1o be complied with by us. For instances,
sorme of our license ks in name of our Demerged Company i.e. SHL and we are yet to apply for change in the name
oof Sayaji Hotels (Pene) Limited pursuat 1o the Compesite Scheme. Any default by our Company in complying
with the same, may result in inter alis the cancellation of such licemses, conscats, sushorizations and'or
registrations, which may sdversely affiect our operstions. There can be no assurance that the relovant authoritics
will issue or renew any of such permits & approvals in time or 01 all. Failure 1o renew, maistain or obinin the
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required permdis of approvals in time may result in the intemuption of our operations and may have s material
adverse effect on our butiness.

& For farther detailz, please refer to Chaplers titled “Govwrnmenid and (ker Approvals™ beginning om
pages |33 of this Information Memorandom. Certain of our Directors, Key Maonosgerial Personnel and
Semior Management have interests in us other than reimbursement of expenses imcurred and normal
FEMmEREFation or Denelits.

Certain of our Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Mana gement may be regarded as having an interest
i ws other than reimbursement of expenses mewred and normal remunerstion or benefits. Cenain Direcions, Key
Managerial Persomnel and Semor Management may be deemed to be interested to the extent of Equity $hares held
by them, directly or indirectly. in our Company or Group Companies.

8 Several expenses incurred in our operations are refatively fixed in nature, and owr inability o
effectively manage such expenses mav have sn adverse effect on cur bosiness, resulls of operations and
financial condition

A significant portion of certain bypes of expenses incupred in our operstions, sch as power, fud and waler
gxpenses, employee related costs, maintepance costs for our key equipment and rental expenses, are relafively
fixed in neture. Further, under our hotel opemtor services agreements. we are generally obliged to pay fees for
various services rendered by third-pary operotors. We may also kave to incur costs towards periodic renovation,
re-designing, re-structuring, sefurbishing or repair of defects at our hotels, Further, cur hotels mav be subjest to
increasas jn property charges, tax or regulatery charges, wiility costs, mmm&mmﬂlﬂmce
costs and adminisiraive expenses,

Conmequently, we may be unable to reduce Axed and recurming eosls mod limely manner, or ot all, in résponae o
B rediwction in the demand for our services. As o result, duning periods when the femand for our hoteds decreases,
the resuliing declioeg in our revenues could have an adverse ¢ffect on our net cash Nlow, merging and profis
Similarly, when the demand for hotel rooms inereases, our profilability increases disproportionately to the increase
in revenues due (o econamies of scale and operating leverage. Further, during periods when we shit down our
botels for refurbishment and rebranding, we continie o incur cerain fxed costs, while not deriving any revenue

from such propery,
EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

Tk Changing laws, roles and regalations ond legal sncertainiies, incloding adverse application of tax
laws, may sdversely affect our business, prospects and resulis of operations,

The regulatory and poficy environment in which we operate s evolving and subject to change. Such changes may
sdversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects, fo the extent that we are unsble to suitably
respand to and comply with any such changes in applicable law and policy.

Unfuvarable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations
induding foreign mvestment and stamp dety laws governing our business and operations could result in = being
deerned 1o be in contruvention of such [aws and may require us (o apply for additional approvals. Uncertainty in
the spplicabilily, inerpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or chanpe in, poveming law, regulation
or policy, meluding by reason of an sbsence, or 4 Emited body, of sdministrative or judicial precedent may be
time comuming 2 well az oostly for w o resol ve and may impact the viabiliny of our corrent Businesses. or pesirict
our shility fo grow our businesses-in the funge Unfavomble changes in or interpretations of existing, or the
promudgation of néw, laws, nles and regolations including forsgn investment laws poveming our busingss,
operations and group sirsture coukd result in us betng deermed 1o be in contravention of such Liws and may require
15 fo apply for additionsl approvals. We may intur increased costs and other bardens relating 1o compliance with
sich new requirements, which may also reguire significant managensent lime and other resourees, and any fodlure
T comply miay adversely affect our busineis, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability,
interpretation or infplementation of any amendrmend 1o, or change in, governing bw, regulation or policy, including
by ressan of an abdence, ora limited body, of adminestrative or judical pracedent may be (ime comsaming a5 wed|
as costly for us o resolve snd may impact the viability of our current businesses or restrict our shility Lo grow aar
businesses in the future,

1. A slowdown i economic growth in lndis could have am adverse effect aa our business, resulty of
operations and finsncizl condition.
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Demand at cur hotels may be adversely affected by an economic dewnturn in domestic, regionsl and globad
evonomies. Our performance, growth and market price of vor Equity Shares are and will be dependent 1o & large
extent on the health of the economy of India, which in fumn is dependent upon the global economy. A slewdown
in cconomic growth, particularly in Indts, could affect business and personal discretionary spenifing levels and
lesad to & decrease in demand for our hotels for prolonged periods. For example, for detasls on the impact of the
slowdown in coonomic growth &s 8 reselt of the COVID- 19 pandémic on owr isiness. We cannat #scre you that
such macroeconomic and other feciors, which are bevond our control would not significantly affect demand for
our hotels and Jead 10 4 reduction in our revenues, Corseguently, the ocourrence of such evens sould have an
adverse effect on aur basingss, results of operations and financial condithon.

2. There is no prior trading histery for the Equity Shares of the Company

Singe the EdgiAry Shares of the Company kave not been previously traded, their markes valoe is uncerizan
Hlmiuﬂmhmmimpﬁ:rﬂumfﬁwnmrhmmtm:m:uduﬂ
prospects from time to time may be below the expecmtions of market anal ysis and imvestons. Ar the same time,
market conditiors may affect the price of oor Company's Equity Shares regandics of the oparating performance
of eer Company, Stock market conditions are affected by many factors, such a5 general economic and political
condifions, terrovist activity, natural calamities, movements in or outlook on interest rates and inflation racs,
eurrency fuctuations, commndity prices, changes in investor sentiment towards the refail maret and the supply
and demand of capital.

13 Our Company may dectde to offer additionsl Equity Shares im the future, dileting the interests of
existing sharehalders which eould sdversely affect the market price of the Equity Share

Cur Company’s ability 1o execute our business strategy depends on our access 10 an appropnate blend of detx
fimancing, and equity fimancing, 1T o Company decides o offer edditional Equity Shares or other seoumties
mm]hhﬂﬂﬂyﬁhwh&ﬁmﬁmuﬂmﬂhmiﬂiﬂh;MMmu
have an adverse impact on the masket price of Equity Sharss. Any additional effering of Equity Skares by our
Comgany, or the public perceplion that & offering may cocur, could have an adverse impact on the market price
of the Equity Shares.

14,  Imvestors weak ecenomic conditions may have an adverse impact on our Compasy's business,
finaactal condition and resolis of eperations.

The global credit markets have experienced, and may comfinue to experience, significant volatility and may
conlinue to have & significant adverse effect on the svailability of credit and the confidence of the financial
markets, including in India. This volarility could result in softening of demand for the produce and services of
the Company 1o & lack of comsumer confidence and ceoreased affordability and may adversely affoct our
%tv'shmmm“mMMJMmeﬁly.mﬂm
conditions canadversely affect the performanee of our Compesy since both the revenues and costs of our business
limes are linked not only to the consumption abilities of the peneral public and disposable income availabie with
mmmummﬁrﬁn:muhimmmmﬂhmﬁm

15, Financial instahility in other conniries may cause incressed valatility in Ind ian financial markets

The Indian markst and the [ndian economy are influenced by eoonomic and market conditions i olher countries,
particubarly emerging market countries in Asia. Although economic conditions are different in sach counry,
investars” renctions lo developments in one country can have adverse effects on e securities of companics in
other countries, incheding India. A loss of investor confidence in the finsncial systams of other emerring markets
may cause increased volatility in Tndian financial markets end, indirestly, in the Indiae economy in genersl. Any
worldwide financial mulmmmmfumﬂuummmmnmfwdmm
may oceur again and could impact our business, our future financial performance and the prices of the Equety
Shares,
I, The requirements of being a listed company may sirain our reseurces.
We wre not a listed company and have hiswrically not been subjected to the compliance requirements and
increased serutiny of our affas byshmﬁh,uguﬂmaﬂﬂ:mﬂklhpmﬁﬂnﬂhﬁugiﬁﬁ
. As a listed company, we will incur significant legal. sccounting, corperate govemance and other
expenses that we did not incur 2s an unlisted company. We will be subject tothe SEBI Listing Regulations which
will require us to file sudited annual and ura sdited quarterly repons with respect 10 o business and fnancial
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condition. If we experience any defays, we may fail w saiisfy our reponing obli galons and'or we may not be able
1o readily determine and accordingly report any changes in our results of operations or cash Mows as prompthy as
otker Heted companies.

Further. a5 @ listed company, we will be required 1o malmiain and improve the effectiveness of our disciosure
controds and procedurss and internal control ever fingngial reporting, including keeping adeguate records of daily
ransactions, In opder to maintain and improve the cffectiveness of our disclosure contnols and procedurss and
mbernal control over financial reporing, significant resources and management stiontion will be rogeised. As &
result, oar management's amention may be diverted from our husiness concemns, which may adversely affect sar
business, prospeds, financial condition, results of eperations and cash flows. In addition. we may seed 1o hire
sdditional legal and sccounting afl with appropriate expenence and lechnical pcoounting knowledee, bul we
cannot assure You that we will be-oble to do 50 in a timely and efficient manner.

B e,
JLD A [Flbﬂ'ﬂr'__.-;_\\
W
s
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SECTIONIV: INTRODUCTION
LISTING DETAILS
The Nagional Company Law Tribunal. vide its order dated July |1, 2023 (certiffed true copy of the crder was
received on 14™ Juby, 2023} huxs approved the cormposite scheme of amalgamation & arrangenent between Sayaji
Hotels Limited. Ahilye Hotsls Limited, Sayafl Hotels (Indore) Limited (Formerly known as Sayaji Hotels
{Vadodmra) Limited), Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited and Sayaji Hotels Management Limited and their respactive
shareholders and Creditors under the previsions of sections 230 w 232, read with section 52 and 66 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Pursuant to the Composite Scheme, the Demerged Undertakings shall in refation o the mode of transfer and
westing and pursuant to Section 230 and 2327 of the Act and without any further act or deed, be demerged from the
Demerged Company and be trans ferred to-and vested in the Resulting Company 50 33 to become the estate, 1oy,
righes, chaims, tithe, interest and awthority of the Resulting Company,

Demerged Undertakings and any docwments of tithe/rights and casements in relation thereto shall be vested i and
troms ferred 10 the Resulting Company and shall belong to the Resuiting Company thereafier, The mutation of the
title 10 the immovahle properties pernaining 1o the Demerged Linderakings shall be made and duly recorded by
the appropriats authorities parsuant 10 the sanction of the Composite Scheme, in fvour of the R esuliine Company.,

All the rights. tithe, interest and claims of Demerged Company in any immovable properties including any
leasehold properties of Demerged Company forming part of the Demerged Underakings, shall, puruam o
Section 230 w232 of the Act, without any Fanber sat or deed, b transforred 10 and vestad in of be desmed 10
bave been rimsferred 10 or vested in the Resulting Company on the same torms and conditions. The immovable
properties forming part of the Demerged Undertakings shall stend transferred 1o the Resulting Company under
the Compaosite Scherme,

In considenstion of the transfer of the Demerged Undertakings, and any documents of titlerights and ssements
in relation thereto-and as per Composite Scheme, 3046603 Equity Shares of Rs, 10 eschand § fully paid up 10%
Cumubative R edeenmmble Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each of our Company were issued to the equiny sharebalders
and preference shareholders, respectively, of the Demenged Company, The Equity Sharcs issued pursuam to the
Composite Scheme shall be listed and sdmitted 1o trading on the BSE. No Equity Skares are propesed to be sold
or effered 10 the public st largs pursuant to this Information Memorandum.




SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was originally incorporsted as a Peblic Limited Company in name and style of “Somuyl Hotels
{Puires Limined " vnder the provisions of the Companies A, 2013 vide centificate of incorporation daied Way 10,
2018 bearing Corporate Identification Number USS2TN2018PLC122599 fmued by Depuly Registrar of

Companies, Central Registration Centre,
REGISTERED OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY
Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited

{C3/F1), n Siva Vel Apartment, No. 2 Alagappa Nagar,
Zamin Puallaveram Chennai 600117,

Tek: 044- 29871174

Emall: o i gom

Carporate Identification Number: US5204TN2018PLC 122809
CORPORATE OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY

Amber Convention Centre, Bypass Road Near Best Price,
Hare Krishna Vikar, Nipania Indore 452610, Madhys Pradesh, India

REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES
Registrar of Companies, Chennal

Repistrar of Campanies, Block Nob, B Wing 2nd Floor,
Shastr] Bhwwan 26, Haddows Road, Chenml - 600034, Tamsilnadu

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY
The Hﬂu{u‘ﬂ:m uﬂhlﬂhﬁ.hﬁqu:!lmdnmﬁthcuﬂﬁt mi'urm.qﬂunhhmnd:.uu'

281, Kalpotars Heights, 28* Floor, I:lﬁ.-i-: NowE ;

Raoal Ravak :
L 00174654 | Nair  Road,  Agripada,  Mumbai-$00011, | ..
Dbamani Aaharashi Directior
a2 Suchitrn aT12187 Saaz 8-9 BF Scheme No, 74-C, Vijuy Magar, | Mon-Executive
Dhaiani Indore-d 52010, Madhya Pradeth Director

1903/1904 Sea Queen Heritage CHS Plot No. 6,
2w Yl | aocasing | mane 16 Nar Mt Boxads Those | WheleTim
s 400705, Maharas hira. kot

F. MO, 303, Yashen] Regency, Block-B 1071 | Non=Executive
00079237 | Manornma  Canj,  Indore-452001, Madhya | Independent
Pradesh. Denector
Flat N-907, K. K- Spectra, D.S.K. Ramvars Road | Non-Executive
06726836 | Pwil Nagar, Bavdhan Bk Near Suryadaia | Independent
College, Pune Mahoarashies 41 1021, Dhirector

For farther detaily of our Board of Directars, please refer to the chagpter tithed “Owr Manugvmens” boginning on

page 63 of this Information Memorandurm.
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COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

kamya Jain

(C3F1)\ in Siva Vel Aportment, Mo 2 Alagnppa Nagar,
Famin Pallovaram Chennad 600117,

Tel: +91 TANS9 RR15S

Emiadl: v shplpune.com

Website: wovoa s b plpon e e

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Arpita Jub

(C3FI) in Siva Vel Apartment, No. 1 Alagspps Magar,
Zamin Pallsvaram Chennsi 600117,

Tel: 491 TIE99 ABS0E

Email: cliz i shplpune coam

Weebslte: www. shplpune.com
STATUTORY AUDITOR

M. K L. Vyes & Co.. Chartered Accountants

Addiress: Shop Mo 2, lind Floor, Porshanath, Dowa Bazar,
6* Huzareshwar Colony, Udnipur - 313001, Rajosihan.

Ted Niw: 02694-257 | 088

Firm Rej, Mo (037880

Caontact Person: Mr. Himanshu Shurma

Membership No.: 402560

Peer Review Ma: 015744

Emmil bz bIvsisma solwsocoin

REGISTRAR AND SHARE THANSFER AGENT

Link Intime India Py Lul,

Address: C |01, 247 Park, L.B .S Marg. Vikhroli (Westl, Mumbai - 400083,
Ted Moc G22-4% | 862 TO 49 1 B&060

Fanz 027 - 4918 060

E-mail M: 0 beipded il imipme oo in

Wiebsie: hitps, waw bk onicne g in

Imvestor G rievance 1D: mt_helpdesklinkimntime. co.in

Contact Person: Ms. Monali Nagwekar

SEBI Registration Na: INROGOOO4058.

AUTHORITY FOR LISTING

The Nasional Company Law Tribunal, through an order dated July 11, 2023 hes sanctioned the composite scheme
of amalgamation & amrangement between Savaii Hotels Limited, Ahilya Hotels Limited, Sayajl Hotels (Tndore)
Limited { Farmes y known as Sayaji Hotels (Vadodars) Limited), Savai] Hotels (Pune) Limited and Savaji Hotels
Manapement Limited and their respecti ve shareholders and Creditors under the provisions of sections 230 o 232,
read with sectbon 5.2 and &6 and oeher applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, For more details selating
te the Composite Scheme, plense refer o “Schoww of Arrawgersenr” on pape 44 of this Information
Memorandum. In accordance with the said Scheme, the Equity Shares of ouwr Company shall be linted and admitiad
o trading on BSE. Soch Hating and admission for tading is aot mtomatic and will be sebjoct 1o fulfilment af
listing ceiteria by our Company as permitied by BSE for such ssues and alio subject to such other terms and
conditions o mmy be proseribed by BSE at the time of the application for listing by ouwr Campany, Observation
letier from BSE in relation to the Composite Scheme was granted to the Company vide letter daled March 15,
F.|Lr R

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA
There being mo initisl peblic offoring or rights ssue, the eligibility criteria in terrms of Chapier [ or Chapter 111 of

kL




the SEBI (1ssue of Capital and Disclosure Roquirementsy Regulations, 2018 is not spphceble. SEBI bas vide its
mEter crculers SEBYCFOVIMLICIR20172 1 duad March 10, 2017; SEBVHOCFRYDIL LICTRP2Z02)
BD000665 dated Movember 23, 2021 and CFDYDILACIR201726 doted June 20, 2023 {the “SEBI Circularn™)
has subject 1o certain condithors permitted unlisted issuer companics o make an application for relaxation from
the strict enforcemsent of Rule 192 by ol SCRE.

Owr Company subrmitted this Information Memorandum, containing information about our Company, making
Haclmures in line with the discloswe requirement for public ssues, a5 applicable 10 BSE, K shall be made
publicly available through the respective websites of the Stock Exchanges Le., woow besimadia,com. Our Company
will publish an advertisement, in the newspapers contalning its detils as per the SEBI Circular with the details
required in lermes of Part 11 (A) para 2 sab — clause § of the SEB| Master Circular. The pdvertisement shall deae
specific reference 10 the availahility of the Information Mernorindiom on our Company™s website

PROHIBITION BY SERI

The Company, its Promoters. its Directors and persons in control of the Promaters, kave not b2en prohibited from
accessing the capital markst under any order or directions passed by SEBI

GEMERAL MSCLAIME R FROM COMPANY

Our Company. our Pramoters and our Directors do sot nccepe eny responsibility for statements made otherwiss
than in this Informatien Memorandum, or otherwise than in the advertisernent published by the Company in
terms of the SEBI Circufar or any other material isswed by oF at the instance of Company. Anyone placing
reliasnee on any other source of information would be doing <0 11 his or her own risk. All information shall be
made available by Company to the public and sharcholders at krge and mo seloctive or additional information
would be available for & section of the investors in amy manner,

LISTING

The Company has received in-principle approvals from BSE bearing letter no. DCS/AMALTL/IP 294062025
74 dated October 16, 2023 and kas received approsal from SEBI under 1%(2%B) of the Securities Contracts
(Regulations) Rules, 1957 on Ocwber 30, 2023 bowing letler po. SEBVHOCFDDCRRAC-
1/PAOW 202343788/ 1. The Company also applied for the listing snd commencement of rading of its Exquity
Shares at BSE.

CHANGES IN AUDITORS DURING LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS

There has been no change in Auditors since incorporation of the Company except as mentioned below;

Mis, K. L. Vyas & Co., Chartered Accountants were appaointed as the Statutory Aoditors of the Company sinee
incorporation,




CAFITAL STRUCTURE

SHARE CAPTAL
A Share Capital of swr Company prior to Compesite Scheme
Authiorsed Share Cupital
30,000 Equity Shares of % 10 each 35,00,000
5000 0% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 7 100 asch 5,000, DK
Tutal 10,00, 000
lsswed, Subscribed and Paid-wp Capital
50,000 Equity Shares of 2 10 zach 5.00.000
Total ERLIE L
B, Share Capilal of our company Post Compasite Scheme
Autharised Share Capital
90,50,000 Equity Shares of 7 10 zach 9,05, 00,000
5000 W% Cumulative Redeemable Preforence Shares of ¥ 100 cach 5.00.000
Total 9,10,00,000
Issped, Subseribed and Paid up Capital
3046603 Equity Shares of T 10 cach 30466050
B 0% Cumsdative Redecmabie Preference Shares of 3 100 cach B0
Total 3,00 850

Pre-Scheme Authorised Share Capital of the Company v 3 10,00 000:- (Rupees Ten Lakh only) comsisting of
50,000 Equity Shares of £ 10 cach and 5,000 17 Comulative Redecrmable Prefercnos Shares of € 100 cach
Pursuant to the Scheme becoming clfective, the Authonised Share Capital of the Compeny has increased to ©
8. 10,00.000 |REupess Mine Crore Ten Lakhs only) consisting of 90,50,000 Equrty Sharss of ¥ [0 each and 5,000

10% Cumadative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 1040 each.

Pre-Scheme [ssoed, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company was 3 500,000/ (Rupees Five Lakh
Only} consisting of 50,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 cach, which was subscribed by Savaji Hetels Limited and its
nominees, stanks cancelled with issuance of new sharex by oer Company 1o the sharsholders of Savaji Hoeels

Limited, pursuant 1o the Composite Scheme.
NOTESTO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE
I. Details of changes in Authorised Share Capital:
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'; "‘mnl'ﬂ-mn ¥ ae Vuhue &pll-hmﬂ.n

_ ; (i ie) | Caplnal i Js )
Equity Shases 50,000 10 ,00,000 May 10,

n Incorporation "
Preference Share 5.000 o 500,000
Equity Shares 08, 50,000 10 .05 00000 Pursuant to the
2 Composite | August 01,
Preference Stare 5,000 100 500,000 R inasan g Il =

For details of the changes o the Authorised Share Capital of our Company, see “Hixtosy amd Certain Corperate
Maners ™ on page 61 of this Information Memorandum,

1. History of lssued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of cur Company
a) mdmnmmﬁm#mﬁ-m

: j.\!runﬂr‘qum Fmdu Lu-h-.- - Nahre

MM St

2 | Sepmiemberd, 30.46,605 1o MNat Allotment of Equity |  Purvant to
003 Applicable | Sharesinthe i of |  Compuosite

4 13 Scheme
3 | Septemberd, (50,000 o Mk Pursuant 1o Cancellation of
pursiE I

Compossis

Scheme

b} History of Preference Share Capital of sar Company
10%% Cumulstive Redeemabie Praference Shares of Hs. |4 each

wr __ﬂiﬁi'h'-! ' . gy f Fleee valee  lsspe Pyiee Makiwrs of
At _-_I_Hp_;_ﬂnr , l"rrﬁ-rpwn i cémaaferation

ol fgpimyie the ratia 1:1.25,000 Scheme

3. Other than the aliotment of Equity Shares purssant to the Compesite Scheme, our Company has s ihni
any Equity Shares foe consideration other than cash,

4. Equity Shores issued for consideration other than cash

Except for the isuance of Equity Shares to the sharcholders of Sayeji Hotels Limited & per the Composite
Scheme, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash. For further details
regarding the Scheme, plaase see the section titled “Scheme of Arrmapemen™ on page 44 of

3 1




Except for the issuance of Preference Shares to the sharcholders of Savap Hotels Limited as per the Scheme. our
Company does ol have any owisianding Preference Shares, wamants of any other convertible secarities 5 on the
date of filing of this Information Memorandum. Except & disclosed sbove, our Company has not isseed any
Equity Shares or Preference Sharcs for consideration ether than cash or ot of revalsation of reserves af any time
SINGE inCorponiioi.

Except as disclosed above, our Company has not isseed or albotied aony Equity Shares pursuant o any scheomes of
armengement approved under Sections 230 — 232 of the Compani= Act.

Except for the allotment of Equity Shares persuant to the Scheme and disciossd above, our Company hes not
issued any Equity Shares or Preference Shares during a period of | {one) year preceding the date of filmg this
Infopmation Memoramdum.

& Sharehelding of sur Promoters and Prometer Groap

Equity Shares
s | il L N e
Promoters
I Raoof Razak Dbanani 265674 TR
2 | Kayum Razak Dhamani 16459 5. 30%
3 Suchitra Dhanani 638360 20.95%
4 | Anisha Raoof Dhamani 435079 14.25%
5 | Rofiqunnisa Magsood Merchant 302 0.10%
B Shamim Sheikh LiH5E] 345%
7 Magsur Mobmed Ismail Memon 7 0L P
B Aahar Yosul Dianani A4 TR 487
9 | Bipasha Dharani B.695 0.29%
I Sadiva Raoof Dhanani 57,930 L%
I Saba Raool Dhanzni BT840 L5
12 | Sumers Raoof Dhanani 37.5%4 188%
I3 Sanva Dhanzni 125,600 4.16%




8 Akankzha Sara Dhanani | 12.50%

Promoter Group — NIL

& Build-up of the Promater’s Shareholding im our Company

The build-up of the Equity sharcholding of our Promotess since incorporation of our Company 5 se1 fonh in the
table below:




Saba Raoof Dhanani e | Y™ o i ~il
Sumern Ruoof Dhamani | | e | SPENTSL sram 10 il
Sanya Dhanani . ST;' &l 260m 10 wil
Zoya Dhanari o s Seprember®] 12650 10 Nl
Zuber Yusul Dhasani ol Nil 0 Nil
Trust Vam—", | — 1 18 il
Total 2258 406 . ]

All the Equity Sharcs held by our Promoters were fully paid-up on the date of allotment of such Equity Shares.

As on the dote of this Infrmstion Memorandum, the members of the Promoter Groop {other than our
Promoters} da not hodd any Equity Shares in our Company.

7. Details of Lock-in
Iﬂmﬂﬂdﬁm[ﬂ]ﬁlﬂdmﬂnhhlﬂﬁ.ﬂlmmmqnmm
ACIR02193 dated June 20, 2023, the sharcholding of our Promoters and the sharcholders of our Company 15
exempl from hock-in, since the sharcholding of ow Company post effectivensss of the Scheme is exsady similer
tor the shareholding pattern of Sayaji Hotels Limited.




4  The Shareholding Fatters of our Company prior to the allotment of Equity Shares under the Com posite Scheme is as winder;
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9. The Sharcholding Pattern of sar Company post allotment of Equity Shares under the Com posite Scheme is as under:

The tuble below presents the sharcholding pattern of our Comspany (post scheme) as on the date of this Information Memorandum:
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18, The Sharcholding Pattern of our Company prior (o the allotment of Preference Shares under the Com posite
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11. Major Sharchelders of our Company as oo the date of this Infermation Memorundum
ﬁim:hhufﬁ'h;hﬁlﬂim“mn‘mhm_ﬂfmﬂﬁyh 1464 Eﬂijmﬂlm
Shareholders.

The details of the Top Ten Sharcholders holding more of the paid-up share capital of the Company, as on
the date of the Informathon Memorandum is &3 below:

Memaorandum.
13. Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares out of revaluation neserves.

14, As on the dute of this Information Memorandum, none of the Equity Shares of our Company are
pledged.

18, Cither than as provided in the Scheme, the members of the Promoter Group, the Promoters, our Directors
and their relatives and the directors/paniners of corporate promoter have not purchased or sold, dircaly
or indirectly, any securities of our Company during the period of six moaths immediately preceding

16. There have been no financing armamgements whereby our Promoters, any member of our Promoger
Orowp, omr Directors and their relstives and the directors partners of our corporste promoter have
financed the purchase by any other person of secuntics of cur Company dunng the penod of six months
emmedintely precedimg the date of this Information Memornndum,

17, Nenc of cur Directors or Koy Managerial Personnel holds Equity Shases in our Company, oicept a
stated in the chapter titled “Owr Mamagemens™ beginming on page 63 of this Information
Memorzndum.

18, All Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly peid-up Equity Shares ss on the date of this




Infermation Memorancdum

19, Our Company and the Directors have not entered imto amy buyback armangements and or any other
similer arrangements for the purchase of Equity Shares of our Company.

{THIS PART OF PAGE NHAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

Ratiomale:

Composite Scheme of Amalgamation & Arrangement under sections 230 t© 232 read with Section 52 and
66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Sayaji Hotels Limited (“SHL™) and Ahilya
Hotels Limited (*AHL™) and Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited (“SHIL™) (Formerly known o Sayaji Hotels
{Vadodara) Limited (“SHVL”™) and Seyap Hotels (Pune) Limited (“SHFL™) and Savaji Hotels
Management Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Composite Scheme™).

The Composite Scheme, inter alia, envisaged (i) Amalgamation of AHL into SHL and reduction and
cancellation of share capital of SHL; (i) Demerper of Demerged Undensking | of SHL into SHIL:
Desmwerger of Demerged Underizking 2 and Demerged Undertaking 3 of SHL imto SHPL. (iii) Merger of
SHML: imme SHL

A. Rationzle as provided in the Scheme

{i}  Ason Information Menorandum, the Promoters holds 74.95%¢ of the equity share capital of SHL.

(i} SHL is m the process of sreamlining its business and proposes this amasgement which is
vonsoniance with the global corporsic practices which intend and seck 10 schieve flexibiliny and
imntegration of size, scale and financial srength

{ii) Upen segregation of Demerzed Undertakings, SHPL shall achieve higher long-term financial
retums, incrcesed competitive strength, cost reduction and efficiencies, productivity gains and
Iogistics advantages, thereby significantly contributing 1o fiture growth in thewr respective business
verticals ie. SHL & SHPL.

{iv) The benefits to be enjoyed and realized by all the stakebolder wpon scheme being effective as below:
. B line Biss

SHL. along with its-associate companies is engaged in the business of owning, operating and
managing hotels under multiple divisions. In onder to streamline the basiness both from

wnd manngement perspective, it i proposed segregate businesses into another identified entity
cremiing, & niche dedicated and focused business segment without any risk or overlap of omc
business over the other. Demerger of Pune Business 1o SHPL will help concentrate on individual
businesses and hence wnlock valise for shareholders of SHL and provide better flexibiliny in
attracting diflerent set of investors, strategic partners and stakeholders. The businesses camicd on
by SHL through itself has significant petential for growth and profitability. The mature of risk,
challenges, competition, opportunities for these businesses arc distinet and separte from other
WWMWMWWNMMMMﬁEBM

s Resources
The Scheme will improve organizational capability arising from the pooling of human capital
that kave diverse skalls, talent and vast experiences and facilitate mobility of human resowrces,

greater intepration and greater employees’ sirength and flexibility for the Demerged Entity,
which would result in maximizing overall shareholder value and will improve the competitive

pasition of all both companies.

* Efficiency in fond raising and de-risking besinesses
With segregation of businesses, the companies can leverage on the mdividual sirength of the
businesies and reise fonds efficiently es well as de-risk businesses that are segregated




o Focused Mansgement
Pursiant 1o the Scheme, similar bosinesses will vest together thereby providing focused
management and propel the growth of each businesses_

(+) The Board of Directors of Sayaji Hotels Limited has agreed 1o hive-off of Demerged Undenakings
scparately and exclude it From the process of sirategic disinvestment. In order 1o achieve the above
obiestives, Demerged Undertakings are being demerged into Sayaji Hotels (Pane) Limited.

{vi} The reconstruction and splitting up. by way of wensfer of the Demerged Undermkings 1o Sayaji Hotel
(Pume) Limited, is 10 be undertalen in terms of Section 2{ 19AA ) of the Income Tax Act. 1961,

B. Consideration

Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme and apon vesting of the Demerged Undenakings into the SHPL
(*Resulting Company™) and in considemation of the Demerger, Resulting Company shall, without any
further application, act or deed, issue and allot Equity Shares and 0% Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares, credited as fully paid up 1o the members of Demerged Company, bolding fully paid up Equity
Shares and Preference Shares in Demerged Company and whose names appear in the register of members
of Demerged Company on the Record Date, or to such of their nespective heirs, executors or administrators
or other legal representative or other successors in title as on the Record Date in the following manner

“4(Four} fully paid up Equity Share of INR 10 (INR Ten Only) each of SHPL shall be issued and allotied
for every 23(Twenty Three) fully paid up Equity Shares of INR 10 (INR Ten Only) cach held in SHL {ihe
“Share Entitlement Ratio™).

“1{One) fully paid op 10% Comulative Redeemabie Preference Share of INR 100 (INR Hundred Only)
each of SHPL shall be issued and allofied for every 125,000 {One Lakh Twenty Five Thousands) fully paid
up | 0% Cummulative Redeemable Preference Share of INR 100 (INR Hundred Oniv) each held in SHL.

. Details of Demerged Undertakings

*  Demerged Undertaking 2

“Demerged Undertaking 2" means the entire Baroda business, a5 a going concern as on the Appointed Diate
for Diemerger which includes and consists of 3 star hotel (operated under the brand "Effotel®) located at
Kala Ghoda, Sayajiganj, ¥adodara with centrally air conditioned rooms and restaurants built on fechold
lind. The same includes all assets, contracts, identified investments, rights, spprovals, licenses, powers,
debts outstanding, liabilitics, duties, obligations, amployces penaining o the Baroda business including,
but not in any way limited 1o, the following:

a) lllﬁmﬁmmﬂbkinnmmpmiiﬂqundhmhﬁnnmﬂnmmmm
or future or contingent, tangible or intangible, in possession or reversion, including electrical fittings,
fumiture, fixtures, appliances, accessorics, power lines, office equipment, competers, communication
facilities, instaflations, vehicles, inventory and tools and plants, actionsble claims, corrent assets.
eirmest monies and sundry debtors, financial asscrs, Identified investment, outstanding loams and
advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 10 be reseived, provisions, receivables, funds, cash
and bank balances and deposits including scoreed interest thereto with Government, semi-Government.
focal and other autherities and bodies, banks. customers and other persons. insurances, the benefits of
amy bank guarantees, performance guarantees and letters of credit, and tax related assets, mcluding but
not limited to service o input credits, GST credits or sat-offs;

b) all consents benefits, registrations, rights, entitlements, credits, certificates, awards, sanctions,
allotments, quotas, no objection centificetes, exemptions, concessions, subsidics, libertics and
advantages including those relating to privileges, powers, facilities of every kind and description of
whatsoever natere and the benefits thereto that pertain exclusively to the Baroda business;
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¢h gl contracts. agreements, purchese orders! service orders, operation and manlenance conlracts,
memoranda of understanding, memoranda of undertskings, mencranda of agreements, memosanda of
agreed points, minutes of meetings, bids, tenders, expression of mterest. letter of inmtent, hire and
purchasc arrangements, lease’ license agreements, joint veniure agreement, lsnancy nghts, agrecments’
panchmamas for right of way, equipment purchase agreements, agreement with customers, purchase
and other agreements with the supplion’ manufacturer of goods' sevvice providens, other armangements,
undertakings, deeds, bonds, schemes, insurance covers and claims, clearancs and other instruments of
whatsoever nature snd description, whether written, omi or otherwise and all rights, title, interests,
claims and benefits thereunder penaining to the Barnda business,

d) all rights to use and avail telephones. telewes, fEcsimile, emml, miemet. lessed line conmections. and
installathons, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, fimds, benefits of zsets or
properiies or oeher imterests held m trusts, regisimtions. confracts, engagements, amengements of all
kind, privileges and all other rights, casements, liberfies and advaniages of whatzoover nature and
wheresoever situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and m comtrol of or vested
in or granted in favonr of or enjoved by SHL peraining to or in conmection with the Baroda business
amd all other interests of whatsoever nafure beloaging to or in the ownership, power, possession or
contred of or vested in-or granted in favour of or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by SHL and periaining
to the Barods business;

e} all the credits for taes soch as sales tax, lhoosy bas, service lao, CENVAT, GST. credits smder Income-
tox Acl, 1961 that pertmn 1o the Baroda businesa. In case, there 15 any credit of GST, CENVAT, icome
fax, e deduscted af source, refunds elc, pertaining o Baroda business and paid or decmed 1o be paid
by SHL bet qould nod be transfermed, sech amounts shall be aporopriastely revmbursad;

1 all books, records, files, papers, engincering and process mformation, sofiware licenses (whether
proprietary or otherwise), st reports, computer programs, drawings, manuals, dsts, dasheses
including dambases for procurement, commercial and management, catalogues, quotations. sales and
customers and suppliers including ervice providers, other cistomer information, customer credil
mformation, customer’ supplier prcing information, énd all other books and records, whether in
physical or electronic form that pertmin to the Baroda basiness;

g)  all debes, liabilstes, dutics, taxes and obligations of SHL pertaining to the Bareda business
by all employees of SHL emploved’ engaged in the Baroda business as on the Effective Date: and

i) all begal proceedings, including quasi-judicial, arbitral and other administraive proceedings of
whatsoever nature relating to the Baroda business.

Demerged Undertaking 3

"Demerged Lndertaking 3" means Pune business; as o going concern as on the Appointed Date for
Demerger whech includes and consists of 5 star hotel (operated under the brand “Sayai™) located ot Village
Wakad, Taluka Mulshi, Pimpei Chinchwad Municipal Corposation, Pune 411053 with cemtrally air
conditioned rooms and restasrants buik on frechold land. The same includes all assets, contracts, identificd
investments, righis, approvals, lcenses. powers, deids owmstnding, liabilities, duties, obligations,
employees pertaining to the Pune business incliding, but not in any way limited 1o, the following:

a) sll pssets, as ore movable in nature pestaining 10 and in refation to the Pune business, whether present
or filure or contingent, tangible or intangible, in possession or reversion, including electrical fittings.
furniture, fxiures, appliances, sccessories, power lines, office equipment, compuers, communication
facilities, mstallabions, vehicles, inventory and tools and plants, actionable claims, cunes! asseis,
eamest moniey and sundry debtors, financial assets, wentified invesiment, catstanding lcans and
asdvances recoverahle in cash or in Kind or for valua 1o be recedved, provisions, receivables. funds, cash
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and including sccrved interesi therelo with Government, semi-Government, local and other authormtics
and bodics, banks, customers and other persons, insurances. the benefits of any bank puarantees,
performance grarantees and letters of credit. and tax related asscts. including hot not tamited 1o service
tax input eredits, GST eredits or set-offs;

b) ail consents bemefits, registrations, nights. entithements, credits, certificates. awards, sanctions,
allotments. quotas, no objection certificates, exemplions, concessions. sobsidies. liberties and
advaniages including those refating 1o privileges, powers, Ricilities of every kind and description of
whatsoever nature and the benefits thereto that pertain exclusively to the Pune business;

ch all comtracts, apreements. purchase orders’ service orders, operation and mainienance conimcis,
memomnda of understanding. memoranda of undertakings, memoninda of agreenents, memoranda of
agreed points, mimies of mectings, bids, tenders, expression of inlcrest, lefter of intenl. hire and
purchase: arrangements, lease’ liconse agreements, joinl venure agreement, tenancy nghis, agreements’
panchaamas for right of way, equipment purchase agreements, agreement with customers, purchase
and ether agreements with the supplier’ manafacturer of goods’ service providers, other arrangements,
undertakings. deeds, bonds, schemes, insurance covers and claims, clearances and other mstruments of
whatsoever nature and descriplion, whether writlen, oral or otherwise and all nghts. fitle. mienests,
claims und benefits thereunder pertzining to the Pune business;

d} all rights 1o use and avail telephones, tefexes. facsimile, email. infernet. leased e connections and
installations. utilities, electricity and other services, reserves. provisions, funds, benefits of asscts or
propertics or other interests held in trusis, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements of all
kind, privileges and all other rights, easements, liberties and sdvamteges of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever silualed belonging o or in the ownership, power or possession and in control of or vested
inor granted in favour of or emjoyed by SHL pertaining to or in connection with the Pune business and
all other mterests of whatsoever mature belonging 1o or in the cwnership, power, possession or control
of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the benefit of or enjoved by SHL and pertaining to
the Pune business;

e} afl the credits for taxes such as sales tax, luxury tax, service e, CENVAT, GST, aredits under Income-
tax Act, 196! that pertain to the Pune hisiness. In case, there s smy credit or GST, CENVAT, income
tax, tax deducted at source, refunds cic. pertaining 0 Pune business and paid or deemed 10 be paid by
SHL bt could not be transferred, such amounts shall be approprstely reimbursed:

£} all books, records, files, papers, engmeering and process information, software licenses (whether
proprietary or othérwise), test reports, computer programs. drawings, mansals, data databases
in¢luding dutabases for procurement, commercial and manngement, catmlogues, quotations, sales and
advertising materials, product registrasions, dossiers, product master cards, lists of present and former
customers and suppliers including service providers, other customer information, customer credit
information, customer’ supplier pricing information, and sll other books and records, whether in
phasical or electronic form that pertain to the Pune business;

2) all debts, liabilitics, duties, taes and obligations of SHL pertaining to the Pune busines:

hy all employees of SHL employed engaged in the Pune business as on the E ffective Date: md

i} all legal proceedings, including quasi-judicial, arbitral and cther sdministrative proceedings of
whatsoever nature relating (o the Pune business.
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Approvals with vespeet to Composite Scheme

The approvals with respect 1o Scheme are us follows:

g Name of the Authority R -ik » i
oo™ ; - EESEPY -
| The Board of Derectors of the Demerged Company Decenber 04, 2021
2 The Board of Directors of the Resulting Company December 06, 2021
3 Equity Sharcholders of the Demerged Company September 09, 2002
4 Equity Shareholders of the Resulting Company OMT vin NCLT Order
dated July 14, 2022
§ Secured Creditors of the Resulting Company Dispensed OFf via NCLT Order
dated July 14, 2022
6 Unsevured Creditors of the Resulting Company Dispensed O via NCLT Order
dated July 14, 2022
7 National Company Law Tribunal Onder July 11,2023
E Receipt of ihe Centified True Copy of the Order Tuly 14, 2023
9 Filing with Registrur of Companies, Chenmai August 0], 2023
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

STATEMENT OF POSSIBELE TAX BENEFITS AVAILARLE TO SAYAN HOTELS (PUNE)
LIMITED AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE APPLICABLE LAWS IN INDNA

To

The Board of THrectors,

Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited

(CLFL), im Siva Vel Apartment,

%o, ! Alagappa Nagar, Famin Pallavaram,

Dear Sie/ Madam,

We herchy report that this cestificate along with the annexure (hervinafier referred 1o as "The Stazoment™)
sl o preparcd by the maragement of the Company states the possible special 1ax benefits available 10 the
Company and the sharcholders of the Company under the Income Tax Act, 191 (TT Act’) (read with
Income Tax Rules, Circulars and Notifications) w5 amended by the Finance Act, 2023 (ie applicable to
Finangial Year 2023-24 relevant to Assessment Year 2024-25) (hereinafter referred 0 as the "IT
Regulations") and under the Goods And Service Tax Act, 2017 (read with Goods And Service Tax [GST]
Rules, Circulars and Nitifications], presently in force in India

Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or fis shareholders fulfilling the conditions
prescribed under the smid relevant provisions of the tax lews and regulations applicable 1o the Company.
Henee, the ability of the Company or its shareholders 1o derive the special tax benefits, if any, is dependent
upon fulfilling sech conditions which based on business imperatives which the Company may or may not
choose to fulfill. The benefits discussed in the enclosed annexure cover only special tax benefits available
1o the Company and its sharebelders and do not cover any general tax benefits uvailable to the Company
of ils sharcholders. Further, the proparation of enclosed statement and the contents stated therein is not
exhaustive and ks the responsibility of the Company's managerment.

We were miormed that the Statement is only imendad 1o provide general information to the investors and
is necither designed nor imiended 10 be a substitute for professional tax advice, In view of the individual
nature of the lax consequences and the changing tax laws, each investor is advised w0 consalt his or her own
tax consultant with respect 1o the tax implications arising out of the Scheme of Arrangement particalary
in view of the fact that cenain recently enacted legisiation may not have a direct legal precedent or may
have a different interpreintion on (he possible special tix benefits, which an investor can avail Meither we
arg suggesting nor advising the mvestons to invest money based on this Statement.

We conducted our examination in accordunce with the “Guidance Note on Reports or Centificates for
Special Purpodes (Revised 1016)° (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chanered Accominnts
of India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with ethical requarements of the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered of India.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Cuuality Control (S0C) 1,
Ouality Contrel for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial information, and Other
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Assurance and Related Services Engagements. We do net express any opinion or provide any assursnce as
to whether:

. the Company or its sharcholders will continue 1o obtain these benefits in futore: o
. the conditions prescribed for availing the henefits have been/would be met with.

The contents of this anmexure are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from
the Company and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations. of the Company
and the provisions of the tax laws.

Our views expressed herem are based on the facts and sssumptions indicated 10 us No assurance i given
that the revenue authorities’ courts will concur with the views expressed hevein. Oue views are based on
the existing provisions of the Tax Laws and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to
time, We da not assume responsibility to wpdate the views consequent 1o such changes. We shall ot be
hizble 1o the Company for any claims, Habilities or expenses relating to this asvignment We will not be
liable 10 the Company and any other person in respect of this Statemeént, except as per applicable law.

We hereby give consent to include this Statemsent in the Information Memorandum and submission of
this statement 1o the Securities and Exchange Board of India. the stock exchanges where the Equity Share
of the Company are proposed 1o be fisted, the relevam Registrar of Companies in India and in any other
material used in connection with the proposed listing of shares. and it is not 1o be weed, referred o or
distributed for any other Purpose withoul our prior writics consene

Yours fithfully,

For M. K. L. Vyas & Company
Chartered Acooumnianty

Firm Registration No.: ()3289C

il 4.

Himanshu S harma ore
i K |

Membership No.: 402560
LUDIN: 23402 560BGUBKT4018

Place: Udaipur
Date: /082023
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ANSEXURE TO THE STATEMENT OF POSSIELE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE
TOTHE COMPANY AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS

Cuthined below are the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and ils sharcholders under
the eurrent direct tax laws in India for the Anancial vear 2023-24. It is not exhaustive of comprebensive
ond is pot imntended to be a substinne for professional advice. Investors are advised to consull thetr own tax
consultant with respect 1o the tax implications of an investment in the Equity Shares panticularly in view of
ihe fact that certuin recently enscted fegislation may not have a direct legal precedent or may have o
di Merent interpretation on the benelms, which an investor can avadl.

FOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE INDIAN TAX
IMPLICATIONS AND CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF
EQUITY SHARES IN YOUR PARTICULAR SITUATION,

A, SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE COMPANY UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 191
(THE" ACT™)

Section | 15BAA has been inserted in the Act wel | April 2020 (AY 2020-21). Section 1 15BAA of the
Act grants an option 1o a domestic Company to be governed by the section from a particular assessment

year. If a Company opts for section 115BAA of the Act, the corpornie tax rate would be 25, | 7% {22% plus
surcharge of 10% snd education cess of 4%,

Soction 113BAA of the Act further provides thar domestsc Companigs availing the smd option will not be
required to pay Minimum ARernate Tax ("MAT) on their book profits’ under section 115JB of the At

Where such o company opis for benefit under section 1 15BAA, such company will no longer be eligible 1o
avall specfied exemptions! incentives under the Act and will also need to comply with the other conditions
specified in section | 13BAA of the Act 1T s Company opts for section | 15SHAA of the Act, the tax credit
(under section | 15JAA of the Act), if any, which it is entitled to on account of MAT paid in carlier years,
will no longer be available. Further, such company shall not be allowed to ¢laim set-off of any brought
forward loss arising to it on account of additional deprecistion and other specified moentives,

Savaji Hotels (Pune) Limited was incorporated on May 10, 2018, The company prepared its first financial
stalerments for the period ended J1st March 2019 and Fusancial Year 2018-19 is the first year of filing
Income Tax Return for the company, The Company has option to opt for the benelit under section | 1SBAA
of the IT Adt

B SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE INCOME TAX
ACT, 19 1{THE "ACT™)

As por section 112A of the Act. kong-term capital gains arising from transfer of an oquity share. or a wii
of an equity-oriented Tund or a unit of n business trust shall be taxed at 10% (without indexation) of such
capital gains subject 10 fulfillment of prescribed conditions under the Act as well a5 per Notification Na.
G Z018F. Mo 3701 425201 7-TPL dmted | Oictober 2018. It is worthwhile to note that tax shall be levied
where such capital gains exceed INR 100,000

As per section | 11A of the Agt, shost term capital gains anising from transter of an equity share, or & unit
of an equity ortented fund or a unit of o business trust shall be taxed at 15% subject to fulfiliment of
preseribed conditions under the Act.

In respect of non-resident shareholders, the tax rates and the consequent taxation shall be furthér subject to
any benefits available under the applicable Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement, if any, between India
and the country in which the non-resident has fiscal domicile,




Except for the above, the Shareholders of the Company sre not entithed 1o any other special x benefits
under the Act.

C. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE UNDER GST LAWS;
Nao special tax benefit is available to the Company and its sharcholders under Goods and Service Tax Laws.

Moles:

§) Al the above benefits are as per the current tnx, ks and will be available cnly to the sole / first name
holder where the shares are held by joint holders.

2} Theabove statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and does not cover any indirect
tax Juw benefTis or benefit under any other kaw.

T} The above statement of possible special tax benefits is as per the curment direct tax laws relevant for
the F.Y 2023-24, refevant to AY, 2024-25,

We herchy sive our consent to include our above referred opimion regarding, the iax beneffis available (o
the Company and 1o its shareholders m the information memorandum.

Yours Eaithfoly,

For MUs. K. L. Vyas & Commpany
Chartered Accountasls

Firm Rezistration No,: 003 289C

s

Himasshu Sharma

Partner

Membership Mo 402560
LDIM: 234005e0BGUBETA0TE

Place: Uidaipur
Diate: 04/08/2023




SECTION Vi ABOUT THE COMPANY
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Yo ahosdid vood the following summary together with e soction “Risk Factors™ on page 11 of this

o Memorandiom and the more detailed informogion oboss ws and owr finaucial rexwity incluced
elvewhere tn this Informaion Memarandfuwe. The infornmation presemnted in thiv sechion e beve objained
from variows pubiicly availuble wowwcey, Inclwling  indestey webaites and publicly availluble industry
reperts, badusiry websltes amd publicotions generally state thun the ifarmation: contalned therein has
been abigined from sosrces belicved to be rellable, i their occurncy, completeness, and wnderiving
vy are e erirameed. amd their reliohifiry ool de avsred

Accordingly, mwe of onr Compamy or any persom or advivor aysecianed with owe Compony,  Js
indepwendently verified this informvation or takes any responsibility for the data, profections, forecasty,
conclusions, or gy ofter igformation comained in this section. ndwstry sources and publicalions are also

prepared on oxformatin av on specific dates nd may mo longer be current or reflect murket tremis.
Accordingly. you shondid mot ploce wihee reliance on, o bave iy investment decisions on, i inforosition

INTRODUCTION

Indin being one the most popular travel destinations across the globe has resultied in the Indian toomism and
hospitality indusiry 10 emerge as one of the key drivers of growih among the sorvices sector in India
Towrtsm industry in India has significant potential considering the Tourism is an imporiant source of foceign
exchange in India similar to many other eowmtries.

It is widely acknowledged that the tourist and hospitality sector, which encompasses travel and hospitality
services like hotels and restaurmints, 15 a development agent, a calalyst for sociceconomi¢ growth, and a
significant source of forcign exchange gains in many countries. India's rich and exquisite history, culture,
and diversity is showcased through tourism while also providing significant economic benefits. The
congisten #fforts of the central and 1he state governments has helped the tourism industry o recover from
the cov k=19 pandemic shock and operate at the pre pandemic level.

MARKET SIZE

In 2021, the travel & tourism industry’s comribution 1o the GDP was USS 178 billion; this is expected o
reach LIS§ 512 billion by 2028, In India, the industry’s direct contribution to the GDP is expected 1o recornd
an anninl growth rate of 7-9% between 2009 and 2030,

The travel market in India is projected 1o reach LSS 125 billion by FY27 from an estimated LSS 75 billion
in FY20. The [ndian airline trovel market was estimated a2 ~US$ 20 billion and is projected to double in
size by F¥17 duk to improving airport nfrastructure and growing sccess o passports, The Indian hotel
market including domestic, inbound and outbound was estimated a1 -US$ 32 billion i FY20 und i5
expected to reach ~USS 52 billion by FY27, driven by the surging demand from travelers and sustained
effors of travel agents to boost the market,

By 2028, mternatsonal fourist amivals are expected to reach 30,5 billion and generate revenue over USS 59
billon, However, domestic tourists are expected 1o drive the growth, post pandemic.

INVESTMENTSDEVELOPMENTS

#  Anmvestment-linked dedoction under Section 15 AD of the Income Tax Act is in place for establishing
mew hotels under 2-star category and ahove across India, thus permitting a 100% deduction in respect
ol the whole or sny expenditure of capital nature.

F o In 2009, the Government reduced GST on hotel rooms with e of s, 1,000 (USS 1432) 10 Ra
7,500 (USE 107.31) per night to 12% and those above Rs. 7.501 (USS 107.32) 1o 18% 1o increase
India's competitiveness as 8 iounsm destinalion.
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#  In Union Budget 2027-24, 1SS 290,64 million was allocated 1o Ministry of Tourism as the sector holds
huge opportunities for jobs and entreprencurship fir youth in particular and 10 1ake promotion of
tourism on miaskon mode, with active participation of states, convergence of government programmes
and public-private partnerships.

#  Govemment of Indis has set o wanget 1o create 220 now airports by 2025,

F  The Medical Tourism secior is expociod 1o incrense &1 a CAGR of 21.1% from 2020-2027.

India is the most digitally mdvanced raveller nation in terms of digital tools being used for planning,
booking, ind experiencing a journey, India’s rising middle class and increasing disposable income has
supporied the growth of domestic and outhbound tourism,

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

The Indian Government has reatised the country®s potential in the tourism industry and has taken several
steps 10 make Indm s global tourism hub. Some of the major mitistives planned by the Government of India
ter oot the tourtsm and benmiahity sector of India are as follows:

# Inthe Union Budget 2022-23:

®  LISS 2904 million has been allocared to the Ministry of Towrism. Under the Union Budget 2023-
24, an outlay of 1155 1 70.85 million has been allocated for the Swadesh Darshan Scheme to develop
a complate package of 50 tourns! destinatrons for providing a wholesome tourism experience by
faciivating physacal, digital and virtual connectivity, availability of tourist guides and toorist
NSy,

*  Under Budget 2023-24, the Government has allocated LSS 30,25 million for the development of
tourist cirowits under PRASHAD. Since {18 lnunch in Janoary 2005 and Ministry has sanctioned 37
projects w24 states with estimated expenditure of LSS 1464 million and a cumulative amount of
LSS 91 6 million crore has been relemsed fin these projocts. 68 destinations/sites have been
identificd in 30 Stwes1Ts for development under the PRASHAD Scheme as on March 31, 2022,

o Ministry of Tourlem has partnered with the Quality Council of India (QCI), 1o assist the Hospitality
Indusiry in thelr preparedness to continue operations safely and mitignte risks arising ow of the
COVID-19 pandemic through an mitiative called SAATHI (System for Assessment, Awareness
and Training for Hospitality Industey). A hotel'unit goes through the SAATHI framework and
agrees to fully follow the requiremwnts wherever applicable possible, and a self-certification is
fssued Selfcertified Hotel'umits aftend webinars to clarify dowbts through live interactions. If
Hotel/unit desires, they may undertabe vite-assessment based on SAATHI framework through OC1
nccredited agencies and an asscssment report with opportunities for improvement is shared with
the assessed unit,

#  Visa reforms include a significantly expanded Golden Visa scheme, a five-vear Green residency and
mew enlry permits, incliding one for job seckers. The new system also offers additional benefits 10
sponsor famaly members

# Toeise travels for intéermational toursts, he Government of India has launched a scheme wherein five
bkl tourists will get free visas.

F o In August 2022, Ministry of Tourism sanctioned 76 projects for Rs. 5.399.15 crore (LSS 678.39
million) under Swadesh Darshan Scheme for development of tourism mnfrustructure in the country,

# In Scptember 202 1, the government [aunched NIDHI 2.0 (National Integmted Database of Hospitality
lochustry) scheme which will maintain o databese of hospitality seclir compoments such as

accommodation units, travel agents, tour operators, & others. NIDHI 2.0 will facilitate the digitalisation
of the tourism sector by encournging all hotels o register thomselves on the platform,

el
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F Governiment i planmng 1o boost the wourism m India by leveraging on the lighthouses in the eountry.
T1 lighthouses have been identified for development as tourist spots,

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Comtribution io GDP above workd average

o In 2000, the ravel & moumiom industny”s contribution 1o the GDP was LSS 178 billion; this is expected
to reach LIS §12 hillion by 2028

®  InIndia, the mdustry’s direct contribuiion 1o the GDP is expected to record an annual growth mie of 7-
&% between 2010 and 2030,

Crenting higher employment

o InFYZ0, toursm sector in India sccounted for 39 million jobs, which was 8.0% of the total employment
in the country,

o By 2029, o is expected 1o accoun for about 53 million joks,

New policy rollout plan

o Toesse ravels for intermational tourists, the Govermment of India has launched a scheme wherein Give
lakh tourists will get free visas.

Mew visa reforms

*  Viza reforms include a significantly expanded Golden Visa scheme, a five-vear Green residency mad
new entry permits, meluding one for job seekers. The new system also offers additional benefits o
spomsor fmmly members

ADVANTAGE FOR INDIA

. Diverse attrsctions

# India is geographically diverse and offers a varity of cultures that come wilh its own experiences,
making it one of the leading countries in terms of infernational tourism expenditure

# The coumtry’s big constline is dotted with aftractive beaches.

2. Robust demand
# The wavel market (o ladia is projected o reach LSS 123 billion by FY27 from an estimaied 1SS
75 billson in FY20,

F International tourist arivals are expected to reach 30.5 million by 2028,

3. Attractive opportunitics
7 India offers geographical diversity, world heritage sites and niche tourism produocts like cruises,
adventure, medical, eco-tourism, etc. Incredible India has spurred growth in Tourists Armivals znd
Emplioymen.
= In 2021, Government of India announced 40,000 e-towrist visas out of 500,000 free regular visas
tes the sourist, W ensure a geographical spread of the incentive to importamt source markets globally.
4. Policy support
# LSS 2.1 billion is allocated 1o Ministry of Tourism in budget 2023-24 us the sector holds huge
opportuniliés for jobs and entrepreneurship for youth,
# Linder the Union Budget 2023-24, an outlay of LSS | TILES million has been allocated for the
Swadesh Darshan Scheme,
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* 68 destinations sites have been identified m 30 States L Ts for development onder the PRASHAD
Scheme as on March 31, 2022

SEGMENTS OF TOURISM AND HOSPITALITY
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#  Showeases the Indhan rural lifie, art, culture, and heritage, thereby benefiting the local commumnity
goonomically and socially as well us enabling interaction between the tourists and the locals for a
mare enriching toursm experienee,

1. Pilgrimage tourism

¥ PRASHAD Scheme aims to inlcgrmie pilgrimage destinations in a prioritized, planned, and

sastninable manner o provide a renl religious tounsm experience.
3. Eco-tourism

# Ecotourism typically involves travel 1o destinations where flora, faunn, and cultural heritage are
the primary aftractions and offer 1ourists an insight into the impact of human beings on the
envirorment and (o foster a greater appreciation of the natural habitats.

4. Luury tourism

¥ The lusury travel market in India Is expected to grow st rate of 12.8% during 201 5-25, the highest

in comparison with any other BRIC country.
5. Heritage tourisem

#  Given the variations in the customs and traditions and the philosophy ingrained behind cach sate

of India, heritage tourism is a potential proponent for the wpliftment of local cconomies.

6. Medical tourism




# Medical tourism is bocked by corpomate hospitals offering high-end medical services and an
effective healthcare network with the hospetality sector.

7. Adventurg logrism
= Adventure towrsm 15 growing exponentially in India with local and foreign tourists visiting
destint o which allows for new & unpopular destinations o markel themselves as truly unigue,
appealing io thise ravellers looking for mne expenenoc.
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= The percentage share of Foreign Tourist Ammivals in India during October, 2022 among the lop 15
source countrics was highest from Bamgladesh (21.77%L followed by USA (17.30%), UK {(1021%],
Canada (4.92%), Austrafia (4.519%%), Sri Lanka (2.57%), Germany (2.56%), Nepal (2.25%), France (2. 19%),

Russian Fd.{%ﬂ!%}. Malaysia {1 99%), Singapore (1.7 1%}, Japan (1 30%). Korea (Rep.af) {1.129) and

Thailand (1.07%)

- Domestic trave! s anticipated 1o further increase to LSS 405.8 billion by 2028F.

- Minsstry of Tourism organized Natioml Conference of State Tourism Ministers from 18th 1o 20th
September 2022 in Dharamshala, Himachal Pradesh o bring m diverse perspectives from all the States and
Union Territowies of India on tourism development and growth and 1o create a direct dislogue with the Stutes
on Schemes, policies and steps being taken ot a national level for overall tourism improvement in India.

= Indis as n 360 depres destination was promated by Ministry of Towrism 1o the intemational travel
mdustry through participation in major international travel exhibations like Arablan Travel Mart, Dubai and
Workdl Travel Market, and London, el

BLE TRENDS IN THE Cs AL ALAT ] LIS TIRY N [NEXLA

" According 1o seiistics published in May 2021 by Travel Trends Today, Indin has seen an sl
increase in corporsie fravel expenditures of 11.4%.

" The Indian hotel mrket including domestic, inbound and outhound was estimated ar -1SS 12
bellion in FY20 and is expected to reach -USS 32 hillion by FY27.

INFRASTRUCTURE

# Towrtsm tends to encourage the development of multiple-use infrestructure including hotels, resorts
& restaurants, tansport infrastrocture {aviation, roads, shipping & milways) and healtheare
Taci lilies.

#  More than half of the Ministry of Tourism™s budget is channelized for funding the development of
destingtons, circuils, megn projects as well as roml tounism infmstructure projects.
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*  Mimstry of Tourism has sonetioned financial assistance of around LSS 76.35 million wo StatesUTs
for infrastructure development under Ceastal Circull theme of Swadesh Darshan Scheme.,

# Aol of 48,775 accommodation units have been reglstered on NIDHI portal and 11,220 units
have selfcenified for SAATHI standards in September, 2022,

Growing Demansd
#  Domestic expenditure on tourism 15 expected to rise due to the growing income of houscholds,

P Scveral niche offerings such as medical Wourism & eco towrisan are expected 1o creste more deimand.

Folicy Suppert
#  In the Union Budger 2023-24

o LSS 2004 million has been allocated to the Ministry of Tourism

o A0 toorist destinations W0 be developed fr providing & wholesome tourism experience under
‘Swadesh Durshon Scheme'

e An amount of USE 30.25 million has been allocated for the PRASHAD Scheme aiming for
holisticdevelopment of selected pilgrimage destinations n the country.

ROAD AHFAD

Staycation s seen a3 an cmorging trend wers people stay at lexirious hotels to revive themselves of stross
in a peaceful getaway. T'o cater 10 such needs. major hotel chain: such ax Marmiot International, THG Hotels
& Resorts and Oberon hotels wre introducing stayeation offers where guests can choose from a host of
curated expeniences, within the hotel. India’s travel and tourism industry has huge growth potetial, The
industry is also looking forward to the expansion of ¢V isa scheme, which s expected 1o double the tourist
mflow in India, India's travel and towrism industry has the potential 10 expand by 2.5% on the back of higher
budgetiary allocation and low-cost healthcare facility acconding to a joint sudy conducted by Assochum and
Yes Bank.

It is irrefiable that the 1ourist industry is becoming a more significant economic force and has the potential
to be used as a tool for development. The tourist industry not only drives growth, but it also mises people’s
standards of living with fis sbility to provide stgnificant amount of diverse employment opportunkiies. It
promotes environmental presarvation, chanmpions diverse cultural berituee, and bolsters imemational peace.
By 2028, Indsan tourisin and hospitality is expected 10 aam USS 50.9 hillion as visstor exports compared
with USS 28.9 billion in 201§,




BUSINESS (IWNERVIEW

Some of the informetion contalmed v 1y section, inchaling information with respect 1o our business plars
amed stravegies, comtain forwardlooking statemenis thar frvolve rivks and wocersaitivs. Ve showld read
the section “Furward-Looking Susiemenis™ ow page 13, for a discussion of the risks ond smcertainshes
related 1o thase starements and alse ihe section “Risk Factors™ on page 21, jor a discussion of certain
Soctars that sy wffect onr business, fiooncial condition or results of aperafions,

The folicwing wmformation is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read together with, the more detailed

Jinenrcial and otler information mcluded in iy Information Memorandum, inchading the information
corfained i "Ruk Foctors™, “lndesicy Overview ", “Restoted Audited Financial Statements™ ond
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finawcigl Condition and Results of Operations™ on paygey
Ff. 53, 107 o TP respeciively,

OVERVIEW

Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited 15 an onlisted public limited company incorporated on May 10, 2018 weder
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 bearing CIN: US5204 TNZO18PLC 122599 with the Registrar of
Companies, Chennai. The Registered Office of the company s at ({C3/F 1}, in Siva Vel Apartment. No. 2
Alagappa Nagar, Zamin Pallavaram Chennai-600117. The Equity Shares of Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited
arc carrently not listed on any stock exchanges).

Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited s a sophisticated collection of imdividually dﬂrgmﬂ hotels catering to both
letsure and business travellers with sivlish guést rooms and versatile meeting Facilities. Besides H.IIEI'IE.
recognition for our world-class amenities and services in the hospitality sector, Sayaji has spread its wings
with its Pan-India presence.

Sayaji Hotels Pung) is known for its bespolie experiences and signature hospitality. We are a home-grown
Indian brand competing with the bigges: hotel entities fom across the globe The maragement sofely
believes in providing exemplary lwary, quality, snd service. The brand works on combining diversity with
cufture and inheriting the core values, especially inchuding taking wimost care of people and their well-
being.

MAIN ORIECTS OF THE COMPANY

The main objects classe of the Memorandum of Association of our Company arc:

To own, gonsiruet, run render techmical adviee m constructing, fornishing and rumning of whe-over,
manage, carry on the business of motel, hotel, restaurant, cale, tovern, bars, refreshment rooms, boarding
ond lodging house keepers, clubs, association in India and o provide lodging and boarding, restaurant,
eating houses, bakery. confectionery, bar, swimming pools and other facilities 1o ihe public including
tourists, visitors and delegates coming to India from foreign countries and 1o allow Indian as well as
foreign delegates 10 hold imernational conferences, seminars et and 1o give all facilities to members of
delegations, missions form abroad aed foreign countries and te encourage and carry on and facilitsie
townist rade in India

OUR BRIEF FINANCIALS

Following are detuils as per the Hestated Aodited Financial Statement ol the Company for the Fimancial
Year endad March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:
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Equity Share Capital 30466 5.0 5.00
Heserve & Surplus 4537.36 (1.65) (2.33)
Net Warth 484202 LR 147
Todal Revenue 6584.69 0 ]
Net Profitqloss) atter Tix {afler considering Comprehensive 136697 0.8% {1.43)
Incomc))

EFPS {in T) of face value € 10 cuch
Rasic 4534 176  (2.08)
Diluted 4514 .76 (2.05)
Net asset value per share (0 %) 15891 6.70 494
*Effect s Demergor is duly provided
BUSINESS STRATEGY

®  Aliernntive and optimal arilization of hotel spaces

Alternative and optimal utilization of hotel space will help s 10 increase in number of footprints that will
eveniually lead 1o increase in our revenue, Adding hotel spaces with trending facilities st minimal cost will
antract more and more customers.

=  Focas on upgrading facilitics quality

Oue Company intend 1o focus on upgrading hotel facifities and also to improve our food and service quality,
Cur Company contineously endesvour our steps in providing healthy and superior quality of food w0 our
CUstmicTs.

o  Grow our national footprint

Our Company seck 1o diversify our geographical footprint to reduce our exposure 1o local, seasomal and
cvelical fluctuntions.

JETAIL PR

»  Our Company holds the entire Baroda Business, which mcludes and consist of 3 star hotel (operuted
under the braml of “Effitel”) located at Kalal Ghoda Sayajigan, Vadodsra with centrally alr
conditiomed rooms and restaurants built on frechold land.

o The Company also holds the entire Pune business which incledes and consists of 3 star hoted {operated
under the brand "Sayaji") located ot Village Wakad, Talukn Mulshi, Pimpri Chincliwad Municipal
Corporation, Punc 411053 with centrally sir conditioned pocms and restaurants built on frechold land.




HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORFORATE MATTERS

BRIEF HISTORY OF OUR COMPANY

Chur Compuny was originally incorporated as a Public Limited Company in name and style of “Sawli Hotels
{Pamre) Limvired " under the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 vide centificate of incorpontion dated May 10,
2018 bearing Comporste Mdemtification Number USS204TN201RPLCI22599 issued by Deputy Registrar of
Companies, Ceniral Registration Centre

REGISTERED OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY

{C3/F1), in Stvn Vel Apartmient, No. 2 Alagappa Nagar,
Zomin Pullavaram, Chennsi, Tamil Madu-600117.

CORPORATE OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY

Amber Convention Cenire, Hypass Road Near Best Price,
Hare Krishna Vihar Nipania Indore 432000, Madhya Pradesh, India

CHANGES IN THE NAME OF THE COMPANY

There has been no change in the nume of ouwr Company since inception.

AMENDMENTS TO THE MEMORANDLUM OF ASSOCIATION

Except s stated below, there are no changes in the memorandum of association since mconporation:

Increase in Authorized Share Capital of Company from K [0,00,000 o Re 9,10,00000 pursuant 0 the
Composite Schermie.

MAIN OIJECTS OF THE COMPANY

The main objocts clavse of the Memorandum of Aszociaton of our Company ane:

To own, construct, run render technical advice in constructing, fumiching and running of, take-over, manage,
carry on the business of motel, hotel, réstmurant, cafe, tavern, bars, refreshment rooms, boarding and lodging
house keepers. clubs, association in India and to provide lodging and boarding, restaurant, cating houses, bakery,
confectionery, bar, swimming pools and other facilities to the public including tourists, visitors and del
coming 10 India from foreign ¢ountries and 10 allow Indian as well as foreign delegates 1o hold international

conferences, saminars etc. and fo give all facilities to members of delegations, missions form sbroad and foreign
couitrics and to eacourage and carry on and facilitate tourist trade in India

CHANGE IN ACTIVITES OF (WR COMPANY
Prior to the Scheme becoming effective, the Company did not carry owl any activity.

Lipon the Scheme beooming effective and with ¢ffect from the Appointed Date, all the Demerged Underakings
of the Demerged Company, together with all #s properties, assets, rights. benafits and interest therein, stood
transfierred 10 ond vested in the Company,

MAJOR EVENTS AND MILESTONES OF OUR COMPANY

The Company has been recontly incorporated, As such, there are no significant events in the history of the
Company,

HOLDING COMPANY

Savaji Hotels Limited was the holding company of the Company prior 1o the date of the Composite Scheme
becoming effective. However, pursiant 1o the scheme becoming effective, there will no holding company of oar

Company
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SUBSIDIARIES OF OUR COMPANY
As on the date of this Information Memorandum. there are no subsidiaries of the Company.
DIVESTMENT OF BUSINESS | UNDERTAKING BY COMPANY

As on date of liling this Information Memorandum, other than the transfer of Demerged Undertakings from
Sayvajh Hotels Limited 1o our Company purssant 10 the Compoxite Scheme, there has been no acquisition or
divestment of bisingss, undertakings, mergers, amalgamations or revaluation of nssels.

SHARFHOLDERS' AGREEMENTS

As on the date of this Information Memormndum, there are no subsisting sharcholders' agreements in relstion o
our Company,

OTHER MATERIAL AGREEMENTS

Except as mentioned below and other than the ordmary course of business of the Company that are subsisting on
the date of this Information Memorandum there sre no material agreements entered into by our Company:

& Afler the effective date, our Company has enterod into Management Comtmact dated 01, August 2023 with
SHL and has granted management rights 1o SHL. As per the terms of the contract SHIL is responsible 1o
manage entire operations of the hotels in liew of a fee on the revenues and operating profits of the company.

Further, there is no agresment entered inte by a Key Managerial Porsonnel or Director or Promoters o any
employee of our Company, eitber by themselves or on behall of any other parson, with any Shreholder or any
other third party with regard o competsation or prodit sharing in connection with the dealings in the securities of
our Company,

STRIKES AND LOCK-OUT

Owr Coampany has not experienced any sirike, lock-outs or Inbour unrest in the past

OTHER CONFIRMATIONS

o There has been no rescheduling of borrowings from finencial institutions morelation 1o onr Company,
*  Our Company does not have any strategic Tinancial pariners.

= As on date of filing the lnformation Memomndum, other than pursuant to the Scheme, there has been no
aequisitlon of business, undertakings, mergers. amalgamations or revaluation of pssets,

[




OUR MANAGEMENT
BOARD OF MIRECTORS

The following rable sets forth details regarding owr Beard of Directors as on the date of Information

AMemorandiom:

Name: Raoof Razak Dhanani
Designation: Non-Exective Dircctor
DIN: (0 72634

Date of Birth: December |3, 1963
Age: &) years

Oxeenpation: Professional

Adidress: 281, Kalpatars Heaghts, 28ih Floer, D, Anasdrao Nair
Road, Agripads. Mumbai-40001 |, Mahamshira

Nationality: Indian

Original Date of Appointment: May 10, 2018
Change in Designation: NA

Tenure of Directorship: N A

Public Limited Companies
I. Sayaji Hotels Limited

2. Barbogue-Nation  Plospitality
L amited

3, Sayajt Hotels (Punc) Limited

4. Sayaji Hotcls (Incore) Limited
Savaji Houscheeping Services
Limmired

Private Limited Companies

I. Alisha Agrophos  Provate
Limmited

2 Hod Appke Kirchen
Comsultamcy Private limted

3. Kshipa Hestmmms Prvai
L imited

4. Malwa Hospiality Privai
L rmited

5. Prinise
Limited

6. Super Civikiech Provate Limited

7. Aries Hotels Private | imised

% Bilue Planat Foods Private
Limited

9. Favorite Restasrants Privale
Limited

Foreign Com panies

|. Barboque  Mation  Mems
Holding Limited, Dubai

2. Barbeque Nation (Maksysia)
SDN BHD

3. Babeque Nation Holdimgs
Pvi. Lid. Mauritius

Hospitality  Private




Namee: Suchitra Diansn] Public Limited Companies
Designation: Noo-Exective Director 1. Sayaii Hotels Limited
DIN: 0071 2IRT 2. Barbegue-Nation  Hospitality
Date af Birth: July 13, 1964 Lituitng
Age: 59 yeurs 3. Sayayi Hotels (Pune) Limited
Occupativn: Professiona) 4. Sovaji Hotels (Indore ) Limited
Address: Saaz 8.9 BF Scheme No. 74-C, Vijay Nagar, Indore. | ™ Dbl Houscheeping Services
452010, Madhya Pradesh India. '
Original Date of Appointment: May 10, 2018 I. l.&.il;z'm;-'l:mn Foods Private
Change im Designation: A 1 Gt Proja M
Tenure of Directorship: A Consaudtants Private Limited

3. Malwa Hospitality Privae

L inmnrted

4. Ares Hotels Private Limited

Foreign Com panics

MNA
Name: Zober Yusuf [Mhonan Public Limited Companies
Designation: Whale-Time Director 1. Savaji Hatels (Punc) Limited
DIN: DR0ATHM 2. Sayaii Howsekeoping Services
Date of Birth: Janwary 27, 2 L
Aget 23 years Private Limited Companies
Occupation: Professional |, Sava)l Healty Private Limited

Address: 1903/ 1904 Sea queen Hentage CHS, Flot no 6, Sector
| & Navi Mumbai Sanpadi, Thane 400703

Nationality: Indan

Original Date of Appointment: July 21, 2021
Change in Designation: lulyv 10, 2023

Tenure of Directorship: 5 years woe Fuly 10, 2023

2. Alliance Infraprojects Private
Liamted

Prinite  Hospitality ~ Private
Lamited

Foreign Compumnies

NA

\

-
Y

qnl

-
"

i

!

L

o

e A
Mu'l"i.

LY
&

-
IS

.H.

T
g

]



Name: Thotappully Narayanan Uni
Designation: Noo-Executive Independent Directon
DIN: 00079237

Date of Birth: January 15, 1939

Age: B4 years

Decupation: Professions!

Addresa: F, No. 303-B.Yashraj Regency |0-Manorama Gang,
Mueter No. 3190434 Indore Madhya Pradesh 452001

Nationality: [ndian

Ovriginal Date of Appointment: July (18, 2023
Change in Designation: Jaly |0, 2023

Tenwre of Directorship: 5 vears wc.fluly [0, 2023

Public Limited Companics

1. Saveji Hotels Limited

2 Basheque-Nation  Hospitality
Lirmitexd

3. Sayaji Hetels (Indore) Limited

4, Savaji Hotels (Pune) Limited

Private Limited Companies

I. The Lake Shore Palace Hotel
Private Limited

= Malwa
Limited

¥, Anes Horels Lad

4. Prime Gowrmet Private Limited

Foreign Companies

Hospitality  Provate

DIN: 06726836

Date of Birth: January 15, 1956

Age: 68 yoars

Oecupation: Profess onal

Address: Flat %0-907, R. K. Spectra 1.5 K. Ranwam Road Patil

Nemgar, Bavdhan Bk Near Suryadoetta Coliege, Pone Mahamshira
412 1.

Nationality: Indian
Original Date of Appointment: July 08, 2023
Change in Designation: July 10, 2023
Tenure of Directorship: 3 vears w.e.f July [0, 2023

NA
MName: Abhay Chintaman Chsudbar Public Limited Companics
Designation: Non-Exceative Independent Dircctor . Saysji Hotels Limitod

2 Barbeque-Nathon  Hospitality
Limited

1. Sayajl Hotels (Indore) Limited

4. Saynji Hotels (Pune) Limited

Privale Limited Companie

1. Red Apple Kitchen
Consultmney Private Limited

Foreign Companies
NA

Bricf Biographies of our [rectors
Ravol Razak Dhanani

Raoof Dhanan aged 60 years, 1= a Non-Executive Director of our O

¥. He has boen associated with

our Company since inception Le. May 10, 2018. He joined the management of SHL in 2013 and is currently
mvolved in managing the operations of SHL. He has over 9 years of experience in the field of Hotel
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ent and Adminstration. Pror 10 joining our Company, he was involved in the (el lzers business,
which he divested in the vear 2013,

Suchitra Dhasanl

Suchitrn Dhanani aged 59 venrs, is o Non-Executive Director of our Company. She ks been associnted
with our Company since inception ie. May 10, 2018, She holds a bachelor™s degree in home seience with
a magor in clothing and textiles from the Mabaraja Savajirsc University of Baroda and a master"s degree in
social work from the Maharnjn Sayajiree Univensity of Baroda. She has over |6 years of enperience in the
fiedd of Hotel Management and Administeation,

Luber Yusul Dhanani

Zuber Yuasuf Dhanam aped 23 years. 15 a2 Whole-Time Director of our Company. He has been associnted
with our Company since July 21, 2021, He has completed his education az Rachelor of Business
Administration from Flame University, Pune. He has recently joined the Hospitality Industry

Thottappully Nurmyvanan U'nni

mllﬂll“} Narnyanan Unmi aged B yewrs, s an ladependent Director of our Cmmmy He is 1m'h1;
wide experience and knowledge in accounts, taxation, corporate governance oic. He is a practicing
Chartered Accountant by profession.

Abhay Chintaman Chandhari

Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari aged 68 years, 5 o Independent Directar of our Company. He s retired senior
Bank officer and worked as Chief General Manager in Stnte Bank of India. He was slsos deputed 1o other
associmtes Compunies of State Bank on time to time basis. He is well versed o finance, capital market, risk

management oo
Retationship between our Dirvctors
Mone of our Directon are related (o cach other, in terms of Companies Act, 2013,

Dietails of Directorship in Companies suspended or delisted

Mone of the Directons is or was & director of any listed company whose shares have been/'were suspended
from being traded on any of the Stock Exchanges during the lagt five years prior o the date of this
Informution Memorandum, during the term of her'his directorship in such company.

None of our Directors is, ar was, o direcior of any |isted company, which has been or was delisted from any
stock exchange, during the tenm of her'his directorship in such company.
Arrangement or undersianding with major sharcholders, customers, suppliers or others

Mone of our [drectors have any arrmmgement or understanding with our major chareholden, customers,
uwﬂhnumhun.

Serviie conlrucis with Direcinms

There are no service contracts emered info between any of our Directors and our Company for provision of
any hengtits upon termination of directorship.

Borrowing Powers of the Boarnd

Owr Articles ol Association, subjedt (o applicable low, suthorize ouwr Board 1o raise or borrow money or
secure the payment of sy cum of money for the purposes of our Company. Pursuant 1o a resolition passed
by the st the ECGM of the Company held on September 18, 2019, our Board bas been authorized 10 borrow
any sutn of money from time to time sotwithstanding that the money 1o be borrowed together with the
money dlready borrowed by the Company (apart ffom temporary loiing obtained from the Company's
bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free




reserves of our Company, provided that the total outstanding smount &0 homowed shall not any time exceed
the himit of ¥ 300 crores.

Terms und comditions of emplovment ol our Executive Directors

Auber Yusufl Dhanani was appointed as a Whole-Time Director of our Company, by vinue of resolution
passed by our Board of Directors on July 08, 2023, and by the sharcholders i the Annual General Mecting
held on July 10. 2023 for a period of 3 Conseastive years.

Remuneration puid 1o Executive Directors During FY 2022-13
During the vear wnder review, no remuneration wis paid to any executive director,
Compensation Pavable to our Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors Sitting fec

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on July 08, 2023 has fixed the sitting fees a1 Rs. 10,000/ pes
meeting payable to the Independent Director for stiending the Board and Rs. 5,000/~ per mecting payabie 1o
Independent Director for attending the Commitiee mestings.

Bonus or profit sharing plan for our Directors

Wone of our Directors are party to any boaus or profit-sharing plan of our Company
Sharcholding of Directors in our Company

Except as stated below, none of the Directors hold any Equity Shares of the Company as on date of this

Information Memorandum,
Rsoof Rarak D 1656M 5.72%
Suchitia Dhanam 638360 20.93%
Zuber Y usuf Dhanawi Nil Nil
Total 904,054 29.67%
Interests of Directors

All of the Dircctors may be deemed 1o be interested only to the extent of fees, if any, payable to them for
attendin g meetings of the Bowrd of Directors or committees thereof as well as to the extent of reimbursement
of expenses payable to them under the Articles of Association and to the extent of remuneration paid'to be
paid w0 them for services rendered as an officer or employee of the Company.

All the Directors may ahao be deemed 1o be interested 1o the extent of Equity Shares, if any, held by them
and their relatives, 10 the extent of any dividends payable to them and other distributions in respect of the
satid Equity Shares.

All the Directors may be doemed to be interested in the contracts, agreements/ amungements entered into or
1o be emtered into by our Company with any company in which they hold directorships as declared in their
respective declarations,

Except as stated otherwise in this Information Memorandum, our Company las nol entered into any
contrecl, agreement or arrangement dunng the preceding vear from the date of this Informalion
Memorandum in which the Directors are directly or indirectly interested.

The Directors have no interest in any propery acquired or proposed 1o be acquired by the Company within
67




the year preceding the date of this Information Menoranduem.

Changes in the hourd of directors in the inst three (3) years

As on the date of this Information Memorandum. except as stated below, there has been no change in the
Board of Directors of the Company i the last three (1) years:

. | Thosappully Marayanan | July 08, 2023 Addinonal Non- | Appomtment
Lt Executive  Independent
Director
July 10, 2023 M- Executive Reyulansation
Independent Director
2. | Abhay Chintaman | July 08, 2023 Additonal Non- Appointment
Chaudhart Executive Independent
Direxctior
July 10, 2023 MNon- Executive Regutarisagion
Independent Direcior
3. | Zuber Yusuf Dhanans July 21, 2021 Additional Director Appointmen!
September 27, 2021 Non-Execmtive Divector | Regularisation
July [0, 2023 Whole-Time Director Appoiniment as
Whole-Time
Director
4. | Kevum Razak Dhanani December 0, 2021 Director Resignation
Confirmarions

None of our Directors is or was a director of any lisied companies. whose shares have been or were
suspended from being traded on any stock exchanges having nabonwide terminals, during the five (3) years
preceding from the date of this Infermation Memorandwm, during therr term of directorship in such
COMPAny.

MNowe of our Directors is or was, a director of any listed companies, which has been or were delisted from
any stock exchangis), during their term of directorship m such company.

Mone of our Directors have been or wis identified as a wilfil defeulter or & friodulent borrower as defined
under SEBI 1CDE Regulations.

Mo consideration, either in cash or shares or m any other form have been paid or agreed 1o be pasd 10 2y of
owr [rectors or to the firms, tnsts or companies in which they have an interest in, by any person, cither to
incuce him to become or o help him qualify as a Director, or otherwise for services rendered by him or by
the firm. trust or company in which he is interested, im conmection with the promotion or formation of our
Compaity




Corparale oV ernance

In addition fo the tppli::ahl'-n provisions of the Companies Act with réspect o corporie governance,
provisians of SERI Listing Regulations to the extent applicable to the entity whose shares are listed on BSE
shail be applicable o us immedisely upon the listing of our Equity Shares with the BSE, We are in
complinnce with the requirements of the applicable regulations, including SEBI Listing Regulations, SERI
regulations and the Companies Adt in respect of corporate governance including constitution of the Board
and commitiees thereof,

Our Board has been constituted in compliance with the Companies Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. The
Board functions either a= o full boord or through various commitiess constituied 0 overseg specific
flnctions.

Our Company stands commined to good corponite govemance practices based on the principles such as
acoountability, transparency in dealing with owr stakcholders, emphasis on communication and transparent
report. We have complied with the roguirements of the applicable regulations, including Regulations, in
respeat of Corporate Governance mcluding constitution of the Board and its Committees. The Corporate
Governance framework is based on an effective Independent Board, the Board™s supervisory rale from the
execulive manageinent team and constitution of the Roard Committees, as reguired under law,

Constitetions of Commiticms

Our Board of Directors prosently has three (3) committees which have been conststuted in sccordance with
the relevamt provisions of the Companics Act and SEB] Listing Kegulations: (i) Andit Commitiee, (i)
Nomimation and Remoneration Commitiee and (iii) Stakeholders Relationship Committes.

in Audit Committee

Owr Company has constimned an Aodit Committee as per Section |77 and other applicable provisions ol
Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies ( Mectings of Board and its Power) Rules, 2014
and applicable Clauses of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regutations, 2015 and any other applicable zuidelines vide resolution passed in the mesting
of our Board dated Augusst 11, 2023, The constitulion of the Audit Commiltee is as follows:

Mr. Abhay Chaudhan C hairperson Non-Exccutive Independem Director,
Mr, Thottappully Narayanan | Member Non-Executive Independent Director.
Linmi,

Mr. Raovofl Rarak Dbanani | Member Mon-Executive Director,

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company would act as the Secretary 1o the Audit
Commutiee

The scope and function of the Audit Committee is in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act.
The recommendations of the Audit Commitiee on any matter relating to financial management, including
the audit report, are binding on the Board. IT the Board is not in agreement with the recommendations of
the Commities, reason for disagreement shall have to be incorporated in the minutes of the Board Metting
and the same has to be communicated to the sharebolders. The Chairman of the Audit commitice has o
antend the Annual General Mectings of the Company o provide clarifications on matters relating 1o the
audat

Tenure:
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The Awfit Committee shall continue fo be in function as & committee of the Board until otherwise resolved
by the Board, to carey out the fanctions of the Audit Commitiee s approved by the Board.

Meetings of the Committes:

The commines shall meet o bast four tmes ina vear and not more than 120 days shall elapse between any
two mectings. The quorum for the meocting shall be either two members or one third of the members of the
gommittee, whichever i higher but there shall be presence of minimam twe independent members at cach
meeting.

Role and Powers

The Role of Audit Committce together with its powers as Pant C of Schedule 11 of SEBI Listing Regulation,
2015 as amended and Companies Act. 2013 shall be 55 under:

Rade of Audit Committes

i The recommendation for the appomtment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal
of the statutory auditor, their remuneration and fixaticn of terms of apporntment of the Auditors of the
Company:

iL  Review and monitor the aaditors” independence and performance, and effectivencss of audit process;

il Examination of financisl statement and anditors” report thereon including interim financial result before
submission to the Board of Directors for approval, particularky with respect tog
a Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

b.  Major accounting enines invelving cstimates based on the exercise of judgment by menagement,
¢ Significant adjusiments made in the financial statements ansing out of audit findings,

d.  Comphance with listing and other legal reguirements relating o financial ststoments,

e Disclosure of gny related party transactions,

£ Modified opinionis) | Qualifications in the audit repor.

iv. Approval or sey subseguent modification of transactions of the Company with refsied pary, subject
following conditions;

F  The Audit Committee may make ommnibus approval for related pany transactions proposed 1o be
entered in o by the Company subject 10 such conditions provided under the Companies Act, 2013
or any subsequent modi icationd s} or amendment]s) thercol,

#  In case of ransaction, other than ranssctions refemed 1o in section |58 of Companies Act 2003 or
any suhsequent modification{s) or amendment{s) thereof, and where Audit Commitiee does not
approve the ransaction, it shall make its recommendations to the Board,

7 In case any rnsaction nvelving any amount sol excesding one crore rupees is enfered into by &
direetor or officer of the company without obtaining the approval of the Audit Committee and if 15
not ratified by the Audit Committee within three months from the date of the transaction, such
tramsaction shall be voddable st the option of the Audit Commitiee;

v. Reviewing with the mansgement, and monitoring the statement of uses ( application of funds mised

through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, ete.), the statement of fands utilized for

other than those stated in the offer document’ prospectus, and making appropriaie
recomimendations to the Board 1o ke up sieps in this malier,

vi. Scruting of imter-comporate loans and investmenix,
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vit. Reviewing and discussing the findings of any mternal investigations by the internal suditors into
matters where there is suspected frand or irregulasity or a failure of intemal conrol systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the hogrd:

viik, To review the functioning of the whistle biower mechanism, i case the same is existing
iz Valuation of undermakings vr assets of the company, where ever it i mecessary;

% Evaluation of imernal financial comtrols and risk mamagement systems and reviewing with the
management, performance of internal anditors, and adequacy of the mternal control systems; and

xi. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
sharcholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors:

i, To monitor the end use of fund invested or given by the Company to Sebsidisry Companies;

xii. Carrying oul any other fanction as assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time

Further, the Audit Comminee shall mandatorily review the following

i Statement of significant relsted party transactions (as defined by the audit commities). submitted by
managentent.

i, Management letiers / betters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statwtory auditors;

il Internal audit reports relating to intomal control weaknesses; and

iv, The appoiniment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Internal Auditor,

v. Quarterly / half yearly staternent of deviation(s), if applicable, submitted o stock exchangeis) in terms
of Repulation 32 [ &

vi. Annual statement of fumds wtilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectns.

Further, the Andit Commitree shall have power;

i Toinvestigate any activity within its terms of reference;

il. Toseek information from any emplovess;

iii. Toobtain cutside legal or other professions] advice; and

. Tosecure attendance of eutsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

v. Call for the comments of the auditors shout internal control systems, the scope of audit, including the
observations of the suditors and review of financial saement before their submission w the Board and
may alsa discuss any related issues with the internal end statuiory auditors and the management of the
cOmpany.

vi. To investigate inlo amy matter in refation to the items specified in sub-section (4) of Section | 77 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or referred to it by the Board and for this purpose shall have power to obtain

professional advice from external sources and have full acoess to information contained in the records
of the company.

{1y Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee

Chur Company has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committes in terms of Section 1 78, Schadule
W amd other spplicable provisions of Companies Act. 2013 read with rule 6 of the Companies {Meetings of
Board and its Power) Rules, 2014 and applicable clauses of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regubations, 2015 and any other applicable guidelines. m the
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meeting 0f the Board of Directors held on Auguest |1, 2023, The Nominastion and Remmeration Commitiee
presently corsists of the following Directors of the Boand.

Mr. Abkhay Chaudhri Chairperson Nor-E xevigive Independent Director,
Mr. Thottappully Member Mor-Executive Independent Director.
Maravanan L.

Mrs. Suchitr Drhangns Member Mon- Executive Director

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company would act as the Secretary to the
Nomination and Remuneration Commities.
Tenure:

The Momination and Remunerstion Comminee shall continue 1o be in finction 44 & committes of the Boand
until otherwise resolved by the Board,

Meetings:
The commitiee shall mest 25 and when the need arises for review of Managerial Remumeration. The quoram
for the meeting shall be one third of the tofal strength of the committes or two members, whichever =
higher. The Chairperson of the nominabion and remuncration ¢ommitice may be present at the annual
general meeting, (0 answer the shareholders queries; however, it shall be up to the cheirperson o decide
who shall answer the gueries
Raode of Terms of Reference:
{1} Formudate the eriteria for determining quakifications, positive stirtbutes and imdependence of a
Darector:
11 Recommend the Board, a policy. relsting o the remumeration for the directors. key managerial
personnel and other employees;
{3} Whale formul sting the policy. the Commitee shall comsider the following:

a) the level and composition of remunention is reasonable and sufficient 10 attract, retain
and motivare directors of the quality reguired 1o run the company successfully,

b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriaie perfomtance
benchmarks, and

¢} remuneralion o directors. kev managerial personnel and senior management involves o
halance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
ohjectives appropriate fo the working of the company and §ts goals:

{4) Carry out sech other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and | or enforced by
amy statutory noti fication, amendment or modification as may be applicable.
(iii)  Soakeholders Relationship Commitiee
Our Company has constituted the Stakeholders R elationship Commities i terms of Section | 75 sub section
{3) and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting
of Board and its Power) Rules, 2014 and applicable clauses of Securitics and Exchange Board of India
{ Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regurements) Regulatons, 2013, mn the mesting of Board of Directors
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dated August |1, 2023, The Stakeholders Relationship Committee presently consists of the following
Direetors of the Board:

Mr. Abhay Cheadhari C hairperson Noa-Executive Independent
Dhirector.

M. Thattapgulle Naravaman Lnni. Aember Mon-Executive |ndependent
Directior.

Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani Member Non- Executive Director

Mr. Zuber Yusuf Dhanani hfember W hole-Time Director

Mr, Raoof Razak Dhanani Member Non- Executive Director

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company would act as the Secretary to the
Stakeholder™s Refationship Commitiee

Tenure:

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall continue 10 bé in fundtion as a commitiee of the Board until
otherwise resolved by the Board, 1o carry oul the functions of the Stakeholders Relationship Comminiee as
approved by the Board.

Mestings:

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is required 10 meet af least once a year and report o the Board
o a quarterly basis regarding the status of redressal of complaints received from the sharcholders of the
Company. The quonum shall be two members present.

Terms of Keferenee:

Redressal of shareholders” and mvestors” complaints, including and in respect of

The rofe of Sakeholder Relmionship Commiltee, together with its powers, is 85 follows:
L Redreszal of shareholders™ and investors” complaints, including and in respect of

i, Alletment, transfer of shares incloding transmission. splitting of shares, changing joint holding
nta single holding and vice versa, issae of dupficate shares in licu of those tom, destroved, lost
or defaced or where the space at back for recording transfers have been fally wtilized.
Issue of duplicate centificates and new certificates on splitconsohdation/ renewal, etc ;
iil. Mor-receipt of shase certificate(s). nomereceipt of declared dividends, nos-receipt of
inierestidividend warrants, non-receipt of annual report and any other gricvance/complaings with
Company or any officer of the Company ansing o in discharge of his duties.
2. Keview the process end mechanism of redressal of Sharcholders’ Anvestor's grievance and suggest
messures of improving the system of redressal of Sharcholders” /nvesiors” grievances.
3. Efficient transter of shares; including review of cases for refusal of transfer | transmission of shares
and debentures;
4. Reviewing on a periodic basis the approvalrefusal of transfor or ransmission of shares, debentures
or any other securities;
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Issue of duplicate ceni ficates and mew certi ficates on split‘consolidagion/renswal;
Allctment and Bsting of shares:
Review of mensures taken for effective exencise of voting rights by shareholders.

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of vaniows
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

% Review of the various measures and mitiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum
of enclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrams/annual reports/ siabtory
notces by the sharcholders of the Company.

0. Oversee the implcmentation and complizace of the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company for
prevention of Insider Trading for Listed Companies as specified in the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Prohibition of insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

Th Amy other power specifically essigned by the Board of Dincctors of the Company from time (o time
by way of resolution passed by it in & duly conducted Meeting, and

12 Cirryvingz out any other function contained in the equity bsting agreements a5 and when amended
frowm thime 1o time.

i3 Carrving oul such other functions as may be specified by the Board from time to time or
specified/provided under the Companies Act or by any other regulatory suthority.
Policy on disclosures and internal procedure for prevention of [nsider Trading

The provisions of regulation 9(1) of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulstions, 2015 will be
applicable o our Company immediately upon the listing of jts Equity Shares on the BSE. We shall comply
with the requirements of the SERI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulstions, 2015 on listing of Equoity
Shares on stock exchanges. The Board of Directors at their mesting held on Avgust |11, 2023 have approved
and adopted the pelicy for prevention of insider trading.

The Company Scerctary & Cempliance Officer will be responsible for semting forth policies, procedures,
monitcning and sdherence w the nules for the preservation of price seasitive information and the
implemantation of the Code of Conduct under the overall supervision of the Board.

Poliey for determination of materiality & materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing
with Related Party Transactions

The provisions of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015 will be
applicable 1o our Company immedistely upon the listing of Equity Shares of ouar Company on BSE. We
shall comply with the requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 on listing of Equity Shares on the BSE. The Board of Directors 2t their meeting heid on
Angust 11. 2023 have approved and adopied the policy for determination of materinlity and determination
of materality of related party transactions and on dealing with related party transsetions.
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Our Company is manayed by our Board of Directors, assisted by qualified and experienced professionals,
who are permanent cmployees of our Company. Following w the Key Managerial Personnel of our
Company:

Briel Profile af Key Managerial Personnel:
Luber Yusuf DMunani, Whale-Time Director

For the complete profile of Zuber Yosuf Dhaneni, along with details of his educational qualifications,
professional expericnce, position/posts held i the past, directorships held, specinl achievements and
business and financial activities, see chapter “Onr Mumagement - Bricf Blegraphies of wur Direciors™
beginning on page 63 of this Information Memoranduin.

Kamya Jain, Company Secretary and Compliance (HTcer

Kamya Jam, sged 28 vears s Company Secretary & Compliance (MTicer of our Company. She was
appointed by our Boord of Directors in their meeting held on Moy 27, 2023, She holds the degree of
Company Secretary from Institute of Company Secretaries of India and has an experience of aroand 1 years
in secretarial complisnces, Prior 1o joining our Company, she was associsled with Agrawal Mundra &
Adsocinles

Arpita Jain, Chicl Financial Officer

Arpita Jaim, aged 32 yvears s Chicef Frnancial Officer of oor Company. She was appointed by our Board of
Directors in thelr meeting held on August 28, 2023, She holds the degree of Chartored Accousntant from
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indis and has an experience of aromd 7 years in finance related
matiers. Prior @0 foining our Company, she was associated with varswis limited and private limited
companics.

Nature of any family rebation between any of the key managerial personnel

As on the dute of this Information Memorandum, nose of our Kev Mamagerial Personnel is related to each
other,

Arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, cnstomers, suppliers or others

None of the above Key Managerial Personnel have been seleciad pursuant to any amangement/
understanding with mapor shareholders/customerssuppliers.

Bonus or profit-sharing plan for Key Managerial Personnel

Mone of the Key Management Personnel is party 1o any bonus or profit-sharing plan of our Company other
than the perfirmance linked incentives given to each Key Management Personnel.

Sharehohling of the hev Managerial Personnel

MNone of the Key Managerial Porsonnel bolds Equity Shares of our Company as on the date of this
Informatinn Memarandum

Interest of key Manngerial Personmcd

Except as disclosed i this Information Memomndum, the key Managerial Personnel of our Company do
not have any interest in our Company other than to the extent of their sharcholding, remunerstion or
benefits 1o which they are entitled e as pér their lenms of appomtment and reimbursement of eipenses
incurred by them during the ordinary course of business.

Employees” Stock Option Plan
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OUR PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP

As on date of this Information Memorandum, the Promoters of our Company holds 22,83 406 Equity
Shares aggregaiing o T4.95% of the Equity Share Capital. Our Promoters have acquired shareholding in
our Compiny porsuant 1o the Scheme. Sayaji Hotels Limited was the original promoter of oor Company.

CHANGES IN (MR PROMOTERS

Our Company was incorporated on May [0, 2018, Sayaji Hotels Limited held 100% of the sharcholding of
our Company till the Scheme become effective. Posssnl to the Composite Scheme, the sharcholding of
Sayaji Hotels Limited was cancelled on allotment of new Equity Shares ie.. on September 6, 2023. Post
allctmsent, 2281406 Equity Shares equivalent to TL93% of our paid-up equity share capital are held by
Prowmiders.

DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL PROMOTEHRS OF OUR COMPANY

Raoof Barak Dhanani, aged aboui 60 venrs. He 1s the
Promoter of the C ompany.

PAN: ACTPDILISZA

Address: 28| Kalpataru Heizhts. 28ih Floor, Dr. A Naw Road
Mlumbai Central Mumbai Maharsshtra 4000 1 1

Diaie of Birth: December 13, 1963

Educational Qualifications: He has Passed his higher
sevondary school from Yidyakunj High School. Vadodara.
Experience in the field: He 5 having an expericnce of over §
wvears o hotel mansgement and adminstration

For details of his sharcholding. see “Capifal Sfracfure™ on page
35 of thas Information Memommdum.

Kayum Eazak Dhanani, aged abowt 51 vearz. He 5 the
Promoter of the C ompany,

PAN: ABWPDSI95M

Address: Van Goghs Garden Uit Mo 302, Kastorba Road
Cross. Muonscipal No 30, Ward Ne76, Bengaloro MNorth
Bengalurs Kamataka 560001.

Date of Birth: May 07, 1972

Educational Qualifications: He holds a diploma in sole
making from the Central Leather Research Institute, Chennai

Experience in the feld: He has an expenence of over 12 yvears
in the business of mansfaciurnng, processing and elling leather
goods including, soles, shovs and other leather accessonies

For detnils of his sharcholding, see “Capilal Structure”™ on page
35 of this Informaiion Memorandum.




Suchitra Dhanani, sged about 39 years. Ske is the Promoter of
the Company.

FAN: ACTPD1 1590

Address: Sagz. BF 8 & 9, Schemse No. 74-c Vijay Nagar Indore
Madivyn Pradesh 252010

Dute of Births July 13, 1964

Fducational (Jualifications: She holds hachelor's degree in
home science and gualified as master in social works.
Experience in the field: She is having an expericnce of over
|& years in hotel management ard administration.

For details of her sharcholding see “Capitel Structure™ on
page 35 of this Information Memorandum

Anisha Raoof Dhanani, agsd about 54 years. She = the
Promoter of the Company.

PAN: ACTPDIN1IC

Address: Flat 281, 28th Flr, Katpataru Heights DR A, Nair
RD, Agripada Mumbai Maharashtra 400011,

Date of Birth; August 3, [968

Educational Qualifications: She completed her 12th class in
September 1936 from Vidvakun High School
Experience in the fleld: She is engaged in managing some of
the group related companies of the Promoters.

For details of ber shareholding, we “Capital Siracture™ ou
page 33 of this Information Memorandum.

Rafigunniza Magsood Merchant, aged about 6! years. She 5
the Promoter of the Company.

PAN: AADPMTT66F

Address: Flat™o. 401, Diya Residency, 24-Shobhama Nagar,
Vasoa Rosd, Vadodara-300007, Gujarat.

Date of Birth: August 11, 1962
Edweational Qualifications: Bachelor of Commerce

Experience in the feld: She has a experience of over 10 vears
in fiekd of mamagment & human resource.

For detmils of ber shareholding, see “Copine! Sorocture™ on
paze 38 of this Information Memorandum.
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Shamim S heikh, aged about 52 vears. He 15 the Promoter of
the Company.

FAN: AWFPS9591F

Address: B-T AWHO Colony, Bhupender Vibar, Scheme No.
TE, Vijay MNagar. Indore (M_P)

Date of Birth: April 05, 1971

Edpeational Qualifications: Rachelor of Commerce
Experience in the field: She has over 5 vears of experience in
hospatality industry

For details of her sharcholding. see “Capital Strucimre™ on
page 35 of this Information Memorandism

Mansoor Mohmed [smail Memon, aged about 50 vears. He is
the Promoter of the Company.

PAN: ARCPN9798A

Address: Plot No. 703, Sarthi Tower, Fategunj, Barnda
Diste of Birth: October 10, 1973

Educstional Qualifications: B E Mechamcal

Eaperience in the fleld: Onver 135 years of experience n
hospitality incustry

For details of his shareholding, sec “Capital Strucfure™ on page
35 of this Information Memorandum.

Azhar Yusaf Dhanani, aged about 25 yenrs He is the Promoler
of the Company.

PAN: BNTPDS599M

Address: 2401, Vivant by National Groop, Palm Beach Road,
Sanpeda Sector 17, Near Kesar Solitaire Thane Maharashirs
400705

Date of Rirth: April 0%, 1998

Educational Qualifications: Bachelor of Commerce from
University of Mombai.

Experience in the field: He has an experience of 5 years of the
hospitality industry

For detnsis of his shareholding, see “Capital Sfructure™ on page
38 of this Information Memorandmm




Bipasha Dhanani, aged about 36 years. She is the Promoter of
the Company.

PAN: ABAPBOTISC

Address: C-201, Maniri Espana, Opp Intel, Mamthhalli Cuter

Ring Road Kariysmmana, Agrabama. Bangalore, Kamataka-
560103,

Date of Birth: Aagust 30, 1966

Educational Qualifications: BA (Bachelor of Arts) m French
from S Auwrobindo Internatwosal Centre of Education.

Experience in the feld: She has an expenience of 22 years m
the business of manufacturing. processing and sciling feather
goods incheding. soles, shoes and other leather accessories

For details of her shareholding. se¢ “Capital Stracture” on

| page 35 of this Information Memaorandum.

Sadiva Racof Dhanani, sged sbout 29 years. She s the
Fromoter of the T ompany.

PAN: AKFPD7407F

Address: 781, Kalpataru Heights, 28th Floor, Dy, A MNair Road
Mumbai Central Mumbai Maharashtra 40001 |

Date of Birth: December 21, 1994

Edocational Qualifications: She has & bachelor’'s degree
arts from University of Mumbai and corrently she is engaged in
her further studies.
Engrigmghﬂlﬁtﬂtﬁhch&mnpﬂmnﬂj}md'
hospitality industry.

For details of her shareholding, see “Capital Stracture™ on
page 35 of this Information Memorandum.
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Saba Raoof Dhanani, aged about 3| years. She 5 the Promoles
of the Company.

FaN: AKFPO7406E

Address: 281, Kalpatare Heights, 28th Floor, Dr. A Nair Road
Mumbai Central Mombai Mahsrashtra 40001 1

Date of Rirth: March (5, 1902

. | Educarionasl (Jualifications: She has a bachelor’s degree in

management studics from |.ala Lajpatrai Cotlege of Commernce
gnd economics, Mumbai.

Experience in the fleld: She has an experience of 5 years inthe
hospitality industry,

For details of her sharcholding see “Capital Stractare™ on
page 35 of thes Information Memorandum.
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Samers Racol Dhanani, aped about 13 vears. She B the
Promoter of the Company.

PAN: AKBPDS 142P

Address: 281, Kalpataru Heights, 28th Floor, Dr. A ™air Road
Mumbai Central Mumbai Maharashtra 40001 1

Date of Birth: June 20, 1588

Educational Qualifications: She haz a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from London Metropohtan Universing.
Experience in the feld: She kas a experience of around 3 years
in hospitality imdustry

For details of her sharcholding. see “Capisal Strwcture™ on
page 35 of this Information Memorandum.

Samva Dhanani, sped about 28 veurs. She is the Promoter of
the Company.

PAN: COVPDS 198M

Address: Saaz 8.9 BF, Scheme No. 74-¢ Viay Nagar Indore
Madiya Pradesh 432010

Date of Birth: September 12, 10635

Educational Qualifications; Bachelor of scence &
imstermational hospialiy operations.

Experience in the field: She has 2 experience of around 5 vears
in hospitality ndustry

For details of ber shoreholding, see “Capital Structure™ on
page 35 of this Information Memorandum.

Foya Dhanani, aged about 25 years. She is the Promoter of the
Compamy.

PAN: COWPDL264K

Address: Saaz 8-9 BF, Scheme No. Té-c Vijay Nagar Indore

Madhya Pradesh 452010

Duie of Birth: September 23 1908

Educational Qualifications: She has s bachelor’s degree in
busiress studies from Fordkam Universiny New York (LLSA)
Experience in the fiegld: She has o experience of around 5 yesrs
in hospitality industry

For details of her shareholding. see “Capind Strucrare™ on
page 35 of this Information Memorandum




Zuaber Yosul Dhanani, aged abowt 23 vears. He i the
Promoter of the Company.

PAN: BNTPDERATL

Address: 903/ 1904 Ses gueen Hertage CHS, Plol mo &,
Sector |8 Mavi Mombai Sanpada, Thane 4007635,

Date of Birth: January 27, 2000
Eduwcutionad  Qualifications: Bacheior of business
administration from Flame University, Pune.

Experience im the field: He has recently jommed hospitaliy
irclustiry.

For details of his shareholding see “Capiial Structure™ on page
33 of this Informaton Memorandum.

DECLARATION

Dur Company confiems that the Permanent Accoant Number (PAN], Asdhar Cand Mumber, and Passport
Numben{z) if any, of our Promoters shall be submimed to the Stock Exchange &t the time of filing this
Infopmation Memorandum,

O Promoters and the members of our Proimater Group have confirmed that they bave not been identified
as willful defaulters by the BBl or any other governmental authority.

Our Proinoters has not been declared as a fugitive economic ofTender under the provisions of section 12 of
the Fugitive Econamic Offenders Act. 2008

Except as stated in Chapter “Ouistanding Litigation and Other Muterial Developments™ on page 117 of
this Information Memorandum, no violstions of securdes taw have been committed by our Promolers or
members of our Promoler Growsp or any Groap Compamés m the past Or 15 camrently peading asaanst hme
Mone of (i) our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group or persons in controf of or on the boards
of bodies corporate forming part of our Growp Companies (ii) the Companies with which asy of our
Promaoters are or were associated as a promoter, direcior or person i control, are debarred or prohibited
from accessing the capital markets or restrained from buying selling. or dealing in seaurities umder any
order or directions passed for any reasons by the SEBI or any other authority or refusad listing of any of
the socurities isswed by any such entity by any stock exchange n India or abroad.

INTEREST OF PROMOTERS

Chur Promoters are interested in our Company 1o the extent (1) that they have promoted osr Comparn; (2)
of their respective shareholding the shareholding of their relatives and entities in which the Promoters are
interested and which hold Equity Sharcs in our Company and the dividend payable upon such shareholding
if any, and other distributions in respect of the Equity Shares beld by them, their relatives or such entitics,
if amy; (3} that our Company hes undermaken tramsactions with them, or thenr relatives oF entilies in which
our Promoters hold shares or have an interest, if applicable; {4) employment related benefits paid by our
Company e remuneration and reimbursement of expenses payable to them in such capacities; and (3)
persomi guaraniees piven by Promoters and mortzaee of their flal for securing the loans availed by the
Company.

For further details, please refer to the heading “Summary of Related Party Transactions™ in chapier tithed
“Information Memoramdum Swmmary®, “Capital Structure”, and “Hiviory and Certain Covporate
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Matters™ beginning on peges 15, 35, and 61, respectively of this Information Memorandum.

Interest in the properties of our Company

Except as mentioned in the chapters titled “Business Overview™ and “Restated Audited Fimancial
Statement” beginning on pages 59 and 101 respectively of this Information Memorandom, neither the
Promoters nor any member of the Promoter Group kave any interest in any property acquired by or proposed
to be sogiured by our Company sice mcOrparaton.

Bk '

Except as stated otherwizse m this Information Memorandum, we have not enlered mio amy contracl
agrecments or amangements i which our Prometers are directly or indivectly interested and no payments
have been made to them in respect of the contracts, agreements or arangements which are proposed o be
made with them including the propertics purchased by our Company and development rights entered into
by our Company other than in the normal course of business. For further details, piease refer o heading
Refured Pargy Transactions in the chapter titled “Restated Andited Fingnciol Stuterments™ on page 101
of this Information Memorandum.

COMMON PURSUTTS OF OUR PROMOTERS

Except as disclosed in the chapter tithed “Owr Group Compunies = Common Pursaits of oar Group
Compamies™ on page 92 of this Information Memorandum, our Promoters are ot involved with any
verlures which are in the same line of activity or busingss as that of our Company.

PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS OR BENEFITS TO THE FPROMOTERS OR PROMOTER GROUP
DURING THE LAST TWO YEARS

Encept as stuted in the Chapter tithed “Restated Amdited Financial Statemsenis™ beginning on page 100 of
thiz Information Memorandum, there has been no peyment of benefits to our Promolers or Promoter
Growp during the fwo years preceding the date of this Information Memorsndum.,

MATERIAL GUARANTEES

As on the date of this Information Memorandum, there are no material guarantees given by the Promoters
to third parties with respect 1o spegified secarities of the Company.
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COMPANIES WITH WHICH OUR PROMOTERS HAS DISASSOCIATED IN THE LAST
THREE (3) YEARS

Exeept as mentioned below our Promoters have not disnssociated themsetves from any companies, firms
or entities during the kst three vears preceding the date of this Information Memorandam:

| | Rsoof Rarak Dhanani | Catwalk Worldwide Private L mited July 4, 2022
Saba Reality Prvate Limited August 7, 2021
Ahilya Hotels Limied* Angust 1, 2023
Savay Hotels Management Limited® Augest 1. 2023

Z | Kayum Razak Movember |1, 220

Savsji Hotels Limited

Dhanan
Callidus Shoemakers Private Limited Jemuary 10, 2022
Carwalk Worldwide Privane Limited July 4, 2022
Sayup Hotels (Pune) Lirndted December 1, 2021
Savap Hotets Mamagement L imited December |, 2021

Malna Hospitality Private Limied

Movember 13, 2020

3 | Suchara Dhanani

Savaj Hotels Management Limated

August 1, 2023

Ahilva Hotels Limiged

August 1, 2023

* Cessation puryuet io the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arramgement
(MR FROMOTER GROLUPF

In addition te our Promoters, the fodlowing individuals, companies form part of our Promoter Group in
terms of SEBI ICDR Regulation 2( 1) {pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations:

a)  The marwraf pervons whe ore part of the Prometer Groap (due o their reflatiomsfips wirh our
Promiters), other than owr Promoters, are av follows:

{(Drivorced )

Sona Dharmni
Razak Déwanani Razak Dhanani S KR Udar
Rabin Bai Dhanani | Rabia Bai Dhenam Rohini Udar
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Kavum Razak Dhanan Yusuf Razak Dhanani Akshay Udar

Yusuf Rarak Dhamani, Raoof Razak Dhanani

Late Sajud Razak Dhanany Late Sajd Razak Dhanani.

Masim Sojit Desai Measim Sujit Desal N4

Shamim Sheikh Shamim Sheikh

Ciulshanbanu Memon Gulshanbanu Memon

Fizbibunisha Dhanan Tiabibunisha Dhanani '

Rafiqurmisa Magsood | Rafqunnisa Magsood

Merchanl Merchant

NA | Samar Dhanani. NA

Saba Darant Meher Dhanani Samyn Dhanani

Sumera Dhanani Akansha Sara Dhasam., Zoya Dhanani

Sadiya Dhanani.

Magid Satarbhas Memon, Late Svchet Smzh Yadav | Razak [hanani

Faring Bai Majid Memon. Saviin Devi Yadav Rabia Bai Dhanam

NA NA Kazyum Rark Dbhamani
Yisuf Razak Dhanarsi
Racof Razak Dhanani.

NA Suman Aggarwel Nasim Sujit Desai

Sujata Yadav Shamim Sheikh
Sumaina Yadav Gulshanbam Memnon

Habibunizha Dhaismni
Rafiqurnisa Magsood
Merchant




Raool” Eazak Décrsam Magsood Merchant Salim Sheikh
Majad Samrbbai Memeon., Razak Diwarsmi Rarak [Maram
Zaring Bai Majid Memon. Rabig Aai D Rabm Bz Dhanam
Eavurm Memon Kavum Rarak Dhanani Kayum Ramk Dhanani
Harshad Memaon Yusuf Rarak Dhanani Yusuf Rarak Dhanani
Rebman Memon Racof Razak Dihanami Raoof Rarak Dhanani
Late Sajid Dhanasi Late Ssjid Dhanani
Shetbha s Charvesh Nasirn Swyit. Pesai MNasim Sajit Desal
Faimalh Darveih Shamim Sheikh Gulshanbann Memoa
Ciulshanbang Meman Habibumsha iarsmi
Mercham
S NA Mohammed Merchant NA
=
Saba Dhanani Hanadi Merchant Sabiva Sheikh
Sumera Dharani Hayat Merchant Nadia Sheikh
I—
5y Kazak Dhanani Late Mr. Yosuf Ebrahim | Haji Umar Sheikh
Merchant
Rabia Bai Dhanan Late Mrs Banoo Yusul | Sharifa Sheikh
Merchant
Kayum Razak Dhansni Afzal Yusuf Mescham Shafi Sheakh
¥ usof Razak Dhanani, Imtizz Yusaf Merchant.
Late Sajid Dhanani Shakee! Yusul Meorchant
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Nasim Sujit Desai Kansar Ehtesham | Rubina Sheikh
Shamim Sheikh Clhantovln.
Crulshanbanu Meman
| Habibumisha Dihanani
Rufiquinisa Magsoed
Merchant
- T -1"'-_. is Ll
L .1 N B fl
= Saba Sultane Mermon MNA Kovum Hamk Dhanam
(Divorced)
.'-_1'_ Mokhmed Ishail Memon Yusuf Razak Dhanam Purenendu Pal
& Cralshuh Ban Memon Shazia Dhanan! Maya Pal
| Mohsmmed Ahmed Momon | Zuber Dhanam NA
_.._. ! fl':“ﬁﬂ-
| Sadugua Banu ™A NA
- Alils Memon
| Mohammed Hussain | NA NA
| Memon
RS Anmens Momon NA Akanksha Sara Dhanani
| Rida Memon
| Abdul Jaleel NA Razak Dharani
1
n- Raool” Rurak Dhansnt




Sabiva, Sadiva NA Nasim Sl Desai
Shamim Sheikh
Ciulshnnbanu Memon
| Habibunizha Dhanani
R Ficpurn sa Magponsd
Merchant
-.:: !|{.I'.-.I-_-"
T Humeza Aziz Vallillah Sayed Jameel Taher Rizwan Rafique Shaikh
. Ravof Rarsk Dhanni Racof Harak Dianani Racof Razk Dhanani
Anasha Dhanani Anisha Dhanani Anisha Dhanani
WA M MA
it Saba Dhanani Sumera Dhanani Saba  Dhanani,  Sadiys
Sumera Dhanani Saifrva Dhanani Eomnan.
NA Ibeahim Jameel Seved Aadam Rizwan Shaikh.
Isa Jameel Sayed
= ;.l.r_'. T.E' ' :
NA NA Imara Rizwan Shaikh
fr—
L s Aziz Amaloddin Valiulls | Taher Sayed Bawamiya Rafigue Abdul Hafiz Shakh
' Mahera Valiully Farzana Sayed Nikhat Rafique Shaikh
- NA Rail Sayed NA
Danssh Sayed
Kausar Valulls NA Rizwan Rafigue Shaikh
&9




MNA NA MA

Late Sapid Dhanani Late Sajid Dhanani Yusuf Rarak Dhanani

Suchitra [ ¥anani Suchitra Dhanani Shazia Dbanani

NA NA Azhir Yusuf Dhanani
. dova Dhanani Sanva Dhanani NA

NA NA NA

MNA NA NA

M NA NA

A NA NA

NA NA NA

NA MA NA

B Companics‘Entitex forming pari of the Promater Group:

As per Regulation 2(1) (ppi il and v} of the SEBTICDR Regulations, the following Companies £ Trusty
Parmership firma / HUFs or Sole Proprictorships shall farm part of eur Promoter Group

—
e el

o el

'—=—=‘ .E'i: = -

K Alisha Agropohos Private Limited

- Super Civiltech Services Limited

3 Saba Realry Private Limned

4 ESL Hospitality Private Limited

5, A. K. Hospitality Limited

f Samar Lifestyle Private Limited

I Sara Suoke Privete Limited

5 Wehlterman International Limited

9. Fat Bean Hospitality Private Limited




1L

Aries Hatels Private Limited

1.

12

Ahilya Hotels L imited

1

Alter Vegan Foods Private Limited

Crystal lnfraspace Private Limited

I5.

Rida Hospirality Private Lamited

[

Liberty Femilizers Limited

1T

Liberty Construction and Lensing Limited

18

Sayuji Foods Private Linited
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OUR GROUP COMPANIES

As per the SERI ICDR Regulations, for the purpose of identification of group companics, eur Company
has considered (i) companies (other thas cur subsidiaries) with which our Company has entered into related
party transactions durmg the period for which the Restated Audited Financial Statememt has been
inchuded in this Information Memorandam, Le, for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, Financial
Year ended March 31, 2022 and Financial Year ended March 31, 2021, a3 covered under the applicable
s¢counting standards, and (i) any other companies considered material by the hoard of directors of the
refevant issuer Company.

Accordmgly, for (1) sbove, all such companies {other than our subsidiaries) with which there were related
party Frinsactions during the periods covered in the Restated Audited Financial Statement, as covered
under the applicable accounting standards, shall be considered as Growp Companies in terms of the SERI
ICDR Regulations.

OUR GROUP COMPANY

*  SAYAN HOTELS LIMITED (“SHL™)

Corporate Information

Sayap Hotels Limited was incorporated on Apeil 05, 1982, The corporate identification number af Savaji

Hotels Limited s L3 1 100TNI982PLC 124332 The registered office of Sayaji Hotels Limited is situated
M F1 C3 Sivavel Apartment 2 Alagappa Magar, Zamin Pallavaram Chennai-6001 17, Tamil Nadu, India

Mature of Activithes

SHL & engaged m the business of designed holels catering o both leisare and business travellers with
styfish geeest rooms and versatile mecting fasifities.

Capital Structure
As on March 31, 2023, the authorised share capital of SHL i as below:

Authoriscd Capital

3,00.00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 aach 30.00,0:0,000
10,00.000 Preference Shares of INR 100 each 10,0000, 000
Total 1,00.00. 000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

L,75,18.000 Fquity Shares of INK. 10 each 17.51,80,000
LO,00,000 10%% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of TNR 100 each 16,00, 00, D0
Tatal 27.51.80,000

As on the date of this Information Memorandum, the Equity Shares of SHL are listed on BSE.




Financial Performamce

Sayaji Hotels Limited fimancial information with respect o demils of reserves (excluding revaluation
reserves), sales, profit afier tas, eamings per share, dilited enmings per share and net asset value, derived
from the sodited standalone financinl statements for Financinl vesr 2022-23 of SHL is as follows,

(T im Lakha)
Equity Sharc Capial 175180
Heserve & Surplus 1233745
Met Waorth 1297925
Total Reverus 927343
et Profit(Loss) afier Tax (after considering Comprehensive Income) S4K2.81
EPS (in T) of face value T 10 ench
Basic J0LES
Doiutod kLR 2
Met asset value per share (in T} ™.80
“ds subopieel by the Board without giving the i:ﬁ'ﬂ.ql"u'.h' Scheme
Particulars As at Mareh 31,2023
Fquity Share Capital 1,751.80
Reserve & Surplus 2259.69
Met Warth 4011.48
Total Revenoe 14173.69
Net Profit/iLiss) after Tax (after considering Comprebensive Income) 2640 26
EPS (in ¥) of face valoc ¥ 10 cach
Bazi: 1621
Dnlusted 1621
Met aseet value per share (i 2) .00

*Rextated Purswarit to Scheme of Arrangement
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= BARBEQUE-NATION HOSPITALITY LIMITED (*BNHL")

Corporsie Infsrmation

Barhogque-MNotien Hospirality | imited was Mpﬂ&mﬂ:mhrl! mmmmﬁﬁn
sumber of Barbegue-Nation Hoapimlity Limited s L55101 KA2DDGPLCO7303]. The registarcd office of
Barbeque-Nation Hosprality Limiled 5 situated at Saket Callipols, Unit No. 601 & #02, éth Floor,
Doddskansalli Village, Varthur Hobli Sar japur Road NA Bengaluru Bangaloce KA 360035, India

Nature of Activithos

s To own, comstruct, run render sechmical advice in comstrecting, furnishing and running of,
ukeover, manage, carry oo busingss of motel, botel, restayramt, caje, tvern, bars, refreshrmen
roores, boarding and lodging hoase keepers, clubs, 1ssaciations in India and w provide lodging and
hoarding. restauwrani, eating houses, bakery, confectiomery, bar, swimming pools and cothers
facilities 1o the public meluding tourists, visitors and delegntes coming to India from forsgn
countries and o allow Indian as well as foreign defegates o hold ntematiomal confierences,
serinars, etc. wnd to give all facilities 1w members of delcgatons, misssons from abroad and foreign

countries end 1o encoorage and camy on and fcilitate tolsrist trade in lnda
» To cery on the business of buying. sclling reselling. importing. cxporting, dealing. storng.
stocking, wading, distribution of frozen and non Frozen food wems such a5 fish, prawn, crabs and
a1l sea food, sutton, chicken, fruis and vegetsbles, spices, nils, oil. dairy & bakery prodects,
preservation of potsoes, fresh vepembles, agriceliural products, freits, dry fruits. fruit juices. oo
cindy, ke cream and other ice products, carbonated, acrated mineral water and synthetic drinks;
all types of restarants fominme, coal, crockery, cutlery, Bar Accessorics, Kitchen Accessaries
Service Accewsories and all tvpes of oquipment of the restaurants, FEB consumables,
Housckecpng consumables, all office statiosery, saff uniforms, all types of restaurant utemsils, in
any manner whatsoever in all type of goods on retail as well as on wholesale basis in Indie or

putside India *
Capital Siructure
Ason March 31, 2023, the authonzed share capital of BNHL 15 as belowr
Marticuinrs Amauai s INR
Awtharised Capital
6.00,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 5 sach 30,00, 010040
Total BRI L
lisued, Subscribed sad Paid up
3.89 78,401 Equity Shares of TNR § each 19.48,92,005
Total 19.48.92.085
Financial Performance

Barbeque-Nation Hospimtiay Limited financial information with respect 10 details of reserves {exclading
revakeation reserves), sales, profic offer tax, @mings per share, diluled carmings per share and npet asset
value, derived from the sudited sandalone fingecial statements for Financaal year 2022-13 & s follows.




(T in Lalkhs)

Asal Mareh 31, 20

Equity Share Capital 1.948.92
Roserve & Surplus 40.951.30
MNet Worth 41.900.22
Total Revenue | 0% 36020
Net Profiv/{ Loss) after Tax (afier considering Comprehensive Incoms) DD
EPS (in?) of face value T 5 each

Basic 1.7
Diluted 1.7
Met asset value per share {in 3) 110.05

#  BMALWA HOSPITALITY FRIVATE LIMITED (“MHPL™)
Corporate Information

Mahea Hospitality Private Limitad was incorporstod on March 26, 2008. The corporste identification
number of Seyaji Hoel Limied is USI209MP2OG8PTCO20502. The megisiered office of Malwa
Hospitality Private Limited is situated at Plot no, 10-C'C.A Scheme no 94, Seetor C Indore [ndore MP
452010 , |nubin

MNuture of Activitics

To carmy on the business of hotel, restaurant, Might kitchen, <afé, tavem, beer house, wine bar, refreshment
rrom and lodging house keepers, ficessed victuadlers, wine, beer and spint merchant, brewers, masiers,
distiflers and importers of food, live and dead stock and colontal and hair dressers, perfumers, preprictor of
clubs, baths, dressing rooms, lasndrics, Wbranes, ground sport, entertamment and mstrocton of all kind,
agemi for railvay anid shipping cormpanies carrrers, the artiche and opera box office proprietors.

Caupital Structure
As on March 31, 2023, the authorised share capital of MHPL s as bdow:

| Pt ieniors Amaant o ISR

Autharised Capital |
1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 sach 15,00,00,000 |
Tokal 15.00,00,000
lszued, Sehscribed and Paid up ]




1.33,44,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each 13.34,40,000
Tutal 133440, 000

Financial Performance

Maban Hospitality Privare Limited financial information with respect w0 demils of reserves (exclnding
Teveluation reserves), safes, profit after Bx, carnmgs por shars; dilutod eamings per share and oot gsset
value, derived from the sudited smndalone financial statements for Firancial year 1022-23 of our company
as follows:

% n Lakhs)

Particubirs A4 sl Mareh 31, 200%
Equity Share Capatal 123440
Reserve & Surplus (B38.55)
et Worth 497 88
Total Revenue 3923s
Net Profit{Loss) after Tan {after conmadermy Comprehensive Income) 336
EPS (in 2} of face value T 118 cach
Basic 184
Dalutesd 284
Net assct value per share (in T) 37

=  SAYAJ HOTELS (INDORE) LIMITED *SHIL")
Corporate Informaiion

Sayzji Hotels (Indore] Limited was iscorporated on May 10, 2018, The corpoidle dentification pumsber of
Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited s U35209TN2OISPLCIZIS98. The registered office of Sayaji Hotel
{Indore) Limited 13 sutoated st {CUFL ), in Srea Vel Apariment, No. 2 Alagappa Nagar. Zamin Pallavaram
Cheneai TN 6001 17, India.

Mature o Activities

To mwn, comsimeet, run fender technical advice in constructing, furnishing and running of, mke-oves,
mange, carry on the businss of motel, hoicl, resaurnt, cafe, wvern, b, reffohmen rooma., boarding
end lodging house keepers. clubs, association in Indis and to provide lodging and boarding, restaurant,
euning honges. bakery, confiectionery, bar, swimeming poots snd other facilities o the public inchoding
bonerists, visors end delegates coming to Indm from fovergn countnes and (o allvw Tndian 25 well & foregn
delegates o hold inernavomnal conferonces, seminars o0c. snd o give all facilites o mesbers of
delegations, missions form abroad and foreign countrics and toe encourage snd carry on and facil e s
truds i India.




Capital Structure

As on Seprember 30, 2023 (Post demerger effiect), the ssthortsed share capital of SHIL @ a3 below:

Farticulory ymeunt in IR
Authorised Capital

9. 50.000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each 9,05,00,000
5,000 Preference Shares of INR. 100 each 5,00,000
Total 9.10.00.000

Issued, Subseribed and Paid up

346,605 Equity Shares of [NR 10 cach 304,66 0350

# Preference Shares of INR 100 each $O0
| Total 3.04.66.850
Financizl Performance

Sayaji MHolels (Indore) Limited financial information with respect to detils of reserves (excluding
revalontion reservis), saley, profit afler tax, eamnings per share, diluted eormmgs per chare and nex asset
wahse, derrved fromn the audited standalone financial statements for Fomancal year 2022-23 15 o follows.

(T m Lakhs)

As w Murch 50, 2815
Equiry Skare Copital 5.00
Reserve & Surplus (3.07)
Net Worth (0.67)
Tiotal Revenme i}
Neq Profivi Loss) afier Tax (afier considering Comprehensive [ncome) (2.34)
EFPS (in T) of face value T 19 cach
Basic i4.6%)
Diluted 4.68)
et asset value per ghare (in T (0. }5)

*sbs adoped by the Board withon giving the efect of the Scheme



(2 m Lakks)

Faquity Share Capical 3 b6
Reserve & Surplus 4203 66
Net Warth 4508 33
Total Revenoe SOELES
Net Profit{Los) after Tax {afler comndermg Comprehensive Income) 102895

EFS fin 23 of Tece valoe 3 1 easch

Basi: 3413
[riluted 3413
Net asset value per share in ) 147,95

* Reniuted Prrnugnt o Scheme of Arrangement

Litigation

Except as disclosed i chapter titled *Owistanding Lifigation and Material Developments — Lifipations
imvedving Group Companies”™ on page 117 thiz Information Memorandum, thers = no pending [eigation
invalving ocur Group Company which will bave @ materizl impect on our Company

Nature and extent of interest of Group Companies

Except 24 stated in Scheme, otr Group Company dos aol have any mlerest in the promotion of our
Company.

Except as stated m Scheme, vur Group Company 15 ool mterested i the propertes soguired by our
Corgmiry - in the three (3) vears preceding tbe hling of ths nftrmalion Mermorandom o propeed o be
nequired by oor Compamy.

Excent as stated in Scheme, our Grotup Company 5 not interestad m any ransactions for scquisiion of
plant, construction of butkling or supply of machinery.

Common Pursuits

Our Giroup Company = evber engaged m or 15 suthorsed by thew respecine comtiuiional documents o
angage in the seme fing of business o5 thar of our Company. We will adopt the secessary procedures and
proctices a5 permined by law o addrss any conflict sitwaton, i and whea they anse Other than the
ransactions disclesed in the section tifed “Restated Awidited Financial Stetements - Related party
transactien™ on page 101, there are no other business tansactions befwomn our Company and Group
Company which are significant to the financil performance of our Company.

Related Bosiness Transactions within the group and significance on the fnancial performance of sur
Compeny

Cither thep the transactions disclosed in the chapier Diled “Reuafed Awdited Finmancial Shafcwend -
Related Party Tromsactions” on page 100 of th leformation Memorandum, there are o other basines
trasgactions batween our Company and Groep Company.
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Husiness imterests or oiher interests

Except ag disclosed in the chapier titled “Resteted Audired Financiel Statemens™ at page 10 of this
Information Mermorandum, our Group Company dod ni have or propose 0 Bave any basings interess in
e Compsany,

Driler Confirmations

Except a3 dischosed below, none of our Group Company have any secuntics Isted on 2 stock exchange and
have made any public or rights issue of securitics n the three vears preceding the date of thes Information
hiemoranaurm:

*  Sayaji Hotels Limited; and
» Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Limited

Further, neither have any of the securitics of our Company nor of our Group Company have been refused
Hsting by any stock exchange in India or abrosd, nor has our Company or our Group Company failed 10
meet the fisting requirements of any stock exchange in india or abroad

(THIS PART OF PAGE ITAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)




DVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of dividend on our Equiry Shares, if any, will be recommended by our Board
and approved by our Shascholders, ot ther discretion, in accordance with provisions of our Articies of
Association and applicable laws, incloding the Companies Act,

The dividend. if any, will depend on & number of factors, including bug not fmited (o our ewrmings. capytal
requirenents, contractual obligations. results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, business
proapects und amy other (maneing wrrangements, applicable legal restrictions and overall fimancial position
of our Cempany. Our Board may alse, from time 1o ime. declare interim dividends from the profiss of the
Finuneinl Year in which such interim dividend s soughl to be declared. |n addition, oer shility to pay
divicends may be impacted by restrictive covenan:s under the kan or financing arrangeinents that Company
peay enfer mte o finidnce our fund requirements for our Business activities,

O Compary was incorporated on May |¢, 201 B and did not carry oul any busmess activities. Accordingly,
as en the date of this Information Mamorandum, owr Company has not paid any dividend on its Equity
Shares

{1




SECTION VI: FINANCIAL INFORMATION
RESTATED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Index to Financial Statements

L. Audited Interim Financial Statements for the Half Year Ended September 30, 2023 | 148-192
2. Audited Financial Ststements for the Year Ended March 31, 2023 193-216
3. Audied Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 3022 217252
4 Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2021 253-286

(THIS PART OF PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANE)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND
RESULTS OF OFERATIONS

Yout should remd the fillowing divewsvion of our financiad condidon and redts of operations wogesker with
war Restated Awdited Finoncial Statemnents which appear elsewhere in this fnformation Memorunsdum. Fou
showld afve read the section tided “Risk Factors™ on page 2, which discussey a mumber of fSactory and
contingenctes that coodd dmpact owr financial comlition and resulty of operotioas. The foflowing
disciasion relates to the Resfated Avdited Fimancia! Statements of our Company.

Oy Restrred Awdfited Fingnehal Statements, which are fneladed (o thic faformarion Meworaadum weder
“Financial Information ™, have been prepared in accordance wich fnd A5 Owr fiscal year ends on March
31 of each veur; therefore, all referencey 19 a particular fiscad are fo the twelve-manth period coded March
31 of that year.

This digervesson coniaing forward-looking starement and reflects our curvent plany and expeetations. Aetual
resultn may differ marerialfly from thase anncipated in these forvard-fonding satements By thelr auture
certain gk disclomwres are only estimatey and cowld be materially different from thase Fhat have been
esfioated Given these unceriginges, readers are coutioned nof fo place wndie relionce on ruch forvand
lpokime statements. Factors thal cowld cause or coniribute to such differences lnclude, bt @re ot imited
i, Phode discuased im the jectivms Hitled “Fevward-Looking Sratemenin™, “Rigk Factors™ gud “Businesy
therview™ o pages 13 21, and 39 respeciively

OVERVIEW
Savuji Hotels (Pune) Limited & an anlistal public [miled company imcorporsted on May 10, 2008 under
the providions of the Companies Aet. 20135 bearing CIN: US5HTRI0IEPLCIIIS90 wirth the Regisirer
of Compamies. Chennoi. The Registered Office of the company is at (CVFL), in Sive Vel Aparnent, No.
2 Alasappn Magns, Zamin Pallavamm Chenmas-600117. The Eguity Shares of Sayeji Hotels (Punc)
Limited are currently not listed on sny stock exchangeds)
Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited is a sophisticated collection of individually designed botels catering 1o bath
berswre and business travellers with stylish guest rooms and versatile meeting facilities. Beswdes carmang
razognition for our world-cless amenitiel and serviees 10 the hospiitabity sector, Sayvap has spread its wings
with 1ts Pan-India presence
Sayaji Hotels (Punc) is known for its bespoke expericnces and signature hospitalizy. We are a home-grown
Indtan brand competing with the biggest hotel entitics from scross the globe The mumapgement solkely
believes in providing exermplary luxury. quality, and service. The brand works om combimimg diversity with
culture and inheriting the core valuss, cpecally mcluding wlng uwmost care of people and thew well-
being.
SIGXIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE LAST FISANCIAL YEAR
The SCLT, Chennai bench, vide it order dated July | |, 2023 sppuoved the Composite Scheme.
Chur Boasd of Derectors was revons! itoted smd Company Secretary & Compliance-Officer was appotated
o July 8, 202% and May 27, 2023, rspecinely,
s Our Compaey atlotted 30,46,605 Equity Shares and &, 10% Cumulstive Redeemabie Preference Shares
on Seplember 6, 2013 pursmant to the Composite Scheme
Ciher than the shove, after the date of T audited accounts i March 31, 2023, the Directors of our
Company conlirm that there have not beon any significant developments kavimg material affect or hkey
harve adhverse affect wiihin the next twelve months towards the tudmg or profiability of our Company, the
withse of our dsscts ar our ghality (o pay the lebilities:




x . A b A L RESLL IS UOF CHPE AT IS

Some of the important factors affecting our results are discossed in the section “Risk Factors = beginning
ow puge 21,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A surrmary of the significant accounting policies applicd in the preparation of the financial staterments are
as given below:. These accounting poficies have been applied consistently to all periods presonted in the
financal statements,

L Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and loabilities in the babance shest bazed on current/non-current classification.
An asset is current when it =:

. Expected io be realized or miended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle:

® Held primarily for the purpose of trading:

- Expected 1o be realized within twelve months afier the reporting penod; or

- Cash or cash equivalent onless restricied from beimz exchanged or sed 1o setile 5 hability for of
Tezast twelive months affer the reporting pamod.

Al other nssets are classified 15 non-current.

A hahality is corrent when:

- It is expecied 1o be senled in normmil operating ovcle:

s It 1 beld prmaniy for the purpese of rading:

= I iz due to be settled within twelve moaths afier the reporting perisd or

¥ There & oo unconditronal right to defer settlement of the Bability for ot least twelve months afier
the reporting period

All other Hahilitics are classified as noo-cument.

Deferred tax assersTiabilities are classifiad a5 por-cement.

Z Property Plant & Equipment

Enitial recognithon and measurement

An item of property, plant and sgquipment’s recognized az an asset if and only if it &5 probable that fature

economic benefits agtocizied with the item will fow 1 the company snd the cost of the ilem can be
ineasured relubly.

bems of Property, Plant and Equipment sre measured o cosl lss socumulated depreciation/smortzation
and accumulited impaiment losses. Cosl includes expenditune that is drecily artnbutable o bringing the
pssel, borrowing coal, ibelusive of npe-refundable bixes & dutics, o the localion sad condion ascesiary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intendesd by monsgement.

When parts of an tem of property, plam and squipment have differemt useful lives, they are recogroed
sepeeratiedy.

ftems of spore pans, stend-by equipment 2ad sarvicing squiprment winck mest the defimbion of Propexty,
Plami snd Equipiment are capiinlized.




Sobscguent casts

Subsauent expenditare s racogmized as an morease in the carmying amesnt of the asset when it is probeble
that futire econamic benefits deriving from the cost incurmed will flow 1o the enterprise and the cest of the
item can be measured reliably.

The cost of replacing port of an item of property. plant and cquipment s recognized in the carmyng amount
of the gem if o i probable that the future cconomic bemefits embodicd withen the pant will flow o the
Company 1nd its cost can be messured refmbly. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant and Equipment arc recognized in profit or los ss
incurred

Derecognition

Property. Plart and Equipment are derecognized when no future sconomuic benefii: are expected from their
use or upon thew dispesal Gains and losses on disposal of an item of propeny, plast and cquipment are
determined by comparing the procesd from disposal with the carrving amount of property, plant and
cquipment. and are recognired o the stitenent of profil and loss.

Depreciation/amortization

Deprecistion of cach part of an gem of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized in profit or loss on a
Written Down Value Method over the estimated useful lives s prescribed in Schedule H of Companics
Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categonies of assets, in whoss case the fife of assets had been
re-assesapd a2 undsr bazsd on technical eveluation, takmg inte scecunt the mature of assct, the cstmmated
usage of the assel, the operating condifions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticrpated
technologieal chasges, wairm facturer's warranties and maintenance support.

Class of Assets Useful Life
Aszens construcied on leased premices Ower the leate period

Leasehold lands are amortized over the leaze term unkess it &= rexsonably certain that the Company will
ohiain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Frocholdd land is not deprecated.

Depreciation on additions o/'deduetions from Aued assers durieg the yeur & charged on pro- rata basis
fromup 1o the date on which the assct is available for nse/dizposed.

Where it is probable that futore economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow o the enterprise
and the cost of the item can be measwred reliably. sbsequent expenditure oo a PPE alonp-with its
unamerteed deprecizble smount s charged off prospectively over the revised wseful hfe detormined by
technical assessiment

In ¢ircumatisnce, where a property is abandoned, the cumulative capRalized costs rolating 1o the propeny
are written off in the same penod.

3 Mon-current! assels (or disposal groups) held for sale

Nen-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as beld for sale if their carmrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale ransacnon nsther than trough comtinumg vse and a sale = considered
highly probable. They are measured 31 the lower of thew camrying amount and fair value less costs 1o sell,
except for assets such as deferrad tx sssets, pstets ansing from employee benefits, finsncial aaces and
comraciunl nights under msurance contraces, which are specifically exempt from this requivement.

An impairment loss is secognised for any imtial or subsequent write-down of the asset (o disposal groug)
to far valne fess costs 10 sell. A gain is recognised for mmy subscquent mereases in fair value less oosts o
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sell of an assel (or disposal group), bot ne W excess of soy cumulative impairment foss previously
recognised, Again or Joss not previensly recognised by the date of the sale of the non-corrent assef (or
dpoeal group) is recognised sl the date of de-recognition. Non-current assets (nehuding those that sre part
of a disposal group} are not deprecizied or amortised while they are classified as held for sale Tnierest and
nther expensos antribaizble to the labilaies of o disposal group ¢lessified as held for sale continue o be
recignbecil

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assers of a disposal group classified a5 beld for sale

are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of & disposal group
clasaified ag held for sale are presented separately from other abilities in the balance sheet.

4. Capital work-in-progress

The cosi of séli-consiucied assets inchades the cost of matenals & direct lvbour, amy other costs divectly
attrihutable 10 bringing the tssets to the location and condifion necessary for it to be capable of opasting
in the mamner intended by maragement and borrowing cosis.

Expemses disectly atribumable w construction of property, plant snd equipment mcunred till they are neady
for thear intended wse are dentified and allocated on x systemaix basts on the cost of related assets
Deposit werksscost plis contracts ars accounted for on the basis of statemenss of sccount recerved from the
COTEACTOTS.

-5 Intanglhle assets and ntangible assers under develapment

Initial recognition and messurement

An mtangble asset 15 recognized if and caly if it 5 probable that the expected fulure economx: benefits that
are attributable 10 the asset will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be messured rediably.
Imzangible assets thar are sequired by the Company, winch bave linie weful hives, are recogmized at cost.
Subseqmont measarcment is done at cost less avcurmelalod amortzstion and acoumulated impamment besses,
Cost mcludes any directly sttribotble incidenta] expenses necessary to make the assets ready for s
miended use.

Subsequent costs

Subsequenl enpenditure 15 recognized as ko increase in the camying amount of the assat when it is probable
that Fiiture scomomiee henefits dernving from the cost meurred will Bow to the cnterprise and the cost of the
iem can be measared reliably,

Dierecognition

An intungible asset is derecogmnized when no fulurs ecomomic benefits are expected from ther wse or upon
thewr disposal. Gaims and losses on disposal of an e of imtangible sssers are detormined by comparmig the
proceeds from disposal with the camving amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the staterment
of profit and foss.

Amsriizntion

Intangibie assets having definite life pre amartized on Written Down Value method in their veefal Bves
Useful life of competer softwire s estimated at five years. [F life of any intangible asset is indefinite, then
it i5 not amomsed and fested G Impawrmment 0f the repariing dute.

6. Baorrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are direcily attribmable to the scquisiton, constroction/exploranion’ development or
eroction of qualifymg asscts are capitalized as pari of cost of sech assel unbil such time the sss0E oo
substantially ready for their mtended vse. Qualfying assets are asscts whnch take 3 substantial period of
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time 1o get rendy for their imended use or sale. Capitalimtion of borrowing costs ceases when substantiall y
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended vses arg complete

All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue as and when incurmrad

Baorrowing costs consist of (a} interest expense caloulated using the effective inferest method a5 desaribed
in Ind AS 109 — ‘Finoneial Instruments® (b) fimnce charges in respect of finarce leases recogmized in
pocordance with Ind AS 116 = "Leases® {c) cxchangs differences wising from foreign cusrency bormowingss
i the extent that they are reporded a5 an adjustment i mterest conts and [d) other costs that an entity mcurs
i commection with the borrowing of funds Income earned on temponsry investment of the i
pending their expendimre on the qualifiing assets 15 deducted from the borrowing cests eligible Tor
capitalization

T Investment in Sobsidiary, Asseciate & Joint Venture

Company has opted to show investments in Subsudmry, Assocmtes & Jomt Venture at cosl. Dividend from
these is recognized as and when right fo receive is cstablshead.

Impuirment loss & recogheed as per Ind AS 36
B, Inventares

Stock of Food and Beversges and stoees and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost inclodes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurmed in bringing the
inverories bo their presend location and condihion, including duties and taxes (oiher than those refundable L
Cost 5 determined on Weighted Average Basiz. Comis of purchased owenmay are devermined affer
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimared selling price in the ordinery course
of buginess, bess estimoded cosiz of compleiion and the estimated costs necessary to meke the sale.

The dimimation in the vabue of obsolete, unserviceable and surplus: stores & spares is ascertained on review
and provided for,

L R Cush amel Cash Equivalem

Cash and cash cqguivalent in the balance shect comprise cash at burks and cash on kand and short-term
diprosits with an eriginal matunity of throe months er less, which are subgect o msignificant risk of change
in valie:

i Copvernment Carants

Covernment grants that compensaie the company for the cost of asset are recognized mmally as deferred
income when there is reasonable assurunce that they will be received and the Compamy will comply with
the conditions associated with the grant and are recognired @ profit or ks on 2 3jstematic basis aver the
wscfisd life of the reloted asect. Granis thal compensate the Company for expenses ncurred are recognized
guver the period in which the refated cosis are meurred and are deducted from the related expenses.

1. Provkions and contingent Bahilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recogrized if, 25 2 result of 4 past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
chligation that can be etimated reliably, and i = probable that an outflow of cconomic benefits will be
required o senle the pbliganon. [ the effert of the thme value of mooey = materal, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected fuure cash flows at & pre-tas rabe that reflects current mearkel
assessents of the time value of money and the risks specific to the lability. When discounting s usad, the
imcrimse in the provision doe To the passage of time s recogrized 25 8 finance cost.

The amount recognized as @ provisbon is B bt atimate of the consideration required 1o sentle the present
phligation i reportmg date, taking into accouni the nsks and uncertainties surmounding the ohliganon,




When soane or all of the economic benefits required o settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
& third party, the recervable 15 recopnized as an asset of it 5 virtually certain that rambursement will be
received and the amount of the recervable can be messurad reliably. The expense relating to 3 provisios &
presenied in the statement of profit and loss ner of any reimbursermen

Contingent lahilitics are possible oblipations that arse from past events and whose existence will only be
canfirmed by the occurrence or nén-ocsurrence of one or more fure evenis B0l whollv within the control
of the Company. Where it & not probable that a8 outflow of economic besefis will be required, or the
smound cannot be estimoted relwbly, the obhigalion s disclosed a5 & commngent liability, ualess the
probability of sutflow of econcmic benefits is remote. Contingent lishilitses sre disclosed on the bass of
judgment of the management/independent experts. These are reviewed a1 sach balance sheet date and are
adusted b eflect the cumrent Fanegenent estinte,

Conlimgent s58s dre possible assets thatanse from past eveniz and whose exiztzncs will be confirmed only
by the oecurrence of non-occurrence of ane or moee uncertuin funme cvents not wholly within the control
of the Comgamy. Contingent aisets are disclosed in the financial stataments when mflow of cconomuc
benefits is probable on the bass of judmment of management. These are asussed cortinually 0 emure tat
developments are appropriztcly reflected in the fimancil statements.

| Forelgn currency transsctions and trassistion

Transactions in forcign curmencics are imtially recorded at the functional currency spot rates at the dae the
transaction fest qualifres for recogretion

Monetary a5t and fiabilities denomonated in foesgn currencies are transhied &t the funchonal ourrency
spol rales of exchange at the reperting date. Exchange differences arising on scitlement or mnslation of
monetary tems are récognesd o profit or [oss in the year in which i args.

Non-rnonctary items are measured in terms of historical cost ina forsign currency are ransiated using the
exchange rate at the date of the tranizction.
i, Revenie Recogniting

The Company follows Ind AS 115 "Revenuc from Contracts with Customers”™ which mtroduces the five-
step model degeribed a3 follows: -

I Identify the contract with o customer

ldentify the separste performance obligations in the contract.

Determine the transaciion Prce

Allocate the ranssction price to the scparate performance obligaiions.

Recognize revenue wien {or a3) each performance obligation is satisfied.
Revenue From eperations:

The Compary derives revenues primanly from sale of rooms, (ood ond bevernges ond allied services
relating to hotel operations.

Reverue is recognized ipon transfer of control of promised products of servicss (o customes in an amoant
that reflects the consideration we expect 1o receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company pres<nts revenuss net of indirect taxes o staternent of Profir and loss

Trade receivables and Contract Balances

The company recognises conrict assats on 2n omosnt cquals o consideraton related o goods and sarvices
already transferrad 1o customers whes the right tereceive such consideration 15 condrtioned upon semething
other than pessage of me, .
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Unconditional right to receive corsideration are recogmised as trade roceivable.
Trade receivable und coniract sssets are subject o brpairment as per Tnd AS 109 "Finase sl Testrumenis”,

The compasny recoghises amounl slready received from customer against whech ramsfe for goods and
Services are nof made a5 contract labiling.

Interest Ineome

For all finaec izl instruments measuned st anoetized oost and inferest-bearing fisancial siss classilied as
fair vistue through other comprehensive income, interest mcome 5 reconded using the effective interest mte
(EIR ). The EIR 15 the mate that sxactly discomnts the estimated firure cash receipis over the sxpected lifie of
the financial instrument o & shorter perind, where approprisse; 1o the net carrying amount of the financial
s, When calculating the effective intersst mate, the Company estimaes the expecied cash flows by
considering all the contraciual erms of the fizancial nstrument (for scample, prepayment, extension, call
and similer optiens) but does not consider the expected credit lesses. Interest income is inchuded m other
income in the statement of profit or loss.

Divickend

Dividend |ncome is recognized when the Compamy's right 1o receive is asablished which generally oceurs
wheen the sharcholders approve the dividend.

Diber lncome

Onher lncome & recognzed in the statement of profit and loss when increase in futuse oconomic benefits
related 10 a0 increase in an assed op a decresse of a lnbility has arizen that can be messorad reliabiy.

14 Emplovee Benefits

Short Term Benefit

Short-term emplovee benefit obliganons are measured on a0 undiscoanted basis and are expensed as the
related service i5 provided.

A lighility & recopnized for the amoont expected to be paid under performance relsied pay if the Company
has & present legal or construetive obfigation 1o pay this amount &5 & resalt of past service provided by the
empleyse and the obligation can be estimated refsably.

Post-Employ ment benefits

Employes henefin that are payabie after the completion of employment are Fost-Employment Benefit {other
rhaes termmination benefi). These are of vwo 1ype:

Defimed contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are thosa plans in which an entity pays fixad conmmibution to séparste entibes
under the plan and will have no legal or constructive obligation w pay further amounts to employes
furure under the Plan. Providem Fund end Faployer Siate Insurance are Definad Contribation Plans in
whch company pays a fixed conmribution and will have no further obligation.

Defined benelit plans
A defined benefit plan &5 & post-ermployment benelit plan other than o defined conmribation plan.

Company pays Gratwity as per provisions of the Gratuty Act, 1972 The Company”s net obigetion in respect
of defined benefit plans is calculated separately fior each plan by estimating the amoust of fisture bonefi
that emplovess have snmexd i return for ther service m the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present valoe. Any urecognined past service costs and the fair valoc of any
plan assets gre deducted The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian govermment




Becuritis 23 ot the reporting date that have maturity dates approaimatmg the terms of the Company™s
ahligntions and that are denominared in the same currency in which the benef®s are sxpectsd o be paid

The caleulstion s performed anneally by 8 qualified actiusry ssmg the projected unin credit method. When
the caiculation results i a Kability to the company, the presemt value of Esbilicy i recognized a5 provision
for employes benefit. Any actuaral pains or losses are recogmized in OC| in the penod i which they anse.
Long Term Employee Benefit

Benafits umder the Company’s leave smcashment constiluie other long term employae benefits. Lesve
Ereashment 15 determined haed on ithe aviikable laive entitlement a1 the end of the year

15 Income Taxes

Tncime ks experse cormprses carreni aod defeormed ., Income (ax eipose = rocognesd m profit or ko
exoepi so the exient sl it relaies o iems ecogmized direcily o other comprehensive NCDMS of oUEY, i
which casc is the current and deferred tax sre also recognized in OCT or directly in oquity, respoctively.
Currenl tax 1w the expecied x pavable on the taxable income o the year, wsmg lan mics coacted oF
substanwively enacted and as applicable a1 the reposting date, tnd any sfjestment 1o ax payable in respect
of previous years. Current income 1axes are recognized under “Income x payable” net of payments on
eocount, or under "Tax receivables’ where theare & a debit balance Cusrenl tax assets and cwrren! lax
Iuh:lmrsﬂmuﬂ'mwfm:tncu:hp.ﬂynfmnmﬂtrgﬁhﬂeﬂﬂumpnﬂannﬂnﬂiﬂmn
an intention to seltle the assct and the lebiliy on o net basis.

DBreferred tax i recogmized using the balaece shoet method, providing for iomporary differcaces between
the camrying amounts of 2sscts and Habilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts osed for
tstion purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the mitial recognition of goodwill. an
azset of hability 1o a ransaction that i not a busmess combization and affecds netthar accouniing nor taxable
profits or loss af the time of 1the transscion.

Dreferred tox 13 measored o the ax rates ther are experted 1o be appliod 10 temporary difforonces when they
reverse, based on the lews that have been enacted or substantively cnacted by the reporting dae. Defierred
tax asscts and habibitics are offset 1f there s 3 legally enforceable npht to offset current tax Eabdites and
assels, and they refale to mCome taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
differend tax entitics, but they ntend to setile current tax abeliiees and assets on a net basis or thesr ax
aseas and linbitites will be realized simafuncously.

A deforred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future mxable prodits will be svailable
against which the temporary difference can be utilized Deferned tax sssets pre revicwed at cach repornting
ddate and wre reduced 1o the extent that it is po longer probable that the related tax benefit willl be realized
MAT {Minimum Alerasts Tax) 15 recogmized a5 o axse1 only when and to the extent 1t is probable evidence
et the Company will pay mormal income fax and wall be able to utilize suwch cred durmg the specified
peniod [mthe vear in which the MAT credit becomes eligible (o be recognized 55 ap asset, the said assel i
created by way of 8 credit 1o the Starement of Profi and lots and & incloded i Deferred Tax Asiets. The
Company reviews the same 41 gach halance sheet date and iF required, wriles down the carmyving anwuni of
MAT eredit ennilement to the extend there is o longer probable that Company will be able 1o absorh such
credit during the specified period

Adddinomal fncome Gaes that srise from the dstrbution of dividends are recognired at the sime time: that
the liahility to pay the related dividend i recognized

6. Leases As Lessee

Ind AS 116 - Lenses, has become applicable effective annus| reporting period beginming April |, 2019 The
Company has adopted the standard beginnmg April 1, 2015, wsing the modificd retrospective spprosch for
transition. Accordimgly, the company has not restated the companstive imformation. Further, m respect of

e
E 5 'I“J‘:[Iﬂ : l.f":"""-“
.|" 'E
}

¥,

&t

v

o Ht:-
é’




leases that were classified as operating leases spplying Ind AS 17 there is no impect on Opening Retained
Earnings.

Ar the date of commencement of the leaze, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU™) and &
eoeresponding lexse lability for all lease armngements in which it s a lesaee, except for lesses with 2 term
of welve mooths o bess {short-term leases ) and bow valoe leases For thase short-term and bow value leases,
the Company recogmises the lease payments s un operating expense on 4 straight-line basi over the term
of the lexse.

Lease comfracts may conbin both lesse and non-legse components. The Compaey allocates payrments n the
coniract o the lease and mon-lense components bassd on their relative ptand-alone prices and applies the
leaze aceounting madel only w lesse componests.

The right-ol-use nzsets are initially recognised a1 cost, which comprizes the initisl amouni of the lase
lizbility adiosted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made a1 or befors the cormmencement date,
BEY Bsert Tesioration obligation, and less any bease moentives neceived. They are subsequeenily messsoed at
cost less socumulated depreciation and mpasrment lesses. Righi-ol- use assety are also adusted for any re-
mzmsurerrent of lense habilites. Lnless the Compary 1= reasonabliy cermam w0 obtam ownzrshop of the lsased
pasets o renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term. recognised rght-of-use asiets ane deprecisted 1o
& residun] vahee over the shorter of their estimated usehul life or lease ferm

The Icase liahility is initially measured ot the prescst value of the lcese payments to be made over the lase
term. The besse payiments nclude fixed payments (including “in-substance fived” payments) and variable
lease puymeents that depend on an index or & rade, kss any kense incentives reesivable. “le-substance fixed”
puyments are payments thatl may, in form, conlain vanabiliy bur that, in substance, are umavoidable. In
calcuiating the present value of [ease payments, the Company wies b5 incremental bosrowing raic a1 the
hsise commencement &g if the infas! rate implicn i the kase & ool readily daterminakble.

Vanoble lease paymentz that do net depend on an imdex or & miz are recognessd as an expense m the pered
over whech the event or condition thar wiggers the payment ocours. In respect of variable lesses which
guaramtee & mmmum ermoent of rent over the bease torm, the guaresteed emount is comsidered 1o be an ‘in-
substance fixad’ lasse paymant and included in the ivirial caleulsion of the lzase Habilicy. Payments which
are “in-substance fixed’ wre charged against the lease linbility,

17.  Impairment of Non-Financial Assety

The carrying amounts of the Company’s noo-financial assets are revicwed at cach reporting date to
determune whether there s any indicsticn of imparment considering the provisions of Ind AS J&
"Impairment of Asets”. [N any such indication exists, then the ssse"s recoversble amoun is estimaied
The recoverable amount of an esset of cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value lss costs o
disposal snd it= volue in use. Ip sssessing value in use, the estumated future cash flows are dscounted to
thair present vabee usmy 2 pre-tas discount rate that reflecs curment markel assesiiment of the time vahes
of money and the riaks specific to the sisel. For the purposs of inparmeni iedling, asscls (hal cannol be
tastid individnally are grouped together tnto the gmaklest groop of assets that generstes cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash mflows of other assets or groups of assees {ibe “cash-
generating unat”, or “CGU™L

An pmpairment loas 8 recognized il the carrving smoant of an asset or iy U0U excends it estimated
recoverable amoont. lopairment losses are recogniged in profie or loss. Dopairmen losses recognized in
respect of UGUs are reduced from the carryisg omasants of goodwill of that CGU, o any amd then the asscis
of the CGL,

Impawrment Insses rocognzed in proe persods ane issessed 8 esch reporng date for 1ay mdacations thae
the loss has decreased or ne longer exists. An impairmene loss is voversed if there has beon a change in the
estomml e wsed 10 determing the recoverable arount. An impairment loss is reversed only o the extent that
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the s35e1"s camying amount does nol exceed the carmying amount thal would bave been delearmmed. net of
depreciation or amortization, if po impaimmen [oss kad been recogmized.

18 Operating Segments

In pecordance with [nd AS 10K - Operaimg Segments, the operalmg sepments used 10 present Sepmenl
infoemanon are ideniified om the basis of intirnal reports used by the Company’s Mamagement 1o allocate
resources to the segments and sdsess thewr performance The Board of Directors i collactively the
Company’s "Chiefl Operating Decsion Maker' or ‘CDDM" within: the meaning of Ind AS 108 For
mARIgEmCH PUrpose company & orgenived inlo magor operaling activity of holehormg m Indes The
indhcators used for misrmal reporting parposss may evolve m connechon wih periormnes sseesmerd
measures pul m place.

% Erivinends

Dividends and mierim dividends pavable to s Company”’s sharchoiders are recogmired a5 changes m coquity
 the penod o which thew are spproved by the shareholders” mestmp and the Boand of Dhreciors
respertively.

24. Material Prior Peried Errors

Material pror genod anors arc cortectod retrospectively by restating the comparaine amounts for the praor
perinds presemted in which the srror sccurred. [ the ermor ocomrmed before the earkiest prior period presented,
the opering balances of asscts, [mbilittes and equity for the carliest prior penod presentod, are nestatad
1. Earnings Per Share

Basic carmings per equily share 5 computed by drviding the net profit or loss attnbutsble to oquny
sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
fmancial yoar.

Diluted camings per equity share s computed by dividing the net profil or loss aiributable o cquily
sharcholders of the Company by the weighted pverage number of equity shares considerad for deriviag
basic easnings per equity share and alio the weighted average number of aquity shares dat could have been
issued upon conversion of all dikutive polentsal equity shanes.

2k Statement of Cashb Flows

Statemant of cash flows B prepared in secordance with the indirect method preserbed m Ind AS- 7
"Simement of cash fows

r-c 8 Fiinancial instruments

A& fnanciad instremeni 5 amy contract that gves rise toa mancnl st of one cwiny and o fmancial habilzy
or equity instrument of another entity.

131, Finuncial assels

Initial recognition and messure ment

All financial asses are recognized inktially ar fair value plus or minos, i the case of finencial assars oot
recorded & faw value throagh profit o loss, ansaction costs (hat are abtribatablc 1o the scqusiton or Bsac
of the financinl asset

Subseguent measurement
Dt knstruments af amortized cost
A “debt instrument” i measured af the emiorined cost if both the following condiSoas are met
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) The az=et ts held within a business model whose objective 5 @ hold assets for collecting contracius]
cash flows, and

ibj} Contractual verme of the psset mve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymments of
principai and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Afler imitin] messurement, such financial assets are subsequently messured sf imortized cost wsmp the EIR
method, Amortized co4t i3 calewlated by rakomg inte sccount amy discount or premium on soquiition and
fiees or eoats that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amuortization & incladed in finance income in the
profit or loss. The heses ansing from imparrmiend are recogmized in the profit or loss. This category
geneally apphics to trade and other recervables.

Dbt instrument st FVTOC (Fair Valse throegh OCT)
A ‘debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCT ifboth of the following critersa are met:

(FT) The ohjective of the busimgs model = achieved both by collecting contracnal cash Mows and
sedling the financial assets, and

ib) The asset’s pontmetual cash fows represemt 5PFI

Dbt instrements included within the FYTOON category are measared initially as well as a1 cach reporting
date at fair valee. Fair value movements are recognizad in the OCL However, the Company recogrizes
intevest income, impairment bosses & reversals and forcign exchangs gam or loss in the profit and loss. On
derecopmition of the siser, cumulative gain or koss previously recognized in OCT i reclassified from the
equity to prefit and loss Interest carned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrumest is reported a5 inberest
income using the EIR method.

Dieht instrument af FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

FVTPL is 3 residuml category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument. which does not meet the oritoria
for cateporization as at amortized cost of a8 FVTOCL, 5 classified as st FVTPL.

Iy addithon, the Company may elect to clossify o debt instrument, which stherwise mests amortored cost oF
FVTOC! criterm, as ot FVTPL However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces oc eliminates a
mensurement of revognition incoisistency (refored W 85 “accountimg mimatch’). Debt instruments
meluded within the FVTPL eategory are measured ot fair value with all changes recognzzed in the profit
and lims

Equity investments

All equity investmenis i cntsties other than subsidiaries, associates and joinl veotuses arc mossurcd ot fas
value. Equity instruments which arc held for trading are classified a5 st FVTPL For all other eguity
instruments, the Company decides o classify the same either as & FYTOCT or FVTPL

The Company maskes such clection on en mstrument by istrument basis. The classification = mads oo
initial recogrition and i orevocbie

If the company decides to classify an equity mstrument i af FYTOCL then all fair value changes on the
instrements, excluding dividends, ure recognized hlkMMiﬂwhﬁﬂme
0CT to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company muy transfor cummlative gun o o
within the equaty

Equity instruments included within the FYVTPL category sre measared 5t fair value with all changes
recopnized in the prolit ond loss,

Equity mvestments in subsidiarics, sssociale ond jorsl ventures are messurad at cost
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Prerecognition

A financial assed (or, where applicable, a pant of a firancial a250i or part of a Company of similar fieacial
Bzzes) i primarily derseognized (e removed from (he Company's bakince sheet) when

= The rights o recenve cash Aows from the aseet have expired, or

" The Company has traniferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assor of has assumed an
obligstion (o pay the received cash fows in fell witheod material deley o a8 third perty ander 2 "pass-
through' arrangement; and sither [a] the Company has transferred substontially all the nisis and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Company has neither trans ferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has ransferred conirol of the assel.

Impairment of Gnancial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company upphes expected credit boss (ECL) madal for measuremen:
amd recognition of impamment Joss on the following linancisl assers and credin risk exposuse:

- Financial assems that &ne debt mstruments, and are measred at amortised cost cp., loams, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance,

' Trode recervables or any conmractsal rught 1w receive cish o ancther fizancm! asset that resak from
tramsactions that are within the scope of Tnd AS 113,

. Lo Commdtments which sre oot messured s st FVTPL

The Compamy follows “smplificd approach” for recognition of impamrment loss allowance on:

Trade recervables or contract essets resulting fom ransactions within the scope of Ind AS 115, if thevdo
pot coptain a significant fimancing component;

Trade receivabies or contract sssets resuliing from tramsactions within the scope of Ind AS |15 that contein
2 slgificant finoncing component, fhmmmpﬂﬂwuwmﬂhﬂ
vitlue of mangy, and

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company Lo track changes in credis rsk. Rather,
it recogenizes impairment loss allowance based on ifetime BCLa a1 sach reporting date, right from s mial
pecognition,

For vecognition of impairment lass on other financial sssets ond risk exposure, the Comparry determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the crodit risk since initial recognition. Tf oradie risk
has ot increased sigmificantly, 12-month ECL s used 1o provide for imparment loss. Fowever, if crede
risk hiz incressed significantly, lifetime ECL i weed. 17, in o subsagqoant period, credin gualny of the

instrument imgproves such that theve 3 mo longer a significant incrense in crafit risk since initlal recogmition,
then the entity reverts to recogrizing impairment logs sllowance based on §2-month ECL.

213.2. Financial Habilities
Initial recognition and meEsurement

All financml linbilities are recognized i fir valoe and in case of koars, net of directly anributsbie cost
Fees of roouming nature are directly recognmed in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost.
Subscqueat measwrenend

Fimancial liabslities are carried at wmortized cost wsing the effective interest method. Amortized cost &
calculared by =king inte account any discount or premium on scquisition and any matcrial transaction thet
gre any inkeeral part of the EIR. For trade and other payables matormg within one yvear from the balance
sheet date, the furmyving amodnts spproxmmie fer valoe due 1o the shon manmey of these mstruments.
Dierecogniiinn
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A financial Kability is derecognized when the obigation wwder the hability i decharged or cancelled or
expres. When on existing fnanciol liabality & rephced by snother from the same leader on substantally
different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are subsantially modificd, such 2n cxchange o
midification s tweated as the derecogmition of the onginal hability and fhe recognition of a new Habality.
The difference in the respective carmying amounts is recognized m the statement of profit or loas.

Derivative financial iRstroments

Thfun;-mr- formards 1o mitigate the risk of changss in merest mies, exchange raes and eommndity
prices. Such demvative fimancial mstraments are mitially reccorised at B waloc on e dale on which a
dertvative comiradt i enferdd inlo and ore afso subisquentiy measured at Tair valoe. Dermvatrves are camied
as fancial asaets when the fair valbue 3 positive amd as finameial Iebidines when the fair valoe & i
ANy gaing of leases arming i changes an the fal value of damatives are tben directly o Statemend of
Frofit and Loss. exeept for the effective portion of cash Gow hedges which & recognised m Other
Comprehensive [ncome and later o Siatenent of Profit and Lioss when the hodged iton affeos profit or
loss or trested as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transacton subssquently remits m the recognition
of & not-financtal #ssets or nonefinancial Hsbiliny.

Hedges (hat meet the criteria for hedge accounting are sccounted for o fllows:
mj Cash flaw hedge

The Company designates denvative conlrects or non-derivative finoncinl ssscts | Babiliies as hedging
instrumenits to mitignie the risk of movemen! m intenest raies and foreign exclange mates fir foreign
cachange exposure on highly probable futere cosh fows amribsstabls to0 0 recognived assct o lnbidity or
Foreeast cash rensactionz. When o derivative is designated a5 o cazh fow bodging mstruniend, the cffcctive
portion of changes i the far value of the denvative = recogmizzd 0 the cash Oow hedem resrve hoieg
part of other comgeehensive moome. Any ipelTective portion of changes i the fir value of the derivetive
is recognized immediately in the Staternent of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship oo langer meets
the criteria for hodge accounting, then bodge sccoonting & drcontinued prospoctively. IT the balgmg
instnument cxpires or 15 sobd, termunated or exercised, the camulative gain or koss on the hodgme isstnement
recopnized mocash flow hedpmg reserve nill the penod the hedge was effective remains in cash Mow hadpee
reserve until the underlying tamsaction ooouns. The cumulative gain o loss previously recognired in the
cash flow hedging reserve is tramaferred to the Stdement of Profit and Loss wpon the occemence of the
underhving tuesacton, If the forecasted trapesction s no longer expected o occur, then the amoant
eccumulated in cesh Row hedging reserve is revlaasified in the Statement of Profi and Loss:

by Fair Value Hedge
Changss i the fale value of Bedpging instruments aod hadpad items that sre Jeipneted and gualify as fir
vahie hedges are recorded m the Stalement of Profit and Loss. I the hedging relationship no loager mesots

the ¢rideria for hedge accounting, the adpstiment o the carmymnig amount of a bedped sem for whch (ke
effective interest methed is wied i amortised vo Statement of Profil and Loss over the period of maturity,

24, The company discledes cortum fimancial information both excluding and exchiding eccopliona)
iems, The presentation of informations sxcluding exceptional ftems allows 3 berier understanaling of fhe
underlying operating performance of the company and provides comsistency with the compeny™s islamal
ranagement neporting Exceptional fems are identified by viriue of either ther si2e or mafire 50 25 s
facilitate comparizon with peior periods and 1o ssses anderying trends m the finencal performance of ike
company. Exesptional goms ean mnelude, bat are ot restricted Lo, gaes and bosses on the duposal of
nsety imveshiments. impairmen charges, exchanpe grinfoss on long tonm borrowings” ssets amd changes
in fair vakee of derivative contracts.

Major Estimates made in preparing Financial Statements

Useful like of property, plant and cquipment 3
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The estimated useful fife of property, piant and equipment 15 hased on @ number of factors mehuding the
effects of obsolecence, demand. compettion and other sconomic factors fsuch sz the stabality of the
industry end known technologicel advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures requined to obtain
the expected fisture cash flows from the asset.

Useful bfe of the assets other than Flant and machisery are decided m accordance with Schedule 11 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

The Company reviews at the end of each reporting duré the nsaful life of property, plent and equpment,
and ore adjusted prospectivedy, if appropriste.

Leases

Ind AS | |6 regquires lessees to determine the lease torm as the noo-cancellable penod of a lzase adjusted
with any eption to sxiznd or terminaie the lease, if the use of such oplion & ressomably cemain. The
Company makes an asscament on the expecied lease lerm on a lase- by-lase basis and thete by asesses
whether it i3 reasonably cortaim thal any optiods 10 extend of rminate the contract will be exercised. In
evaluating the lcase term, the Company considers factors such ax any significant leaschold rmprovements
undertuken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lause and the impartance of the
underbymg asset o Company's operations taking into sccount the location of the underiyimng asset and the
gvailability of suitable alternatives. The lease woom in fisture penods b reasscssed 1o eosure that the lose
term reflects the curmrent scommm CCEMSTANCES.

Posi-¢mployment benefit plans

Employes benefit obligntions sre measured on the basis of actuarial assumphions. which inclode momaliy
and withdrawal rates as well a5 assumptions concerning future developments in discount raies, the rate of
salary increases and the mflation rate. The Company considers thet the assumptions used 10 messune is
chligations are appropriste and docamented. However, any changes in these assumptions may have 3
maderial impact on the resultmg caleultions,

Provisions and continzencies

The assessments undertaken n recegnizing provisions and conbngencics have been mads in accordance
with Ind AS 17, “Provisions, Contingent Liabitities and Contingent Assets’. The evaluation of the likelthood
of the contingent events has requiced best judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure
to patential lass. Should eweumsiances change following nnforeseeable developments. this hikelibood could
alter.

Impairment Test of Non-Financial Adsens

The recovereble amount of investment in subsidiary & based on cslimates and assumptions regarding in
particular the future cash flows associnied with the operations of the mvestes company. Any changes in
these assumplions may have @ material impact on the measorement of the recoverable amount snd coald
resull i Impreiren,

DISCUSSION ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Dur Company was incorporated &s an unlisted poblec comgany on May 10, 2018, Subsequestly, pursuant
o the Composite Scheme hecoming effective, the Demerged Undertakings of Sayeji Hotels Limited has
been vested into our Company with effect from the Appointed Date of the Scheme. For fimther detmis, see
the Chaplers taled “Schwme of Arrengemenr™ and “Restared Audited Fimancio! Statemenn™ on pages
ddand 101, respectively

Revemae
NIL
Revemue from operations . F)'L' -
E ; s !
15 _55;
<
=
H._-f;l




NIL

Dther Income

NIL

Total Expense

D total expense for the Auadit Perod was 3134 lakhs which primarily ecmprisad of other sxpenses.
Pralit before Tax

Dur Company bad incurred 3 loss before Tax of 2 54 lakbs for the period.

Tax Expense

Our Total tax expense for the period was 047 kikh which comprised of Deforred Tax
Frofit for the Year

Our net loss was 2,07 lakhs for the aried.

Cash Mows

For further details, see the Chapter titled “Revtmted Audited Fimancial Statrments™ on page 181 of this
Information Menmorandam

Barrowing
Ok bormowings were NIL for the period.
Related Farty Transactions

For details of Related Party Transactions, please refer o Chaprer on “Resumed Amdited Finamcial
Suasements ™ on page 101 of this Information M emorandum.

There is no rd:uan;tm. Significant Accounting Policies of our Company.
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SECTION YiI: LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
OUTSTANDING LITIGATION AND OTHER MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

Evcept ax stated in thiv Chapier, there are no outstanding, (i) criming! proceedings, (i) actions taken by
Fetiory oF regulatory authoriries: (il claimr relored to direcr or indirect razes; or () sther matenial

litipation a5 per the Materiality Policy. in each cave fmolving our Company, Promaters or Direciors
feoflectively, the "Relevanr Parties™), Furtker, theve are no i)} disciplinary acions including penaliies
impased by SER] or stock exchanger against our Fromoters ia the laxt five Financial Yeary iechsding amy
LS N avtion

TUinless siaied 1o (he contrary, the mformation provided below B as of the date of this Infoarmation

Memorandum.
A LITIGATION INVOLYING OLR COMPANY
I. Atiomn [ .

i) Lirigation involviag Criminal Laws: None

il Litigation involving Civil Laws: Our Company has received a motice dated Decomiber 19, 2019
from Mr. Dattu Womuon Gawade, Our Company has a land in Pene Survey no- 1367 LA 2 & 5 - total
area is 3200 Sq feet. which was belonging 1o Gitabai Mhady Kalaie tll 1961. On 16/06/1561 plot
was purchased by Mr. Vishou Yeshu Gawade. Mr, Vishou Yezha Gowade dics on 150471969 and
his elder son Mr. Dhonds Vishoe Gowade sold the plot 1o Mr. Popat Gangaram Pansare & M
Abdul Vahab Abdul Hamdule as HUF in 1984 and our Company purchased the plot from them. Mr.
Vishi Yeshu Gawode's younger son Mlr. Wamas Vishan Gawade ond daughter Mrs. Bayabad
Laxman Kale claims their share m property and for the same rezson our Company has received a
legal notice. The matter is currently pending Additional Collector, Pompn Chinchwad, Pune.

(m} Litigation invalving actions by Statutery / Regulatory Authorities: Sone
{iv) Litization involving DNrect ! Indirect Tax matters: None
ivi Diher Pending Litizations: Nonc
Il Litigation by our Company
i1} Litigation involving Criminal Laws: None
(i1} Litieation involving Civil Laws. None
it} Litigation involving actions by Statwtory /| Regulatory Amtharities: None
i) Litigation invalving Direct | Indirect Tax marters: Nonc
iv) Diher Pending Litizatings: Mons
B. LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR DIRECTORS
. Litigation against sur Directors
in Lirigation imvelving Criminal Laws A complaint was filed by Videncon Leasing and Inchestrial
Finance Limited (*Complainan™) under Sections 3, 415, 418 and 420 of the Indian Penal Code
(“IPC™) and Section 204 of the Crimunal Proceduse Cede before the Additional Crimmai Judicml
Magistrate, Coust Mo §, Ghaziabad, sgainst, inter alia, Raoof Dhanani for dishonestly inducing
the Complament b part with 7160000 lakhs for isseance of por-convertiple redecmable
debentures of Divya Chermicals Limated (“DOL™), which were not ssued snd subsequently, imter
ahia, undertaking to repay sn amount of ¥2255.70 kkhs to the Complainant, which was also done.

Purssant to order dated May 9, 2003, the Magistrate issued summons to the sccused, melading
Raoof Dhanan 1o appenr hefore the court. The sccused filked an application under Section 243{2)
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(i
fiii )

)
v

of the Cnminal Procedurs Code for discharge and pletded that the court s Ghagriabad &d not have
jurssdiction to kear the matier, The Magstrate rejecied the application, agamst which the accosed,
incloding Raool Dhanent, filed a eriminal revision petition no. 378 of 2004 before the Additional
Sessions Judlge, Court oo, |, Ghazishad, which was rgected Thereafier, the sccused filed a
criminal misceflancous application ne. | 1815 of 2005 befors the High Court of Ailshabad clamung
that the Magstrate ot Ghaziabad did not have termtoral pmisshction to hear the matter. The High
Ciourt of ABahabad upheld the application and dirécied the Magisirate o decude the question of
territorial jurisdicton secording 1o livw, withixd insisting on the pasonal apeesrincs of the
accused. The mamer is currendly pending.

Litigaibon involving Civil Laws: Nons

Litigation invelving actions by Statutory [ Regulatory Autherities: SICOM Limated (“SICOM™)
o filed a summmary suit for recovery in 1997 againet DCL. Yosuf Dharani and Reoof Dhanam at
the High Coort of Bombay to recover an initial amount of 250,00 lakbs granted to DCL 24 3 loan
{Ieitial Recovery Suit™). The lnutal Revovery Sust was transferred 1o the Debt Recovery Tribunal-
I, Murbai (DR T-I Mumbai™) in 2005 bearing 0.A No. 203/ 2005, with Yosuf Diassn) and Rasof
Dhanam, who wers puarantors for the said ierm loan being Ested as parties to the sat. The DRT-11
Mumbas through s judgement dated September 20, 2006 sHowed for the recavery of an amount of
£27.50 lakbs from Yosuf Dhanapi and Raoof Disnsoi ("DRET Order”™) and issoed 3 recovery
certificate dated October 19, 2006. Subsequently, msotvency notice MN/73 of 2007 dated March 16,
2007 was issued by the High Court of Bombay to Yusuf Dhanani and Baoof Dhamam (28 pudgemant
ereditors), o pay SICOM 260,10 [akhs, with interest on the sum of 327,50 lakhs af the me of 12%
per annum from Janvary 24, 2007 until payment, &s claimed by SICOM asd a5 set oot in the DRT
Orrder, winch amount the Defendants had fatled to pay. Yosuf Dhamani snd Reoof Dhanani filed 2
notice of motion dated November 30, 2007 in the High Count of Borsbay for seming aside the
insolvency notice. The Bombay High Court bas pessed an order dated July 5, 2016, wherem the
natice of motisn NT3 of 2007 imvolving the Defendants and other similar insolvency matters have
been reserved for dircctions until the Supreme Court deoides whether an imsohvency aolixe can be
issued on the basis of o judgment and onder passed by the debl rovovery ribunal The mana &
anremtly pending.

Lirigation invalving Direct / Indirect Tax matters: None

(ther Pending Litigations: Robul Yadav filed & crimonal complaimt sgaisst the Barbogue-Naton
Hospitality Limated { BMHL ) on July 14, 2020 with the SHO, Medical College Police Station, Meerut
alleging that he was scrved non-vegetanian food instead of vegetanian food st the Barbogue Nation
Restawrnnt i Meerut. He also filed a complamt before the District Consumer Disputes Redressal
Forum, Meerut om Fuly 20, 2020 seeking compensation of 2 [ 6,00 kakhs and ¥ 1 lakhs o3 legal fies
Along with this, be alse filed 2 complaint before the Sub-THvisional Magistrate, Meonat oo
Devember 27, 201% and has sent a legal notice to the BNHL, addressing Mr. Thulmxlr!'illyl.l.:
Unni, being Chairman of the BNHL, allegimg deficiency in service and and dermanding
compensation of T24 lakhs and ¥ 020 lakhs as legal fees, which was denicd by BNHL. Further, the
complaint states that the BNHL in respanse 10 the legal notice has siated that the complamant had
scccpted & sum of T 0,50 lakhs as the full and fimal sentlerment, which fact has been dinputed by the
eomplemant. Additronally, BMHL has fled its wniten statemend in this matier before the Detrict
Consumer Disputes Radréssal Forpm, Meemut in May 2021, Rahod Yedav hes alo fied dheir
evidence affidavit and the case was Bxad for presenting svidence by BNHL. The matier is corrently

pending.




I Litigavion by eur Directors
() Litigation imvotving Criminal Laws: Nune
(i) Litigatlon havolvieg Civil Laws: None
{iii) Litigation invalving sctions by Statutery/Regulatory Autborities: Noee
(iv) Litigation involving Direct / Indirect Tax Matters: There are § mutters pending pertaining to

direct’ indirect inxes myohring an amount of Bs. 38280 lakhs.

(v} Others pending litigations: None
C. LITICATION INNGOLVING OUR PROMOTERS
L Litigation against our Prometery:

i

{iE)

Lisigatien invelving Criminal Laws:

1. A complaint was filled by Videocon Leasing and Industrial Fmance Limitad ¢Complainmnt™)
under Seetions 34, 415, 418 and 420 of the ndian Penal Code (“TPC™} and Section 200 of the
Criminal Procedure Code before the Additional Criminal Judical Magistrate, Count No. §,
Ghamabad, seminst, inter abia, Raoof Dhanani for dishonestly inducing the Complamant to gart
with 160000 lakhs for msuance of non-convertible, rodeomable debentures of Divra
Chernicals Limited (“DOL™), which were not issued and subssquently, mier aka, underuiong
o repay an amount of T2235.70 kkhs to the Complainant, whch was also done Purswant to
oicher dated May 9, 2003, the Magisirate ssusd . summons e the accused, mcluding Raocol”
Dhanani 1o appear before the court. The ascussd filed an application onder Section 245{7) of
the Criminal Procedure Code for discharge and pleaded that the court at Thazmbad did ot
kave jurisdiction to hear the matier. The Magistrate rejectod the application, against which the
aceused, nchsding Rocof Dhanani, filed a crimizal revision patition no. 578 of 2004 before |he
Adiditional Sessions Judge, Court no. |, Ghariabad, which was rejectod. Therenfier, the accuied
filed a criemnal miscellancows application no. [ IBL6 of 2005 before the High Court af
Allohabad claiming that the Mapistrote ot Ghaznbad did not have territorial jurizdiction o bear
the maner. The High Court of Allshabad uphbeld the spplication and dirccted the Magisiraie o
decide the question of terrional junsdctzon according to law, withoot imsistmg on the personal
appearence of the socused. The matter & currently pending

1 M's Shoe Care has filed 2 complaint (Case oo STC 2462000 dated Deober 29, 2000,
before the Court of the Additional District Mussil Cum Judicial Magstiste. Ambar District,
under Seetion 135, 141 and |42 of the Negotinble Instruments Act, 158 | read with Section 200
of the Cririinal Procediore Code, agaiest Sarm Soole Privele Limdled (S5PL) and Kayum
Mmanani (a3 divector of SSPL), n reletion 1o certain cheques issued by SSPL 1o M's Shoe Care,
smounting to ¥12.50 lakhs in total being dishonored on presentation for collection. The matter
& currently pending

3. Exgel Polymer Industries, a parmesshsp firm, has filed s complamt (Case no. C-165720) dared
August 25, 1020 before the Court of the Judicial Magisirate at Hidhannagar againg 3SPL
Kavum Dhanani {as director of SSPL) and certam others, ueder Secton 138 of the Negotiable
histruments Act, 1881, in relation to o cheque issued by SSFL w Excd Polymer Indestries,
smounting e 31460 kikhs beng deshonored on presentation for epcashment Joim meme is
under provess. The malier 5 currently pending.

Litigation invalving Civil Laws:

I. United Cuting Dies has filod o compiaint (Case No. 08 382019 and OS 392019) before
Addl. District Judge No -1l Tirspattur under Section 22 of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908
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sgainst SSPL and Kayum Dhapani {as director of 53PL). in refation to &8 ootstanding claim
ampnnting to T21,20 lakhs. The makter is qurrenily pending.

2 L & E India Pvi. Lt bas filed a complamnt (Case No. 0S/301.202 1 ) before Prmeipal District
and Session Judge, Tinvallur under Section 13 of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 agsina
SEPL and Kayum Dlanani (as direcior of S8PLY m relation 1o an outstanding ¢ laim arsounts g
o 154.20 lakks. The matier is ourrently pending.

3, Navvug Lamimates (Versatile Enterprses) has filed a complami (Crse Noo 22792021 ) befioee
Civil Judge {funior Division) Ludhisna under Section TR1 of the Code of Cril Procedure,
1908 agamst S5PL and Keyvum Dhanam (a5 director of S5PL), n relation to an outstanding
clnim amounting 1o 22860 hids. Reply tas been fled. The matier & currently pending

4, Kishore Exports has fited a comphuis (Case No. IA/1792021 and O57337/2021) before Fast
Track Judicial Magtstrate Court Na. |, Ersde ander Section 22 of Suits Valoation Act, 1887
agginst SSPL ond Kayum Disanan (3% director of SSPL), in relation to #n outstanding ¢iaim
amounting 1 #3150 lakhs. The matter is cunrently pending.

i) Litlgation involving actions by statwtery or regulatory sothorities: 50C0M Limited
("SHCOM™) had filed a summary suit for recovery in 1997 agamst DCL. Yuesuf Dianani and
Raoof Dhanznt st the High Count of Bombay to recover #n inital amount of 150.00 lakhs
granted to DCL as a loan [“initia] Recovery Suit™). The Imtml Rocovery Suit was transdferred
to the Debt Recovery Tribunal-IT, Mumbai (“DRT-11 Mumbai™) in 2005 bearng O.A No
2057005, with Yiosuf Dhanani and Racof Dhanant, who were guarantors for (e sasd torm bean
being fisted a5 partics to the suil. The DRT-1l Mumbai through its jodgement dsted Sepiember
29, 2006 allowed for the recovery of an amoant of T27.50 kakhs from Yusof Disnan: and Raoof
Dhanani (“DRT Order™ and isswed 8 recovery cemificaic dated October 19, 2006
Subsequently, insolvency notice N/73 of 2007 dated March 16, 2007 was ssued by the High
Court of Bormbay to Yusuf Dianani and Ruoof Dhanan {as judgerment creditors), fo pay
SICONM #6010 Jakhs, with misrest on the sum of 2730 lakks a the reie of 2% per annom
from January 24, 20607 uniil payment, as claimmed by SICOM and as sct out in the DRT Onder,
which smeunt the Defendants hud fled to pay. Ywsuf Dhanani and Racal’ Dhamani filed a
avtice of motion dated Movember 30, 2007 in the High Court of Bombay for sefting sside the
insolvency notice, The Bombay High Court has pessexd an order dated July 3, 2016, wherein
the notice of motion ™73 of 2007 myvolving the Defendaniz and cther similar insolveney
Mmhﬂ:bmrﬂmﬂhdhmmmﬂﬂﬁqrﬂﬂmﬂmﬂﬂiﬂu

notice can be tiswed on the basis of & judgment and order passed by the deidt
resovery tribsmal, The mater 5 curreptly pending.

i) Lidgation invelving Direct / Indirect Tax Matters: Mone
ivi  Onber Pending Litgations: Noaz
I Litigation by our Promotors:
i1} Litgatios involving Criminal Laws: None
(i) Litigation involving Civil Laws None
(1) Litigation invodving actions by statutory or regulatery authorities: Nons

iiv) Litigation involving Direct / Indirect Tux Mattery: There are |0 maners ponding pemunmg o
direct’ imdirect taxes involving an amound of Bs. 453 49 Takhs.

iv) Other Pending Livkgations: Nose
0. LITIGATEON INVOLVING OUR GROUP COMPANY
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il Litigation imvelvisg Criminal Laws:

1. Om April 10, 2000, ome of the guest, Tahassom Almed, wes fund dead in the steam room
of the Tndure botel of SHIL. A diary copy no. T74(A) was filed by the Viiay Nags police
station before the magisirate Grsl ohss agains ceriain emplovess of SHIL. Tee wial =
currently pending. The employers of SHIL filed a petition so. 792172010 with the High
Court of Madhya Pradesh, Principal seat at Jabalpur, Indore Bench, pending uial in the court
of Magstraie First Class, praving that the FIR and subsequent proceodings against them
should be quushed. The High Court through its order dated February 2, 2016 dismissed the
petition stating that there is no abuose of judicial process end the menits of the matter will be
decided by the rial court. Marier is currently pending before District Coust, Indore

2. Rahul Yadav filed o comnal complait against the Barbeque-Nation Hospinality Limited
(BNHL) on July 14, 2020 with the SHO, Medical College Police Station, Meenut allegiag
thay he wis served non-vegetaran food matesd of vepetaran food &t the Barbegue Nation
Restaurant in Meenut. He also filed a complaint befere the District Consumer Disputes
Redressal Forum, Meerwt on Fuly 20, 2020 secking compensation of ¥ 16,00 lakhs and ¥ |
lakhs as jegal fees Adong with this, be aiso filed 2 complamt before the Sub-Divisional
Mamstrate, Meonut on December 27, 2019 and has sent b kepel notice o the BNHL,
addeesang Mr. Thomsppully Marsvansn Unmi, bemg Charman of the BMNHL, alleging
deficiency in service and negligenes and demaading conpensation of 24 lakhs and 3 0.20
lakhs 22 begal foes, which was dendsad by BNHL. Further, the complaint states that the BNHL
in respanse 10 the legal notice has stated that the complainant kad accepled a sum of T 0.50
lekhs as the full and final scoidement, whch fact has been disputed by the complainant.
Additiomally, BNHL bas filed its written sistement in this mafter before the District
Consumer Disputes Redressal Forum, Meonat in May 2021, Rahol Yadav has also filed thear
evidence affidavil and the caze was hsted for presenting evidence by BNHL. The matier =
currently panding.

3. ‘SHIL fled a criminal compiaint on May 27, 2016 beforie the First Class Judicial
Indore agamst Meyunk Chinchvadiar under section 134 of the Nepotiable Insirurments Act,
1881 for recovering an amount of Rs. .35 lakhe due sgainst hotel services. A non bailable
wartant & isvusd in the pame of Meyank Chinchvadkar The matter is cusmently pending.

4. SHIL filed a criminal cormplami on April 19, 2017 before the First Class Judicial Magistrate,
Indore against Alok Gupta ender saction 1358 of the Nepotieble [nstruments Act. [RE] for
recovering an amount of Ra. 2.00 kkhs doe againar hote] services. The mafter & comently
pending.

5 SHIL filed a ennuinal complaint on July 26,200 7 before the Furst Class Fodicial Magisiraie,
Indore agaimst Hessani Mansovaly under section |38 of the Nepotmble Instruments Act,
1881 for recovering sn amoont of B 5.80 lakhs due agamst hotel services. The mutter 1

currenily pending.

f. SHIL has filed 8 FIR agaimst thew emplovees Mr. Anil Sawle, Mr. Amit Tivari, Suman
Chawdhry & Satveer Singh for the cash misappropriation donse by them involving sum of Rs
1100 lakhs. The mabier is curreptly pending.

7. SHL hasz filed 3 FIK. agaimst their employvess Mr. Sendeep Trwari & Mr. Sidharth Trivedi for
the cash misappropration dooe by them mvolving sum of Bs 435 lbkhs The maner &
currenily pending.
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Litigation mvelvieg Chvil Laws:

L

State Bank of India, larsi branch, filed a crvil suit deted Febroary 13, 2017 befiore the First
Civil Judge Class-1, larsi ("SBI7} against SHIL, Bank of India, Itarsi branch (“Bol™) and
Sunil Gopal Rao initisting recovery procesdings. I & alleged by SBI that SHIL had
submitted & cheque of an amount of Rs. 8.98 lakhs in faveur of Sumil Gopal Reo a1 its Bussi
branch, which was honoered as per the instructions of SHIL and the amount was remitied to
the collecting bank of Sunil Gopal Ran, viz, Bol It has been further alleged by SBI, thar
upon receipt of complaint from SHIL informing that SHIL had not ssuod sny such chogue,
i returned the amonl debited from SHIL & acoount 1o SHIL. Further, SBI simutneously
requested Bol o remal the amount back o SBI alleging that Bol had defiuilted m conduicting
the proger KYC cheeks on thew scconnt holder, L2 Sunil Gopal Rao, SBI further slleged that
i spéie of repeated requests, Bol did not retwrn the said amoont, and benee this st was filed
by SHI for recovering an amount of Rs. 3,98 lakhs from Bol. Separatcly, SBI has also prayed
that SHIL and Sunii Gopal Rao be [mble to pay an mierest of 18% on the said amount. The

malter is currently pending.

Mr. Ashok Malhotra's Club Membershp was termmated due to disciplisarny issues winch
Eas been challenged by him before the Dhistrick Court, Indore. This mutier s cormently
pending

Indore Development Authority (TDA) has indtisted procoediegs wnder the Lok Parishad
Bodekhali Adhinivam for ovicting SHIL from the premises under the Public Premises
{Eviction of Unawihorzed Ocoopanis) Act, 1971, Howews, the High Coor of Modiya
Prosdesh. Indore bench, vide onder dated Movember 30, 2018, has granted inierim redicl and
held that IDA canpot evict without the leave of the cowrt. SHIL has filed its objecthons befors
the Lok Parishad Bedakhali Adhinivam. The matter i currently pending

SHIL received show cause notices dated August 23, 2011 and August 26, 2014 isssed by the
DA directing SHIL 1o show ciuse a3 o why e kase agecment dated Junc 219, 1994
exccuted between SHIL and 1DA for property situsted a1 Plot H- 1, Scheme No. 54, MR 10,
Vijaynagar, Indore, Madhya Pradesh (“IDA Lease Agreement™) should not be caacelled, for
regsona which include, inter abia, sale of shops constructed on the said property by SHIL, in
breach of the terms of the IDA Leoase Agreement Pursuant w0 resolution Mo 257 dated
Novembey 23h, 2017, the IDA cancelled the allotment of the samd plot and the IDA Lase
Agreement, and msued an order dated Decernber 20, 201 T mfeming it of such cancellation
SHIL filed 2 writ petition dated Znd January 2018 before the single judge bonch of High
Cromet -of Muasthya Prodesh, Indore. The High Count of Madhya Pradesh, Indore pazsed an
order dated 16th Joly 2018 and dismissed the petition filed by SHIL. Being niggrieved by the
erder, SHIL filed Writ Appeal on | lth Seprember 2018 against the ceder. During this period,
the Btate of MP has framed miles for mitipation of lsase termecompounding and further
amended the szid riles on %th Apnl 2621 due to which SHIL abo became cligible under the
said rules te apply for compounding’ mutigation snd heace on 13th July 2021 SHIL appled
s [DA for compounding of alleged violations of ihe lease deed On Sth March 2022 High
Coort, Trdore besch sdmined the Writ Appeal and ferther directed IDA W docide the
sompoanding application of SHIL within 2 period of 4 weeks, In the process of deciding the
application for compounding, [DA hes sought docivion of the High Courl coganiing
retrospective applicability of the said mules of April 2021 and a separste Wit has been filed
B the ammie whach w pealing for beaning Wl Apposl B abo peading for finsl besring dus
Tix the ongiing mamers a3 sfocexaid and shall be decided sccordingly afier conclushon of thexe
T
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5.

Madhye Pradesh Paschim Kshetra Vidwan Viaren Company Limdted (MPPEVVCL) has
waped Letter Noo SE HT Billing Cell/ 104371044 dated J8.08. 2018 and sdded demand of
hlﬁliﬂhﬂuhﬁbﬂ:ﬂd!:ﬁrﬂhﬁ}'ﬁﬂltﬁhﬁ:ﬂﬂﬂhﬁmmhuﬁd
i comsemeT in pespective TOD (time of the day ) manner with retrospective effect. SHIL has
pand the entire dermaing riised vide above referred potice. SHIL has aleo chalienped the said
nodice and carrently this matter = pending before High Court, Tndors

Indore Mumcipal Corporation hes mised demand of Rs 5510 lakbs wwards penalty on
sccount of short pavment of property tax. Appeal filed before Mayor-in-Coancil, [ndore
order before High Court, Indore. The master is currently pending

Juint Registror of Stamps, Pune passed order for demand of Rs.32. 40 fakkhs allcging that SHL
has paid short stamp duly under the Mabarashira Stmp Doty Act, 1958 SHL has pand the
entire demand amount. SHL has filed 2ppeal before Inspecior General of Registration, Chief
Controlling Revenue Authority, Puse. Matler iz currently pending before the asthority.

Lirigation iwvelving actions by statutory or regulsiory suthorites

L

I

MEr. Satish Chanchadive. ex-emploves of SHIL, filed case before npgh court regarding ciaim
of gratuity payment & olber duss. Amount imvolved Rs 0 59 hikhe | The maner & curmently
penalimg,

Blir. Prabhat Boke, ox-emploves of SHIL, filed cose before lahour cowt regardmg clakn of

fermination benefits. Amount mvolved Es0.70 kkhs Mater & corremily pending befiore
fabour court, [ndore.

Mr. Jagdish Singh, ex-cmployee of SHIL, filed case before labour court regardimg claim of
gratuity payment & otber dues. Amount mvolved Re2.10 lakhs = The mestter i currently
pending.

Wi, Jawveer Singh, ex-cmployee of SHIL, filed casc before labows coun reganding claim of
gramuiy payment & oher dues. Amoaunt involved Rs. 351 lakihs: Matier & comonily ponding
before labonr court.

Mr. Rombahedur Singh, ex-employee of SHIL, filed case before labour court regasding clemm
of pranmty payment & other dues Amount imvolved Ra( 85 lakhs, Matter 15 cumrenthy
pending before lsbour courn

Mr. Diwrmendra Singh, ex-cmployee of SHIL, filed case befare labour cournt segarding claim
of prapnty payment & other dues Amount mvolved Rs |50 lakhs Mater i camrently
pemding before lshour o

M Jayveer Singh, ex-employee of SHIL, filed case before lsboir count regending
termipation. Amwunt invelved K 0.95 lakhs, Matter is cumrently pending before labour court.

Mr. Rambahodur Smgh ex-employes of SHIL, filed cage before ohour coun regardmg
termisation. Amount involved R 0. 79 takhe Matrer & carrently pending befiore labour coun

Mr. Dharmendrs Singh. ex-employee of SHIL, fkal crie before lebour court regerlng
fermination. Amount invoelved Bs 0,71 lakhs Maner i currently pending before labour court.

Mr. Jayweer Singh, ex-emploves of SHIL, filed case before Bhowr coon regarding
termimation benefits. Amoort mvolved R 598 hkbs Matter & cumently pending before
labour court.
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11. Mr. Rambabadur Singh. ex-cmployer of SHIL, filed casc before laboor court
terunation benefits. Amount mvolved Rs0.76 bihs Mater 5 cuvently pending before
labour ooumt,

12 Mr. Dharmendr Mishra, ex-employee of SHIL, filed case before lnbour count megarding
termination benefits, Amount mvolved Rs(.76 lakhs, Matter s currently pending before
Inbour cogart

13 SHL recerved u nofice wsued by FSSAI Department, Raipur for the paneer
samnple of 30 2 Loose Pancer wis taken by the mﬂ&pﬂhﬂmhﬂ'yl II'.IIH
The result of this test was given on Janury 21, 2019, stating the sample 1o be of “Sub —
Standlard”. Afer that an apology Iefia was sent o the Desigrated officer (Food & Safety
Department ) which was rggeciad by hum and the case was ransfer to the Additional Dhstrct

Magtrate & Adjudicating Officer. The maner 5 cxyrentdy pending.

{iv] Litigation imvolving Direct | Indirect Tox Matters: There are |8 moters pending perizming 1o
direct’ imdirect taxes imvolving an smount of Re 59003 lakhs.

iv)  Orther Pending Lingations: None

In pecordance with the Maseriality Policy, details HMMLMM}MHM[B
defined under section 2 of the Micro, Small and Meodivm Enterprises Development Act J006)
material credifors and other creditors, 2z at March 31, 'mﬂ,nuwhﬂnw

Number of Cr - At irstandiog (€ In

Rupaes
Matermal Creditors 30 TE36,937.12
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 1 18,60, 506 T4
Ohher credeors 42 | 26.55.832 5T
Total a3 1235627643

“drruming effect te Demerger iv duly provided
For further details please refer to the chapter titled “Revtased Audited Fingncial Stetementy ™ begmning
on page 101 of this Information Mensorandum:

F. Al

hﬂqlunmutdhﬂimmlh:wmmmfmﬂmiﬂhthMEnﬂmhhtiH
sudited Hestaled Awdited Frmoncial Statements a3 on March 31, 2023 and Faenm Audried Francml
Statemnents s on September 30, 2023 any circunmstances that materially or adversely affect or are likely to
gffect gur profitability taken a3 a whole or the vales of our assdts or our abikty © pay our material
lishilinies withim the next welve manths

Mational Company Law Tribunal bas, vide an order dated fuly 11, 1023 approved the Composile Scheme
of amalgimation & amangersend betwesn Savap Hotels Lumited, Alulva Hotels Limibed Savap Hotwcls
ilndore) Limited {Formerly known os Sayaji Hotels (Vadodara) Lomited), Sayaji Hotels (Pane) Limmed
and Savapi Hotels Manapemeni Limied and their respective sharcholders and Credhbors under the
provisions of sections 230 to I31 rend with secticn 321 and 66 and other spphcable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws. The effective date of the Scheme & Aagust 01, 235
with the Appointed Date of April 0], 2022, Accordingly, n accordance with the Schame, our Company
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has allotied 30,46,605 Equity Shares of £ 10 eaxch 1o the sharcholders of Sayaji Hotels Limited on
September 6, 2023 based on the record date, being Sth September 5, 2023 in the ratio of 423 and % (Eight
Oniy) 107 Camulative Redeemable Preference Shares of T 100 each to the shareholders of Sovap Holels
Lintited on September 6, 2023 based om the record date, being Sepeember 5, 2023 i the ratio of 1:1,25.000
an the pard-up share capital (prior te cffevtive date) of 50,000 Equity Shares having face value of T 10
cach of our Company was cancelied‘extingusied and the nespective share certificates have been defaced.

(THIS PART OF PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BILANK)

125




GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APFROVALS

Pursuani o the Composite’ Scheme, Demerped Underiakings, and amy docoments of title, rights and
engements in relation thereto shall be vested in and Franz ferred 1w the Resultung Company ndﬂllllhdﬂl
i the Besulting Company thereafler. The mutation of the til w the mmovahle

the Demergod Undertakings shall be made and duly recorded by the appropriale authoritics, uhw-ni
the Resulting Company.

INCORPORATION DETAILS

Our Company was originally mcorporated as 3 Public Limited Company m name and style of ~Sayai
Horels {Puree) Limited ™ under the provisions of the Companiss Acl, 2013 wide certificate of macorporation
dated May 10, 1018 besnng Corporate Identification Number USS04TNIOISPLCIZI599 jssued by

Deputy Regristrar of Companies, Central Registration Centre.
1) CORFORATE AFFROVALS

1. Certificate of Incorporation dated May 10, 20158 issued 1o our Company by Deputy Registrar of

Companies, Ceniral Registoaton Centre in the neme of “Sayaji Hotcls (Pone) Limmited™
1) AGREEMENTS WITH NSDL AND CDSL

I. The Company has entered into an agreement dsted, April 11, 2019 with the Central Depositorics
Services (India) Linited (“CDSL"} and the Registrar and Transfer Agsnt. who in this cuss i Link

Intime India Prisate Limiled for the dermtenalization of s shares.

2 The Company has entered into an agreement dated May 13, 2019 wih the National Securitics
Beposilory Limited (“NSDL™) and the Registrar and Tmnsfer Agent. who in this case s Lmk lntume

India Privare Limited for the demateralization of is shares.

3. The Company’s International Securities Memification Number (CISINT) fir Equity Shars is

INEOPGS0101T.

4. The Compamy”s Intcrnational Sexwrities |dentification Number 1SINT) for Preference Shira B

DSEOTGI0401 1,

3} TAX RELATED AFTROVALS

Dtz lajus
1. | Fenmanens Income Tax ABACSIEF Mav 10, 3HE | Vadidwntil
BOCONRE Diepartrment, cani
number (PAN) | Government of
Tz
2 | Tax deduction | Income Tox PFNESERAIID Aingist I, Validwniil
ECCONnE Drepartment. A camoe
number{ TAN} | Chvernment of
Inddha
3 Muoharashira 2TABACEIEF | L September 15, | Validunni
lwll;mlm Chonads aml 019 canced
Certificate Services Tax Act,
207
|26
T
ﬁi Ha.'
(3 C
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4 | GST Madhya Pradesh | Z3ABACSI06F 1 ZT Jume 13, 2003 | Validuntl

Regstration Goods and cancel
Certaficare Serviced Tax Act,
2017
5 IGET Gugrat  Goods | 24ABACSINGF 1 IR Juby 12, 223 | Vakdundil
Registration and Services Tax cance
Certificate Act 2017
b Profesaional The Gujarar | FROOZ20600166 Sepicmber 12, | -
Taa Municrpalitees, A3
Registration Municipal
Ceraficate Corporation and
S Tax oo
Professions,
Trades, Callings,
and
st 076,
T Prafesional The Giugarat | PECDI0S0TIS0 April O, 2009 | -
Tax Enrolment | Municipalitees,
Certificate Municipal
Cerporation and
State Tax oo
Professmons,
Trades, Callings,
and
Employnwents
Agy, 976

4) REGULATORY APPROVALS, LICENSES AND FERMISSIONS

The Demerged Compary biss all the material repulmory spprovols, pormissions and licenses oy msv be
required by the Company and as per provisions of Scheme, all stand transferred 10 the Company

5) SCHEME AND LISTING RELATED APPROVALS

For details on Composite Scheme and listing refated approvals please sec “Scheme af Arrangement ™ and
“Other Regulatory and Statutory Divelssnres™ on pages 43 ond 155 respectively.

(THIS PART OF PAGE HAS BEEX INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)
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OTHER REGULATORY ANDSTATUTORY DMSCLSOURES
AUTHORITY FOR THE I55UE

The Nationa! Company Law Tribuna! ihrough an order datsd July 11, 2023 has approved the composite
schenye of smalgamation & armogement between Savaji Hotels Lumited (“Demerged Company™ or
“SHL™), Ahilya Hotels Limited, Sayeji Hotels {Indore) Limited {Formerly known as Sayap Hotels
(Vadodara) Limited) (“Resulting Company™ or “SHIL"), Soyan Hotels (Pune) Limited (*Resulting
Company™ or “SHPL™) and Savaji Hotels Management Limited and their respective sharsholders and
Creditors under the provisions of sections 230 to 232, read with section 52 and 66 and other spplicable
previsions of the Companees Act, 2013,

For more detaks relating 1o the Composite Scheme, please refer 1o "Scheme of Arrangement™ on page 44
of this Information Memorindum In sccordance wath the Composite Scheme, Demerged Undertakings of
Demerged Company was ransferred 10 and vested with Company with effect from the Appointed Date
viz. Apnil 01, 2022, In secordance with the said Scheme, the Equity Shares of our Company shall be beied
srd sdmitied to trading on BSE. Such listing and admission for tnding & not muomatic snd will be
subject to fullthnent of ksting criteria by our Company as permetted by BSE for such ssuss and alsa subject
12 such other terme and conditions a3 moy be preseribed by BSE a1 the time of the applicartion (o listng
by our Company. Observations leiers from BSE in relation to the Composite Scheme wers granted vide
ther letters dated March 15,2022

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

There being no initis! poblic offermg or rights ssue, the sligibility criteria of SEBI {Issuc of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 are not applicable. SEBE has vide its circular, SEBI Mester
Circular No. SEBVHO/CFDVPOD-2PCIR 02303 dured June 20, 2003 ("SEBI Master Circular™)
consolidating SERI Circulirs dated November 23, 2021, March 10, 2017, March 23, 2017, May 26, 2017,
September 21, 2017, January 3, 2018, September 12, 2H 9 and November 3, 2020 (collectvely, the “SEB
Clrenlars™) has subject to certain conditions permafted unlisted ssuer companies (o meke an gpplicstion
for relaxing from the sifict enforcement of clmese (b 1o sub-rule (2) of Rule 19 thercof by making an
application ta SEBI under sub-rule (73 of rule 19 of the Securities Contracts {(Regulation) Roles, 1957, Owr
Company has sebmitted the Informanon Memorandum, comuming information 10 BSE and making
disclosures of such information aveilable in line with disclosure requiremest to public through thew
wehsites wva brandip com, Our Compeny will make the Information Memorandum svailable on s
wehsite www shpipune com. Our Company shall publish an advertsement in the newspapers before
commencement of trading as per the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBVHOCFO/POD-2PCIR 202393
darad hame 20, 2023,

FROHIBITION BY SEEI DR DTHER GOVERSMENT AUTHORITIES

The Company, its Promaters, its Promater Ciroug, m[ﬁtﬂnm_‘m:"'ﬂmlﬂw
have not bown prohibited from accessing the capital market or debarmed from buysg, selling or dealimg in socurites
under any crder or dirsction passed by SEBI ar amy securities ourkel regulaton in sey other purisdsction or any ather
suthority'coart,

Fusther, sone ol o Dinsctorsor Promoters i & direcor or promoter afasy othar compainy which 13 curmentiy debamal
from acezsung e capital oorkas by SEBL

Mathe our Compasy toe any of cur Promaters or Direceors have been ideatifiod 25 wilful defaalienis) by soy baalk
andsor Fmancial instiunon in sccordanos with e prideime o wilfsl defiuliers aved by the Resene Bank of India
Mesther our Promaters nov owr Directons have been declherad g fegitive ecmomiy gifonder under Sextioa 12 of the
Fugitive Bomommic Offenders Act, 2015

COMPLIANCE WITH COMPANTES (SIGNIFICANT BENEFICIAL OWKERSHIF) RULES,
UL
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Our Company, Promoters and Promoier Group are in complisoce with the Companses (Significant
Benchicial Owmership) Rules, 201E to the extent applicable.

GENERAL DISCLAIMER FROM OUR COMPANY

The Company actepis o responzibility for sistemwnts made otherwize than im the Informetion
Memorandum or in the sdvertisements 1o be pablished in terms of Part [T (A) para 2 sub - clause § of the
SEBI Master Circular or any other material issued by of at the instance of the Company and that anvons
placing reliznce on any other source of informatson would be doing so at his own risk. All information shall
be made wvanlable by our Company o the public and mvestors ot e and o sclective or additicral
information would be available for 3 section of the mveson: m &y ManneT.

MSCLAIMER CLAUSE OF THE BSE LIMITED

Az required. a copy of 1he Scheme was sabmillad 1w BSE. B3E vide mx l=ier bearmg refererse no
DCS/AMALMERITIIAS2021-22 dated March 15, 2022 granted i3 observations on the Composile
Scheme under Regalation 37 of the SEBI LODR Regulations and by vietse of that approval, the BSE's
rame is included in this Informabon Memoramdum 25 one of the Stock Exchanges on which the
Company s secuniies are proposed bo be bsied

EXEMFTION FROM RULE I'%INb) OF THE SECURITIES CONTRACT (REGULATION)
RULES, 1957

Our Compaayy was granted an exemption from the application of Rule [%(2)(h) of the Securities Contracts
(Regulationd Rules, 1957 by the SEBI vide the leter (bearing reference no. SERLVHOUCFIVDCRRAC-
FFOW 20343 TER dated Oviober 30, 2023,

FILI™:
This Information Memorandum has been filad with BSE.

LISTING

Our Company bhas obiimed i principle lsling approvals from BSE bearmg lolor no
DCS/AMAL TLAP2SH2023-24 duted October 16, 2023, Owr Company shall make the spplications for
final listing and trading spprovals from BSE. The Company bas nominated BSE Limited as the

Stock Exchange for the aforesand listing of shanss. The Company ensure that ot will take all steps for the
completion of necessary formalities foe listing and commencement of trading at afl the Stock Exchanges
mentioned above within sech perniod s spproved by SEBL

DEMAT CREDTT

The Company has ¢xecuted Tri-partite Agreements with CDSL and NSDL dated Apnil 11, 2019, for
admatting its securities i dermat form. The ISTN allotted to the Company s Equity Shares ts INEOTGS01017.
Equity Shares have been ullotied to those shareholders whe have provided noccssary details o the

wnmd’wmhw&hHﬂMMmkmﬂmmwn#MMuumm

EXFERT OPINIING
Save as siaiod efsewhere m ihis Information Memorandom, se have nol obizmed amy expert opmaoes.
FUBLIC ISSUES OR RIGHTS ISSUES

Dur Company was incorporatod on May [0, 2018 and has not made ey pablic Bzee or nghis Siue smce
o porEtion

COMMISSEON AND BROKERAGE ON PFREVIOUS ISSUES

Smce the Company has ot ssued shares o the public in the pasi, no sam has been paid or & pavable as
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commiession or brokerage for subscribing to or procuring or agresng to procure subscoipiion for any of the
Equty Shares since its meeption

PERFORMANCE VIS-A-VIS ORIECTS

Since incorporation, ouf Company has nod scoed any Equity Shares o public. The Equity Shases of our
Company will b2 listed on the Stock Exchanpes pursuant o the S<heme.

ISSUANCES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH

For details in relation to the allotment of Equity Shares for conaiderstion other than cash, plesse s
= Capital Sorircture” on page AS of this Informanoen Memorandum

OUTSTANDNG DEBENTURE OB BOMDS AND REDEEMABLE FREFERENCE SHARES AND
OTHER INSTRUMENTS IS5UED BY THE COMPANY

There are ro cutstanding debentures or bonds and redecmable Preforence Shares end other instruments
wmavred by our Company.

STOCK MARKET DATA FOR EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Eiquity shares of the Company ane ot fsted on eny stock exchamges, The Company o sccking approval for
hsting of s Equity Shares through this Informaton Memorandam.

DISPOSAL OF INVESTOR GRIEVANCES

Shareholders can express their gricvances by sending mails o csshplipune com of rafie complaings in
SCORES (common ports] imtrodeced by SEBT. As on the date of this Information Momorandem, owr

Company has mot received amy investor complaimts since Incorporanon.

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Ms Kemya Jam Company Secretary of the Company = vested with responsibility of addressing the
Investor Gricvence(s) in coordination with Registrar & Transfer Agent.

Name gnd Contact defalls of Company Secretary & Compliznce Oificer

Kamiya Fain

Amber Canvontion Centre,

MNext to Best Poce, Indore Bypass Road,

Hare Knshng Vikar, Niparus, Indove 452010 MP, inds
Tel: 073147300007

Email: ¢sfs shplpuee.com

CONSENT

Or Company has chimined comsent from our Directors, Stawtory Auditor and Registrar for including their
narme i the Information Memorgsdum.

CAMTALISATION OF RESERVES OR PROFITS OR REVALUATION OF ASSETS

There has been no capitalization of our reserves or profis or revalimihion of our assels SiRce MoOrpoTaicn
to the date of this Informetion Memorandum.

CAPITAL ISSUES IN THE PRECEMNG THREE YEARS BY THE COMPANY. GROUP
COMPANIES AND SUBSIDIARY ASSDCIATE COMPANY

Meither our Comparny, nor any ligted Company under the same rmansgement have made any capital ssoe
during the preceding 3 years
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SECTION VIIE: MAIN FROVISIONS OF THE ARTIHCLE OF ASSOCIATION
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
iA COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
ARTICLE OF ASSOCIATION

OF
SAYAN HOTELS (FUNE) LIMITED

Frterpretanon
LT T these regulations-—
i#) “the Act”™ means the Companies Act, 2001,
il “the seal™ means the commuon sail of the company.
12} Unless the context othearwize requires, words or expressions soatamed in these regulations shall bear
the same tesning 45 m the A or any stnutory modificanon thereof in force a2 the dare a1 which these
regulations become bindisg on the company.

(3} The Company 15 a Peblic Limeted Company in ferms of sub secison 71 of the sectron 2 of the Companies
Auct, T3

Share capital and varietion of rght

IL.{ T} Subject to the provisioss of the Act and these Articles, the sharés m the cupital of the company skall
be under the control of the Directors whe may 1s3ue, allol or otherwise dispose of the same or any of them
10 such persons, i such proportion snd on such terms sed conditions and either ot 3 preminm or &t par snd
at soch tinee a5 they may from time to time think G

20 Every person whose mame s entered ns a member m the register of members shall be entitled 1o receive
withil two months after incorporation, i case of fubseribers to the mwemorandem or sfier aliotment o
within one month 2fter the apphcation for the regsiration of ransfer of rensmisson of within such other
perind a5 the conditions of tssue shall be provided —

i) ome certificate for all his shares whthout payment of any charpss; or

ib) several certificates, cach for one or more of s shares, opon payment of twonty rupecs for cach
certificate afer the first.

Ui} Every cenificare shall be ander the seal and shall specify the shanes 1o which it refstes and the amount
paid- up thereon

(éi) Im regpect of any share or shares held jointly by several persons, the conpany shall not be bound to
Bsue more than one cortificate, and delivery of a cortificate for a share 1o one of several joine holdors shafl
be sufficicat delivery to all such holders.

M&) IT any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilstad or torn of if there be o faether space on the
back for endossement of ransfer, then upon production and swrender thercol te the company. 2 now
eertificaie may be issued in liey thercof, and if any cortificane i lost or destrowed then epon proot therool
to the satisfaction of the company and on  execution of such indemnity as the company deem adeguate, &
pew certificate in licw thereol shall be given Every conificate under this Article shall be swed on ey
of wenky rupees for cach certificate

(i} The provisions of Articks (2) and (F) shall musaris mufondiy apply to debentures of the  company.
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4. Except as reguired by kaw, no person shall be recognised by the company as holding -]rﬂu':np-cnn}‘
trust, and the company shall not be bound by, or be compelied in any way to recognise (even when having
notice thereof) any equitable, contingent, future or partial inferest n any share, of any inlerest @ any
Fractional pari of o share, or (except only as by these regulations or by law ctherwise provided) any other
rights in respect of any share except an absolure right to the sntirety thersof in the registered bolider.

A1) The company may exgrcize the povers of paving commissions conferred by sub-section {#) of section
40, provided gt the rate per cent or the amount of the commission paid or agreed w be paid shall be
isclosed inthe masner required by thal section and rule made thore under,

(i) The rate or amoust of the commizzies shall nof exeead the rate or amount prescnbed in miss made
under sah-seciion (6) of section S,

() The comumission may be sstisfied by the payment of cash or the allotmer oF ully or panly paid shares
or pardy in the one way and parthy inthe otker.

B I at nmy time the shure capotal = devded into different clagses of chares, the nghis sifached t sy
class (umless otherwise provided by the lerms of ssue of the sharcs of that classh may, subjoct v the
providions of section 48, and whether or mot the company is bomng wound op, be varied wigh the consent in

writing of the holders of thrae-fourths of the issued chares of that closs, or with the sanction of 2 special
rosoluiton passod i & separete mecting of the holders of the shares of that class

(i} To every such scparate meeting, the provisions of these regulations relating generl mectings shall
mulatis mutandis apply. but 50 that the nevessary quonim shall b2 ao lendt (wo persons bolding ar least one-
thurel-of the mxsed shares of the class in question

7, The rights conferred upon the holders of the sharess of any class ssisal with preferred or ather rghts shall
nol, unless olberwase expressy provided by the terma of iasue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be
vaned by the crestion or issee of further share ranking part paiss therewith

8. Subject to the provisions of section 55, any preference shares may, with the sanction of an ordinary
resolubion; be issued on the ferms that they are to be redeemed on such terme and in such manner as the
company befiare the Esue of the shares may, by spacinl resoluiion, detenmine

Lien
971y The conpany shall have a it and pacsmount hen—

(a} on every share {not being a fully pad share), for sll monis (whaher proiently payable or not) allad
or payoble ot o fived time, in respect of that share; and

(bh on afl shares {not being fully pad shares) standing registered in the name of a single persen, Tor all
maontes presently payable by him or his estate 1o the compamy:

Provided that the Board of directors may st any hme declase any share to wholly or m part exempt from the
previsions of this cluse:

(4} The compamy’s lien, if uny, on a share sheil extend to all dividend bonuses declsred from time Lo time
in respect of sechshancs,

10. The company may sell, i such monner as the Board thinks fit, any shores oo which the company has
it here

Provided that nosale shall be made—

(2} unless & sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently poyable; or

(b until the expiration of fourmecen days after a notice in writing stating and demanding peyment of such

past of the amount in respoct of whichthe lien exists a3 i3 presently pavable, has been given to the registered
holder for the tione baing of the share or the parson entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency.
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11{#) To give effect to any such sale, the Board may suthorse some person to transfer the shares sold w the
purchaser thereol.

(it} The purchaser shalt be registered as the bolder of the shares comprized inény sich tfransfer,

{737} The purchaser shall not be bound to see 1o the application of the purchase money, nor shall bis utle o
the shares be affected by any megulariy o invalidity m the proceedings in reference o the sale.
12{d} The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the company and appbed 1n payment of such part of the
amount in respeet of which the lien exists as & prosently pavible

{0} The resicue, if wmy, shall, subsjiees 1o 8 bk lien for sums not presently pavable as existed upon the shares
befoae the sale, be paid to the person entitled o the shares at the date of the sale.

Cialfs o shares

1304y The Bosard suvy, Troem time 1o time, make calis upon the members in respect of any moaies unpaid on
their shares {whether on account of the nominal vakee of the shares or by way of premium) and not by the
eonditions of allocment thereof made payable at fived times:

Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nomisal value of the share or be payable ar less than
ong month from the date fined for the payment of the last precedang call.

i) Eack member shall, subject fo recerving af lenst foaneen days" matice spacifying the time or times and
place of payment, pay 1 the company, a2 the time or times and place so specified. the amount called on his
shares,

1) A call may be revoked or postponed ot the discretron of the Board

Ik, A call shall be deemed to have been made st the Gme whean the resolution of the Board swthorismg the
cell was passed and may be required to be paid by instalments.

1%, The woint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally hable topay all calls in respect therof,

1) I & sum celled in respect of o share 55 pol paid before or on the day appomicd for paymenl thereof,
the person from whom the sum is doe shall pay iniersst thereon from the dey appomted for payment thereol
b the time of actual peyment at len per cent. per annum or &t such lower rate, if sy, 23 the Bosed may
determine

1#f} The Board shall be at iberty 1o warve payvment of any such miterest wholly or m part.

IT(E) Any sum which by the terms of isueof o share bocomes payshles on sllotment or st ony fixed date,
whether on wecoant of the nominal value of the share ar by way of premium, shall, for the purpeses of these
mepukitions, be deemed to be a call duly made and pavabie on the dare on whizh by the serme of issue such
sum hecomes payable

{0 Tn case of non-payment of such sum, all the relevant provisions of these regulations as to payment of
intereit and expeises, forfeiture or otherwize shall apply os if such sum had become pavable by vartue of o
all culy made and not:fied.

IE. The Board—

(o) may, if it thinks fir, rocetve from any member willing to sdvance the same, all or any parn of the mondes
vt Hed and enpaid upon any shares held by homg amd

(b upon all or amy of the momics 50 mhanced, may (until the same would, bl Tor such sdhance, becime
preacnily payable) peay intercst 81 soch rase not cicceding, unless the compamy in genceal mecting shall
ctherwise divect, twebee per cemt. per anpum, 85 may be agreed upon between the Board and the member

paying the sum in advance.
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Transfer of shares

19¢/) The instrumnent of wansfor of any share in the company shall be exocuted by or on behalf of both the
tramafonor and ansferce.

(i} The trans feror shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share until the name of the transferee is meaved
n the register of members in respact thereof

20. The Board may, sabject 1o the nght of appeal conferred by rection 38 decline to register—

{ % the wansfer of a share, not being o fully paid share, to a person of whom they do ot approve; or

{b any transfer of shares on whach the company has o hen

21. The Board may decline to necognese any mstrument of trans fer unkess—

{n} the instrament of transfer is in the form as preseribed in rules made ender sub-section (/) of section 36;

{b) the instrument of transfer = secompamead by the cemificaiz of the shares to which i relates. and such
ether evidence as the Board may remsonably require o show the right of ke transferor 1o make the fransfer;
arud

{ckthe mstrument of ranster is in cespect of only one class of sheres.

22, Om giving not less than seven days” previgus metice im acooedonce with sectron 91 and ruies made
thereunder, the regisiration of ransfers may be saspended 21 such times and for such periods as the Board
meny (T pirme To e defermine:

Provided that such registration shall not be suspended for more thas thirty days 5t any one time o for more
than forty-five days in the aggregate in any year,

Trunsmission of shares
23y Omt the death of a member, the survivor or servivors where the member was a jomi bolder, and lus
nominée of nominges or Jegel represeniolives where be was a sharehalder, shall be the only persons
recognized by the company as having sny title to his merest in the shases.
i) Nothing in clawse (7) shall releasé ihe evtate of & deceased joim Bolder from any Fability in respeet of
gy shore which basl been pointly held by bum with other persons.
24{s) Anry person becoming entstied to & share in consequence of the death or msolvency of & member may,

upon sech evidence beimg produced a5 may from time (o fime property be required by the Board and subject
s heveinniter provided, elect, either—

ik 1o be regisiered himself as holder of the share; o
i) w0 make such wansfer of the share as the deceased or msolvent member could have made.

{ii) The Booard shall, in sither case, have the same right 1o decline or suspend registration as it would have
had, if the deceased o imsolvent member had transferrad the share before his death or imsolvency.

25(iy If the person so becoming eniitled shall elect 1o be registered as holder of the share himsell he shall
deliver or send to the company a notice m writing signed by him siating thar he 50 elects.

i) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the share, be shall testify his slection by executing & transfer
of the-sihane.

iiiih ATl the hmitations, restrictions and provisions of these regulations relating to the nght to transfer and
the registration of transfers of shares shall be applicable to any such notice or transfer s aforesasd as if the
death or insolvency of the member bad not occurred and the notice or transfer were a transfer signed by
thast menveer,




26. A person becoming enithad 1o & share by reason of the death or insolvency of the holder shall be entitied
to the same dividends and other advantages to which be would be entitled if he wers the registered holder
of the hase, except that he shall not, before being remstered as a memiber in respect of the share, be eitied
in respect of it 10 exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to mestings of the company.

Provided that the Board may, 81 any lme, give nolice requining any such person to clect cither to be
remstered himesel! or 1o transfer the share, and if the notice is not complied with within ninety days, the
Board nsy thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bormses or other monies payable in respect of the
share, untif the reguirements of the notice have comphed with,

27, In case of a One Person Company—

{11 on the doath of the sole member, the person sominated by such member shall be the person recognized
by the company as having title 1o all the shares of the member;

(it} the nomines on becoming entithad to soch shares in case of the member’s death shall be informed of
such evert by the Board of the company;

(i} such nommee shall be entitted to the same dividends snd other rights and lisbilites to which such sole
mrember of the company was entitled or akle;

(i) ot becoming member, such nomines shall nomimaie any other person with the pror wrilten consend of
such person who, shall in the cvent of the death of the member, become the mamber of the company.

Forfeirure of shares
4. i 0 member fails w0 pay any call, of mstaliment of 3 call, on the day appointed for payment thereod, the
Board may, 4t any time thereafter during sech time 85 anv part of the call or installment rermauns unpaid,
serve @ neties on him requimnng payment of o much of the call or installment as is uepaid, ogesher with
any inferest which muty hove aceroed
2% The notxce aforcssid shall—

{0} name a firther day (not being exrlier than the expiry of fourteen davs from the date of service of the
moticel om or before which the payment required by the notice i to ke made, and

(B} ztate that, in the event of non-payment on or before the dev so samed, the shares m respect of winch vhe
eall was made shall be lable 1o be forfeited.

. If the requirements of any such potice a5 aforesaid are not complied with, uny share in respect of which
the motwee haz been given may, at any time thersafler, befor: the payment required by the notice has been
mescliz, be forfeiled by a resobution of the Board 10 that effect

3116k A Forfeiiod share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on sech terms and in such manner as the Board
thinks fil.

(i) Ar any time bafore o sole or disposal as aforesadd, the Board may canced the: forfeifune on such ems as
it thinks fiv

126y A porson whoese shores have boon forfeited shall ceéase o be o mmber m respect of the forfeiied
shares, but shall, notwithsianding the forfeiture, remain lable 1o pay 10 the company all moniss which, st
the date of forfoiture, were presently payable by him 1o the company in respect of the shares.

(i1} The Teahifity of such persoe shafl cease i and when the company shall have recetved payment in full of
all such monbes in respeet of the shares.

33{n A duly venified declumtion in writing that the dechirant i3 & director, the manager of the secretary. of
the company, snd that a share in the company has been duly forfeiied on & date stated in the decloration,
shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated 25 againgt all persons ¢leiming to be cnlithed 1o the
share;
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(&} The company may receive the consideration, if amy, given fior the share on amy sale or disposal therzol’
il 1y execute o transfer of the share in favour of the person to whom the share is sold or deposed of;
(1ii} The transferes shall hereupon be registered as the bolder of the share; and

{i%) The trapsfer2e shall not be Bound to see to the application of the purchase money, if ony, nor shall his
title to the share be affected by any regularity or mvalidity in the proceedings in reference to the forfeinere,
sale or dispesal of the share.

34, The provizions of these regulations a3 to forfernae shall apply in the case of nonpayment of ony sem
whaeh, by the terms of izape of a share, becomes payable at a fixed time, whether on account of the nomimal
wathue of the share or by way of premium, as if the same had been payvable by virfue of 2 call duly made and
nodified.

Alterurion of capital
35, The company may, from time to nme, by ofdinary resofulion increase the share capital by suck sum. o
be divided into shares of such smount, a5 may be specified in the resolution.
36, Subsect to the provisions of section A1, the company may, by codinary resolution, —
(1) consobidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its existing shares;
(B} convert all or any of its fully pead-up shares into stock, and neconven that stoek into fully paid-up shares
of any depomimaion;
(e] sub-divide s existing shares or any of them info shares of smaller amount than = fined by ihe
memorandum;

(dy comeel any shares which, at the date of the passing of 1he resolution, kave not been taken or sgroed (o
be taken by any person

37 Where shares ‘are converted inbo stock—

(4] the holders of stock may ransfer the ssme or any part thercofl in the same menner a5, snd sabsecd o the
sama regulations under which the shares from which the stock aress might before the conversion have

been iransferred, or a5 nedr thereso 85 circumEiances admit;

Provided that the Board may, from time totime, fix the minimum smount of stock trensfereble, so, however,
that such momimmam shall not exceed the nommal amount of the shares from which the stock arose.

(b the holders of s1ock shall, according te the amount of stock held by them, have the same rights, privilegss
and advantages as regards dividends, voting &t meetings of the company, and other matters, as if they held
the shares from which the stock srose; but mo such privilege or advaniage (excepl participation in the
dividends and profits of the company and in the assets on winding up) shall be conferred by an amount of
siock which would nob, of exizting in shares, have conferrad that privilege or advantage

(el such of the regulations of the compaty &5 are applicable to pasd-up shares shall apply to stock and the
words “share” and “ghareholder™ in those regulations shall mclude “stock™ and “stock-holder™ respectively.

3K. The company may, by specal resoltion, reduce m any maaney amd with, and subject 1o, any incident
mistheried and consert required by low —

() its share capita].
(b amy capital redemption reserve account: ar
(&) any share premium seomant
Capiraiisation of profis
39{7) The company |0 general meeting may. upon the recommendation of the Board, resolve—
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{a} thal it is desirable to capitalise any part of the smount for the time being standing 10 the credit of any of
the compdny™s neserve accounts, of to the oredit of the profit and loss account, or otherwise evanfkble for
distribution, and

ib) that such sum be aceardingly sot froe for distribution in the manner specified i clause (i7) amomgest the
members who would bave been entiffed thereto. if distributed by way of dividind snd in the same

{ii) The sam aforesad shall not be paid i cash but shall be applied, sebject to the provision contamed in
clavse (i}, either in or towards—

(A paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any shares held by such members respectively;

{B) puying up in full, unissued shares of the company to be allotted and disinbuted, credited as fully pad-
up, & and amongst suck members in the proportions aforesaid;

{C] partly in the way specified n sub-clause (4} and partdy in that specified i sub-clase (Bl

{D} A securitics premium account and 3 cupital redemption reserve account may, for the purposs of this
regnbation, be applied in the paying up of unissucd shares (o be issued o members of the company as fully
paid borus shares;

{E} The Board shall prve effect to the resolution passed by the company & putsuance of this regulation.
40 1) Whenever such a resolution 35 aforesaid shall kave been passed, the Board shall—

{a) make all sppropriations and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalised therdby, and
all pliotments erd 1ssues of fully paid shares of any; and

i) generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto,

it} The Bourd shall have power—

{a) to make such provisions, by the ssue of fractional cartificates or by payiment i cash or otherwise as o
thinks fit, for the case of shanes becommg disiribstable in Mractions; and

ib) w suthorise any person (o enter, oo behalf of wll the members entilled thereto, inde an agreement with
the company providing for the allotment o them respectively, eredited as fully paid-up, of any further
shares to which they may be entitled upon such capitalisation, or s the case may require, for the payment
by the company on thew behal [, by the application thereto of their respective proportions. of profits resclved
fo be capitalised, of the amount or any part of the amounts remaining wopaid oa their existing shares;

iiii} Any agreement mede under such authority shall be effective ind binding on such members.
Buy-back of vheres
41. Motwithsiznding anyibing coptatned m these articles but subject to the provisons of sectiem &8 o TO

and any other apphicable provision of the Aet or amy other Bw for the [ime beng in force, the company may
putchase its own shares ar other specified securities,

Grenerol meelings
42, All generul meetings other than aneaal general meeting shall be called extraordinary general meeting.
43{{) The Board may, whenever it thinks fir, cull an extrnordinary general mecting,

{1} 11 ot anyy time dimectors capable of acting who are sufficient in number fo form a quorsm are nof within
India, any director o any two members of the company may call an extroordinary geneval meeting in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, a8 that m which such o meeting may be callzd by the Board.

Proceveings ar peneral mecting
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44{1) Mo busmess shafl be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members s present af the
tme when the meeting proceeds 0 business.

{1} Save as otherwise provided herein, the quorum for the general mectings shall be as provided m section
103,

45, The chairperson, if aay, of the Board shall preside as Chairperson ot every general mecting of the
CENTIEEHTY .
45, If there 15 no such Chasmperson, or if ke is ot present within fifteen minutes afier the time sppotnted

For holding the maeting, or is unwilling to act 83 chairperson of the meeting. the directors present shall elect
ene af their members to be Chairparson of the mecting,

47, If ot any meeting no director 15 walling 10 acl as Chairperson o if no director is present watkin fifteen
rumates after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present shall choose one of thesr
members tobe Champerson of the megting,

48, In case of & One Person Cormpany—

{i} the resolution required to be passed ot the general mectmgs of the company shall be decmed 1o bave
been passed if the revolution & agreed upon by the sole member and commumnicated 1o the company and
ertered in the minutes book maintained under section 1 18;

{ii) snch minutes book shall be syzned and dated by the member:

{iki} e resolution sfall becoime effective from the date of signing such minutes by the sole member,

Adjourmment of mecting

449(¢} The Chairperson may, with the consent of amy meeting a1 which a quoram 15 present, and chall, if so
directed by the meeting. adjourn the meeting from time o time and from place to place.

(i) i busineis shall be ransacted & sy adjourned meeting other than the usiness left unfinished at the
mocting from which the adioumment took place.
{iii] When 2 meeting % adjoursed for thirty days or more, notice of the adyoursed mestng shall be gives x
o the case of an original mestmg.
{iv) Sove as aforesand. and as provided in section 103 of the Act, it shall not be neccssary o give any notice
of an adjournment or of the buasimess o be transacied at an sdpourmed meeting.

Voting rigis
5. Subjert te any rights o restrictions for the time being sttached 1o any ¢ less or clsses of shares,—
{2} on a show of hands, cvery member present i persan shall kave ooe vore, and
{b) on 2 poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion fo his share m the paid-up equily share
eopual of the conpany.
51, A meamber may exeroie his vole al 2 mesting by dlectronic mesns i socordance with section 108 and
shall vote only once,

238 In the case of joint holders, the vole of the sénior who tenders 4 vole, whetle in person or by proxy.
shall be accepted 1o the exclusion of the votes of the other joim bolders.

{iif) Far this purpose, senfority shall be dstermvined by the aeder in which the names stand in the register of
ML

51 A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any count having
jursdiction in lumacy, may voie, whether on a show of hands or an 2 poll, by bis comminee or other legal

guardian, and any such commities or guardiin may, on a pofl, vote by proxy.
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54 Amy business other than that spon which a poll has been denmnded may be proceeded with, pending
the tking of the poll.

5. Mo member shall be entitled to vote at any general mecting unless all calls or other sums presentiy
payabie by him in respect of shares in the company kave been paid

S6i7} No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any volar excopt at the mecting or adjourned
meceting at which the wote objected to is given o tendered, and every vole not disallowed a1 such mesting
shall be valid for all purposes.

[iT) Amy saeh objection made i due time chall be refiermed to the Chasrpersos of the mesting, whoss decision
shall be final and conchesive
Proxy

57. The matrurnént appointing a proxy and the power-of-attorney or other awthority, if any, under which ot
i signed or & nowrised copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited a1 the registered office of the
company not less tham 48 hours before the trme Tor belding the mesting or sdjourncd mecting at which the
person named m the mstrument proposes [o vode, o, in the case of a poill, not less fhan 24 hours before The
timne appoinied for the takiing of the poll; snd in defaalt the instroment of preacy shall not be treated a3 vabid

3R An inmrument appointing & proxy shall be i the form s prescribed in the roles made under section
108,

30, A vote given m accordance with the terms of on instrument of proncy shall be valid, notwithstanding the
previous death or msanity of the pwincipal o the revocation of the proxy or of the suthority under which
the prexy was execuled, or the transfir of the shars i respect of which the proxy 15 given:

Provided that no mémastion in woiting of such death, insanity, revoeation or wmnsfer shall have hesn recerved
by the company 41 its office hefore the commencement of the meeting or adfoorned meeting st which the
proay 15 used

Board af Directors

60, The pumber of the dircetors and the names of the (st direcsors shall be derermined in wrime by the
subscribers of the memorandum or 3 majority of them. The First Directors of the Company shall be:

1. ¥ir. Raool Earak Dhanani
1. Mirs. Suchitra Dhanani
X Mr Amit Kunar Sianbhs

&1{#) The remunerution of the directors shall, in 0 far as it consists of & monthly pavment, be deemed 1o
accrue from day-to-day.

{ii} in addition to the reruneration payable w them in pursuznce of the Act, the directors may be paid all
travelling. hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them—

i0) m attending and returning from meetings of the Board of Directors or any committes therend or general
metings af the company; of

ibj in commection with the business of the company,
62, The Board may pay oIl expenses incurred in getting up and registening the company.

63. The company mey cxereise the powers conferred oo it by sechion 58 with regard 10 the keeping of
foreign register; and the Board may (subject to the provisicns of thal (section) make and vary such
repulations a5 it may thinks £t respecting the keeping of any such register.
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&4. All cheques, promissory noics, drafts, hundis, Bl of exchange end other negotiakle mstrumenis, and
all receipts for monies paid (o the company, shall be signed, drawm, acocpled. endotsed, or otharwiie
execuled, 05 the cose may be, by such person and in such manner a5 the Board shall from time 1o time by
resobution determine

&5, Fvery direcuor present at any meeting of the Board or of 2 committee thereof shall sign his name s 8
bock to be kept for that purpose,
&6{f) Subject w the provisions of section |49, the Board shall have power &t any time, and from me o
time, 10 appoirt & person a5 an additional dimector, provided the namber of the dircctions and sddmonal
directors together shall not at any tume excesd the maximum srenpth fived for the Board by the articles.
tmﬁ-u:hp:rmshnuhuﬂnfﬁwﬂlrmmmeﬂﬂmwl-ulgnnﬂm;dihmh
shall be eligible for appoiniment by the company s & director at that mesting subject o the provisions of
the Act

Procesdings of rive Board
B7(f} The Board of Direclors may meet for the conduct of business, adjourn and otherwise reguiats s
meetings, 45 it thinks fin
(i) A director may, and the manager of seoretany on the requsition of a director shall, af any lime, summon
o meeting ol the Bosd

BE(7 Save aa otherwise sxpressly provided in the Act, questions arimg ot any mesting of the Board shall
be decided by a majority of voles.

{14} b c2se of an cquality of votes, the Chairperson of the Board, I sy, shall have 3 second or casting vole.

69 The contiuing directors may act mtwithstanding any vacancy in the Boand, but. if and so long as thew
nurmber 15 reduced below the quorum fined by the Act for o mesting of the Board, the continuing direcion
or director may act for the purpose of increasing the nurmber of dizectors to that fixed for the quorem. or of

summening & general mecting of the company, bul for ne othe purpose.

01y The Board nisy chect a Chairpersen of its mestings and delermune the panod for which be & 10 hald
offies,

(i} I no such Chairperson & ¢lected, or if 3t any meeting the Chairporson is not present within five minutes
after the time appormed for holding the meening, the dircctors present may choost one of their number 1o

be Chairperson of the meetmg.

71} The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Acl, delegste any of s powers o oommi o
consisting of yech member or members of its body as @t thinks fie

(i1} Any commities so formed shall, i the evercise of the powers w0 delegetod, conform o amy regulations
that may be imposed on it by the Board,

T244) A commuttes may elect 4 Chairperson of its meetmgs.

(1) Hne such Champerson s elected, or if at any meeting the Chairpersos is not present within fve minutes
after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present may choose one of thewr members to
be Chuigperson of the mecting.

T3{(5) A eomemttes may meet and adjoan ss it thindcs fit

iir) Questions arsing & any megting of & comeninee shall be devermined by 1 mmjority of votes of the
memnbers present, and in case of an equality of vedes, the Charperson shall have & second or casting vle,

T4, Al acts dose o any moeting of the Board or of & commities thereol of by any person acting 81 o director,
shall, potwithsonding that it nery be afterwards discovered that there was some defiect in the appoinmment
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of iy one or more of such direciors or of any person acting as aforesaid. or thet they or any of them were
disquahified, be as vahd as if every such director or such person had been duly appomnted end was qualified
ts be & director

73, Bave as otherwise exprossly provided in the Act, 8 resolufion in writing, signed by all the members of
the Board or of a commuttes thereod, for the time being entitled fo receive notice of @ meeting of the Board
or covnmitice, shall be valid and effective as if it had been passed at a mesting of the Board or commities,
duly convened and held,

76, In case of a One Person Company—

i) whire the company & having only one director, all the businesses (0 be transacied at the meeting of the
Board shall be entered into minutes book maintzimed under section | 15;

(1) sueh minues book <hall be signed and dated by the director;
{iti} the resobetion shall become effective Fom the date of signing such minuies by the director.

Chief Executive (ficer, Muanager, Company Secretary or Chief Finaneifal (fjffcer
7. Subjoct tothe provisions of the Act—
b A chisel executive officer, manager, company secretary or chisl financial officer may be appomted by
the Board for soch term, st such remmneration and upor: sech conditions a5 it may thinks fit; and any chief
excoutive officer, manager, company secretmry or chief financial officer so sppointed may be remowved by
means of o resobution of the Board:
fit) A director may be appointed a5 chiel” executive officer, munasger, company secretary of chiel financial
uificer,
T8, A provison of the Act or these regulamons reguinng or authonsing a thing to be done by or toe director
apd chiel executive officer, manager, company sccretary o chic! financial officer shall oot be satisfiod by
its being done by or to the same person acting both as director sand s, or in place of, chief executive officer,
manager, oompany sceretary or chocf financeal officer.

The Seal

79. {4) The Board shall provide for the safe castody of the el
1) The seal of the company shill not be pifised 10 any mstrument sxcept by the authorty of o resoluhion
of the Board or of a committee of the Board authorised by it in that bebalf, and exeept in the presence of at
keast two directors and of the secretary or such other person a3 the Beard may appoint for the puspose, and

those two directors and the secretary or other person aforesaid shall sign every instrument to which the scal
of the company 13 50 affixed 15 ther presence

Brividerals and Resernve

BO. The company in pencral mecting nay declare dividends, bul no dividend shall exceed the armout
recotmmendad by the Boand,

Bl Subject o the provisions: of sectwon 1235, the Board may from tme 1o (me pay 10 the members such
interim dividends as appear to it 1o be justified by the profits of the company.

E2i¢1 The Board mey, before recommending any divedend, 521 aswle out of the profis of the company such
sure 83 i thinks £t a2 o reserve of Fesorves which shall, a1 the discretion of the Board, be-applicable for
any purpose to which the profits of the company may be properfy applicd, including provision for meciing
contingencies or for equalizing dividends; and pending such application, may, at the fike discretion, either
be employed in the bosiness of the company or be invested in such investmenss {other than shares of the
company | a5 the Board may, from time to time, thunks fit
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(i} The Board may also earry forward amy profits which it may consider necessary not to divide, without
setting them aside 35 4 reserve

83(1) Subject 10 the rights of persoms, if any, entitled to shaces with special rights a3 1o divadends, all
dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in
respect whereof the dividend is paid, but if and so long 35 nothing is paid spon any of the shares in the
conmpany. dividends may be declared and paid according 1o the amounts of the shares.

(i) Mo amount peid or creded as paid on a share m advance of calls shall be trested fot the purposes of
thes remilation &5 paid on the share

{iii} All dividends shall be apporioned and paid propertionately to the amounts paid or credited a5 peid on
the shares during any pertzon o pertions.of the period m respest of which the diidend i paid; but if amy
share s issued on terms providing that 11 shall rank for dividend as fom a particolar date sech share shall
rank for dividend accordmigly.

4. The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of money, if any, presently
payable by him to the company on sccount of calls or otherwise m relation fo the shares of the company.

ES(i} Amy dividend, interest or other monies pavable in cash in respect of shares maybe paid by chegque o
wirran! semt through the post directed to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joml holders,
to the registered address of that one of the joint holders who is first named on the regrter of members, or
to such person and i such sddress as the holder or joint holders may in writing direct

{if}) Every such cheque or warmant shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is senl.

&6, Any one of two or more joint holders of a share may give effective recepts for any dividesds, bosuses
or piker momies payable in respect oF such share.

§7. Notice of any dividend that may heve been declored shall be given to the persons entitled w shase
iher=m im the manner mestoned in the Acy

#8. No dividend shall bear interest against the company.
Accounts

89¢:h The Board shall from tame 1o tune determane whether and 1o what extent and 3t what times and places
and under what conditions or regulations, the acoounts and books of the company. or ey of them, shall be
open o the inspection of members ot being directors,
1) Mo member (not being a direcior) shall have any rght of inspecting any sccoont or book or documment
af the company except as conferred by law or authorised by the Board or by the company in general
meeling.

Wirndinng wpy
90 Subject to the provisions of Chapter XX of the Act and ralss made thereundar—

i} IF e company shall be wound up, the liqudator may, with the sanction of a special resohmon of the
company and any other sanction requited by the Act, divide amongst the members. in specic or kind, the
whole or any pan of the assets of the company, whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or
ik,

{if) For the purpose aforesaid, the hguidator may set such value as he deemns faur upon any property o be
divided as aforesaid end may determine bow sach division shall be carmed out &s between the members or
different ¢lasscs of members.

{iii} The hauidator may. with the ke sanction, vast the whole or any part of such assels 0 tustees upon
such trusts for the benel of the comsribwiorics i he considers mecessary, but so that no member shall be
compelled 10 acceps mny shares or other seourities whereon there 15 any habiliny
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Indemnisy
1. Every officer of the company shall be imdernmeficd out of the assets of the company against amy lahifity
mcurred by him in defonding amy proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which fudgment is given in his
Favour or in which be is scquitted or in which rehef & granted to kim by the court or the Tribunal




SECTION IX: OTHER INFORMATION
MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be avalable for inspection at the registered office of our Company
un sy working day (7.2, Monday fo Fridey and not being & bask holiday in Chennai) between 10200 AM
o 500 PM for a period of seven days from the date of fillng of the |afermation Memorandum with the

Muaderial Contracts and DBocumenis for Inspecition

1
i
4

L

4

i,

Trpartitc agreement among the NSDL, oor Company mnd Registrar to the lssue dated May 13, 201%;
Tripariite agreement among the CDSL, our Company and Registrar 1 the Taue dated April 11, 2019;
Memorsndum and Articles of Assocstion of ouwr Company,

Centificare of Incorporation dated May 10, 2018, msued by the Regestrar of Companies, Central
Regmtration Centre;

Copx of the Fasmess Report provided by Svstematin Corpornts Services Limited;

Sraternent of Tax Hemefits dated Angust 04, 2023 issued by oor simeory suditors,

Copy of Restared Audized Financia! Informnation as disclosed in this Infonmaton Memorandum a3
Seprenber 30, 2023, March 31, 202 1, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023,

Composite Scheme of amalgarmation & arrangement between Sayaji Hotels Limited, Ahalya Hotels
Limited, Sayaji Hotels {Indore) Limitad (Formerly known as Sayaji Hotels (Vadodara) Limited),
Sayaji Howls (Pune) Limiied and Sayaji Hotcls Mamagrment Limited and ther nespective
sharehalders and Creditors;

Letter under Regulation 37 of the SEBI LODR Regulations issved by BSE scoording their no-
ohjection 1o the Scheme;

Order dated 11" July, 2023 of Natosal Company Law Tribunal sanctioning the Sayan Hotels
Lﬂdhﬂl}tﬂﬁ:hLimﬁdﬂiﬁﬁMﬂﬂ!!Lﬁiﬂﬁlﬁﬂ!{hh}hﬂdﬂ
Savaji Hotels Mamagement Limited and their respective sharcholders and Creditors ander sections
230 w 232 rend with section 32 and &6 and other applicable provisions of the Compamies Act;

BSE letter no, DCS/AMALTL IP 27940202324 dated October 16, 2023 pranting in-principle listing

approsal.

SEB| Relaxation leter no. SEBVHOCFDMDCRRAC-1/POW 2023437581 deted Oowber 30,
123 granting relaxation for lstmg from the apphicability of Rode 192i(b) of the Securtics Contract
{Regulation) Rules, 1957

Any of the comracts or documents mentoned in the Information Memorandum mmy be amended o
mlified at any fime i 50, roquired inthe inberest of the Corspany o il regquimred by the other parties, without
reference to the sharcholders™ subject to compliance with the provisions contsined i the Companies Act
and other relevant stahotes




DECLARATHON

All elevinl provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 aad the puidelinesTegulations isswed by the
Ciovernment of India or the muidelines regulations tsswed by the SEBL established under secnon 3 of the
Secunins and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, as the case may be, bave been complied with and no
statemgnt made in the Information Memooandom is contrary 1o the provistons of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Securities Contracis (Regulation) Act. 1956, and the Securttics and Exchange Board of India Act, [992
or rules made or pudelimes or regulanions issued there under, as the case may be. We further certify that all
stutements made 10 this Information Memorandum are ree mmd coorect.

SHCNED BY ALL THE DIRECTOHRS OF OUR COMPANY

Ruoool Razak Dhanani
DN 001 T4654

|
]
|

Suchirra Brhanand

Mog=Executive Detecion ﬁ » k‘ﬁ !
DAN: D07 12187 __;:--‘"

Fuber Yusuf Dhanani Whole Time Durector | -'; E :|
M s ISP TGS | _"__._’_,.--""'

Thotmppully Naruyasan Unni Noa-Executive Independent — W
DEN: 00079237 ol

.mnwm | Nos-Executive Independen WT-F
BIN: 067268530 Dhrcctor | - |

SIGNED BY THE UCHIEF FINAMCIAL OFFICER AND COMPANY SECRETARY OF OUR
COMPANY

Chief Financial Cificer M
| PAN: BBERIIG99N
- Kamya Jain

Compay Secretary end Complance Dificer ;

PAN: BEIM6692D Efb""'k"
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INDEFPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To,
The Members,

Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited,
Heport on the Audit of the Interim Financial Statemenis

Opinion

We have audited the imnterim financis] statements of Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the imterim Balance Sheet as ot 30% September 2027, and the interim Statement of
Profit and Loss (inchuding Other Comprehensive Income), the nterim Statement of changes in equity and
the interim Statement of Cash Flows for the period then ended, and notes to the interim financial
statements, including 2 summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{hereinafter referred to as “tw imerim fimancial statements™) and other explanatory Information as
required by Indian Accounting Standard-34- Interim Fimancial Reporting (“Ind As 34") and other
accounting principles generally accepted i India. These Interim finsncial Stalements are prepared by
the company solely for the purpose to facilitate the listing of equity shares of the Company pursuant to
SEBI Master Circular - SEBIHO/CFDYPOD-2/P/CIR2021/93 dated 20, 2023, governing “Scheme of
Arrangement by listed Entities.

In our opinion and 1o the best of cur information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the
aforesaid interim financial staiements give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind As 34 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at September
30, 2013, the profit and total comprebensive ncome, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period
ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Awditor s Respomibilities for the Audit of the interim Financial Siatementy section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Erhics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our sudit of
the interim financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other cthical respomsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We beligve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate 1o provide a basis for cur opinion.

Emphasis of Mutter

We draw attention to Note No. 46 in respect of approval of scheme of armangement by The Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Chennai, vide Order dated July 11, 2023 ("Order”). The
Scheme became effective from August 01, 2023, upon filing of the order with Registrar of Companies.
Accordiagly, the figures of previous year have been restated. The restated previous vear's figures of
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not audited figures and same have been provided by the management a8 per the approved scheme.
Our opinion on the interim financial staternents is not modified in respect of above matter.
Hesponsibility of Management for Interim Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Direciors is responsible for preparation and presentation of these interim
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accondance with the Ind AS 34 preseribed section 133 of the Act and
other accounting principles genernlly accepted n [ndia

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records n aceordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other imcgularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and mainienance
of sdequate iniernal financial controls, thal were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the interim
financinl statements that give o true mnd fair view and ere free from materinl misstatement, whether due
1o fraud or error.

In preparing the interim financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continuc s a going concem, disclosing. as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and
using the going concern basis of sccounting unless management esther intends w liquidate the Company
or jo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

These Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company”s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the interim Financial Statements

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonshle swurance about whether the interim financial ststements & &
whole are free from malerinl misstatement, whether due to fruud or error, and to issue an suditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high bevel of assurance but is not & guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregaie, they could reasonably be expeced to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these interim financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstaiement of the interim financial statements,

whether due 10 fraud or error. design and perform audit procedunes responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for cur opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as froud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obuin an understanding of imiermal control relevant to the audit in order to design sudit
S
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opinion on the effectivencss of the company”s intermal control.

. Evaluate the sppropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the sppropristeness of management's tse of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the sudit evidence oblaimed, whetler 8 material uncertainly exists related to

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as o
going concern. If we conclude that & matenal uncerfainty exists, we are required 10 draw
attention in cur auditor's report to the related disclosures in the interim fnancial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit

evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company 1o cease to conlinue as A going concern.

*  Evaluste the overall presentation, structure and content of the literim financial statements,
mcluding the disclosures, and whether the interim financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govermance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the sudit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our awdit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on cur independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

For K.L. Vyas & Company,
Chartered Accountanis,
FRN: 003289C P
Place of Signature: Indore // . ':I':f\'if_ g‘ir:'q
Date :06* December 2023 s ﬁ%@dh &)
Pariner -
M., No. 402560

UDIN: 71 e 25 & BaL@ Lo Yoo g




i

SAYAJI HOTELS (PUNE) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT WTH SEFTEMBER, 20EY
Ameuni in B Labin)
As ol Wik Seplember, A owi Mw
Fartiralars Neodr ha P Mareh, 3§23
SRR TS
1 Mom-rurmeni asils
) Propery, Plast & Equipmest 2 ERTAE ] &I1063
bl Capitsl Work-In-Progress
fe) ntamginle Ase 3 (W] L
i leventmnnt Is Sabsabars, Joind Venrre 8 Assecune
(1] Fotamrmnad A kacta
(1) veuatiments
{il) Lo
(il ) Other Femncinl Asscls i 32 232
iy Dedormeil Tax Asscs (Met) 5 401 5F i 5
i (R hitr Moa-Cmrrest Aisets & i,249.70 BT84
Total Non-Carrest Awn iﬁﬁ [T[¥:]
1 Corresd mmeta
Y Iyl 7 13650 13Kl
4] Finanolnl Asscts
{1 IPeisimients
(11) Trade Receivabley B a1 194,83
Qi) Cash and Cash Bgiitunlsnt L (W) o 29
v ) Beak Balasces Onbser Thas (in) abagee
iw) L= 1] 153 151
iwal O Fanancial Ausces i 14 [Tl
i) Curreil Tan Ao (et iz 7753 FTLT!
1_-.!'; Cgher Carresl Asscls [ 16821 o007
Total Currenl Avsets [FTET] [TIR]]
TUTAL %,
[EQUTTY AND LIARILITIES
I EQUITY
jui Eguity Share Capital 4 10466 A0 66
=i et 1 15 ﬁ_ﬂ.ﬁl d A1 8
Todal 47.27 [ETETT]
I LIABILITIES
1 Meo-current Lishilities
b ¥, sl Lanksi|otary
(1) Mhneromings 1& .01 EE ]
(tad Lense Laadilitses
) Tuber Finnneial Linbdlities i7 5084 1)
] Trervi Bl F] |3T.1% B2L06
(e Dlrred Tan Lishilivies (Ml - -
Total Nen-Curreni Linh@ities [TLX1 170.08 |




13 Current Lisliliites
fa) Froamcial Lishalinies
1] Dhorra iriggs 5" 0445 f L |
(1) Least Lakinlires
[y Trade Payabies in
A iodal outsisnding iees of miero 1156 L&l
el mprises aad simall sisrrroes, ml
1. iotel cutstanding ders of creditors other I5LTT 96
than mupro enterpaies amd small emiempriics
(iaf) Othet Finaseial Liskilities 2l 9,04 (JHir]
(] Provigionl il 2m1,13 3150
(e} Camerid Tax Lishilities (Sat) b1 M4 =
i (hber U usrens Luatalatisy 14 50 30 10826
Curreat Liabilicks 1068 11933
%1709 80160
Esmnl o the Scbeme of Arsngeenen| {Reler Mote Mo 46)
47
For wnil an bihall of Banrd off Direciors
Hu s
T.% Unni Havol Rask Dhananl
Dlrector Direciar
DN, BITTT HN Mo, W1 T45
ﬁ:—.“‘-
Kansys
Company fcctetary




SAYAN HOTELS (FUNE)
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SAYAJI NOTELS [PUNE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE FERIOD ENDED WTH SEPFTEMBER 1913
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Motes:

L. The sbove cash flow statemens has been prepared under the indirect metbod =t out @ Ind AS -7 Satement of Cash Flows”

m Kamasa

Chicl Financisl Officer  Company Secretary

2. For the purpose of Statersent of Cash Flow, Cash asd Cask Equinalents comprises the followings:
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in term of oar report sisched
Far and va behalf of Bsard of DHeectors
—_— |I 1 | L
m%
T.N Unai Dasaaai
Direcior Diireciar
DIN, 7oy T D™ Mo 80174824

o=




BAY AJI BOTELE LIMATED
FTATENMENT OF CHANGES 1N EQUTTY FOR THE PERFOD ENDED J0TH SEFTEMERR, 385}
A Equiy Shars Capital bt I . L)
Chidges bl gty shmiv || Balsscr s if 5HS
el i A 0 CapiEal dwring e yanr | Septsmber, J8L3
5_'._.[- - E[TT)
B. Othar Equity (Aot i B Laide |
©quby comme +f Ry md mrp
Fardemiar ariigaanid Gaamcol Secwrris Froninm
e B Uapslai Reservr | Flersbiod Earnbags L
Halmsey in i 1o Agnis, 1620 o S TIsRAT FE=E LA |
FrobitLam) fortha yaar ' E * LT WY
T - ' a4 o
It grme fn e Fumir 5 - ]
Uy dire e a . L H
AtiEinn i B vear 3
Prreigiena il Ui o6 akk Svaleml 2 - 5
Trarsfer 1 petEned parmags = . .
I_-.El:l':lﬂl:-uw ey a ' = "
Haunge on of D) Sogbemiter, 200 [77] : hlsh T LAT4.LY LT
A Equitr Share Cogital it 5 Ra. Ly
B o i 1EH Changes b wquity sleie | Balawco o wl Sl
e njuilal dhrbeng ihe yomr | Mo, 330
Y] T )
B Ot Bquiry . 1 1 9F 1}
Barbcnisrs s i
v peurd Tnmcsl
Iisadi fucarithes Fremium. | Cogital Koo | Hetised Fariags Taut
[ P—— ppr—— (L]} 1]
Profit Losa) fer e caas - - [ e 103
Ehiar Cosiprvdvosniee o fior i yrar . = L:l:n_f (|
Wimal Camprwhsisiss bisie for @c Yoar - = - 15557 LT
Casa d prdends a o - =
Adhlrium suneg ihe o i . 3 R AT
Diivvilernd diwaribyssse 53 o0 ok div sl & s !..Hﬂ_ﬂ
Trmakr o reissoi camings =
Tranidfer w cotamod rarmiegs - 2
ol shesrs apiial o
[T [T
"HoEEd Pl H#iﬂminrﬂnmu?

=ug W\\L\MM

:5:--*

Chisl

Far el g bl of Boacd wf [Ny b

hlllll--u-ﬂ.

H'I'H-l.-'.wﬁl

wl;j'u#




Naote-1
Significant accouiting policics
A summary of the significant sccounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements wre

as given below, These accounling policies have been applied consistently 1o all periods presented in the
financial stntemenis.

Current and son-current ¢lassification
The Company prescats assels and mbiditics in the balance sheet baged on current/non-current
classification.

An asset s current when i is!

. Expected to be realized or intended o sold or consumed in normal operating cyche,

. Held primarsily for the purpose of trading;

- Eapecied 1o be realinod within twelve months after the reporting penod; or

= Cash or cash squivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a labilityfor af
least twelve months after the reporting period,

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A lishility is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in nommmal operating cycle;

* It ix held primarily for the purpose of trading;

. 1 is due 10 be seftled within twelve months afler the reporting period; or

*  There is nouncenditionsl right to defer settlement of the liability for at lewst twelve monthsafier
thee reporting perzod.

All other lighilities are classified =1 non-curment.
Defermed 1ax sivetsTalitics are classified as non-Carment.

Froperty Plant & Equipment

Imitinl recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant and cquipment’s recognized a3 an asset of and only if it is probabie tha
Future economic benefits associsied with the wem will flow fo the company and the cost of the Hem
can be measured reliably.

Items of Property, Plamt and Egquipmeni are measared @ cost  less  sccumilated
deprociathon/smortization and accurnulated impainment losses. Cost includes expendituee thar js
directly nntributable to bringing the asset, borrowing cost, inglusive of non-refundable taxcsdt duties,
o the location and condition necessary for it fo be capable of opemating in the manner intended by
TTRERAGETTRETH

When parts of an stem of property, plant and equipment have differemt weeful lives, they are
recognized separmely.

Iems of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which mect the definition of
Subsequent costs

Subsoquent expenditure is recognized as an incrense in the camying amount of the asset whenit is
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will Now to the enterprges™
uﬂ.ﬂ:enn.nuﬂheimmmhemdr:lhhly.
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flow to the Company and its cost can be measured rebiably. The camying amountof the repliced purt
is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant and Equipment are
recognized in profil or loss us incurred.

Derecopmition

Property, Plant und Eguipment are derecognized when no future economic benelits ure expected
from thear use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and oquipmnent, and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation/amertiztisn

Deprecistion of each part of an item of Property, Mant and Equipment is recognized in profit or loss
on a Wniten Down Value Method over the estimated useful lives as prescribed in Schedule 11 of
Companies Act, 201 3, exoept m respect of the following categories of assets, inwhose case the life of
assots had been re-assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking into aceount the nature of
assel, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the sssei, past hisiory of
replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturer’s warmnties and maistenance
.

Clags of Assets Useful Lify
Aszets consirucied on leased premises. Dwer the lease period

Leasehold lands are amortized over the lease term unless il is reasonably certain that the Company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term

Freebold land is not deprociated.

Deprecantion on ndditions to/deductions from fixed assets during the year is charged on pro- s
basis fromdup fo the dafe on which the assei is available for wse/disposed.

Where it is probable that future economic beaefits derving from the cost incurred will flow wihe
entcaprise and the cost of the itemn can be mensurcd reliably, subsequent expenditure oa a PPE
along-with itx unamortized depreciable amount s charged off’ prospectively over the revised useful
life determined by technical assessment.

In circumstance, whore a property s shandoned, the cumulative capitalized costs rolating 1o the
property are written off in the same period,

Non-curreni assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Mon-curren! assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sule if their carrying amouniwill be
recovered principally through & sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale s
eongidercd highly probable, They are messured ot the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs fo scll except for assels such a8 deforred ftax asscls, asscts arming from




employer benefits, financial assets and contractual rights uader insurance contracts, which arespecificaliy
exempt from this requirement.

An impsirment loss is recognised for any initial or ssbsequent write-down of the assel {or disposa] group)
to fair value less costs to seil. A gain is recognised for ary sabsequent increases in fair value lexs costs 1o sell
of on agset (or disposal proup), but not i excess of any cumulotive impairment loss previously recognised
Again or loss nol previously recognised by the date ofthe sale of the non-cusrent asset (or disposal growp) is
recognised of the date of de-recognitios, Mon-current assets (including these that are part of a disposal
group) s not depreciated or amortised while they are classified os beld for sale [nterest and other
expenses altributable to the habalities of & disposal group classified as held for sale continue W be
recogmscd

Non-current assels classificd as hold for sale and the assots of & disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately [rom the other assets in the balance sheet. The Habilities of o disposal group
classitied es held for sale are prosented scparately from other liabilities inthe balance sheet.

4.  Capital werk-in-progress
The comt of salf-constructed assets mcludes the cost of materiald & direct lobour, iny other coste

directly attributable 10 bringing the assets 1o the location and condition necessary for it 1o be capable
of operating i the manner intended by management and borrowing costs,

Expenses directly antributable o construction of property, plant and equipment incurred till they arc
ready for thow intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basss on the cost of related
ELEEE

Deposit works'cost plus contracts are sccounted for on the basis of stidements of account received
fram the contraclors,

5 Intangible assets and intangible isscts undor development

Imitial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if und only if it is probable that the expected future economichenefits
that are stiributable to the asset will flow 1o the company and the cost of the sscet canbe measured
relinbly.

Intangible sssets that are scquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are recognized ar
cost. Subsequent measorement is dooe of cost less accumulatod amortization and sccumulated
impaarment losses, Cost includes any directly attributable incidental expenses nocessary to make the
asseis ready for s intended use.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the cammying amount of the asset whenit is
probablc that future cconomic benefits deriving from the cost incumed will flow 1o the cnterprise
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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Derecegnition

An intangible assct is derecognized when no flture evonomic benefits are expected from theiruse or
apon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an iem of intangible assets are determined by
comparing the procesds from disposal with the camying amount of intangible asscts and anc
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amortization

Intungible nssets baving definite [ife are smontized on Wnitien Down Value method in their useful
lives, Useful life of computer software is estimated at five years. If life of any intangible asset is
indefinite, then it is not amortized and tested for fmpairment at the reporting date.

Borrowing Cout

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, comstrection/explomtion/
development or erection of qualifying assets are capitalized a8 part of cost of such asset until such
time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use, Chualifying asscts are psetswhich ke a
substantial period of time 1o et ready for their intended use or sale. Capatalisationof borrowing costs
ceases when substuntislly all the activities necessary to prepare the gualifying assets for their
inlended wes are complete

All other bormowing costs are charged to revenoe as and when incurmed.

Bormowing coxts consist of (a) iderest expense cabeulnted using the effective interest moihod as
described in Ind AS 109 — *Financial lnstruments’ (b) finanoe charges in respect of finance leases
recognized in scoordance with Ind AS 116 — “Leases® (c) exchange differences ansing from fureign
currency borrowings 1o the extenl that they are regarded as un adjustment 0 inbrrest costs and (d)
other costs thal an enfity mours in connection with the borrowing of fonds. Income camed on
lempotary investment of the boffowings pending their expenditure on the qualifying asscts is
deducied from the bomowing couts chgible for capitalization.

Investment In Subsidiory, Assoclate & Joint Venture

Company has opted to show investments in Subsidiary, Associates & Joint Venture ot cost. Dividend
from these is recognized us and when right 1o receive is established

Impairment bosi s recogmized as per Ind AS 36.

Inventories

Stock of Food and Beveriges and stores unil operuting supplies are carried at the lower of ¢ostand net
realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventorses to thetr present location and condition, including duties ond taxes (other
than those refundable). Cost is determimed on Weighted Average Basis. Costs of purchased
inventory ane determuned after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizshle value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary counse of business, loss estimated costs of completion and the estimated
Cokts Becesmiry 1o maks the sale.

The dimination in the value of obsolete, unserviceable and surplus stores & gpares 15 ascertained on
review and provided for,
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Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheel comprise cash al banks and cash on hand and shon-
term deposits with an origingl maturity of three months or less, which are subject 1o insignificant
risk of change in valwe.

Government Grants

Government grants thai compensate the company for the cust of usset are recognized initially as
deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Company will
comply with the conditions associated with the grant and are recoguired in profit or lssz on @
systematic basis over the uwseful life of the related asset. Grants that compensate the Company for
expenses incurred are recognized over the period in which the related costs are incurred and are
deducted frem the related expenses.

Provisions and contingent Uabilitics and Contingent Avsety

A provision is recognized if, as a result of & past cvent, the Company has a present legal or
comstructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economie
benefits will be required Lo settle the obligation. I the elfect of the time value of money s material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expecied luture cash flows ata predxx rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of moscy and the raka specific (o the liability, When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as o
finznce cost.

The amoust recogrized s a provision & the best estimate of the comsideration requinad to settiethe
When some or all of the cconomic benefits required to settle a provision are expected 1o be
recovered from u third party, the receivable i recognired a5 an asset if it & virtwally cenain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the recervable can be measured reliably. The

expense relabing to a provision is presented o the stoemet of profit and loss net of any
reimburscmont.

Contingent [tabilities are poikiblz obligntions that arise from past events and whose exiitence will
only be confirmed by the occurmence of Ron-oocumence of one or more future cvents nid whodly
withmn the controt of the Company. Where it is not probsble that an ewflow of cconomic benefits
will be required, o the amoumt cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as o
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benelits is remote. Contingent
linbilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent experts. These are
reviewed af cach balance sheet dste and are adjested to reflect the cument management estimate.

Contingent assets are possible asscts that arise from past ovents and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events ol
whally within the contral of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the lnancialstatements
when inflow of economic benefits s probable on the basis of judgment of munagement. These are
sisessed continually o ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
satements.




Foreign currency transactions and transtation

Transactions in foreign currencies are inially recorded at the functional curmency spot ratcs afthe
date the ransaction first qualifees for recognition.

Monctary asscts and labilitics denominmed in foreign currencies are ransisied at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange ol the reporting date. Exchange differences arisingon settlement or
transiation of monctary items are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which it arises.

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in & foreign currency are translated.
using the exchange rate at the date of the ransaction.

Revenur Bevognition

The Company follows Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customens™ which introduces
the five-step model described as follows: -

ldentify e contract with a customer,

Identily the separate performance obligations in the contract.
Determdne the transsction Price

Allocate the transaction price 10 the sepamate performance obligations.
Hecognize revenue when (of as) each performance obligation s satisfied

Revenue from operations:
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied
services relating 1o hotel operatrons.

Revenue is recognized opon transfer of control of promised products or services (o customersin an
WMMHM“:MMMMHMEI“FMH
EETViILCE
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The Company presents revenues net of indirect toves in statement of Profit and loss.
Trade recelvables nnd Contract Balances

The company recognises contrict assets on on amoant equals 1o consideration related o goodsand
services lready tmnsferred to customers when the right 10 receive such consideration 5
conditioned wpon something other than passage of time.

Unconditional nght 1o roceive consideration are recognised as rade receivable.

Trade receiveble and contract esscts are subject 1o impairment a5 per Ind AS 109 "Fenancial
Instruments”.

The company recognises amount already received from customer agninst which transfer for goods
and services are not made as contract lability.

Interest Incaiie

For all financial instruments measured o amortized cost and inderest-bearing financial asscis
classificd as faer value through other comprehensive income, interest income is reconded usingthe
effective interest mate (EIR). The EIR is the mte that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorer period, where appropriate, to
the net cafrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective infercst rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contraciualterms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and simalar options)but docs not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income i incladed in other incoms inthe statement of profil or loss.




Dividend Income 1s recognized when the Company's night to receive is estoblished whichgenerally
aceurs when the sharcholders approve the dividend

Other Income

Other Income i3 recognized 10 the statement of profit and loss when increase m future economic
benefits related 1o an increase in an usset op & decroase of a lisbilify has srisen that can be
measured reliably.

14, Employee Benellis

Shaort Term Benelit

Short-term employee benefit obligations wre measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensedas
the refated service is provided.

A lisbility is recognired for the amount expected to be paid under performance related pay if the
Compamy has a present legal or constructive obligntion 10 pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably,

Post-Fmployment henefits

Employee benefit that are paysbic afler the completion of employment are Post-Employmant
Benefil (other than termnation benefit). These are of two type:

Defined contribution plans

Defined contritution plans are those plans in which an entity pays fixed contribution to scpamte
entities unider the plan and will lave no legal or constructive ohligation 10 pay further amounts &0
employes in fofure under the Plan, Provident Fund and Employes Siate Insurance are Defined
Contribation Plans in which company pays & fixed contribution snd will have no further obligation.

Defined benelit plans
A defined beacfit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

Company pays Gratuity as per provisions of the Gratuity Act, 1972.The Company's net obligationin
respect of defined benefit plans is caleulated separstely for cach plan by estimating the amount of
Future benelil that eonplovees bave carmed in reium For their service in the current and prior periods;
that benefil i discounted to determine its present value, Any unrecognized past service costs and the
fair value of ony plan azsets are deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevaillingmarket yields of
Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates approximating the
Terms of the Company's obligations and tha! sre denominsted in the sme curreacy in which the
bencfits are expocted 10 be paid.

The cakculstion is performed annually by o qualified actuary using the projecied unit credit method.
When the caleulation results in a liability to fhe company, the present value of liability is recognized
a8 provision for employee beneflt. Any actuanial gains or losses are recogaized in OClm the period
in which they arise.

Long Term Employee Benefit

Benefits under the Compuiry's leave encashment constitite other long term emplovee benefits,
Leave Encashrent is determinied based on the available leave catithement ot the end of the year.
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16,

Income Taves

Income tax expense comprises current und deferred tix. Income tax expense is recogaied in profitor
loss except to the extent that it relstes to dems recogmized directly in other comprehensive income
or eguity, in which casc is the current and deferred fax we also recognized in OCI or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using ax ratex enactedor
substantively enacted and as upplivable ut the reporting date, and uny sdjustnsent o laa payablein
respect of previous years. Current income tanes are recognized under “lncome tax payable’ net of
payments on account, or under “Tax receivables” where there is a debit balance. Current tax assets
and current tax liabilities are offset when there ix a legally enforceable right to sct off the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to setile the asset and the liability on & net basis

Deferred tax s recognized wsing the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying umounts of aseets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes ead the
recogiition of goodwill, an asset or liability in & transaction that s not o buginess combination and
uffects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax is messured ot the tax mates that are expected to be applied to temporary dilferences
when they reverse, based on the laws thal have been enacled or subsintively enacted by the
repurting dete. Dieferred tax assets and liabilitics are offset if there s o legaily enforceable nght 1o
offsct current tax Habilities and sisets, and they relate to income taxss levied by the ame tax
authonty on the same taxable entity, or on different Lax entities, but they intend to scttle curent tax
liabilitves and assels on & nel basis or their tax agsels and linbilitics will be realized simultancousty,

A deferred tnx ascet is recognized 1o the extent that if is probable that fisture taxable profitse will be
available against which the semporary difTorence can be utilized. Deforred tax asscts are reviewedat
cach reporting date and are reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized

MAT (Minirmum Alternate Tax) is recognized us an assel only when and o the cxtent i is probable
evidence thai the Company will pay normal income 1ax and will be able to utilize such credit durmethe
specified period. In the year in which the MAT cradit becomes eligible to be rocognized as nnasset,
the said ssse is crested by way of o credit to the Statemnent of Profit and loss and is inclueded in
Deferred Tax Assets. The Company reviews the same at coch balance sheet date and if required,
writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitiernent o the exient there 15 no longer probable
that Company will be sblc o absorb such credit during the speified period.

Addittonal ipcome tixes that arise from the distnbotion of dividends are recognired of the same
time that the habalsty o pay the related dividend & recopmred.

Leases As Lessee

Ind AS 116 - Leases, has become applicable effective annual reporting period beginning April 1,
2019. The Compasy has adopted the standard boginning Apeil |, 2019, using the modified
retrospective approsch for transition. Accordingly, the company has nol restated the comparative
information. Further, in respect of leases that were classified as operating leases applying Ind AS 17
there is no impact on Opening Retained Eamings,

Al the dite of commencement of ihe lease, the Company recognises o right-of-use msel ("ROU™)
und a corresponding lease Gability for all lease armngemests in which it i8 & lessoo, except for lenses
m-mﬂmmuh{ﬂmmmmmlmwwham For these




7.

ghort-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease pavimenis s an operating
expense on 3 siraight-line basis over the torm of the lease.

Lease comtracts may contain both lease and non-lease components, The Compuny allocates
puyments in the contract o the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone
prices and applies the lease accounting model only to lease componenis.

The right-of-use assets are imitially recognised mt cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease lability adjusted for inital direct costs incurred, lease payments made sl or before the
are subsequently measured at cost less accurmulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-
wse wuiels are also adjuvied for any re-measurement of lease Liabilities. Unless the Company is
reasenubly certain to obtain ownership of the leased asscts or renewal of the leases al the end of
the lease term, recognised right-of-use assets ane depreciated (o g residual value vver the shorer of
their estimated useful life or lease erm.

The lease tmbality is indtiafly measuncd 3t the present value of the loase payments 10 be made over
the lcase torm. The leasc payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed"
payments) and varmble lease payments that depend on an index or o rate, less any lease incentives
receivable. *In-subitance fixed” payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability bt
that, in substance, are unavoidnble. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Company uses its incremnental borrowing rafe at the lease commencement daie if the imerest e
umplicit in the leasc is pot readily determinable.

Variable lease paymenis that do not depend on an index or a rale are recognised as sn expense in
the period over which the event or condition that tniggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable
leases which guarantee a minimum wmount of rent over the lease lerm, the guaranteed amount is
considered 1o be an “in-substance fixed” lewse payment and included in the initial calculation of the

Impairment af Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed al cach reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36
‘Impairment of Assets”. If any such indication exists, then the nsset's recoveruble amount is
estirmateil.

The recoverable umount of aa ssset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less coststo
disposal and its value in use. In Esscssing value in use, the ewtimuted future cash flows arc
digeounted o their preseni value using o predax discount rate that reflects currenl morket
assecements of the time valoe of money and ihe risks specific to the msset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped wgether into the smallest
group of msets that generstes cash inflows from continuing e that are largely mdependent of the
cash inflows of other axsets or groups of assets (the “cashe-penersting unil”, or “CGL™),

An mpairmeent losz is recopniesd i the carrymg amount of an aeser or s CGU gxceeds is
ectimated recoverable amount, lmparment losses wre recognized in profit or loss. Impairment
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bosses recognized in respect of CUUs are reduced from the canrymng amounts of goodwill of thast
CGL, if any and then the assets of the CGLIL

Impnirment lostes recognized in prior penods are assessed wt each reporting date for any
indications thal the loss has decrensed or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed of there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amounl. An mmpairment lows
15 reversod only 1o the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not enceed the carrying amount
that would have been detcrmined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognized.

Operating Segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Scgments, the opemting segmenty used 10 peesent
segment information wre identified on the basis of intermal reports used by the Company's
Muonngement 1o allocate resowrces to the segments amd assess their perfonmance. The Board of
Director s collectively the Company’s “Chief Operating Decision Maker” or “CODM" within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. For nanagemen! purpose company o organizod inlo majef operating
activity of hotclicring in India. The indicators used for intemal reporting purposes may cvolve in
connection with perforrnance asscssment measures pul in pluce.

Dividends

[Dividends and interim dividends payable to a Company’t sharcholders are recognized as changesin
equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders” meeting and the Board of
Directors respectively.

Material Prior Period Errors

Matenal prior penod ormors are cormected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts forthe
prior periods preseabed o which the error oocurred. 1T the emor aocurred before the earliest prior
period presented, the openimg balances of assets, labilities and equity for the carliest priov perod
presented, are restated.

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss sttributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duringthe
financial yeur,

Dribwed eammings per equity thare is compated by dividing the pet profit or loss atribatable (o oguity
thareholders of the Compary by the weighted average number of equity shares conmidered for
deriving busic eamings per equity share and also the welghted averags number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shases.

Statement of Cash Flows

Stutement of cash flows o propared in sccerdance with the indirect method presaribed in Ind AS-7
"Swiement of cash Mows,

Fiaancial inst rumciils

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rnse o a financial asset of one entity and o financial
liability or equity instnument of another entity.
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Financial asseis
Initinl recognition and messuremend

All financial assets are recognirsd imitially ot fair vahee plus or minus, in the case of financial
sisets not recorded af fair value through profit or loss, trensaction custs that sre attributable 1o
the scquisition or tssue of the financial asset.

Subsequent messurement
Debt imstruments af amorized cost
A “debt instrament” iz measured ut the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(1) The asset is held within & business model whose objective & 10 hold ases for
collecnung contracieal cash Rows, and

I8} Contractueal terms of the assel give rise on specified dates o cash flows thal are solely
paymentiol principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount putstanding.

After sutial messurement, such fnancial sisets are wwhieguently measured at amorized cost

usingthe EIR method. Amortimed cost i€ caloulated by kg intd account any discount or

premium on acquisition and fees of costs that are an integrul part of the EIR. The EIR

amortization is included in linance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from

impairment dre recognized in the profit or loss. This category penerully applies to trade and

other receivables.

Debt instrument st FYTOCI (Falr Valoe through OCI)

A "debt instrument” is classified as at the FYTOCI if both of the following criteria are mer:

(4 The olyoctive of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractunl cash
flows ancselling the financial assets, and

(B)  Theasset"s contraciual cash flows ropresent SPPI

Debe instraments included within the FYTOCT category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date a1 fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the OC1 However,
the Compariy recognires interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the profif and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previoushy recognized in OCT is reciassified from the equity to profit and loss, Interest camed
whilst holdingFVTOCT deid instrurnent is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt Instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or less)

FVTPL is a residual calegory for debt instraments. Any debl instrument, which does not meet
the criteria fior catogorization as at amortized cost or as FYTOCI, is classified agat FYTPL.

In addition, the Compiny may clect 1o clussily a debt instrument, which otherwise mests
amortized cost of FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such clection is allowed only if
doing so reduced or climindles 8 messurement of recognition inconsisieacy {refomed o as
‘accounting mismatch ). Debt mstruments included within the FYTPL category are measured
it fair value with all chengesrecognized in the profit and loss,

Equity investments
All equaty mvestments in enbitics other than subsidiarics, sssociates and joinl ventures are
measured at fuir value. Equity instruments which are held for tading are classificd as at

FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at
FTOCor FYTPL.




The Company makes such clection on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification i
made on inifial rocognition and 1« irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCL then all fair value
changes on the instruments, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There s no
recycling of the smounis from OCI o PEL, even on mle of mvestmeni, However, the
company mey trankfer cumulative gain or loss within the equity.

Equity imstruments included within the FVTPL calegory are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity imvestments in subsidianes, assocate and joint ventures are measursd af cosL

Dyrecognition

A financial assel (or, where applicable, a part of o financial asset or past of & Company of
similar financial assets) is primanly derccognized (1.2. removed from the Compeny”s balance
sheet) when

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

: The Company has transferred its nights to recerve cash [lows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation 10 pay the received cash flowy in full without materal delsy 1o 8
third party under 3 “pass-throogh” srrangoment; and cither (a) the Compasy has
trmmsferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the ricks and rewords of the assel, but
s raneferred control of the assel

Impairment of financial assets

In sccordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applics expecied credit loss (ECL) model for

measutement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit

sk exposure:

*  Financial usscts that are debi instruments, and are measurod of amortised cost eg..
loans, debtsecurities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

s Trade recetvables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial ssset that
result fromtransactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115,

. Lesse Receivabley under Ind AS 116
- Loan Commutmients which are nol measured as a1 FVTFL.

The Company follows *simplified spproach” for recognition of impalnment loss pllowance on:
Trade receivables of contract asscts resulling from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
L15, if they do not contain a signilicant financing component

Trade recervebles or contrect assets resulting from transections within the scope of Ind AS 115
thatcontain a significant financing component, if the Compuny applies practical expedicnt to
ignere scparation of time value of money, and

The application of simplified approach dogs not requine the Company (o track changes in
crodet sk, Rather, o rocoymizes mmprirment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS a1 each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.




For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposuare, the Company
determines that whether there has been o significant incrense in the credit risk since initial
recognition, I credit risk has not incrensed significantly, 12-month ECL is wsed 10 provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has mcreased significantly, lifetime ECL s used. I,
in & subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no
longer & significant increase in credit nsk sance mitial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recopnizing  impaimment  loss gllowance based on  |2-month ECL




5.2 Financial Habilities
Imitial recognition and measurement

All financial Habilities are recognized st fair valee and in case of loans, net of direcily
sftribatablecost. Fees of recumming nature are direcily recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as finuncecost.

Subsequent mensmrement

Fmancial lishiliies are carmed at amontized cost using the effective inferest method.
Amortized cosl s caloulated by taking into scoount uny discount or premium on Bcquigition
and ary materin transpction thot are any integral pan of the EIR. For trade and other payvables
maturing within oneyear from the balance sheet date, the camying amounts approximate fair
value due 10 the shon matunty of these mstruments.

Derecopmition

A financial lisbility is derecognized when the obligation under the lability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When en existing fnancial lability is replaced by anothar from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing linbility are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective camying
amounts is recognized in the ststement of profit or los.

Derivative financial instrumenis

The Company wses forwards 1o mitigate the risk of changes in interes! mates, exchange rates
and commudity prices. Such derivative financial nstruments arc initially recognised at fair
valuc on the date 0n which 8 derivative contract is entered into and are also subsequently
measured at fair valoe. Derivatives are carmied a8 financial pssets when the [oir value is
positive and ns financial labilitieswhen the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to Sistement of Profit and
Loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges which is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Incurme and later 1o Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedged item affects
profit or [oss or treated as basis adjustment ifa hedgedforecast transaction subsequently resuln
in the recognition of o non-finincial assets or non-finasciallisbility,

Hedges that meet the criteria for bedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

a)  Cash flow hedge

The Company desigastes demvalive comtracts of non-derivative finsncial assets /
habilities as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of movement in intérest rutes and
foreign exchange rates for forcign exchange exposure on highly probable future cash
flows sttributable to @ recognised asset or fiability or forecast cash transsctiond. When
& derivative ks designated a5 2 cash fow bedging instrument, the effective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivatives recogmized i the cash flow hodging reserve
being part of other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of changes in the
fair value of the derivative is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and
Less. If the hedging relutionship no longer meets the criteria for hodge sccounting, then
hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instnument expires or i
sold, terminsted or cxercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging Instrument
récognized in cash NMow hedging reserve Lill the period the hedge was cffective




remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the underlying tramsaction occurs. The
cumulative gain or loss previowsly recognized in the cash flow bedging reserve i
transferred 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the underlying
transaction. [f the forecastedtransaction is no longer expected o ocour, then the amount
sccumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclasified in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

b)  Fair Valoe Hedge
Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments and hedged items that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the
hedging relationship oo loager mests the critenia for hedge accounting, the adjustment
to the carrying amount of s hedged item for which the effective interest method is used
i mmortised to Smiement of Profil and Loss over the penod of maturity.

24, The company discloses certain financial information both including and excluding exceptional iems.
The presentation of mformabon excluling exceptional items allows & betler understanding of the
under]ying operating performance of the company and provides consistencywith the company's intermal
management reporting. Exveptional items are identified by virueo! either their size or nature 5o s 1o
focilitate comparison with prioe periods and to assess underlying trends in the financial performance
of the company. Exceptional iters can include, but are nof restricted to, gains end losses on the
disposal of assels/investiments, impairmen! charges, cxchange gain'loss on leng term borfowings'
assets and changes in fair value of derivative contracts,

Muajor Estimates made ln preparing Financial Statements

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful life of property, plant and cquipment is based on 3 munber of factors including the
cifects of cbsolescence, demand, competition and other coonomic factors (such as the swbility of the
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures reguired to obtain
the expected future cash Mows from the asset.

Uselul life of the asscts other than Plant and machinery arc decided in sccordance with Schedule I ofthe
Companies Act, 2013,

The Company reviews sl the end of cach reporting date the useful life of property, plant and equipment,
and ore adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases

Ind AS |16 requires lessees to determine the leuse term as (he non-cancellable period of o lease adjested
with amy option 1o extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonubly certain. The
Company makes an ascesement on the expecied lease tenn on o lease- by-lease basis and there by assesses
whether it is reasonably certaln thal any eplions 1o exiendor lerminate the contract will be cxercised. In
cvaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undevtaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the (mportance of the
nnderlying assctio Company's operations taking into account the locathon of the uaderlying asset and the
avalability of suitable aliermatives. The lease torm in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease
term reflects the current cconomic circumstances, :




Fost-employment beneli plans

Empioyes benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which mclude mortality
and withdrawal rates a8 well 85 assumptions concermng furere developments i discount rates, the rate of
salary increascs and the inflstion rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its
ohligations are appropriste and documented. However, any changes in these sssumptions may have a
mderial impact on theresulting caloulations.

Frovisions und contingeacies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies kave been made in sccondance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Lisbilities and Contingent Assets’. The evaluation of the
likelihood of the contingent events has required best judgment by management regarding the probabitity
of exposure fo potential boss. Should circumstances change following unforesesuble developments, this
likelihood could alter.

Impairment Test of Non-Financial Assets
The recoverable amount of invesiment in subsidiary is based on estimates and sssumptions regarding in
particilar the future cash (lows associated with the operations of the mvestée company. Any changes in
these assumptions may have & material impact on the measwrement of the recoverable amount and could
resull n smpairment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

Ta,
The Members,
Savaji Hotels (Pune) Limited,

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opiaion
We have audited the financial statements of Savaji Hotels (Pune) Limited (“the Company™), which

H
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in equityand Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then
etded, and notes t the financial statements, mcluding a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information{ hereinafier referred to as “the financial statements'™L.

In our opinion and o the best of oer information and according o the explanations given to us. the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (Sthe Aet™) m
the manner 50 reguired and give a true and fior view in confarmity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section £33 of the At read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, ("lnd AS™) and other acocounting principks generally sccepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profitand tofal comprehensive income, changes in
equityand its cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

HBasis for Opinion

We conducted our andit m acoordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilitics under those Standards are further described in
the dudiver s Responsibifities for the Awill of the Financilal Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordence with the Code of Etkics Isswed by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Tndia sogether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities m acéordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Bosrd of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the mformation included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Repont
meluding Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report. Corporate Governance and
Sharcholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our suditor’s report
thereon.
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Clur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form olassurance cone hision thereon.

In connection with our aedit of the financal statements, owr responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information s materally inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained duning the course of our audit or otherwise appeéars 10
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have perfformed. we conclode that there 15 a matenal misststemient of this other
information, we are required 1o report that fact. We have nothing 1o neport in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company's Beard of Directors is responsible for the matters stated m section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act™) with respect to the preparstion of these financial ststements that give
a true and fair view of the fmancial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in
acoordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles senerally accepied in India

This responsibility alse mcludes maintesance of adeguate accosnting records in sccordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
friuds and other imegularities; selection and application of appropriste accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and mainienance
of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for easuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparstion and presentation of the financisl
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
QRETTOR,

In preparing the fingncial statements, management i respomsible for assessing the Company s ability to
continee a5 & going concem. disclosing, as applicable, matters relsted 0 going concemn and usmg the
going concern basis of sccounting unless management either imtends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic altermative bt to doso.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company”s fisancial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statementsas a whole are
free from material misstatement. whether due 1© frawd or ermor, and 10 issue an auditor’s report Ui
inclodes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. bat 15 not a guarantee thst an
awdit conducted in accordance with SA3 will alwavs detect 8 matenal miznaement when it exiss.
Misstaternents can arise from fraod or emor and are considered matenial o, individeally or in the
aggregate, they could ressonably be expected w influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of thess financial statements.
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As part of an audit m accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
priofessional skepiicisim throughout the audit. We alsod

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due o
froud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for one resulting from
error, 4s fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery. Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of mternalcontrol,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3 (1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate mternal financial controls system in place and the cperating effectivemess of
sichcontrols,

Evaluste the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasomableness of accounting
gstimares nnd related disclosures made bymanagement,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the sudit evidence obmained, whether a material uncertainty exisis related 10
events or conditions that may ¢ast significant doubt on the Company”s ability to continue as a
going concern. 1f we conclude that a material uncerainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditer’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are madequate, to modify our opinien, Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor™s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease 10 continue as o goingeoncem.

Evaluare the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, incleding
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events. in 2 mammer that achieves fairpresentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
seope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during eur audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where spplicable.
related safepuands.

Report on (her Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

As required by the Companies (Auditer’s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order™), issued by the Centmal
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
thi “Amnexure-A" o siaement on Bwe matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 1o the extent
applicable.

E-rvad | kivyasca@yahos. oo, in
khvwasca@grmadl com



K. L. VYAS & COMPANY 4 0204-2621088.(0)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS !;. 94141 G816T (M)
Shkeg No, 2, Il Floar. "Parshwarath Dawa Bazar” E-mail | dwyascai@@yahoo coin
8. Hazereshwar Colony, Udaipur - 313 081 kivyasca@gmall com
Raf. Ma. | Drate:

As required by Section 1433} of the Act, we repon that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge und belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
is it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Staement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are - agreement with the books of account.

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Smadards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(&) On the basis of the written representations received from the direciors as on 31 March, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2023
from being appomted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the AcL

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Anrnexure B”

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
reqairements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion isnd to the best of our information and accosrding to the explanations given to us,
the remusmcration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provishons of section 197 of the Act.

{h) With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given tous:

. The Company does nat have any pending litigations having any impact on its financial position.

i The Company did not have any long-term contracts including desivative contracts for which
there were any material Foresecable losses,

Wi, There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Tnvestar
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

W. (&) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced os loaned or
invested (either from horrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company 10 or in any other person or entity, inchiding foreign entity (“Intermediaries™,
with the understanding, whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the Intenmediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”™) or provide any
guarantes, securily or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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{b) The Management has represented, thay, w the best of s knowiedee and belief, no funds
(which are material cither individually or i the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the undersianding.
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatzoever by or
cn behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantce, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come w0 our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clawse (1) and (i) of Rule | 1{e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any materal misstatement.

For K.L. ¥Vyas & Company,

Place of Signature: Indore A
Date 27" May, 2023 P by

M. No, 402560
UDIN: 2.940 2540 B BHE 1He7
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ANNEXURE <A TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN CLAUSE 1 OF REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE
MEMBERS OF SAYAJI HOTELS (PUNE) LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2023

(i{a) A} The company has maintined proper records showing full panticulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible sssets.

(b} We are informed that the Property, plant and equipment of the company have been physically
verified by the management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
over a period of three years, which in our opinicn, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
company and natureof its assets. Pursuant to the progremme, physical verification was carried
out durmyg the yearand no material diserepancies were noticed.

(e} According to the information and explanations given o us and on the basis of our examination
of the conveyance deed provided w us, we report that, company did not have sny immovable
property comprising of land and butldings which are treehold.

In respect of immovable properties been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the
financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company.

(d) The Campany has not revalwed any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangibleassets during the vear,

[e) Mo proceedings have been initiated during the vear or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2025 forholding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition)
Act, 195X (as amended in 20)6) and rules made thereunder,

(1) (a) The physical verification of the inventory is being conducted on a monthly basis by the
management and no material discrepancies wers noticed.

(b} In respect of working capital limits sanctioned by banks, the quasterly returns or statements filed
by the company with such banks arc in agreement with books of account of the compeany, and no
material discrepancies were niticed.

(i) The Company has made mvesiments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnzrships, and
granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:
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ig) The Company has net provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood
puarantecor provided secdrity to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting under
clause 3(iid)a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} In our opimon, the investments made and the termy and conditions of the grant of loans,
during the vear are, prima facie, not prejudicial w the Company s interest.

ich In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal arnounts and receipts of
imterest are generally been regular as per stipulation.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company. there is po overdue amoumt remaining
cutstandisgg as st the balance sheet date,

{2} Mo loan granted by the Company which has falien due during the vear, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given 1o the same parties.

(f} The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause 3{iii )} ) is not applicable,

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature
of loans, secured orunsecured, 1o companies, firms, Limited Liability Partrerships or any other
parties.

(iv) According to the infonmation and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as
specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any
guarantes or sccuriry as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Section |36 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 in relation to
loans given and investments made.

(v/The company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclzimed deposits as
#l March 31, 2023 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3(v) of the Osder are not applicable to
the company,

(vilAccording to the information and explanation given to us. the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, for the poods sold and
services rendered by the Company, Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable,

(vii)(a)The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriste authoritiesundisputed statutory
ducs including provident fund, investor educationprotection fund, employees’ state inserance,
income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, custom duty, excise duty, service tax & cess and other
material statutory dues as may be applicable to it.
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Aceording to the mformation and explanations given 1o us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, income fax, sales tax. wealth 1ax, service tax, duty of customs. value
ndded tax. Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears a5 at 31"March, 2023, for a
pertod of more than six months from the date they became pavable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us. there are no material dues of
meome tax. sales tax, service tax and value mlded tax, custom duty, excise duty and cess which
have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes.

{viii] Aecording to the information and explanations given w us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company hus mot surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded s income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income-tax Act, 1961 as income dunng the year.

{ix)(a) Based on our audit procedures and according 10 the information and explanations given to us, we
are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing 1o
financial institutions, banks, Government or dues 1o debenture holders.

(b} Acconding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our exsmmation
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institulion or government orgovernment authority.

{¢) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we are of the opimion that proceeds from term loans have been applied for the purpese for which
loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given o us and based on our examination of
the balance sheet of the Company, no funds raised on short term basis have been utitized for long
1Erm purposes.

(&) According to the information and explanations given (o us and on an overall examination of
the fnanceal statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries &s defined
iniler the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, elause 3{ix)ie) of the Order s not applicable.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and proceduses performed by us, we
report that theCompany has not rmised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries as defined under theCompanies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clause 3(ix} 1) of the Order
is not applicable.

{x} {a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debtinstruments) Accardingly, clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} According to the information end explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preforential allotment or privase
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placement of shancs or fally or parily conventible debentures during the vear. Accordingly, ¢lase
b} of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) fa) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
iformation and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

() According 1o the nformation and explanations given to us, no repoert under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of theCompanies Act, 2013 has been filed by the suditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Governminl,

(e} As represented 0 us by the management. there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the company during the year.

{xii} According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, elause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

{xiit) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companics Act, 2013,
where applicable; and the details of the related parly transactions have been disclosed in the
linancial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our asdit procedures, in our epinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b} We have considered the mternal audit reports of the Company issued nll date for the
perindunder audit.

(xv} In our opinion and sccording 1o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entcred inko any pon-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

{xvi}{a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3{xvi}a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
lodia Act, 1934 Accordingly. clause 3{xvi)(b) of the Ovder is not applicabie.

() The Company is net a Core Investment Company (C1C) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvikc) of the Omder s not applicable.

= 984141 BB16T (M)
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(Y Agcording w0 the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Group does not haveany CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3{xvi)id) are not
applicable,

ixvii} The Company has incured cash losses of Rs. 2,54 Lakhs in the current and Rs. 0.41 Lakhs in the
immediately precedmgfinancial year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, cluse
F{xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

{xix)  Accoeding to the information and explanations given o 14 and on the basis of the financial rutios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of Mnancial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, owr knowledge of the Board of
Directors end management plans and based on our examination of the evideneesupporting the
assumphions, nothing has come te our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists s on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its labilities existing at the dage of balanee sheet as and when they fall due within a period of ore
vear from the balance sheet date. We, however. state that this is not an assurance as to the fiture
viability of the Compuany. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantes nor any assurance that all labilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall dus.

{xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 10 us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section { 3) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project
Accordingly, clauses 3{xs){2) and 3{(xx}b) of the Order are not applicable.

Fer K.L. ¥yas & Company,
Charmered Accountants,

FRN: 003289€
Place of Signature; Indore
Date :27°May2023 //
L
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ANMNEXLUHE -H TO THE ALDITORS” REFORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (1) OF SUB-
SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013 {“THE ACT™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reposting of Savaji Hotels (Pune) Limited
{“the Company™) as of 3 1"March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the vear ended on that date

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institete of Chanered Accountants of India ("ICAL’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
finzncial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence 10 company”s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of fravds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors' Respousibility

Cur responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the Company’s imternal financial controls over financial
reperting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Isternal Financial Corntrols over Fimancial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed 1o be prescribed under section [43(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable 1o an awdit of intemal financial controls, both applicable 10 an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accouniants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial contrals over
financial reporting was established and mainained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our wudit involves perdforming procedures 1o cbtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operaling effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over finuncial reéponting included obtaming an understanding of nternal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that & material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, meluding the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financinl statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company s intemal finanzial controls sysiem over financial reporting.

=, 94141 68167 (M)
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Meaning of Internal Finuncial Contruls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statemenis for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1} perizin to the mainterance of records thatl, in ressonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
trapsactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in sccordance with
generally sccepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditurcs of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (1)
provide reasumable assurance reganding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized scquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Beeause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, Including the
possibility of cellusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future pericds are subject to the risk that the internal
firancial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ar
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reperting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31"March 2023, based on the internal comtrol over financial reporting eriteria
estahlished by the Company considering the essential componemss of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K.L. Yyas & Company,

Chartered Acceuntants,

FRN: 003289C
Place of Signature; Indore S
Date :27"Muy2023 /;,’L '}

L~ Parner
M. No. 402560
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Taxes [Pad)/Refund : .
bet Cash from Operating Acivity [A) (0.5} =

B CASH FLOW FROM INVEFTING ACTINITIES
Ned Cash Flow from Investing Actisity{B)
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Txse of Equity Share Capital - -
Harrmwings [3.33) 033
Net cash used |n Financlag Sotivity (€] (9.23) 829
Nt Increpse fdecrease In cash and cash equivalemis{A+B+() (LT} axe
oot eif copds Cpuii et K e oyl Cor g Lt 2.
otk e cinch pqisivalnets at th close of tha year 198 319

Nabes:

1. The abowe cash flow statement has bean prepared under the mderect mashod secout i tad AS -7 Stamemenn of Cash Flows”

r the purpase of Statement of Cash Flow, Cash and Caxh Eguivalents comprizes the ilowings

A at March Flst,
SR As at March 131, 7073 7827

Cash in hand - .

Hank balance 136 319
L ” Tatal 158 319
Thas 15 Ehe Cash Fiow Sttement referred boin cur Beport of even date
s turis of gt Raparrt of even date: Foramd va Ischalf of the Board of Direcgars
|Chartered
[Firm E

Bacal Razak Dhanani
Biveciar
[ el S III! aFTITLEY

\ fﬁéﬁ'}f’i’#




SATAJI HOTELS [FUNE) LIMITED
CI% - US5Z04TNZBIBFLL I 22599
Statement of in Teer tiie pesar ended 3Es0 e 1ok |
A, Equity Share Capiral
. [Amouni in s Lakhs]
Balamce as ai 1st April 2022 - Chamges in eqisity share cipital Balince 5 a1 315t March, 2073
n 3
Halance 2 at 15t April 2021 Changes in share capital Balance as at 31st March, 204
540 : 500
B, Onber Figirity [Amauni in Rx. Lakhs]|
Reserve and surplus
Capital Reserve ’:"’"’""'I Betained Earnings Total
Bakamce a5 at 15t April, 2022 . - (1.65) [165]]
Pyafit, [ Lossf for the year - . a7 [207)
Deher Comprehendsive lnesase fur the year . . — ;
Tatal Comprehensive ncame for the Yesr - . [3.73] (372}
| Balance as at 115t March, 20273 L =S (3.72]) [3.72])
Reserve and surplus
R Capital Reserve m Retained Earnings Total
Balasce as at 152 April, 2021 * x [53) {153)
Freofity/[Loss] for the year oBE LS
Oeher Comprehernisive |ncome fos the yer Z . 14 =
Tatal Comprehensive Income for the Year . - {1.65] L65]
Balance a5 5t 315t March, 2022 = - [1.65) 1.85)]
in terms of our Awdit Bepoert of even date: For and on hehallof the Board of Hrectors
For nwu tgmpuy
W Raool Razak Dhanani
3 DHrestar nlu-u-r
M N, $02560 DN - 01 TH654 6% 1 BOTLTIRT
Deale: 27705/ 2023
Indare




L5 KT ATELS (PRVE] LIMITED

MHFEE T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VAR INDED 18T MARCY, 2023

Nule ¥

Anat §1-00-200F | Asap 31-80-2032
E LTE
L e LEX TR
R LE3 LT
Amimnl dehited o Prafit & Locy Statymont® [BATH [1.2%]
“Eyvyrsal of Bedermed Tas Lishility ind creathes of Defermed Tax Asset
Movement in Deforred Tar Asset/Lishility ¥or Hwe Year Ended Ason §1.83.2033
Opeming Balance | Recogmized in Eﬂni-ﬂnp-h
Fucinhl Aiom LAZNIZ | profterises | NWmasdinOO [T srae2s
Delorvid Tal heddts
i [ 047 : 123
[Nt Tux setsliablities] a7y n47 - 123
Mervrenent im Deferred T Fur the Fear Emded As om Y03 20E2
Particulurs Npeming Baleicr | Recogweited in Cleting Balanir A%
Asea LADIL | profierioas | TooWNdmO0 [T o oy ongs
Treterred tag asyelis
Foruwanl hrize: & e Bvlra 0.5 L1 ot
Mol Tax [ .29 . LTE
LUHENT ARSETS
Soihad Corh Eopienionty__ i fis
Aol FE-83-002T | Aast 37-00-2022
Lamhim Hand - -
Eatlances with Bank
En Currenk A ounic L B
Total LA psiL]
b (RTFEAI et {Mmniant o B, fakbo)
cala Araa 31032023 | s ar31-03-2027 |
Halince With Covernment Authonies [ K] 023
Seouriny Bepasic 3.3 m
Ay againgl srvices g
el ]
EuiTY
Equity Share Capiad Amount in s, Lakhs)
Famiculars Aol F1-03-208% | dvad 33-@3-2022
AT HORIFEDR |
50,000 Edquity S of Ba_ 16~ asch 598 5.0
5.0 FreFrenoe Skares of By 1001 st Sl 08
Tonl 19.50 1000
IS5y |
Egusiey Thares af B 18- aach e E A ]
SHESCRBED & FAlD-LP
Equaty Fhares of Bs 14/- gech ELL 1 ]
Toud T 5.00]




SOTES TO FINANCLAL STATEMENTS FUR TNE FEAN ENDED 1157 MARCH, J0Z3
Terms/rights aftached to squity shares ;
The smpany hes only npe caxs of wyuivy sharey heviog e par sslos of B 100 per share. Bach Holber of cqmiy sharrs 5 entithed Woane bl per
shars. The compsny deciares s pays énvidends im indian rupses. The dividend propos=d, fany. by the Board of Directors i bt iz thr
wpprevalof the sharchedders | e ensuing Anncal General Merting. Dunng e pear ended 115t March 1023 tre company did nest prepos: 277

I:!ﬂmmﬂmmm
i

divichind
22 Msclusure of the Shares af the Company held by
P ticnlars Az 2t 11-008- 2003 Mg 3k 10020003
Sagug Bl Shaoey Sauusuh e L NALEY JagguEtr.
[ROLDING COMPART #9551 4.59,930 L LE] L]
-Bayall Hotels Lid
- Hummlnes al ke koldleg Casagany
Raod Fagiak Diasnini | 10 ] il
Sabra Racol Dhaniel 1 ia i 1]
Sumuri Bl Dlanant [ 18 1 18
Sadiva Rapal Dhanan | 1o | 1]
Anisha Ranol Dlsmnani 1 1] 1 id
Axkar Y Dikamani 1 Hi] 1 i1 ]
Euber ¥ Dizmani L 1 ¥ s
el 50,000 5,00 068 E3.040 L0008
53 Details of Share holders bolding mere than 5% of thares are a5 under-
Ax ot 11832021 Azt I1-03-T0I3
Adme .
Spofshosehelding, NoolShares Mi HeolShares
[Fapal Hemels Lrd 10 50,00 Lo | n

3.4 Az per reconds of the company:, inclading By register of sharedoider membess and oher dudlarations reoeived from shareholders regarding
oenelictal interest, the above sharebedkiing represevts both legal and broeficial ownesihip of shares,

55 Arzonciliation of dee numbeer of Phares and amauat catiteeding al the beginpiag and of the s of the year -
!;!Il—mm Anat ¥1-03- 20T 3

. {Ampnt in Ba i of 5 fAmsuns is B
Dunstandng at tie beginning of e sear SOECT 500 =0, Mg .08
i - Fresh ssae during e . = L -
Duisianding st the end oF ibe yeas 0 S 50,000 5.08
A6 Detads of shares helé by Premslar
[Particulars 7 As ot 31-03-5023 Anae 31-03-2007 U change during
T i Cadietlabiltis  DaMlikels  add bl e oo
Sayajl Hotale Lid 5993 1000 5,893 1oam v
Racod Hamak Bhasan: i o I o .
S Banof Dhansal i i1i] H LT 2
Sumues Ravol Deanani £ i i 00 -
Sadiya Ravol Dhanad | g ] e
Anisha Rasad Dhanasd i ng 1 og =
Aihar ¥ Dhanas| I oan ] Lo P
Faber ¥ fhanaen 1 [ ] L '
50,080 1000 56000 1000 -




SAFAJT ROTELS (PUNE] LIMITED
SUOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TRE VU EVEED 3157 MARCE 2035
Mate &

[Amosntia B Laichi]|
_ Refer Mote M. | Axat T1-00-7003 | Asat 10-00.3077
urities Premium 4.1 - .
Beta E 37 -
bl i
Particulars As ot 31-43-2023 | Aewr 11-03-2023
Athver Equity
&k erurites Presmiam
Opening at heginsing
Addizion durkng the wear - -
ligiilsed during Hie yedr - -
[Goving at end - -
#.F| Retsinsd Farnings
dpening at beguaning [ 165} (233}
__w- e ass |
[3.72) JL65]
Tutal Gaer [3.72} [L&5)
Aot in By, Lakiv])
Farticuliry Asat31-403-T0TF Azat ]]-UR-ZWZ3
lrurl thlld: Fortai i Y =
| Toeal [ )
ALMEESNT LIAHILITIES
Mx E Trude Payakles o [Amesunt in R, Labba]
it 23 Particilsis Asak ¥1-03-302) | Awa 10-03-2032
Imse Favables
Todad cubstanding dues of Creditors Mices, Small and Midism Essgrastes
Yol putmtan dimg durs of Crodétnry nthar than Mo, Smad sod Midim Enmrprises. o1& 24
Takald .16 s
frems date of tramaaction as ot 3 1-03-2003
Lesathan 1 1-2 years +2-1 yearn Mosre tham 3 yours | Tobsd
e
L =10 - - s
Outminnsting Cor oflewing periads iram dats of ramsaction o 4 3 1-03-2017
Lems iksan 1 1-2 vears 1-3 years More than J years | Tokal
i i
043 . . ¥ |




VAl BOTELS [PUNE] LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANELLL STA
Note 8,2 o

 Erinecipal amiant and the Berest dos tereon

At B0-B0-3030 | An ok B -0 - 20D

-

. J ——
£ amoant of Intzrest pakd by the Sayer in ierms of section lbdhlﬂlﬁmwu
Bie dinounts of Lhe poyfeal miads ko the sopplior bijend e appecated diy durlig dach scosunlieg

v amnunt nll inkdoesk i pond payaile o ted period of defay im making pay [mhich hawn parem
tnig beyene thae appnisited day during the pear) bul withost adding he ivterest specified under

-

As st 31-43-T023

(Amaunt in Bs. 1akhs}|
Axae 11-03-2831

L6

SFEl

e

L

LB

al 1)

il




Afl HOTELS [PUNE) LIMITED )
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T March. 2021

Mote 11 (tsor Expemses

Farticulars

Far b pusr andad ¥ b
HEnch 1223

[Amount in s Lakhs Except EPS) |

Baals {hirges
G5T Late Feas
63T Expenses
Legal Eupenais
Office= Bent
Frofeasonsl Pee
Auditr’ Temumerabing
Stasuory Ausdit
Tan Andis
Share hgiorar & DEMAT Expansees
Excess/Shory Provisesn of sarlien ywar

1=
oY
oz
w3l
a4
RIS

125
555

a0

Lig

TOTAL

TE4

YT

=rra=—rwr

Kaote 12 Note as per Ind A5 33: Earnings Per Share

Particulars

For the year sndesl
st March2 i

For the yrar
wnghnd 310

a)} Amnunt used as the numeTatcr profit after s

B} Waightsd average manher af squrty shared vded ay the
dezominaer in compusing basic eaming per share.

e Potential no. of eqedny shares that could arise an
canverdian of warrants into fguily shared

Waighted average number al shures ured in computing Bilated
Earming per Shang

c} Momimai walua per share
) Earnimgs Per Share:

FT
0000

Bg

ELSAT

iy

£ 14]
{-l.]-t]l

LM%
L1s
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K L VIAS & COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Snop Mg, Z, I Flopr, "Farstwanaih Gawa Bazar
% Hazareshwar Colany, Udaipur - 313 301

4 g204 . 2521088 (D)

84141 85167 (bh

E-mail : kivyesca@yshon.co.n
Ky ya5caidgmeadl conm

Raf o : ﬂﬂf a9 & AR e 8519

Liate .

LM ¢
IMDCPERDEMT ALDITORS® HEPURT
T
Tle beambers,
Hayani Hotels (P} Limited,

" Report on the Audit of (he Firancial Stelenleors

Dpinkon
Wi haee audite U arcizl saarements of Saya§ Howls (Punel Limited ("the Compery™), which

corEprise ihe Balance Slae as &t 11 March 2022, and the Statement of Prodit and Loss(ieloding Crher
Cumpchensive [ncemg), Sistamant of chang2s in cquily wrd Staternent of Cushe [luws for the yeer then
epuled, Bnd noees to the financiol statemenls, Dicluding a summary of simniticant aeeoating poliziss ol
other explanalary irfiemationt beeinafte reterszd o oo “fhe finanoiz) stxlements™ .

I e epition and L the bose of our inhormatis and acooedirg 161 explanalions piven L a-, the
sivmesaid Tinancial salenents giee the informatin required by the Companizs Act, 2013 (7he Acr™yin
e mnaunes 5o mavined and g e and fie view in condomity sath e edisn Accouning Saedards
preacriocd urdker seetion 123 ol the Agt read with Hhe Compemle (Indian Accounting Stunka(ls) Buoles,
25, s mmended, #TdAS™y and cther #counting prioeipls geoeeally ascepicd in Inde, of the srate of
affaies of the Caanpany as at Basch 31, 2022, dhe prolil snd todal cocpelensive income, chirpes in
equiry and Hs cash Movws for the year sadsd on that date.

Basis for Lpiniaa

Wi imvhurred cur audit in secoedaner with the Sandards on Auditing {588) specified uader sectice
143107 of the Companizs Act, 2103, Cur responsibilities onder *hose Standurds are fsrther describerd in
e Audiior's Respoasibilittes fov the Audit of the Finpacksl Stutements sectivo of cw seport. We ang
itsdzpendanr of the Company in accordance waih | Ceede o Erbics Tssued by the [nsrimnenk Chanizned
Apcnuntarts ol India wogether with the =hical v wirerierds chin: 2t rel=want o oo auhs of fhe finonciat
arabements wnder fhe prowiziara of [he Companive A7, 200 and e Erles theme ricr, axd we have
Melfilled e a¢9er cthicul respencisil s inaccordance wirl T1ese requirements and Lhe Cude of Fiics.
We helicys that Lhe audil e videncs we have eBtzined is 2officient sad aporopriate D provide @ basis for
AT aEinion 1
Infermation CHker than the Fioancial stalemeais and sudtor®s Repert Therern

The Cempeny's Buanl of Direuiois 15 respansible for the aller mfomation. The @ther milursidioen
eamacises the pfumaation ncluded Tnosthe “Management Thiszusson and Analysis, Boand's Fopodt
including Annvcores o Board's Report, Dusivsss Besporaitiliny Ropor, Corpomis Gnvermane: and
Sharebolder's Infmation, bat does not wmelud fhe financial sewments wnd ot 2uditor’s reper
therec:




K L. VVAS & COMPANY

| 0294 - 2521088 (0)

CAHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 84141 BFIGT (M)
Shop No. 2, I Flog:, "Parshwanath Daws Bezmr™ Emanl -

6, Harereshwar Colony, Udsipur - 213 001 e mﬂ
Raf No. Diata

Opr opinion o the fnantial sidcments does pot cover Tie nthes informarics 2nd we do nol eapress sy
forn of msurance conchuso thereon,

‘w eomnecion with our awdil of te Mnancal sat=ments, our cespoasibiliy 02 woeed Lthe other
ped srination amd, 0 deing s, consder whwtlig the other indorncian 5 mdeerially inconsisient with the
Arancial sicaements or aue Kecwledge shialoed diring ihe course ol our #edit or ctherwiss appears Lo 5
malerial ly neisstatsd,

IT, bamed o the work we bwve perfamed, we ooncliode then e is & matziol wisitstoment oi thic other
information, we ans *oquanad to neport e fogt. Wie howe nothing 1o repert m this regard.

Hespuns ity of Managenent for Fiunucial Statcments

The Compamy™s Duard of Direclors (5 respoosible for the meilert siated Tn seciion 15405} of the
Conpan.cs Aol 2013 (“Uhe Act™} with reapesd oo the preperation of {hese hrancial statemedite that give
u ot and fir view of the Granciel posifios, Thenciel perfornerics. anvd cash floors of the Company in
pconrince with the Ind AS and asher scponcting principles generelly accepied i Tndia

This respansibility a0 Includes mainiepeace of aduguare accounting repards iy aacandance: with the
prevdaions of the Aot for safesmardivg of the essels of e Company wri for peverting wnd decinng
fraudn and other imepulacities; selyction and applicilion of apprepraie aoeounting palicied; making
pudgrients and extunales tha: ane rexsoeble and prucent; and design, implementadion and mamenancs
of adcquete intemel finmicial conteols, Lhat were oporating 2ffectively for ensuring fa¢ Acouracy and
completinesz of the accoadimg revords. reevant &0 tae preporvtion and presentation of 1ke financial
strtements Bt g've a true and Fair vicee and ore Bee Niom materal missttensn, whether due b fraad
or error. '

Wi prepiaring the Raanciel stetenivnts, management 15 esponsible for sssessing the Compury's abelity to
comlinue a5 2 poing concer, disclnsing, a5 upnlicab e, matters related ‘o going concem and warg e
galng voncem basis of scoounting e ranapemen sither inends to ligudue e Compeny o 10
CEEES OPErREONG, oF has o roaltic alleruadive bot to do =,

Thrit Doped of Dircotors ars also responsible fur everseeing the company s flnancial roporting process.

Aarliiors DespoosibBitics for the Audit of ile Finescial Staterments

Chr (b ectives are lo obtun reasonable assursice aboot whether (lie [irancial stetemensay & whole are
[re¢ from matorial missiwlenenl, whether due 1o [rand or cor, and w o an soditor’s repart Uhat
inchades oo opinion. Rewuable evisznee b a bagh level of assumncs. bad s not & @ arantze tal an
wdit conductsd 10 aceordance will 548 will always detect & niaderial misstatzment whes it exists,
Mislalemens can arise from frawd or crer oad ane congidered material of, ‘ndividuzlly or i the
g pato, hey could rewsonatly be expeciod wonfluence The ceonumic decisions of wacrs teken w the
hasis of these fivanrial smements. 0




H L VVAS & COMPANY g o zmzese o

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Shop M. 2, Nl Flopr, "Parshwanzth Dawa Bazar
&. Hazareshwar Colony, Uidaipur - 313 001

Faf Ne. -

Dogte -

As pori of en audit ix awordance with SAs, we swercise poiessional jecgrent and maietais
profissional shepticsm twouphoot the 2udit. We alsoc

Vdentity 1nd asess The risks of materin] wisstiersen of the financial suatements, whecher due
tn frand or omor, desipn and perform wudi prowadune; respersive o those risks, ard clitin
sl cidonos that -5 swificient and ppropriste to privside a basie for cur opiricr. The risk of
bl detecting a moteril masstetonvent raselting [rom fracd iz higher then tor ene resting From
grvar, 35 frend mey involve coffusian, forpery. infenlicns] annissions, mistepresenlicions, of the
avpertde of ioemad contnad. +
Obtgin an endastending of intamal confrol rolzvant to the audit an oader 1o desipn sudit
procedpres That a-e appropriaie in tbe droumeteces. Uinder scrsion 143(3)01} ol e Coirpdnies
Act, 312, we ave alsn cespensible Sor oxpressng o apiica on whether the rempany has
edcquate inderma. Ninossial somirols syskom I pliee and fhe operetng efiectiversss of suck
wonirols., .

Evoluxic the epprepristensss of aceoonting policizs wsed and the reasanablens of accounting
extimates & reluied disclosures wenle by danagement.

Conclnds oo the sppeopristenss of manapement's wse ol 1he geivs cancern hasis of aczaune ng
end, Besed oa the andi evvence obieiaed whother o material uncenanly exiss relaed
cvents or condisions 1hat moy casr spifeant dowbi on the Company”™s ability Lo comione #% a
going concem. IF we comchule That 2 materis] oncertainty scskz, we are required to Ao
#lrenlion in oor soditor's report to the relaled discloswres ia the financia) statoments o0, if such
disclosures pre inadoquale, 1 miedicy our usimivs Oor eencleons e Saeed un e scdil
evidence ovioined up 1o the datc of owr awdites reporl. However, fidume events o condilions
may cause U Conmgsainy 10 cease ta conlinue as 3 SOABE FONGET,

Evzlpate she overall prezemation, stmutiure pad conrer: of the Snancisl ctaiements, including
the disclomurcs, mnd whether the fopncind slsterents represent the wnderlying ceanesactions and
veneE i 2 manne thal achieves fair pressrduiion.

Ve communitats with Thise darged with movemane: regarding, among ofher mamers, e planned
seope nd Uimiog of 1he aedil spd speificass eudii firdings, cocloding any signitizanl deficiencies in
snteariit] carvired thot e adendif durirg our sudit.

W also provide thera daarged with goverance wilh 3 stalemen thil vee e comyphed 211 relatinehi ps
aml olher matters Uizl may ressoiably he thowght o bear on ouwr independence. end where applizahle,
relaied sifepuimls

Report oo Dther Legal and Regulatory Requiremenls
Az paquired by the Companies (Auvditor's Reporty Cder, 2030 b Crden™), kesued by e Conoral
Govemnmest of Iadia in ey of sub-gsciion (1L of s2etion 123 of the Compamies Act, 2013, we give :n

Lhe > Amvpewure- 87 o sladerand On 1he pastter 2peeificd in pamz-aphs 2 and 4 of ike Order, 12 the extenl
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As required by Seolion 143030 of the act, we ropdt that:

fa) We have saipht and chwained all the information and explanations which to 22 Besl ol cur
krcarled g and belic] were pecessiy fnr Bw purpiecs of our mdic

(87 In our opinian, proyer bocks of account 75 resaited by Lo kave bees kept by the Company so lar
2= it wppars feom o Avamimalive of hose books.

(e} The Balance Shewt, e Statemient of Profil and Loss, and the Casly Fluw Staternen) deali with by
thig Beport i in agresmeint with The bouks oF account,

{d} In our opimiva, the aloresid financial sarements comply with the Adcounting Stutords speridigd
under Ssct un |33 of Lhe Act, read vl Bule 7 o7 1be Conpanies (Aocoents) Roley, 714.

(@) O thie bazis of the w) 2R represatations recelvad from e divectore s oo 30 hareh, 2022 rakan
on recdrd by the Board of Mirectors, none of the director 5 dsqualilicd ss on 717 March, 2022
from beig appointed o5 & dirsctor in wepms of Seclion 164{3} of the Act.

{0 With respecl 1o the adeguecy of the irtemz| [nsacial contrels over Bnancial repamting of “he
Compary and the opeoiting effeciiventis of soch cnorols, refer 0 our seporsle Repart in
=Amexiig A™

] WiaLth regpecen o cthe ofier meters w be neluded in the Audicar’s Heporl o accordancs werls the
lequirements of secior. 157 18] ul the Act, 15 amended:

Im our wpinion end to lbe bed of our infomiainn and sccording 13 the explanitions piven o us,
the: meunerstion ol by the Compony o its direetors during -he vewr i in aooosZavee will e
provisinns of section 197 of the A,

(thy WWith respect to the other matters to be alnded in the Audilnr's Repon D accordance with Rule
17 of the Componict CAudin and Addicarz) Bules, 3104, in oor opagitn and o the besl of ou
informiatie and acconding w il cxplanations givien tous:

i. The Compemny does not have My peodio 1 riggal iors. Gaving any Impact oz @5 fineoipl pasizion

i The Coanpauy did nol biave ary long-Leom comiracts inclwding derivative contracrs for which
thene ward any matarial foresecable Tosse:

fi. Thore has been no delay ineransfenrisg amounts, reguited 00 he trenefemsd, o 0w avestor
Educaiion anc Froterim Fund by the Curipany

iv. (3} The Muagement has cepresensed that, 1o the best of its knowledes and belict, oo fends
{which are (waterial cither dividually or in e sggregale) have been advenasd ar lomsl o
imvestel (liler Sroin bogrows] finds or shan: preoivim or any other sowces o bnd af Tands)
Tty the Company 40 of in any ofer personor emity, including Tuieign entity Clolernediarics™ ),
with e undersiand ng, whether recorded an writinpg or uthereete, thal she Inlenedias <ail,
whether, dractiy or mdweclly Ll o inven in oy persons or colilns ideatiled e uny marwber
whatsoever hy or on behalfl of the Company (“Ifitinate Benelicierns™) oi penvide any
guaranies, secuity ar ehe lihe vo hehalf of the Llllimate Reneficiarias,

AR2AN,
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(b} The Mamxgement has represented, that, o Hw Deat of its kvededge end beliel, 1o funds
(which ane uisesizl either ipdi viduslly or inthe 3ZEregate]) have bieen peceved by 1he mer'u-'
from any person o orkily, including faretgn entity &' Funding Pemes™), with tha um]l:!_'si:enjli;g.
shethior yopurded 10 wrifing o ntherwise, that the Company shall, wbether, direcily o
indircctly. lend gr el in oller peson: of entites ientificd in ey manger whalsaever !:ng,- or
on behalf of the Funcling Paay UlSmale Heneficiaties™) or provide any @ ianilee, sy oF
the Bke on bekali of the UiGate Bepelicisies,

(¢} Based on the audit procadures. Fat have been considersd reasusabie ard dppropriats i D
cireurretipces, mothing bae come o our nfice thae hes caused s 0 bofieve diol e
reiresenistions Lrdey sulwclame (1) and (nhef Rule B3ich s poue ded under (ab and [E) alnees,

P T R R ERTEIRT RS g L] R

b, Mo, S025£D

UDEN: 17 Yo Sy Htinio  gpic

U204 - 2521088 (O}
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AMNEXUREFE -A TO THE ALDITORS® REFORT

ANNEXURFE REFFRRED T{} [N CLAUSE 1 OF RETORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
RECULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT OF FVEN DATE 7O THE
MEMBERS OF SAYAJI BOTELS (FUNE} LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR PNDED 315 MARCH, 1L '

PV Gy £AY The company e wainiained sroper ecords showing fll paricabrs inchedig
quantitac e detals ane simancion of Property, plant and sguipmenl

{R: The Company has maisined proper rconds showing Full particolors of mtangible sssts.

{1 We ars informed thai the Fropeety, plant amd oquipient of the compery bave besn glysicaliy
werified =y the mansgement according 3 2 phased progremne designed oo o all the ko
awer & periced of 1n-e2 years, which in our up:ibon, i3 1esnnshl e heving regecd o e £22 201k
cyanpdry and nature of iy awscts. Tursessr o be programemee, phydual veiificaion vas camied
oul durirg the yeu and ne mareria’ dizcrepanciss wee noticed.

() Acenrding 10 the informetion ik explesions given to us and on the bas of our craminstion
al’ the eopveyanee desd provided to us, we neport that, compeny did not kave eny numonakde
property eomprising ol ed and huildings which ae [heckold.

In sesoect of amnweable proporizs been tzken on lewse awé issicscd a5 fiocd essets m 0w
fremeial spusments, the lease agreenents e 20 1 Tame of the Company.

{d} Tz Comparmy has ool revaluss 9ry of i3 Proounty, Plos 0w Gyuipoeeot {acisling ngo-ol-wse
acgets  awl Infungiblearsss doring the yoar.

{2} Ho proceedings have been inctiated duriz the year or #ee perding agaiast the Company e el
Warch 31, 2022 foc holding any: beomi property wdes the Benamd Transactions {Prohibitien )
Aca. 19HE fas auended ro S0065 ard rules made thereunder.

(i (a) Tle phosical verification of she rventory s beimg sewducted on @ wonthly besis by the
maragemant and v awisiin] dissedpaics wers noticed.

(b) In respect of veorking capitul limitg sancticmed by banks, the quarierk neluns of Hatenents filed

by the compeany witl: sugh banks ane in sgresmant with books a7 sotoant of the oatpany. &nd no
rritrit] disere raneies were noticed

i)  The Company has made iovestments in, compamss, Oemes, Linutsd Labiliny Parnerships, snd
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|@} The Company has rwl provided any leang or edvances io the aatuee of luans or stond
puaramles, vr providail security taany aler entit during the wedr, e Tehee 12 p0ming under
clause 30 W at af 1he Qrder (5 nol applicazle.

(h) In oue epininn, the invesiments muod= aud the 1@rms and conditions ot e granl ol loans,
duiring tha year Are, pritia lisoe, ol prejuiicial 10 the Cormany™s jnbeczst.

(e b respeet of loans granted by the Company. e SSieduls of sepavment of pring pl ral
pavrnent of intercet has bezn stipulabed and (I repayments of priscinzl znounts and receipls of
interest ore genscully been regelar g ped sCpul azion.

(dy ln respect of loans pramesd 19 the Company, ther: i5 no owverdoe umount mem@ising
anlsanding & al 114 balence slaet datz,

{c] Mo loan gromted by the Company whizh has f2llcn doe during the vear, has been renewed o
extended ar {resh loins gramted 16 5o the nverdues of sxisting Loaas given 1o the sume pariss.

(M Th¢ Compeny has nat aranted any leans or advarses in he gtee Sl loans cillar repayvable
on demand or wilsoul spest Ying, sy temms o peood of repaymend doring the yzar, Hence,
repodiing uosler ¢lauge K is el applicable.

The Company haz nat prowidsd uny pudmnres or secldsy o pranted any adwances in the nature
of Inane, seevred or unsecared, o componics, {irms, Lamilad Liabcliay Parinerships ar any csncr
peTties

civy Accordine o e mlarm e aod e ki given fooos ied an e basis of our =<amination of
e recarls, the Lomsany has s given any loans, or poovidsdl dny CUATOMeS OT s@curily a3
specifisd under Section TBS of the Companies Act, 2003 and e Connpuny has adr eavided any
puarnies ar tecudne as specifier. under Recion |RS of the Companies Act, 2013, Forther. Lhe
ompny Tas complied with the proyisionz of Seclion 146 uf the ComoamesAct. 4003 in relaiinn 1o
lpans given ard invesioeenes s,

SevEle corrpiry has w00 eoetpud -:'-;,-;:L::i::[:. diing 1he veer and doss not Iave any snclaimed depeils as
at Match 31, 2922 and uxefone. U provisions of e clacss 30vd of Lhe Crder are ol applicalle e e
COMPOLY.

{¥i} According 10 the information wwl explaowbion civen & ose the Ceniral Goverenent his oo
peescribed she nariennnee vl cuse rewetds e Jevan (480170 of the Act, ToF 10 diads =ald ad
gervicas rendzred by the Compony, Accnrdingdy, clause 3ivi) of the Drdzar @5 not epplicoble.

M a¥The Compary 1§ pewerally repular o depasiging wirh appeopriate apthorities wedissrded staboiory
duwes [peluding, provident fund, investar education protection fund, employees” state insurance,
irconie lax, sales fax, wealth i, costom dwty, cxeise duty, zervice e & ecss ond ather
material statutnry dues as may be apalicable Wit
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Accopding to the mformation snd explansions givell (0 15, Mo wrdispuled Lncaats pRyable in
rcepect of oroviden: Meed, income fax, sules L, wealth tax, servite rig, oty oF customs, value
acded e, Cest vl ather Taecrial suluior duzs were in amears o @ 319Masea, 2022 for a
pur wl of mose shan sis otk Troe the daze shey became payasle

{B} Acconding #0 the nfarmetion and explanatons given o us, here e o materal dues of

imwornee 15, sabes ho, sereice s 20 value added =k, custow duty, excise dutr wod cess which
have mol been deposited by the Company on gooeins of dispades.

{wiit) Avcording to thr M funnaicn 194 cxplanations v ke os and on the basis of o =y wmnasion oF

the roconds o the Company, the Compuny has aot semendered or dischadal any 1massesinne,
previvasty worccorded as inporne an the Books of sccounl, i rhe tax dsseesments emder dhe
Incorie-tax Act, 1961 &5 e during The yea.

fix)(e) Based on sur audit proscduses and sccenfing o the inforr ation und explanitions given to w, we

sre of the oaimion tat the Cowpeny has not defaulted i repeprnent of lasie or Fomowing 1o
Tisrancial bmstinule, Teaks, Govervoent or daes fedebentune halders,

(i Agerapding 1o the infa-matsm o gxplanasions given to es ewd om the pasis of oorexaminslion
of ths reconds of the Companry, the Company hos not been declared a wall{ul defaules by any
bank or financiel insli tation vr e wnent orgovermment authonly,

{e Diaesed om dor udie procedures snd sccurding Lo tbe informetior, end explangtions e laus,
we are of the opirgon tht proseedts frove teres Loars bave been apphied for e purpwee for which
loans wers oblaine|

{db Acoonding to the infarmation =od exp unaliens given i ve and baced on pur examinihon of
the halance shoet of the Company, oo fupds izised on short temm besis have boen siilized for long

BTN PUIPDSES.

e} According o the imformeation aml explanstiong given 1o oz end 2n an overall esamysEtnm of
the financia’ sist=rmentsul The Comeny, we reoort Bat the Company has ool lakon any funds
from any enlily &r serkan ro ecooont of or 1 meet e ublalions of s subskdizics a5 delined
treder rhe Companice Act, 2015, Accondingly, <lause Huoke) of e Onder 3= not applicable.

(0 Acooeding 10 the wfannevion 2nd explunations given b us o precoduics pecfumed by us. we
reort thal theCompeny bes not reised loass during U year on the pledge of secoritizs hekd in s
sdwidiarcs as dofined wnder theCompanues Aat, 2012, Aceeadingly, clanse ik of the O
is nnd appiicahls.

5] (3 The Company has no. rared ane mopeys by way of tnitial publiz olfer oo [urther public offer

{mcloding debs itrmmer=) Accodingly, clauss S(x)a) of the Onder is not applicakhe.

;0294 2521088 (0)
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{b} According to che inforrmal i and cuplanarioms iven Lo v and gan fia hasis of our sosmrcmion
of the records of The Company, e Company ltas oo mede any preferencial allolment or prvace
placement of shares v fuliy or panly comeeaible deheneres during the Jear. Accordingly, dause
Jixg) of he Order is vol ppplicible.

[} 48) Bagad oa exsminstion of the books #nd reronds of (e Company and accaiding @ the
infemation and explayaiions given to us, consicering Uk principles of materislivy cotlined in
Stendards on Auditing, we repert that o fraud by the Compeny or oa the Company i been
notlced of reponed during the owrse ol 1he sudit "

(b Accardine 1o the informrrion ainl explanations iven (o us, me repor v sub-section (12) of
Aoctien 141 of the Compume Act, 205 has Been filed by the suditors o Fonne ALY as
wescribed umder Rude 13 of Compenies (Audil and Asdikos) Rebs, 3034 with e Central
CrveTTamien.

{c] As represented o us Ty U snamgeroent, fere ane oo whistle Elewsy corplaims npecived w
the company dunn e year.

(x5} Ascurding o the wfonnation and explanatins gven b s, the Company is not o Mid i Compan.
Accordingly, clauss 3wl of dhw Cinder is nox applicable.

(=it} bn ver opingen and wcoarding o the infoomihon ahd explanstions oiven to os, the MOS0
with melated parfies ane in cumnplianoe with Sections 177 and 1ES of the {ﬂwmum per, 2013,
where mpptientls, sd fhe detsils of the colsted pany Timacions deve beer disclaced in e
Tmancial statenients 5o reguized by the applicabls Indan Accounling Standamds.

fuiv) ‘=) Bacad on rionmacon and eplacigers provided 10 s and our il provedunes. G ojimicn,
the Company ks s otennal sedil systom commensurile with (he e and nanare af = basincss.

(h} We kove considerd the sopvemial asdit repons of the Coammany fsesed tll daie For the pooed
under andit

e T 0w opdioon aed scconding, io the informatiza end explinations =iven wes, B Con pany Dig not
eswered inrn amy nnn-cash tcansapons wilh il direclors or pereis voimecied 3o ik i wid
tence, provisions o Section 192 of the Companies Acl, 2005 e notappTicalie (o ibe Coanpany,

(&) (&) The Company is no regoined (o be reeisensd inder Sectlon 4314 of the Reserve Bank of Tadie
Act, 1934 Accordinglv, clause A mwi(a} ol the Order as aor 2pplicable.

% The Company is pot oguized o be registerad uoder Ssction 4204 of ahy Roscovg Base of
[ndia Act. 2934 Aczaccinely. clauss 3(xvi0a) ol the Creder ¢ nnt applicak e,

] The Cornpdiny i3 owl & Coes Imvestmon? Company (CIC) a5 defined in the repulations mude by
thie Beseres Bank of Tndis. ..'u:nrdm_g!y claure ]{Ir:i]{t} of the Onder i ool epplicable.
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{d) Apcording Lo dhe formmalicn aud explansions provided 1 us doring e coorse of audi, Lie
o desw not have ame CIC. Accardivgly, the reygiremeents of clwsg 3poilid] are o
awalicable.

Laviid The Company Ras imcurned chsh kosses of Rs (kdl Tekhs inihe curmrent zod Bs. 337 Lakhs in the
immediarely precading fimancial woar.

[ioviify There has Been a0 resipnsthon ul the staiuiore aedhcrs duzing ihe year. acoordinghy, clause
Yixvidd) of the Ordier is e appheakde,

(kix) According or he information and explarations grven w vs aud ve 1 basis of dhe Teans al
ratios, azeing and capected deules of maligation of Tusnesl a33ets and pavenesy of fisancial
"Eatkili s, b Bt asctn ey g i (oaacial siaemenss, oor knowledas of the Boand
of Dircctors and management plans and bosed on ver cxamiration of the evidews sipoorfing the
assunnplicns, pothing has corne o our attentian, which tooses us o behewe thel any makersl
uncertainty exists a5 on the dae of s sl report sl 1Te Company 5 g capelds of nceliag
05 hahilites existing af the date ofhalznee shees 3= and when they 511 due within 2 2oriod o ooe
weas fieen the Bolaoee sheot dare. We, Jovwever, %202 tha: this is a0l an assumnes 25 o dwe luboe
vizhilicy of the Company. We luztixe siale il cus peporiing s bed on e bls s 0 the Gile
of Hhe pudil gepor ol e pegthes give 2ny puardnied nor any saurnes thal all Jabilineg fallisg
doae within a period of ohe year Fort de belanee sheet dade will pet discheeped b the Company
ws and whem they Fi due,

fxx} In our opinion and secrrding o the information ead cxplanstions given Te us, ther is 10 unspest
smonnt under sub-seeticn (%) of Seetion |15 of the Companies Act, HeLE purseand ta soy project.
Accoodingly, clauses Slxaka) nd 3 p bl ol 15e Urder a0 not appinzable.

For K1 Vyas & Coengany,
Chamersd denm .

FRM- MQ32:
Placz of Signatuze: Indoee o
MDate 1 27" fdlas, 2022
[ naln Sharnes)
Farirer
P B, 402 5640

VDN : LI Yl 5 70 BKUMX RIS
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ANMNEXURE —B TO THE AUMTORS REFORT

REFORT ON TULE IMTEENAL FINARCIAL COMTROLS UINDER CLAUSE (i} OF =SB
EFCTION 3OF SECTION 143 OF TIE COMTANIES ACT, 2003 {~THE ACT™)

We have andieed the iniemal financial eontrols over financiaf reposting of Swraji Butek (Murs) Liiked
"the Company™) s of 31"Maczh, 2022 0 eonjwsetion with rur sudit of the financial statements of the
Connpany For the vear cnded on dhat dete,

Pz iwpreneant s Resguomallility fon Intevnal Fina ocial Condrsls

The Conapany™s mansgeiment is resporsible e sstublishing omd ioaintaiolog inemal Ooancial cowrols
based om e [ceenzl canfhiof aser financial reporting criieria esteblished by he Comz»any considering
the ezzential comzonents of mlarmal eantrod staed in the Guidanze Mote on Aodit of [nlernal Fineneizl
Coa'rgls over Finencial Reporting izswed by the Insdtute of Checlered Aceo mbants of [ndia {LCALL
These responsibilies include che desagn, Smplznemdation snd mainerence of adequate imemez]
financial panercls chan weme poeraling eflect vely foo ensucine the ondery and eificisr ot of ik
buziness, wsiding adhere ace o company's policies, the safoguarding of its ass=4a, the prevention aad
deiestion of frauds and emrors. ihe secomey oTd completaess of the soon slng, records, ard the imely
preqrlicn of relioble Guancial o femationg s cywieod weiee e Companics Act, 2003,

Aawiliors® Responsiiplling

Chir responsibilicy 12w express an apinon o the Comaany's inteenal Gnancial coatrols over finaneial
reporting 2ased on our amdic We condwoted vur kad-L e wocordance widh the Guidence Mole on Audit of
biternal Fimneial Contrels wvver Froerwial Fegaorimg (e “Gondires Nore™) gl the Staviands oy
Ardiing, raked Iy WAE aud Jeeaned 1o ke presoribsd wcer section 430107 of the Cumpdnisg A,
2013 to the axtend spplicable 1w en 2wl of wtemal fnoncial corceals, Both applicable 1 an awdit of
Intzrial Mnaneial Controls and, Bath ssved by the [nstinte of Chamared Accountants of Ingia 1hoss
Elondirds amd the Swiconse Mole requare 1hat we comply witll ethical requirsngnts and plan and
pertiocm the avdit o oblain reascnakle assaraace abeul whether adeguole imernal finoociil controds ower
financial repoming was esablished and maimtasined and if sech controls operased effectively icoall
ratarial vespeces.

Chr audit involves perfdming proceduces to obtam sodit evidepce gt the sdequeacy of the intemea|
Tievarciul comirols system ever Timancial rezerting ol their opegas ng « Detivemess, Sor aed i of el
Tirear il womie ol ower FioEmTal sepewlisgd Joclched ebizinime an cmker-kamdanss of Do nel (aancial
coilsals ower Enancizl reponl ng. assessing the rek that a maienal weakness exizls, anc mesting and
evaluating the desipn apd pperting effecivensss of intemal cimimo] Bassd on The dstossnd rst The
procedures selected depend on the euditsr”s juderent. incheding the azssssrment of the visks of material
tysddetsend oF Urs (owriud sluterments, whelher dus to fnaed o eror,
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We kelieve ihial the aodit eviderce we bave abtained 2 sutficient and wppropriate o provida 3 basis for
aut awdit apinion on the Cenpany 's imemel finzncizl controls syslens aver finaseial reportng

Meanlng of Tnternal Flmancial Controdd es e Financial Repoviing

A company's imemal tinamcial cenlro’ ovar finsncial reporling a8 & prosess dealgned oo provide
rezsaqnble pssirace regarding the reliabiling nf financlal repoding aed the prepacation of fisancial
“siaiements tor external purposcs in eecordence with genewldly accapted aceounting principles. A
compiny's inkernal financial conteal ever finaocial wepoiting includes thase policies and provadones tha
{13 periain tn the maimenance of recoids fiat, in reasanable defuil, accucarcly apd fary rellect <he
tronsections wid dispositions af the assels of the pompany; (2] pravide rewsonible fizuernze that
nansaztnng are recorded o nevessicy W pomil reparntion of financial skaerienls in accardanee with
penenlly cocepled aecounting principles. and st reessprs and cxperditures of the company 11¢ T=ing
mede nnky n accordance with aochor sarlons of nanegemend and dirscloes of e vompaid; and (3]
pravide reasumahle assukance regarding prevention of Lisnely detection of unautharised wocuizIlOn, USE,
or dizpozition of the company’s wssess Lt <ould have a materiaf offzct en the finsnci slalene s,

Tubercot Lindtztions of Tuiernal Finaogisl Contrda Over Financial Reportiog

Bocause uf he iperana Timitations. of mteroel Grancial sonirels over fnancial ceporting, inchuding the
possililify of callusion or improper nizragemen ovemide of coatrols, wateral misstalgnens duc b
errar or Fraed may oeiur ond not be detectod. Alse, progections of any evaluation of the imtermnal
financial coptrols over Gnancial repecting w fiiure perinds ars subject to Uwe dei e the sl
financial control over Grancial repoeting may heocome insdeguate becsuse of changes in condilions, or
T the deprea of comaliance wilh the policiss or procadures may deferiorate.

Cpigion

[n snr opipion, e Company has, in all matenid nepaets, aa adequate intermal Boancial contrals sysrerm
aver foancial reporing and sish imtemal linancial cootnds over Daocial repring were operoting
affectively a4 at 317 March 2022, bassl on e inf2rnal conirol over firanciel meporting criteria
established by the Cumpery sonsldariag the essendal components of inlemal contrel stated w 1le
Guiduoece Mule oo Audit of Irternel Finoneial Contrals Over Finane:al Beporting izsued by the Instieute
ni Chartcred Accountanie el nd:i,
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i Reporting entiy

! Sayali Holels [Puce) Linihed (the "Company™], 5 a company Incovporated In Indla on

g =

195 May 2018 and |Imb=d by shares [CTH: USS204THZONAPLCIZZ599), The address
ol cie Compary's vepisered oilce s [C24F L), n Shva Wel Apsmoment No. 2 Alagappa
iager, Zanuin Paliavaram Cheonal Th a00117 K. The Compaty s prmanly angagad in
the business of owming, operatmg & maraging hutels

E. Basicof Preparalion

Thete standalons Amanclal stateements are prepared on accrual besis of aooeunong
and comvaly weith the Indlan Accountlng Stencards (Ind A5) ootfied under the
Compenles [Indian AccounBng Standards) Rules, Z015  and subseouent
amendments thercts, the Compamigs Acy, 2013 |:l|:| the exleol outilled znd
applleable], axplicable previciong of the Companes Act, 1956,

Dasis of measurement/Tae of Extimatey

Thiest: finmnclal st temenis baoee e pspsred coder Cie Tistacival costoomseatcon
of accrual backs excepr cermabh stnenclal Insruments measured 3e fale valoe other
than thoce wath carming amaunte that sre resscnable spproximstens af (airsaluas,

Fair walue ig the price Lhel wodl] be veceived to sell an azset ar patd to eansfer a
Tl ity 10w wrderly ransacton belnesn oaarkel pardolpaucs at clw measureimeit
date. '

The preparaben of fAnooclal stateeacnte rvoguircz Judgmonts, cstlmztes and
assuwinpHons that effect the reported amount of assets and liabllides, disc.osure of
coningant Hakilues on the date of the Tnanclal ssavernerts aml the reparies
amount of revenues ang eapenses during the reportng perivd. DIference hetween
the sctel Fesalts and esdmares ore recognized in e pennd in whach The pesules
are knosan materaliged, Major Estimates ace dlseussed L Part [

Fenctivnal aod prescatalloo cumency

These financial sietements are presuntad in Indlan Boapsws [TREL willch 15 The
Compeny's fmctony. currency. All fimanclal informabon presented wo LK kas boon
reerded to the nearest lakhs {op o2 tao decimals), except a8 stabed obrerviae

T Sigmificsnt scoountmg polleles

1

A ruseimary of the slgnlfcant accountng policles zpplled o the preparedon of the
financial statements are a5 given below, These sucouting policies have been applisd
vensistentdy to all perieds peeserted i the Anancal statements,

Crorrent and non=owment clazilicallon

The Compary prezents sggets zod Habllitles In the talance sheet based on
Current S ne-current class s ton,

An asset is current shen it is




» Expected to be realized or Intended to sold or constned in normal operatlag
oycla;

r  Hald primarily {or the porposa of trad g

» Expected to be realized vathin twalve menths atter the reandng pariod; ar

»  Cash or cash equivalent ukbess veatrictad fraom being exchanged ot wsed w ecttle
a llablllty for at least bweebve roonthe aRer the reporti py period.

All ocher aszats are £lagslfled as non—corcent,

& lability w currant when:

» leis expected to besestied In notmal opetating crde;

» Icis leld pidmaclly for the puspes2 of radlng;

« Ilsdue ba =e setded wethin swelve iwonths after the repathing perisd; or

1+ There 2 ne vnconditonal rI'.ght ru deler settlernent al the Tability for at least
pwelve ionthe after che repertng perlad-

Al ather lIsbilides are classifed az non-turreak,
Delarred tx assets,/Mabiliues ave clasalfleg as non-crrrent
2. Property Plant & Eqolpment

2.4, I tlal recogmiltlon and measurameot

An ltem of property, phinl abd eguipment recomizod a5 an sset I and oolv F it s
probable that fusure cepnomic benetivs assooated with the item wikl fow o che
cumipany £0d the cost af Ehe item can be messured rellably.

[tems of Froperty, Plant and Equipment ace measored at cose less eccumulaled
depreclation/emartzation ard accomulated impalmment lwzes. Cosc Includes
expeodliure that |5 dicectly atribotable o brelnglog the agset, Bormowing cost
tnclestve of non-refundalile taxes & duties, ta the lacadon snd condibiar peoesssty
Fr 1 w be capable of operating in the nmeer iatsteled by management.

When parts af ar item w? preperty, plant end squipment have different useful lives,
they are recagnized separately.

Items ol spare patts, stand-by cquipment andd setvicing equlpment which meet the
definition of Propery, Plant and Equipment aro capilslized.

2.2. 3ubmagnent costs
Suasequenl exsendltuve 45 coecognized a5 on increase in the carcdng ameount of the
asset wien L is probable that Future coonomic bgnegflls deviving from the cost
incurred will Mow 1o the enterprise and the cast of the item can be measurcd
rellaldy.




The cust of replacing parzof an [tem of property, plant and ejulprcent i= recognizad
In Lhe carryiog ameunt of the item 8 it is protsble thae the (cluse econamic banefits
emberd iad within the part will flow @ the Company apd 2 2ost can be measored
reliably, The caprying suwunk of the repleced part is derecpgrized. The outs af e
day-to-day servicing ufl Froperty, Plant and Equipment are reeoymingd |n profit or
fepsm s Tocue reds

3. De-recognition
Property, Plamt and Equlpratnt are derccognized whon no fcbure sconomis bemesits
are expacted fiom thelr wse or upon thely dispasol Goine and fossos oo disposal of
an (e of property, plaat and eruipmens ame defermined by comsaring the
prucesds hivin dlsposal with the carrying amount of propesty, plant and egquigmont,
apd ore recoguzed fn the statensot ef prafic and loss.

4. Depreelaton famartizaidon

Daprociatian s romognized s proefit or laze on 3 Wintten Tcwn Value Metaod ower
the ealimated uzefy lives as proseribed in Schedale 1| of Companbes Act, 2013 of
pach patt of an lem of Property, Font ongd Eyuipenent Leassbold lance sre
amartized pver the leage teem unlose it is reasonably certain that the Congsary wall
obtain ownership by Bw end o te l2ase e

Aszzats consttucted on lessed preémizes are depreciated famartized owver the lrass
perled

Depreplaton on addltons bofdedocdions rom (Gsed 2dzels dureng e year 15
charged on pro-rata bagis frevafup o che date on which the asset is svallable far
usa, diepasad.

Where L1z probable that futore econemic benafity derhing Irun the et inceared
wll Aowr g he enterprize and the cost of the lHem oa be measured relfably,
subscquont cxpenditure ot 3 2PE slong-with 1t umamorsized deprecizble amount i<
charped olf prospectividy <ver the revized useful bie determined by technidal
EELTULL 13

n circumstancs, where & seperty s abandoned, the comebiive coplmlized fosie
relzting to the property are swrilken el e ante peraod.

% Capieal work-in-prograss
The cost of self-constrocted astebs Belades the enst of meterialz & divedt Iabour, any
pther cosee dlrectly ertriborable o bringing the asteie o the loatim sed conditian

Wiy for I o be sapable of operating b the manrer intended by mowogement 2nd
borrowing msis,

Expanses dirsctly aticlbetable to construction of property, plamt and sguopment
Imeurved il they see resdy foc their Intendsd pee ave Hentified 2nd allocated on 2
vkl bazig an the co3t afrelated assets.

Deposlt works/rost plus conizacks am aeneeted for on the Pasis of statements of
aecoune received from the montmaciary.
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4, [ntangiblc asscts and intangible asgets under developrient

4.1, InlHal recognition and measirémgnt

An Intavglble zzset ke recomnized IEand orly if it is probable that the expected future
aronomlc beneAes that are attrhutahle tothe asmet will Ao bo Lhe Lo pany wod Ll
cost ofthe aszet can be measansd rellahly

Intangibla assats that &re aoguicmd by ¥he Company, which 3ave fpite n2ef] e,
are recopnized at cost Subsaquant messuromant is Sonc at cost less accemulated
amordzabion and secumulated impoimment losses Cost includes any diretly
attrlbrutable incddental expensas neceasary to maks the asscts reedy for dts intenced
=1

i.i,ﬂuh.'arquent payly

Subsequent rxpenditere s recopnlzed 25 an [Berease e the carrng ameurt of the
assct when it is probable that future efonamie Lenefits derving from i cast
incueved vl flow to “he enterzrise and tho cost of the item can ke meamered
relialily.

4.3, Be-recagniden

An intangible assat Is derscopnizad when no hrture mconomiy; benetits are mepectad
from thelr use or upon thalr disposal, Gains and lesses on disposs| of an item nf
itrabimilile acvets are deker plied by camparliag the proceeds frer diepasal with the
careyling atmount of Intasgible assets axd are recognized In the statemant of prodit
and Jogs.

4.4, Amortzation

Intangihle assets lsaving definlte life are smartlzed on Written [awn Waloe method
in theirvsefl Tivas, Ugulul [He of oo poler sofieare 12 eadenzied ac flve years. |F fe
of anyr Intangible asset is inclefinlts, then it i mab amorozed aod ested for
impatrmient at tha repoctding date.

Borrowing Cost

Hotrowimg cests thet are  dleectly  abribotable o the  acgulsition,
“enbgtrygtlon fealoraer S develn prment or ereceion of quallfying asgecs are capitalized
as part of oost of such assat untll such tlme the aszats ary sobhstantially ready o cheir
intended wse, healifidng aszets are assoks which Miee 2 substantial period of timé bo get
razdy for thele Inbended nse or sale. Capltalizaticn of barmawring oosts ceaces when
sebacantially al] the actitles necessary o prepare the guallfing assets for theic
izl uses aee ool plecs,

Al cther barmowing ce<sts are charged to revanue a5 5 ol wihien iceureed.

Hoivewlng coscs cobslst of (3} wicerest expenss calculatad wsing the affechve inkberes:
miethedt a5 described ln Ind AS 109 - “Financal Instruments’ (b} finarce charges In
respect ol Anarce leazes recogmized Lo accordanze with Ind A5 1i6 - ‘Leases’ [c)
exchange diMorences anstng fram [ relga corrency boreowings w tl:e axtenc chac they
are regarded a5 an ad;usoment to interest cocts and (4] othae £osts that an entity ingurs




In smnAectun with the borvewlrg af funds. Inceme carned on tempurany invesunent of
the berrewings pesding chelr expenditice on the qual lfylng e ls is dedocted lran the
bomrowing costs eligible for caplzalizaoon,

&  Investmett in Sahsidiary, Associate & Joint Veoture

T

These are Company's Separaie Finandal Statements. Compeny has optod o show
Inrestments in Subsidizr, AssucEes & folul Venerre at cost [Hviéend from these is
recopnized as ard when clght w0 recelre is established

Impaliment laas 15 recognized as per ind A5 3G

Invenppries

inventaries are walaed ar e lowe of coat apd net regllzabla velug, Sest includes cost of

paurhiest, cst o o mversiun and alher costs incwrmed io bringing the inventorles te theie
presant lecatlon and cenditlen. Cost s Jetevodted on Welglited Average Bacls. Casts of
purchasad inwentory wre deteetalned after dedocdng rebates and discounts, Met
realizozla value ts the estimated selling price o the ardlnany course of tusiness, less
ectkmed 2osts of complation and the esthimikad sesls negezss ry wobake the szle

The dimliution m che value of obsalete, unserdccazle and surpios stores & spures s
ascertalied on revdew and proided for,

B. Cashand Cash Equlvalent

8

Cazh awd cash equlvalenc in the balance sheet camprise cash ok banks andd cagh on kand
antl shup-tenn depozita with an orlging] matunty of theee manths o less, which are
Fublect to Inslgnificart risk uf change io valoe,

_ Government Granks

Ggvernment grai that corpenzate the conpaoy for the cost of assct are recogoieel
initiafly 25 deferred Ibvome when there k2 reasonable assorance that thoy will oe
recodved and the Compainy will somply with the condations zszociated with the gront and
are recogilzed m prafit or less on 4 systemntic basds aver the weebd] lile of the related
seset Grants that compensata the Company For expenses lncorred abe resagiized owver
the period 119 whicl the relared coste are Incurred and zre deductzd frem the related
CHRCILSED,

10. Provislans and contingont Nabllitles aod Contingent Adsats

A provision Ls recognized IF 05 o result of o pest evekt, the Company has a po=sent legal
or constuctive obligation thar can be esdmwated cellably, and it (s arehable that ap
outflavr of peenemic beneflts will be reguired b setile 1he obligateon. [F tha edect of e
Hme valoa of mooey Ls materal, provislons are J el eed by diresuntlngg Qe expected
future cash llows at a pre-tae rete that reflacts owrent mathet assemments o the dre
value of money ord e rishs specific w che lability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision dos to the passege ol Lme 8 vecognlzed as a finence cost

“ITe ameuwe vecomnized 2z a provizion Ls the best ostimate oF ths consideration required
to settle chwe present okilgadon st ropocting dote, taking “ate sccnunt the rizks and
uncertalhdes suyToundlng the obligatdan
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When zarne or all of the cconemie bensflis vaculred to gettle 3 provision 2re exypectad o
be racovered feom a third party, the recelvable 12 recognized as sn aseat ||'tc is Wieoualle

.cerzin that relmbarsacacnt will be reégved and the amaunt of the receivable can be
meaguyed vellably, The cepense relating o a peovislon iz presantod in the statemett of
proflt aiud loss net of any refmbursement

Leontingent liabllitias mre presible obllgations that arze from past arerts apd wioss
oristetice Wil only be conficmed by the oeourrance oT non-goTurcence of one or more
fulre events not wholly within the control of the Company. Whare it 15 ot probable
that an oudiow of economic bonches will be required, ar the Emorn: cannob b
estimated rellaBly, the abligation is disclosed 22 a contingent lHabligy, wnless the
prorahil ity of outflowr af aconomic beneftts |5 remote. Comiligent Habllities are disclesad
un Wie beazig of judgment of tha managementfindependet experts. These era rovicwad
at pach bulunce sTiset date and are adjustad to reflect the vu rrenl managament eccoate,

Contingent mssohs ave pogsible szeete that ance fram past wenes aid Wwhose existence
wll be confirmed only by the oocurTence or hon-ofeurrence of ane ar mare oo0cartEin
furute evenzs ot wholly within the ccpirol of e Commpaey. Condngent assets are
disclosed in the finenclal statements when Inflaw of economlc berefity 1= probeble
the basis of “udpment of management These are assesued fontinuwlly w ensore thar
" tleswelupioents are approprlately roflacked in the Fnemeiat sealesets

11, Forelgn currency transactions and Ira nelation

Transscliung o foueigh curvencles are Inddalty recorde at the (uncclonsl coreency spot
mates at the il tee 1rusactlon st qoallfles For recognitien,

I Monotary asscts and Habilities denomitaced It foretgn currenceg are trapslated @ tha
fuwedonal currency spot mates of vxvhange ae thie repariing date, Exchango differehces
arisling on settlement or translation of meretary Wems are vocopgnezed a0 proftor lossin
e pear i winich il asises.

Hon-monetary items org mgasyzed n terms of historkcal st In 2 Ferign corcescy a2
tranalated walng the exchangs rate at e date af the tranzaction,

1t Revende Becogubtlon: -

Effectlve Apeil 1, 2018, the Company aslopted Ind A5 115 "Fevenue from Contracks
w 4]y Custonners™ which intorodwcey thee Give-step nvde] deseribed as follows: -
+1.  [dentfy the contract with a custooer
2. [dendfy Huw sepasbe rerioroe e obigalons In the contract,
3, Dubrcdne e bruwsctionn Puce.
4, Allocate the FansacUon prloe to the separate perlucimarnos abligations.
5. Recognize evenue whim (or ash eack perferaaee obligatian ls salisfied,

Kevente fram operabions:

The Company derlres revenues primarily from sale of somog, food and beverages,
allie:d servlems eeloking to hotol opomtions duch as managament fees (o7 the
wanagervent of the hetels,

A, Eevenue i sicognlzed upon transfer of contrel of promesed producks or gervices B
customers 1 an amoont Bat roflecks the opsidedcn we avpact Lo Teceive in
eschenge for those products or seorices
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The Company prosents mrvenues net of indivecl taxes in smkement af Prodik aad loss.

. Trade receivables and Conleact Balances

The company recognless contract a25cts on am amient éyuald to ornsiderdlion ralaed
to goode and services already fransferced bo caslotnees when the dght to Teceive surh
considermtion s cotdiBonad vpon something othar than pissge OF Hine.

[Fnoonditinnal cght to receive eorssdecation ave ecognised as tade receivable.

Trade Teceivable and contract assets are sulject b impairment as per [nd A& 109
‘Pinancial Instrumies’.

The company recognises amount eleaedy caceived from reseommes apainat which
trarafer for goads and services ace nok meadde s condract albiliey.

Irterest Income

Fur all Anaoceal Instrunvents measured af amorbeed cost and inkerest-beariag
(inancial assels classified as fair value Bhrongh other comprehensive incame. interest
inceme is recurded using e effective interest rate (LIRp The EIR i e rate thal
i:.'?:ﬂl.'ﬂ}' discomerits Hue astimatcd Fubure cash reccipis aver Efwr e:pecbed lite al the
inancial instrument or a shorber pariod, whee aporopriale, o the ek cacrying
amount of the finencal asset. When calcelating the cffoctive iaterest rate, the
Company caimadeg the expected cash finws b}- rmpsidering =l 2w confraciual Larmes
of the financia] instument [for emnple, prepayment, axtenston, call amd similar
optons} tut does not eonelder the expacted credit Josses. Interest income is imladead
in other income: in Bhe $Etetnent of profit or loss,

Dividend

Mvldend Income i recognized sehen the Cutnpany’s righl 9o ecebye i established

wihich genemaly pocurs when the sharalnbders apprave the dividend.

1. Employee Benoflts

13.1. 5)ott Term Eenalit

Slort-term employes bensfit obligations sre mewsored on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed iy the related szevice = provided

A [labillty 15 eecopnlzust for t3¢ wiaouhl exgected ta ke gald under perfermanc:
relaced pey Fthe Company has a present ekl or consouctve obllgacdon to pey thes
Armauel ag a eesult of past secdce provided by the emplayes atd the abligadan can
b estirmitexd rellakaly.

13.2. Peoat-Employment boncflis

Emplupse benedfic thal ate payable after the completion of employment 2ne Post-
Employment Benafit (uther than terminadoen beneflc). These are of two 4pe

13.2.1- DelToed con brlluticon plane

Defined eontributics planz are those plans m owhich an ooty pays Meed
comtribution ipto separase cndtes and wall have na lagel or eonstactive obligation
to pay further amounts. Mrevident Fund and Erplayes Btatc Insurance are Dilined

=




Contribution Mans In witlch company paya 8 flxed contribuSon and will bave mo
Further nbll gation,

122> 2 Dafined lencfit plans

A dlefined penaiit plan 12 o post-eraploygment benatit plan ether tian a defined
rontribnation plas.

Company pays Drtaliy 4 pec provisinng of 18 Gracut ace, 1972, The Company's
bt osligitlon Tn respect of detined benefic plans 15 calculated separately for each
plan kY etaagdng che amoeund of fumre beneflt thet emplayees have earned In
ceturn for thair sa—vice in the currert and prior paelods; chiat enailt 15 discoanted
to dotormine it present wilwe Aty sreecoptized past senvics cases and the far
wa_ua of any plan asseis are deductsd The disgndn rate |5 aged ab e prevailiog
markst vialds of Iadian gyvecnment secerities as At the reporedng date that have
matuclty dates approximating tha terms af the Company's oblizations ond that aes
dencoittated oy Ehe sanie coccency [nowhich the benefits ano expected o be pald,

The calculation is perlermed annually by a qualified actuary usmg the prajected
anoit credit mothod, When the cloulation resulcs Lo xhilicy o the corapany, the
present valoe of labilityy |5 recoprized g5 proedsion for employes benelit Ao
acluarlal gains ar losses ara recognlzed in ©C1 10 the pered in which Ewey arise.

135 Lotg Tornt Employee Reneflr

Eenefits under the Companys leave vwcashment consticule olther leag zzemm
emplayee benefits.

Leave Encashment t= determined based an the awilable lewre eqtilement A, the
end of The year

14 Tnome Taxes

Incame tax expense comprisos current and deserred 3 Cerrzot s experze s
recagn.zed In profit or Joss except e the axtent that it colates to items recogniced
direcely in other eaiprehenslve Incame or eguity, In whlch case it 15 recognlzed in OCI
OT et

Cureent tax 13 the expected tax pajyable an tha taxabla Incema For e vear, uslng tax
rates cnacted or substantvely enacied ond o apprisbde ac ce reporbing daee, and any
gdiusomont to @x parakle In respect of proviows »eers- Currenl ipfocie faxes abe

"recogulzed oncer ‘Incomsz tzx payable’ net of payments on accounk, or uader ‘Tax
recelvilies” whers Lhieps is = delsil halance

Teferred tax is recognized wsing the bulanee shest wmethod, provtding for tetaporary
diffcrences botweoen the carmying ameunts o assets ansd Habilities Far i nvial repotting
purposes and the amcwents used Ior Eaatise purpeses. Doferred e is measuced it the
Lax I'ates that are expacced to he appled =5 temperacy differences when Guey cevacse,
brased un the et hpve S2en enacied us subewntlvelp enacied by dee reportling
data. Irafermed @x assets and HablILtles ane ofFsel I there 15 @ Legal be ppiurceibsle clpsn o
atfset curceqt tax hzbilides and assets, anc they reiase o income taces levled by e
game x Autheribe on the zume taxable entity, or an different tax enbtlas, bux they
iokend to sattle curran: tx labalibes and zscete on a nat basis or thelr s assets
Liabblitl2s wilk be reallzed slmultaneonsiy.




Deferred w@y 1 recognized In proflc or loss except to the exten: thet |t relates -¢ lteme
recognized directly in O] ar egully, Inwhich case [t1s recogouzed in QC] pr equlityr

A delferpeed ok azior |2 pecognized to Euwe axtent diat ic [z perobabile that future tavable
Flrl.'l.'rit.';i wil]l he svailahle ag.uin.-rl. which the le sty dllarence van be b i2ed. Defereed
taw apsels are rewfewed at mmeh rzpurlir:g clate il e Pedweed 1 Lhe extett that e ls g0
longer probable that the related Ty bepalit will be vealized.

Additional income fRxes that arizs from the distribution of dividends are recagnized at
the same time that the [abdilby to psy the related dividend is recognized.

15. Lezages gz Legsae

Ind A5 116 Leases (Or March 3, 201%, Miolstoy of Corporate Affalcs fas naofied 1nd

A% 116, Leazes. Ind A5 116 will Teplace the esastnp leases Standard, Ind A% 17 Leases,

and relaced Interpretadons. The Standard 2eez aut the princdples fog the racognibon,
mersurEmeant, presertion jnd disclogare of lBages for o pparmes w a cantracr e, the

Iesges ahd che lessos led A% 116 inmedoces a single leszee accounting model and

requires a Iessee 1o recopnize assees and Nabalities for all Jeages wizh a czern of more

thin bweler momihs, wnless the nderelyleg ased 5 of low value, Coerently, speradng

Ieast expenses an Chiarged Lo the sk emeaot al Profil & Lass, The Saodaed alsa concalis H
aphanced disclosura requiremants for lesseds, nd A% 116 sabstantially carvles Naresrd
kne Jeszor accouning requirements o lod A& 17

Th eifactive dote fir adopron af Thd AR 116 & anrual pariods baginnkg on or after
Aprl L 2019, The sEmdird persits o pozsibla metiods of feansition:

1} Full rebospectve — Retrospactdvely to oach prict pericd cresented applying Ind
A% B Accoundng Padlcles, Changes In Accountag Estitiates and Errors

2} Medifled rarrospective = Retrasnwetivialy, wisn the umularieg effact of nieiaily
anplving the Standard recognized ot the dote of initial e pplication.

Under moadified retivspectlve appreach, toe lasaes recards the leace llanllitr as the
present volue of the rencblng lease paymecls, discoubged at the lwoceniental
Lorrowitg vate and the vight of vge assec eltlier as:
A} ts camryirg amownt a5 if e standard had been applied since e
commencement date, but discocnted at lessec’s incremental barrowiag mabe at the
date af inibal application or
| L) fuw abwount equal £ the Jeasa labillcy, adjuzzed Ly the anouat aF any prepeid or
accTued leage peyiments related oo st lease recognized under Ind AS 17
immedlately priore the date of Initial spplication,
Cortain prectosl oxpedicats are eveilable under kath the methods
The Companiy s adopted the standsrd beginoleg Apedl 1, 2879, uslhg the modRed
relrespeellve appooach for trinsition. Acveosslingly, the company las nal restated The
fomparatlye itfermation




16, b pairinent of Moa-Financal Asgets

The carrying emoents of @e Company's nom-finandal assets are reviewed at each
repoarinp date to determing whathar tharo is eny indlcabon of enpaicment considering
the provialons of [nd AS 26 “lmipaicnent of Assets”, f any such indicotion oxists, then the
2za0fs recoverable amoont |5 csdmated.

The recoverible amount of a0 &ssat o1 Cash-panerating anit i3 the higher af its Q@ir valug
lezs ppets todlspoeal and its valwe im vee, In assecsing walae in wse, the axtimated fitrs
cagh flows are diesscnted to their precent value iging 3 pre-tax disconant rate Eal
reflecte murrent market aszegerients of the wme valoe of money and ke clsls specific to
the zzze: For the purpoce of bnpawmen: testing sssets chat cannoc ke testard
indiwidusbly 2re grouped tagetber Into the smallect group of essew that generates cazh
InMows from contipping use that zre Targely independent of the cach Inflows of cther
azzcts or provps of agsee (the *cash-generaGng wuir’, or "CLUT)L

An impsbrmaent loss is recesmdzed F the carrying amount of an asset ar its COL exeeeds
i estimsked recoversble ameint Impaimuent “osces ere recagnized in probit or foss

L it doeces pecogrleed Invespect of CELE are recuced firam the carmyinp ar.ounts
'-:.rfgrgm|wi||. nf th=l l::l.‘FI_.'ll il'am].' wnd Ve Lhe aeesars ol e CELL

Impairment Iosses racopnized In prior perincs are aesossed Ot awch repordng dace for
any indlcadons thar the legs has decrezsad or no lonper exicte, An impairment lo£5 ig
meversad f there Loe been & chanre in the estimates wead te determine the recovarmtla
appcnt Sn Impalnent loos dz ecverecd only to the exbent that the ascet’s carming
Atbopnt doeg tot eccee] the carrnng dmosdt that wauld bave been determlned, nerof
depreciaticn or emertizatior, If ne lmpairment loss had 5een recognlied.

17, kpecal lng Segments

In acenrdance with ind A% 108 - Opersbne Sapments, the oparatine segmeatts used to
presont sogment in‘ormation are (dentidisd on the bagls of lolersal reports used by he
Cocmpany's Manegement to ollocste resoarcss to the sogments aend agyess theld
perlpomance. The Zoerd of Directers iz callecgvely the Company's "Chicl Dperating
Deckelan Maker o CODM" withdn the rmeesning of [nd 45 108, For mmanagement purposs
cotripsiy i orgaalzed Lo peajor operstleg aztvity of hoeling In Indla. The Indlzators
wsed fr aternal MEPOMtINE PUPEsEs @Ry cvolve in camnnection willy E:erfm-mau-:a-
. EFTPsEmRnt messuras putlin placs,

1E Myvidemds

Diridends and interim dividends payable to a Company’s sharcholders are recognized as
rhanges In eguity in ke period in which they zre approved by the shareholdors' mecting
and Lve Board of Hrectears respectively.

19, Materlal Poior Feried Errors

Material prios serod ervams 2re corrested rebraspectively by recicting the cemparahve
armuuwils fer Use poior perbods presested o which the gonur socoered, 17 e esooc
acmreEl hefnre the sarlieer prissr perind preseniecd the opening halzmoes ol oxxels,
Ii=bsitinte amd e iy o Vhie exrlimt prkisr r.||+ri|:lrJ rresentedd, awre reslaledl,

e — ———



20, Earmninps Per Share

Bacle earntops per equity share k conlputed by dividing the net profit ne loss
atributa@la to oquity shareholders of the Company by the weighted averapge huinber of
equity shares outstandimg during the Financlal year.

luted earrangs par egulty shars B3 eremputed By dividing the ret profit o lees

aptrbutabla to equisy shareholders of the Company by the welghted avetage noumber of

equity =harez cansidored for derving hasic arnitgs per equity share aod also The

welghmed averags number of equity shores that could bove been 1zzued opem canvecslon
Ll all dllutive pokential equikyr shares,

Z1. Staterment of Cash Flows

Stazament of cosh Mows is prepdied |6 accardance with the indirect method preserild
n [nd A57 "Statement ol el T

2. Finaoclal instrumants

A fnanclal lestrumenc |5 any copttaet that gives rise g Moancial assecof one entlty and
4 financial Taki# oy or equler insTemeant of another onkicy.

.-

Financlal assets
Initizl reeognithon and measurement

All Ananclal assets am meoegnized [RMwly at falr vaboe plus or mious, in the case of
Ananclal secete nat ceccrded ar falr vahay throogl proll or less, transectton casts
thatare attbucsble to e acculsiton ar fesue of the ARanial asver.

Spbsaguent meAsuretnent
Debt instruments at amottized ¢ost

A delal insreoreat |5 mezsocred at the amactdzed cost if Bath the fllow:ng
condttons ace met:

{a] The asset Is held within 3 busloess mude] wigse abjesdve |5 to hold assets for
coilkectng conoracteat czsh Aows, and

(b1 Contrautual ternws 9 e asset glne rige an specified daces to cash fows that are
salely peyments of princlpal aad Interest [SPPL]) an the poacipal amonil
outstanding

After [nitial measorement, such fnanclal asucts are subsegueatly measuved at
amoctized vosl wsing e EIR methoed. AmocGzed cost is catoulated by Reimg o
eccaunt any discount or premlum oo acywlsition and fees or cosks thet arc an
integra] part of the EIRL The EIR amartizton is Included Tn oance incoine o the
prodit or Wss The logges arlsing from impairment ace mecognlzed in the profoor
lass, This cateaory peaerally 3aplies to rade and othar cecervables.

Debt Instrument at FYTOC (Fair Value throyph (4010

4 'debt instoernetl’ §s classified ag at the FYW1T0OCI if both of the Jollewinp ¢ritssia e
met;

(@) The ubjective of the boelpess model 15 achieved both by collecong contrachel
cash Aows and selllae the (inanglal 255ews, and

(b7 Tez asnel's contracal 2ash Aows represcnt PP




Debt Instrumetes Includad within the FYWTOC! catepory are messured Loltaly as
weel | a3 at each reporting dake ak Gir value. Falr wil'ue inaveitetts are recegnizad in
the OCI. However, the Company recopnlzes Imtermst lutoiie, Impalement losses &
reversals and fobeign ewchanga gain or less in the praiivarcd logs. On darecogniton
of the azset, comulative galn or koss proviowsly recogalzed In 001 = reclassified
from the équily Lo proft and less, Interest enmed whilst halding FITOL] deit
instryment Is repeted a3 inberest Income using the TIK method.

Debt insttwiment aE ¥UTEL [Fate valus through profit or k)

FUTEL {5 a residual ¢alegury for debe Insmaments Any debt instroment, which does
nat reet tha coteria for calegerlzclon =2 aC armertized cost or & FYTICL s
clazslfied ac at FYTPL-

In addltian, th.e Company may £lecr o clagslfr a debt Itstroment, which athera|se
meets amordred cosk oo FYTOCT rrileris, A% ac ¥YTPL Howerer, such electon iz
allowad only f dolng 50 reduces or elipinalet & EASUTRIMETE D TeCAZmiton
inconsisteney [refermed to as “accounting mlzmaich). Debt instroments incluclad
withln the FY'TP L &tegory are measared et falr saluw with a1l shanges recognized Lt
the profit and boss,

Equity Investments

Al ety Investments In entides other than subsidiaries @24 Join: sectures are
imeagured ac fair value. Equeity Insttuments which are ield fer orading are classiflad
2% At FYTPL. ¥or all ocher eculty instrumsnks, the Cempapy declces 10 class fy e
same @ither a0 ar FVTICL ar FYTRL The Company mitkys such elecCond ol db
instrument by Iastrument bisls. The caseidsatan 1 made an indtlzl recegnetien and
I5 itreweable,

[f tho mompany decides o clasglfy an equity lostnument as Al FYTRCL then all Bais
value chanpes an che Wstrements, excludinp dividencs, aro recopnized [ The DEL
Thare |5 no rogding of the amgenrs fram DC] 2 PEL, even on sabe of lewestment
However, the company may transfer cutnylatle gatn or loss withio the oquity,

Equ ity incorurients included within the EVTPL cutepoary ake reas red at fair walue
with 3l chonpes tecopnized 1n the proflt and lass.

Equity invastmeots In subsldlacles and jolhl sentutes are Weasuned anocsl
Cre-recopiitnn

A flnamcial asset [ar, whers appliceble, @ part of a Cnanclal assat or part of a
Cotmpaty af similar finencial asscts) is primarily Cerecngnized (ke rectoved from
Lhe Coaniguamy's hialance sheet] when:

+ The: rights to receive v Tows (rom Ui asset have explred, of

v The Compay hay oansferred &5 rights to receys casn ows Erorm Ew asget o has
assurned Ao obtigatlon to pay the received cash Aowes in Rl wizhoow imaerial delay
to @ third aarty wnder # ‘pass-theougl’ anvangement; and cizher [a] the Compury
Les Gansforred substantially all the risks aod rewards of the aszet, or [b) the
Company hox neither trepslernsd ner tewalned substantially all the msls and
rewards of t3¢ asset, but has translerrsd sonlral of the aceet

Inpairment of Ananclal assats




In accovdatiee with Ind-As 209, che Company applles sepoeted credit o {ECL)
madel for meagurement and eecognidon af fmpalrment loss on the Tallowleg
financlal sssets and credlt rlas expognrs:

+ Financdal assers that ave debd islroneenls, aod ae nedsersg ol @coorllsed cosc
e.g. loans, delst securities, deposics, rrade raceivables and bank balance

* Trwie recelhwmbles or avy comtractual clzht 3¢ romelve Gish or anosher Ananclal
asseb that result from bansacdons thas aee within the scope of Ind 45 115,

The Company follows “slmoplliled approack’ fer recognldon oOf lmparmens: Loss
allovwrance on

Trade recelvasles mr conbract asseta resublizg Meem Leamsaclions within te scope of
Ind AS 113, I They di hoc crumlaln a signifEcant franchig cumponent

o Tragle recedvaiales ar curiraet assets resuling fmam smnsactions within £ scuoe
of Ing AS 115 that eortain a signlfgn inanang cemponant, iMhe Company applies
practcal cxpedlent fa igpore soparatlan of time valuo of money, and

The applcadon of shnplifed approach does wez requlre the Sonepany B liack
changes It credit vlsk Raeher, 1t secugnizes knpaloomein aoss allowance based on
litetdme ECLs at eacly veporting Sate, r5g0r Frouz s indlal recogal ooy,

For recognition of impairment Ioss on sther Bnandal assets and risls oxposurs, the
Company detommines that whather thare has been g slgniflcant increpse In the
crodli dsk since Inltdal cecopniton. [F credlt rsk has ook [ncyeased slpndilcanty, 12-
wanth ECL B used to pnoddide for Bcpalormeel doss, Howewer, I crecdie Gss las
ucrsased sigallicantly, [Eethng ECL §s wsed, I in 8 subsegquent perod, cradit quality
af the Instrument improras such that there = oo lenger & sterlficant ecrease 1o
credit risk slnce sidal recognibdon, them the eatige veveros o recogilalilg
impelrment |3ss atlawanoe based ar 12-montly ECL.

Flinannebal Tt ey
Imitial recognidon aod measurcment

Al Tiwancial ahililes are r-etl:lgnh'.l:ﬂ Al Tir sl ape in omge of II:Ii:I|'|$| el b
directly attribwiable st Fees af oourrlng nature ace directly racogntzed 1n tha
Statemant of Profitand Loss as Snance cost,

Subsequent Ineasuretisnt

Flrancial liabilities are carrled at amortzed cost using tha affetve mteres: methed
Amertized coet 17 calculabed by baking Leto account amy discerwnc o pretwlumn an
acquleltlon and awy matoral branssecion eal pre apy iplegr| pam of e BB Far
trad ¢ and other pavakles maturing within one yeac érom the balance sheet dats, the
GUTHINE ameunts approximata fair value due fo the short matwrlty of these
Instruments.

Derccoguition

A dinancal liakdlity |5 dererognlzed when the obligation under the liabl:ty 1s
tlisekatged or cancelled or explros, When an exccting financlal sk bty 15 Teplacad by
anazher frem the same lender on substantally differenc zerece, or cha ez of 2n
exicting lability ave substapally modifled, such =n eschonge ar modllication is
treated as the derceoznision of the ariginal liability end e recagnibon of 3 new




[lability, The difference In fhe respective carrying amounts ks recogntzed In the
statetieat ol proficer Joss

. MajorEzstmaiss made In prepanag Flnansal SEtements

gafnl Tife of prapecty. plast and eqoipment

The estimated vretl! Ul of propersy, PIXNC sNe equipmenst 1S baged on & noober of
factors Imcluding the ellecss af olwalencence. demand, compedten and ocer
eronoic fFactors fsuch @8 the swbility nf Be Indusoy abhd aiews echnolameal
pdvanzes] ond the Jovel of melntenance eependiterss mgulred (o ahtain the
sxpacted fwburs cash Rows from the essct

Lizefal Wfe af dhe ascets other than Plant and machinery are In accocdance with
Sehedule M ol the Companias 4ce 2013,

The Company révlews ot the end of eacl reperting dzte the uselul Life of propecty.
plantand syuipment,7nd 2 e sl wsled progpectvely, I apaopriace.

Post-employment benefit plans

Employes benefr obligations zre measured an the basks of actuarial assemptians
insbr ok, imciuds inerialiny and withdrewsal rates as well s essunpdlons conesrming
Futs re developrments In disgount rabes, Gie mate of salary Locreases and e Leflated:
rate The Company coosiders that the assums fons weed o measure its obillgailong
are apprapgidte and documented. Hawever, sny chanpas in chose assumpions may
hawe i cmaterial isnpact en the resuldng celoclathons,

Provisions and contingentics

The assascments undertekan In recogniziog provisions ané contingencles havy been
ade i accordasce wath led A% 3T, Provisions, Condngen Llabdines anc
Contingent Assets”, The evaluwlion al the Fhelthoud of U congngenr events |as
required best judameot by manescment sogacding the poobubility of espusvrs 1
potental loss Showld clooumstanees charge fallowing unforescoable developmeats,
(hiz likel ibhersd could alter

Tmpabrment Test ol Hon-Finandal Asscly

The recoversble amwounc of invesonent In subsldlacy s based on estmates ans
asremptiony cemrding I8 pardculer the fowre cash Bows agsociared with the
aperations of the dnvestes company. Any changes Bn these assusnplions may have 3
mzeterial smpart on the measurament af the recovecable amount and couwld result in
impslrment
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Fal Mo Dl -

LTHN; 20255 AANATN S8
INDEFEMDENT AUGITGR'S REPORT

Te,
The Members,
Sayejl Hodels { Punc) Limited

Regiri pa the Aad bl of e S{apdal yne Fiponeial Satemeats

Opimasa

e have audited the standalowe Tirnancial staements of Sarap Howls (Purg) Donnsd e
Company™). which compease the balanec dheed a5 Al 31" March 2021, and e Staiemeni of
Profil and Loss (inekeding Cther Compredensive [noome), Statement of chanees in sqoity s
SWatemenl of cash Mows for the e thes aeled, aod noles o the fnancial sieterments,
including 4 summary of qignificent accouniing policies and other @iplonatory infoemation
{hereinafier retervod to as ™ ihe standaione financial soabcrments'j

Tn ol epinzon and o the best of our informaticn and according Lo 1he explanations given Lo
us, the afoeedaid standalone financial satowents give e Tnfynaiion reqeired by the
Companies Acl, 2017 (U Ao e U i s requined unad give 2 woc aoad Tar view in
aonfremity with the Indisn Accoonding Stendars prescribed under secticn £33 wlihe Act ned
with the Cornganies (Tndean Accountng Standards) Rules, 2043, sz amended, {“nd AS™) and
ciher seooting principles gencrally scoeptsd i Indie, of the skats of aflairs of Lhe Compony 33
gt March 31, 2021, the loss and totdl comprehensive meine, chiauges jr aquiry and ik cash
flarws [or the year ended on that dase.

Basls feor fhpdmion

We comlucted o audit i accordance with the Siandards on Audiding (5As) specified wnder
geriicn 143 10} of the Companies Act, 2013, Une respongibilines enler those Starlards am
[uriher descnbed in the Amiior's Respongibalitiay fow the Audli of the Fingneial Statemems
gaglion of gur repore We ane indapendent of the Compuny in accordance with the Code of
Edhics issued by the Insimtute of Chatersd Accouniants of india tngether with the cthical
requirements that are pelevant bo oor audis of the financia! stutement: under the prodisions of
the Companiey Mgt 2013 and 1l Rules therewnder, and we have fulfilled our adher sthical
responghilities in accordance with these requiremanis end dhe Code of Ethics, 'We believe that
the audit cvidonoe we hove obtmaned 15 2ulhciend aad appropnste (o previde a basis for owr
piRK.

Respansibeliry a1 Manapemmest for Siandalose Fiaaachal Staiemwenis

The Company’s Board of Directons §s responsible r e matiers stoded i seslion [34(3) of the
Campanics Act, 2013 with respest i0 U preparation of ibess standalone finncial satemonts tha
51'.'-1: T I aarul Bur view of the financial poeiice. financial perfarmance, iolal comprehensive
income, thange:s in aquity and cazly ez of the Company in accordance with the Ind A5 and cther
aevounling prissiphes generally accepted in Indiz




K. L. VYAS & COMPANY

) G204 - 2521088 {O)
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Rel. Ma. . Dot -

conclusions are based on the audin evidences obained up to the dats of owr audilor's
rapati. | lowever, funre events ar conditians may cause the Company o Loast to continue
BS 4 ENE CONSEIT.

- Evaluate thc ovesall preseniation. sftowcture snd comlent of the financial siadenvents,
inclyding the dischoswes, and whether (il Gnancial stalegeats represent e underlvinp
Irupsactbons s evends 1103 miaeee i aclvieves Bair pressedalican

L We communicale with s charred with govemanes reparding, amonr other meters,
the planned scopes end timing of the aadit and signiticant asdit findinyes, inclslng any
siecnificant deficiencics in imtemal control thad we idenkify during our sudit.

L) We also provide tose charged wilh povarrance with 3 stargment that we hawve camplisd
with relevanl shical rmequiccments regarding iRdepemdence. and 1o communice with
thenn alil relalinnships and csher matiers that may rcasopably be theught to bear on owr
independence, and whers appliceble, related safeu s,

Report on Oifier Legul aad Krgalntory Heyquirciments

Aa equired by e Comrpanies (Auditer's Report) Urder, 2006, isswed by the Cenlral Govremment
of Imdia io cems of sub-seciton {11) ol secticn 143 of the Companies Act. H1i3, we give in the
“Amexure —A", a latemient o the matters spocitied in paragraphs 3 ond 4 of the Crder, 60 e
extent applicable.

Ay reyuired by Section 19303} af the Act, #we report thi;

(&) We haye sought and obtained all the information and explunatons which o fhe best of our
knowledge wmd belisl wers necessary 08 the pupases of cur awdit.

j&) T owy epinicn, proper books of account gs requined Ly law have becn kept by the Compeny o
far as it appears from oec exarinalion of those books.

fz) The Balance Shewt, the Siatement of Profii and Loss indudinge Otler Comprehensive Tioome,
Eiaternend of Changrs m Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Bepart ave in
agreement with e relevait books ot accound

fefl In o opinion, the aforesaid sundolune Branciadl satements camply wilh dhe hid A%
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Role 7 of the Companes {Acoounis) Rules
2014,

fe} O the basis of the writlen representaions reseived Trom the directors as on 29 Maech, 121
igken cn eecord by the Board of Dirociors, wone of (e directers 1% desgualifed a3 on 30°
March, 34021 from heing appointed 85 s Uirector im enee of Seotion 164 {2) of the Acl,

{f] 'With respest to the sdeguacy of (he internal Anancial controls aver Doancial repedting of e
Compeny and the Gperding effectivencsa of such conirols, refer ko nur scparaie Repon io
" Annesxues B

(@) Wiih tegpoct to the oher maliers 1w be inchided inoihe Audider's Repoe 10 atcordance with
Ruiz 11 of the Componies (Audit and Auditorsy Reles, 201¢, in owr opinisn and o the best af
o Tnformation and aoeonding 6o the e planations given ke us:

S. =

hicl weld impack it financial

i The Company docs aed have any pending litiestisag
position; . RAL
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This responsibility akso includes mainenance of adeqeare ucounling records in aceoedance willy
the provisions of the Act for saftpuarding of the assate of the Eompany and fur preventing and
detecting frawds and miher imepularities; schection and applicalion oF sppropriate sceountng
frolickes; wekime judpments and carimales ihal awe nesongble and prddent; and  desigiy
tmplementaticn and mainienane: of adequide iniemal financiat contesls, thes weee oprmding
effcctively for enswring the securacy apd complotonsss of the accowiting seconds, rebevani o He
preparation and jwessplagog of the Anancial stalemont that give a inpe emd Gur vivwr and aee free
Iroen Mialzrial massiatement, whether due 1o fraed oF coros.

In prepariag the financed saemens, munagement s responsible for aseasaing the Cormpodays
#bility to condinue as a going concen, dischosing. o8 dppliceblz, matters roelstad to going comecm
il using the going conccr besia of accownting wnless enaiageinenl vilker inlinds Lo liguidate the
Compeny of b0 coasc oporations, of has no realisie alemative bal i do s,

Thisz Boand of Dirslors sre also respensible for pversesing the company’s financial soponing
HOCEEA.

Auditnr's Respoasibdilities for the Awdii of ke Finandat Siateiesis

Chr nbjeriives are §o obiain reagonaklc assurance abayg whedhar the figancinl stalemens 33 3
whoile are fres from matesal misstalement, whelther doe ve fraed oF ervor, and 16 fasue an aediler's
report that includes our opinion. Reasnnable assurance is a high kevel of acouranee, bui is nd e
gudrwder thal an aedil conducted 1 accordince with 5As will always detect & rrrenal
misststement when it axiats. Misstaicments can arise from fraud o simor and are concidersd
material if, individuslly or i e Spgrepgale, they could reasonably be sxpeeied do inlleence the
ecompotone dectzhons of users faken on the basis ot these figancial stadements,

As pat of an audit in accordimce with 3hs, we exorise professional jedpiment and aantain
professicnal skepticisny throwe hout the audii. We also:

. Idensify and assess the risks of iiserial missiaigment of the financial siawements, whether
duc to freud ©oF emor, desipn ad pectonn awdil procedues esponsive 10 toase isky, and
chiain adit evidence that is zutiicienl and appeopeiale 1 prory ivhe 2 basts 0v aue opiosan.
The rick of not detecting a matenial missdatement resulliag fcen Tod s bighet thae e
oo resplting o errof, a5 fraed may invalye eollesion, forgeny, inlentronal omissHns,
TRisrepraseeiaiang, oF the ouerride of idarkal comiral,

. Chotain wn understanding of intermal control felcvant o the sadit in order to design audit
provedures thal e spprepeale we e ciecumstances, Lnder saction 14H2HE of the
Companies Aok, 2003, wa are alen responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
compeny has sdequate internal fimaneisl coat mils syslem in plece amd the opending
sffectiveness of such conteals,

. Evaluate the appropriatencss of eccounting podicics used and the mazonableness of
accuuntng astimobss and melated dischosures mede by msnaggencnl,

Conclude oo the appropredene:s of menagemeit's use of the gning concem basiz of
accountng aod, besed on the sudil evidens: sbramed, whether a paperial preenainty
exists related to evends or conditions that may cast sierficert doubl on ihe Coupany 's
ability 1 CORMNME 38 A PG coneenn. |7 we conglude shat 3 material uncertainty exists,
we are roguired [0 deasw atteniion i@ owr suditor's repor 10 the esluced disclasures in the
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I The Company did net have any lane-omn coreragts e leding denvative confracts for
welircdy thete weare aavy malemal forearable 05ses.

f. There werc no armgunds which were reyaiced 6 be tmnsfierred 10 the Investar

Education und Protection Fund by the Company.
For K.E. ¥Y . & Coopaey
Charder
= DOATEHC

Flace of Sigeainre: Indore
Tate: 38" Jene, 2021
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ANNEXUEE -A TO THE AUDITGRS REIMIRY

AMMEXUTtE REFERRED T IN CLALIRE 1 OF REMORT ON QTUHER LEGAL AMD
REGULATORY RBEQUIREMENTS GF GUH RBREMRY OF EYEN BATE T4 THE
MEMBERS OF SAYAN HOTELS (PUNE) LIMITED ON THE STANBALOME IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°F MARCIL, 2921,

(i Swoce the Company does mat l@ve fixed assels, roguirernens ol Paragraph 3017 i3 ot applicable.

(i1} The Company does not hald anx physical inventories, Thes, paragraph 360} of ibe Order is not
applcaids Ly the company.

(il  The Commay his noet grnted ay lsans, secursd and onscoveed 16 Comganies, Grm, LLY or
sy othor party required to be covercd in regisior maintsined under section 189 of the
Companies Acd, 20013,

ol applicabe o e Company.

(i) In cur opinson and vecording to the infomstion fel explinationg given o g, the oompany pas
conipdicd with the peovisions of scction 135 and 156 of e Aet with respedl to ke leans and
inyesimens ixde. The Company has ned given any loans 1o the parties meationsd in Section
183 of the Acy Juring the vear woder review and henee ihe prowizions of Section 185 of the
Conmngaaneies Act, 2003 are nat applicable.

fv}  According io ihe infonnstian and explanations siven 1o ws, the Compamy has not seaepted uny
deposits from the public.

{vi} The Cenivadl Government  hez nak peescribod dor the muinicnance of cost neconds wnder sube-
seotion 1 of secuon 148 of ithe Companes Acl, 2003, fye ouy of fhe services rendered by the
Cotmnpany during the year andor review.

(will (i) Accordiug to the Infommalicn and explanationg given 1o ws and on the basis of aor
examinatien of the recorls of ke comgany, anwunte dalwivdascrusd o the books of oot
in respect of undispated statulory dues including providerd Tond, eniployee” Siace Tnsuranoces,
Togome-tak, Salea tase, custom duty, sorviee tax, coss and wiher maderial siotutory dines have been
regularly deparited during the period by the company wilh 1he ipprepriste sulborites,

Acconding 1o the infmition and explanatians geven e us, wi aadispuied amosnts payable
eespect of provident fund, cmployees” Stele insuranoe, Rcemes ws, wealth @x, sales G,
custaing dury, wealth tax, excise duty and ecss ond ciber malorisl sEtutory doss wene iR amesrs
ag at 31032020 for a perod of mers than s mont b froeey thye dage shev becarne pavable,

(b} Acconding to the infermation and explanatice siven b g, there ar: no makaal dues of sals
tax, income tae, customs duby, wealth tax, oxcise July wd cess which lave not besn depasifed

o accuamt ol aoy dispae.
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(wiiij  The compamy does not have ey [0ans o Tewrevungs foom any [inancial instinstion, hanks,
government ar debenmue lglders duping the period  Aecondiigly, possryph 3vhiii of the Order
is not applicebls.

(==} The Compeny did ot mise any money by way of irdifal public oifer or futher public offes
{ncluding deld instrunzends) duzing the vear. Acesidingly, paragraph il of the Grder ia not
anpl ieabke.

fx} According o the infiemation and gxplmakivns glvon e us, o sd on of by the company has
hean mgticed of peporled during the course ol owr swdil.

(i} According to the mlormalkn and sxplenations given io w= and based o our exairinaton oF ihe
reeaeds of the Compuny, the Company ke nol peic’provided [Ue mangpesial remunerstion
during the yoar ander eview, Accordingly, parsgruph S0k ol the Urder is not applicable.

(=i} o owr opinion snd accomding 16 he elemanon ord caxplensions 2iven io us, dhe Company i3
s i nidhi comnpany. Acconligly, peragraph 30xii) of'she Under i pot applicahle.

(nl)  Accondoe o oshe nlommetion and explanaiioss ¢ivea 1o ws a0 basod of our examination of dhe
recards. of the Company, transactions with 4be reladed povies aie in complisnes with geciiang
177 and 188 of the Acl when: applicable and doluls o - 7 wansactions have boen disclosod in
the financial siatemeesids & requeied by the apg loabls s nimg slandmnds,

{xiv] Aeccording lo the informetion wed meplanations given o e owd based of owr examination of the
meewdz of the Company, e oompany fras mgl mepke cov preleennal allviment o prvats
placemeni of shares o Felly or partly convertib% do™lores ducimez the yenor, and benes
reporting requircenis under clause S0xivi ars gol ceslicable @ the company, and et
commenisd upan.

v Accosding o the infemmation end explaratioas siveinic 0 el busged on owr examinslivo of the
records of the Company, the Company kas nod enteaed jris nan-cash iransactons with direchors
oF persoie conneeied wilh him. Accordingl, aaicee ol 1 3o dhe Order is not applicable.

(rvi)  The Company is noa required 2 be ropistorod widar sou. o+ =5-14 of the Resenve Bank of Indin
Act, 1934,

Haie of Sigualore lodar:
Dede: 28 Juae, 2021
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ANNEXERE —H TO THE AUBTTORS' REPORT

BEFORT OM THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLANSE M OF SUB-
SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 GF THE COMPANTES AL, 2013 (THE ACT™

We fave sudited che imemal financial controls aver Rpancial meporting of Sayaji Hedels (Punc)
Limited {"the Company™} a8 of 31* Mamh, 2021 in conjusciion whh om eadit of the standabane
finangial stolements of the Company fow fhe yesr snded on that date.

tamagement’s Respansi bilisy for Tateroyl Finsecial Controk

The Company’s manigemen! is responsible for esiablishing and maintaining inemal faancial
coelrols based oo the internal comtrol over financial reporting criteria extablished by the Company
considering the csaomtial components of internal controd stated in the Guidanie Motz on Audit of
Inkxtial Fandial Contels over Finencial Reporting isssed by the Instinge of Chanered
Avcoumani of India (“TCAD'). These responsibilities includa the design, implesentation and
maiskenince of adequats inlermal feancial controls that wepe operating effectively for ensuriog the
opderly ond efficiem conduct of s hkincss, incliding adberonoe to company’s policies, the
saleguartlng of s 1esstn, the prevention end detcedion of Gads end smors, the accuramy and
compdeteness of the aciounting reeords, and the Smely preparadicn of relieble finencial infrmation,
s pepuired uoder the Companics Act, 2013,

Aadhors®* Respongibllicy

{g respongibility s (o express an opindion on v Coropanys micrnal financial controls Grer
finangial roporing based on our audil, We conducléed our audil In accordance with the Guidaca
Weote ot Awdl of bidemial Froanclal Conirols over Finsneial Reporting (e “Guidance Moy and
the Standards oo Anditing, issued by ICAT and deamed o be prescribed wider section 143 1) of the
Companics Act, 2013, W the exient applicabde 10 a2 wdit of nemel fnancial coniroTs, ot
applicabie to an amdit of Intemal Fissneial Coolrols amwd, bath issmed by the Tnstihoe of Eharkegd
fweoauatans of Todia, Those Sandaeds and dhe Guidance #ote moquire thad we somply with eihico
reguEréments aod plan and perform the amdit o obtain reasomsble asimnee sbout whetber sdequate
intemal fngncial comrods over finapcial reporling was establishied and maintained znd i such
controls opembed elfectively in all malecial respects.

Our widii wvolves perfonning procederes to obiein sodit svidence aboyl the adequacy of (he
inbernal financial controls syvsiemn ooréy finencial reporbing and their operating effectiveness, Our
sdit of intermnal financial controls pver fAnancial Teporting inctoded otHATning ao underslanding of
ndernal Gnancial conttols over foancial repoting, assessiog the ridk that a makerial weabness exjzis,
and testiog amd evalusting the design and operading ciactivensss of intertol condiol based op 1he
asseaned riak. The procedures ezbected depend on the audiioe’s judgmert, nebiding e awsesserient
oF the riaks of material misstatement of the finengial statements, whether due to feaud or emor,




K. L. VYAS & COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Shop Mo, 2. Il Floor, "Parshwanath Oawa Barar”
8, Hagameshwar Coboay, Udaipur - 313 001

Fef. M.

Cale-
We balieve (hal the audit evidencs wa buve abkrined s suifi cient amd appropviate o provide o basia
for our sudil opi nion on the Company’s intetnal financial cortres sygtern over Anancisl repnting.

Fleanieg of Internal Finuacial Contrals pver Fiowscial Reporting

A company’s inlcmal fosscgd controd over financisl reporting Is 8 procesa desiyned o provide
reasgniable pemmenes regarding the eeliabality of Financial veporting aod the preparatian of Giandal
slabeiremts for exkermal poiposes in acerrdanee with generally aecepted socounting principles. 4
cotopany's intemal Bnancial conirol over Frsancial mmporing incledes those poficies and procoduwees
that {1 pestain to the mainteirnce of rocords that, in reasanable deil, zeorately and faldy nreflact
thie aneactions and dizpositions of ihe askets of the company; {3) provide masonable ssurance (hal
bansachons are reGonded a8 necsssary to ponmit preparation of fmencial staterments i accondance
willt gertal |y accepled accoundng principles, and ikl receipis and axpendiowes, of vhe cobipany are
being pade only dn sceoedenics with anthorisations of manegement and directars of the company;
il {3) provide masonable assurance tegerding prewendion or tmely dolection of wahorisad
acyuisition, use, of disposition of the company’s amels thel could have 3 machal affect on the
Enancial stalemcmts.

Isbarent Limsatiens of Internal Fisauacial Cosirol Over Finaoncial Reperttap

Becasc of ihe inhered limitalons of irtemal finarcial contrals over {inaocial reporting, including
the phssibility of collosion or Jmproper managemenl orewide of contols, material misstalemenis
due 1o eeror o frawd nsiy ooow and nol be detected. Abeo, prgjections of ety evalustion of the
merhal Goandial controls over fnancial ceporting do fisors perinds e subpect 16 the ek that the
Imiemel financial comrod over fnencial roponting may becotnt inadequaic bocause of changes in
condithong, of el the degie of compliance with the policies or procedures may deferiombs,

Dpinica
In our opinden, the Company has, i 6l matorial espects, an adequare micrnal fnancial controis
system over Bnancial reporting and such intemnal ficangid contrcls over Mnancial mporfing were
opeqating effectively 8 st 31 Match 2021, based on the interal contrel over financial 7eporting
crietin established by the Compoy considering the essential components of internal contral siaed
Im the Guidance Wote on A edit of intermal Finsneial Conrefs Over Financial Repocting istusd bry the
Insirule of Chartered Accousiants of India,

Flace of Slgeatere; indnre
Date: 287 Jupe, 2§21

UIRN: 214025684 44 A NS

0294 - 2521083 {0
24141 68167 {M;
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A. Reporting entlty

Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited (the “Compeny®), is a company Lncorpotaced [ Ind i@ on
1k bay 2008 and Hmbted by shares [CIN: B55204TH 20 18BLC122599). The address
of the Crmpany's remagerad affice ks (C2F), dn Siva Vel Apart menr, Mo, 2 Alagappa
Mazear, Zamin Pallavaram Chennai TH 00117 [N. The Company is primarkly engeped in
rhe business of owning, eperating & managing hatels,

B. Basts of Peeparalion

Theoue stapdwlons [inancial statements are prepared on seorwal basis of acoown g
and ecampiy with ehe Indian Accouating Standarde [Ind AS) notlfed onder bhe
Compaities  (llion  Acmanling  Siandaeds)  Rales, 20015 end  selbeequent
emend ments thercto, the Companics Act, 20013 [to the exicnt nobificd and
applicabla], applicable provzlons of the Companles Act, 1956,

1. Basts of measurement;Hse of Estlmates
These Ananclal statemenis heve been prepared wnder the historical cos conven tion
on aucrual basls vxoept cortain fnancal lnstruments messured of B value othes
than those wikh carrving amounts that are reassnablc app rocimation s of FuE wilees

Falr valwe bs the grice that wiould be received oo seil an asied or pald Lo transfer a
Hability in an orderly transacton between markse participants 31 the micasurerens
date.

Tha preparatkan of flmanctal statements requlres Jadgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amonnt of amsets and liabilitieg, dsclosure of
cunalingee! liabilites on tie dage of e Arancial statements and the reportcd
amount of revenwes and expenzes during rhe reporting ravind. Difference betwezn
the actual results and esimates are recogrized in the peeiod in which the resilrs
are known! materiolized. Major Estimates ave discessed In Pag I

2. Fuanctional and preseniation cormency
Thess fnanclal statements are presented in [ndian Bupees [INR)L which is the
Company’s functional currency. Al Rnanciad information peesenied in IRE B heen
rounded to the nearest Iakhs {up to pero daclmals), excupt a5 seated oLherwise,

C. Eignifiant sernunting podicies

A summary of the significant sccounting policics applisd in the praparallen of the
finzncial statements are as gives briews, Thess pudountivg pofleles have been spplicd
congistently to all periods presented in the flnancial statemeis.

1. Current and non-corrent dlagsication
The Company prescats assers and lisbilitiss In he balanee sheet based on
onrrenl/non-current o assilication,
An assol Is current when /i




= Experied to be reallzed or intended be gold o consumed in normaal operating
orole;

=«  Heid primarily for the pu rpose of wrading;

» Expected o be reallzed within teeaive imengls afies (e ceporsing perled; o

» Cash or cash eqoivalent unlese resoricted from heing evchanped oF used o ssttle
a iiabllity for at least tweive momths after the eeparbing period,

All othar asseis are clazsified 3= non-marrent

A Ll s current whe:

+  Uis expectad 1o be seiled In nortnal oprerating croke;

= It is held primarliy for the purpnse of trading;

+  itis due bo be sattied within twelve nranths afteg the reporting pericd; or

+= There iz no unconditional right to defer zetement of the liabitityr far at leas:
tvrelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are cassifizd &5 nur-cwrronk.

Deferredd tak ascets /liabilitles ave dassified a5 non-curcent
2. Praperty Plant & Equipment

Z1.Initdal recopniton and messercmcet

An item of property, piant and equipment recopnized a9 an aszet if and only if it is
probadble that fegute economic benegits asgociated with the Retm will New ko the
company and the cosk of the itemcan be measured reliably.

Iterns of Property, Piant and Equipinent pre measured at cost less accumualated
depreciation famortization a0d scuumeliked Irmpabrment losses. Cost indudas
cxponditure that is directly atiribotabde w bringlng the aszzet, borrewring cost,

inclusie of aon-refundable bakes & dutiss, to the location and candition neccssary
Eur Ix ra be capabde of nperating In the manner intended By management.

Wrhen parls of an iem of propecny, plaat and equiprent have differeat wsciul Lives,
Finey are recomnimed separately.

iberns of spara parts, stand-by eguipment and soEdicing equigment whick rmeet the
definktion of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalizod,

2.2 Subscguenkensts
Subseguent expendibire |2 recognized 38 an InCrease in the carrying amgunt of the

asgel when It 15 probable that Future ecenamic benelits deriving frgm the cast
incyurred wil fAow to the caterprise and the cost of the ilern can be wessured
reliahby.




The enst of replacing part af a0 e of propeery, plal 29d eqalpment b5 recod akzed
in e carrynng simaoet of the e if i ls probadsle thaoche Tuters scansmic benefics
ambadied within the part will 8ow to the Company and [ts cost can be measared
reliably. The carrying amecint of the replaced part ks derecognieed. The costs of the
day-torday sevvicing af Prapercty, Phant and Equipmeal are recogeized in profil er
loss &5 incurred,

2.3. De-recepnition

Froperty, Plant and Equipment are dereeagnizad when ne future sconamle henafits
are expectad from their use or upon thelr dizpess. Cains and lozses on dlzpesal of
an item of property, plant and cguipment are detcrmined by comparne the
procesds from dispasal with the carrying amount of property, plant and cquipmont,
and are recogalzed i the statemend ol prodic end loss,

2.4 Depredaton/amorbzatdon

Depreclaclan lg recoproned in praft of Ine? an o Wetmen Down Valee Method sywer
the estimaced wsefol liver as preccribed in Schadula || of Compsnies Act, 2013 of
£ach part of an item of Property, Flane and Equipment Leasehold lands are
amoitized over the lease torm wnless it is ceasonably cockain that the Cempany will
obtain owacrship by the cnd of the lease term.

Aszets consbructed on lessed premises are depreciated famortized over the lease
periced.

Depreciation g additlyes tufdeluciions e Tzed asgets during e yoar 15
chargsd an peo-rara Bagia fromfen e the dage o which the azzer 1= avallakle o
nsa fdispesed.

Where It 15 probakle that feare econormie Berelils deriving feon the oost |neorred
will flawr fo the enbeijprge snd the st of the Hern can be nmeasused roliably,
subsequent expendibiee cn 3 PPE dloag-with 105 wndiorlzed depreciable srmount L=
eharged off prospectlvely owver the revised wzeful life determined by technical
ASEEESIENL

In drgumsiance, where a property i@ sbandaned, the copulaiive caplialized coss
refating to the properdy are written off 1 the szme perhd.

3. Capiizl werk-in~proprass

The onsi of self-constiucted assets imludes the cost of materials & direct Izbeuc, any
gether costs divectly attribuealie to benging the assets to the locaban and eondibon
necessary for It ko be capable of operating 1 the manner Intended b managzement and
borrewing oaske,

Espeicies divecty amributable o comstivcaion of progerry, ant and equipmens
Ircteresd Eill they ame pesedy dgr chelr InTended wse are adentdfled and allecated om =
mysiematle hass on the cost of related asseis.

Doposit worksfeost plug contracty ar an:uuniﬁi Mok ap the hagic of stofenants o
accounk received from che contraco =




4. Ineangihle assed and incangible assets ander develd prent

4+.t. Inldai recoguition and measurensnt

An intanglble acsat 2 yecogalzad i gnd saly iEa is proballs that the cxperted Rabere
econrib benefiis that ace atiributabie to the @ssct wAll Bow oo the company and the
coaf af ghe gsset gan be ipenswred fel bl y,

Intanglble assets that are acquared by e Conpany, which have linlte yselal [ives,
are recognized af cost. Subseguent messurement iz dome 8% coet less accurnolated
amortization and sccomuletcd impairment lessse Cost Indudes any dieectly
atrributable ligidental cxpenses necossary to meke the asscts ready for itz intended
L

4.2 Sphsequeq | cosks

Fubsequent expenditore is recegnizad as an increasa in the Srrying amownt of the
nssal when 11 s prabable that future coonomic benefits deriving frem the cost
incwrred will flowr b the enlerprice and the cost of the Rem can be measurcd
rediakily.

4.3, Daer ecognitish

An intangible asset is derecopnizad when ne future economic Benefite are exgpested
from thoir vsc or upon thekr disposal. Cains and bosses or disposal of an itlcm of
intanghle aszets are determined by comparing the proceads from disposal with the
carrying amount of intangiblc asscis and are rerognized in the smremont GF profit
and foss

4.4, Arvorizacoen

intangible asseks having deflnite e ace amuctized on Writlete Doswn Value nigthod
in their useful ves Ussful Life of computer sodtésins i3 estiimated at five years. I e
of any imtangille assetr is indelinive chen B0 15 Ao pawerdzed and tested For
imipairment ak the reporting dale

Borrowid ng Cost

Borrowring  costs thae  ame diescily  afribambde to the  aequisibion,
canstruction fexploratien; devoloprwnl or eemcthon of qualifying seseds are eapizalized
as part of cost of such asset untd such tims the aseeis are substantially ready For dheir
imtended wse, Qualify g ossels are agsets which take a aubstantial pericd of time to get
rewly for their inténaded ase o sle, Capiwlizatlon of Bosrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activitice oecessary o prepere the gualifiing sssete for their
intended uses ace compleie,

Al other borrowAng costs are eharged to revenue 32 and wheén inadrmsd,

Borrawing sosts condist of [2) interest eapense caleolatad wsing the effeckive interest
method a5 Jeseribed in lnd AS 109 - 'Financial nstruments” |} linance charges in
respect of finance leeses recognlzed io accordznce with Lod AS 17 - "Leases’ () exchange
differsnees aviging Fam Forelgn cutrency hamrowings to the catent that they ag
vegarded as an adjustneent be inberes: cgfiaifatidhather costs that an eotity incuws in

e e e

e e e
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connection with the borrpwing of funds, oiwe smirned e emporary iovestment of the
borrowings pending thelr sxpendicyre an tha qualifving assers s deducted from the
barrowing costs eligibla for capitalization

Investment |n Yulisidlary, Adsoddate & [olot Yenbare

These ara Company’s Separabe Financlal Statenents Cotnpany has opted to show
invesoments in Subsidiary, Assodates & jolst YVeolure 30 o5t Dividend frem these is
recoenizeod as and wihen right B receive |2 astablshed.

impainaent loss |5 recipdnided a3 per [nad A% 26
loveniores

Inwentorles are valued 2t the lawer of cast and net realizabils value Coer Inclad es ooer of
purchase, enst of gunyersion and sLker costs inourred in bringing the smrentorias ta theer
presemt loeathn and cowdition, Cost ig deteomined on Weighted Average Basis, Costs of
purchased Inveatery are degermined after deduetieg rebates snd Jdisceunts. Mot
reallrahle valwe |5 the extimated seling prive in the ordinary course of business, less
eslimanted cosls of completion and Lhe esti mated costs pocessanry [0 make the sale

The diminnlion in the value of ebselete, unsardceable and surplus stores & spares is
ascertained on review snd pravided for,

Cash amd Cash Eguinseient

Cash and cach equbzalent In the balance sheer comaeise casiv ar banks and cagh on hand
aid short-(erm depostis with an origina watunty of thoee mooths o loes, which sy
Fubs|ect tor hagbanl fesnt nizk of change in vialue,

Governmmeni Grants

Govrernment pranis that compensate the company for the cost of asset are recognlzed
inllally as deferred come whese there |5 reasonable assurance Chal Lhey will be
received and the Company will cemply with the canditions essaciated with the grant and
are ecognized o profis or [oss or a systemativ baviz aver Che waefl B of ehe nelated
As=et, Orants that compensate the Company for meponses incurrsi arg resaenided per
the pericdd o which the related costs ace incwrred and are deducisd Trom the mlared
CEXPENsas.

10, Previsions aid contingeni Jabilities and Contingent 255245

& provisiun is recoegnized UE as a cesult of 2 past event, the Compary has 3 pressel el
i rrasrareTive olaligagion risat can he estirmated reblably, snd 15 s probzhle dat an
ik ilcva il mesinarmie beneling will be regabrad Lo ssrtie the abligation. i the effect of the
time value of monay |5 material, provislens are determimed by discounting the expecbed
Future cash flosee ab & pre-Eak pate that reflects currend merker as2essmente of the time
valug of minkey and ke visks speclfiic to the [y, When discounting is used, the
Increaze In the provision dus ta the peasage of time |5 recegnized a5 3 Ainance cost,

The anwunr rergdiilfed A5 3 (3 ovislen 18 the best estimate of the consideration requized
o gelibe the present obllgatinn af reporting aare, ok ain acenunt the eraks and
Wt noles dureannding the obligation Faihe £ 0%

K10
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11.

When soine or all of the econambe baoefing vaguired 1o seilhs a provizien are cxpocied to
be pecovered from a third parry, tee cecelvakle b recngaized 35 an ascet if i @ virtuaily
ceredin Hhat reimbursement whll be received and the amount of the cecercphie Gin be
measured reliably. The expange relating o a provigion 15 preseatesd o the Stateseni ol
profit and loss oet of any reimbursement

Contingenl 1abilities are possible obligations that arlse lram past events and whase
exlstence will only be vonlirreesd by thie secuorenee or nen-ooccurrence of one sr mare
future events nat wholly wishin the coprrok of the Compary, Where it iz net probable
that an owtfow of economic besefits will be renuiced, or the amount ¢apnet be
estimated reliably, the obligatlon i disclosed 15 a conbivgent Dahillgy, wnless the
prabability of outflow of econombe benefits Is remote. Contingent labillkles are disclosed
on the basis of judgment of the managementfindepandent experts. These afe revlewed
al ety baloove shest dote and s adlested W refl oot the curreat managcment eslimate.

Contlngent azsets are posailie aszers that arlse frore past evenls ad whoss ecaisl=ecs
will be confirmed only by the coocurrence or nop-oocurmence of one or more wneert3in
Furure events nob wholly within the el of the Company. Doatiegent azpets ae
disclesed in the finencial statcmients when infleowr of cconomic bencfits is probakle on
tha hasls of judgment of manageimens. These Jre aisegged conllagaiy Lo aesups vt
dovelopments are appropriately rellectzdin the linancial statcments,

Foreln currency transaciens 3od translatbioo

Transactlons n ferelgn correncies are Initially recarded at the functional suirancy spot
Tates at the date the transacticn first quallfics for recogn It on.

sMenetaey adwets and Liabilitiss denomiretsd in foreice surrencins are translueed ar the
iundtivaal curreney spot rales ol éxclienge a1 the reporieg date, Cachomge Jillarenges
Ariging o sebrlepeent or rrangdation of meonaga ey [Eeeng e peeomgeed o prodit or lag Ta
the year ia which [T aniges

Hon-monetary ivems are measured in terms of historical ozt in 3 fereign cerrancy are
itansiated using the cachanao rebe at the date of the transaction,

1L Acvenwc Recognition: =

Effechve April 1, A8, te Company adopisd b A5 115 "RBevenus from Coaliscs
wilh Casboress™ which introd aeea the fivestep model dessevibed as inllonss: -
Ldentify the conact with a customer.

ldentiFyr the soparaie performance obligations in Bwe conbract

Deteroline tha oDansaction Price.

Allocate the franasction price 1o the saparato porfermance cbligations.

Revimmaize vevenws when {0r 85) sich pesicrasoe ablipabion o satialflad.

L e

Revenue from oparations:

The Compuny dedves sevopues primandy from sade of moows, food and beverages,
altied services refading to hotel operations sach a5 mamegement fos fr daw
marrgeesent of the hokebs,

Revenue is recognized upon transter of contrul of promised prodducks or seovjoes to
cugbiameees ine af  amdnnib Bhal eeflects the comvsideralion we -E-rpe-:t fo peceive in
exchange for thosa prodects or seTvices. =




The Cenpa iy frrvssiks sevasrtmed et of imdiredt boess in skafement of Proft and Loss,

. Itade receivakles and Conrtrack Dalzmees

The company recugnises coniract 355818 an an gniaunl =quals 1o Censideration mlabed
tor gioed s scud services already transberoed o rustemens when the tght to receive such
vunsickerativn is conditioned npon something other than passage of Hie.

Unecmadafrvmaal right ¢ receive consideretion are recognised as brade receivable.

Trale meoeivable and conbact assats are aubject I impairment ai per ind AS 1R
‘Finamcial instruments’.

The wmpany recognkas amount afready received froam customer against which
transter for goods and services are nod made as contract liahilary,

Interest Income

For all Liogagial iestrumests osesured b amortized cost and  inhosst-bearing
financial aseets classitied os fair value through other comprehensive incoma, interese
livewnied i9 pevndex] wding Hie effechive interesk rate (EIR} The B[R s the miv tht
exiscty distmunks the vstimaied future cash receipts over the expected life of the
Hnancial instrument ar a sharler pericd, where appropriale, 1o the net careying
amount of the finandal asset When calonladng the effectve interest rate, the
Company estmates the expecied cash flows by considering all the confractual terms
wf the Goencial instrument {for sample, propayment, sxbmsion, call amed similar
options) but does nok consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is includod
o Atlsaw Ircgamie |y Hie sbabement oF prrabiE or loms

CHv e d
Crivisdeendd Tneoam is rexongnizesd when the I:ijpan;_.":.' nght $a revedve s establishad
wihich generally eccures when the sharsholders approve the dividend.

13. Employerc Bene s

131, Short Term Boeneiht
Short-term empleyes henefit obligations are missured on an ooigcouated basis
and arc cxpensed as the relater] servive is prosid ed

A Hakilizy iz recognized for the amouni capectod to be pakd woder performands
iredabed pay IF che Cowmpany has a prezent legal or consiructve obligation to pay this
SMeUnE 35 4 result of past servies provided by the empleyce and the chligatien van
ke estimabed rellably,

13.2.  Posi-Employment benefits

Employgee bencfit shal are payable afer the completinn of eneployraent are Mast-
Employmient Beossdit fof hor thah terminathon henefit]), These are of o Crps:

13.2.1. Defined tondribution plans

Deflred contdbubon plans are those plass in which an entity paes lized

contrbution into separate encbes and will have ne logal or copstructive abligatian

b i3y further smncuats. Prowdent Fund and Employoe Statpfrptasnfaare beliow
# ;

4 b
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Cortribubon Planz dn which company pays a Bxcd contibution and il have np
furthor cbligption

13.2.2. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefic plan is a post-employment benefil plaa oiher than a defined
contcibaetion plan,

Company pays Gratulty 3z per provisions of e Gty Aol 1972, The Company's
net pbligation in respec of defimed Lensit plans i3 valculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of fetare Bepeft that enploress bave carmed in
teturn for thair satvice In the ciervent and prioc perlods; Lhak behedit |2 disceunted
to determing ks present vaee. Any unrecoprized past service costs ang the Rir
walue of aby plat azsets arc dodwucted. The discount m@te 1s bazed oo the prevaiilng
tarker ¥lalds of lndian government sequrikles Bs at the reparting date that have
matuney dakes approsimacing tive {erms of the Cosnpany™s obilizadiens and that are
dencroineted in the zame overency in which e henefleg qee expecied pe be pald,

The calculaton bs performed annwal by By o gualifisd suivary wsing the projected
unlt credit medhed, When e calcublon pesults it 2 lability to the company, the
prezent walue of llaballty |2 recognized as pepnision [or Parploves Benofit, Aay
actuarial gains ot losges arae recognized an OCH in the pariod an which they arlse.

Long Term Employee Benefit

EBenefits wnder the Lompeny's leave sameshmont constitute other lsng term
employes benefips

Leave Encashment is determined basod om the available lcave cntitlement ot the
cnd of the wear.

14.Income Taxex

Income tax cxponse compriscs cewent snd deferred tax Current tax cxpensc is
recogelzed in proflt or less except to the extent thal it relales Lo ileng reeognlzed
directly I8 uther sumprehenshe incoeng o cQuity, in Which meg | i reoognized in Q]
ar eguiry.

Cutrent tx s the exprored [ax payable on the wasable eome for ihe year, ysing b
rates enacted or substantively erached and as applicahle ar the reporipg dats, and any
Adjustmant 10tk payable it tospect of pravigus years. Carrent ancome taves are
recaptized under “ineeme ke payabla' pet of paymenks on acoclnt or wnder “Tax
rageivables' wiiepe cheis is b debit balanee

Deferred kax Is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing [OF bem porary
diffcrences betercen the cammying amounts of asseis and iElivies for Neancial reparting
purpases and the amoents used for (axation perposes, Defeced By i measured at the
Ly rakes that are svpected to be apnlied to temporary differences when they reversa,
based o the laws that bave besie enacted or sabstantovely anacted by the reporsEng
date, Deferried tax aasets and llabilitles are offzet IF there Ig a legally enforceable right b
affset cerrent tax liabilities and assets, dnd they melite to Inaome taves lovied by the
s tad authority on the same (axable sublty, or on different tax entities, buat they
Brbesmd 1or seelle curesne fax liabiltkes and 33sets on o net basids or their @x assats and
hizhibdies val he realized simuolaneously.




15,

16

Deferred E3x 15 recegnized in prosk oF less except te the oxtent that E relales W liemns
recogn lzed directly In CCL or equity. io which cage it is recopnized in QC1 oF eduity.

A deferred e asset 5 recognlzed te e extent that It Is probable that future taxable
pinflis wiil be avallable against which the iemperany difference can be wiilized. Deforred
e a55els are reviewed ae each reporeing date and are reduced o ehe ex3ienk that it is g
Towger peobable that the related tax Beneflt will be cealized.

Addivional income twees that arige Mrom the ditrbution of dividends ar recognized st
e same &l mie LRzt tee Liakiliny o pay The ielated dividend 5 reengnized.

Leases As Lesser
Accuul ling for fiaande leages

Leazes of Property, Plank and Equepment whore the Cormpany, 33 lossee hos sy botam iy
all rizks and rewsrds of pownership are classified az finanee lease DR il reeogntan,
azsers held ynder Migaoce leases aes Fecorded a2 Propeity, Plant apd Eauipmant and the
rielated liakiliny is regognized usder bortowings. Atenception of the lease, finance leases
dre recorded ab amounts equal fo the falr value of the lcased assct ar, if lower, the
present value of Lhe miniinotn leage payments, Minimem Tease paynients made under
Madie bemses de apporticned betwesn the finance expense and the reduction of the
wulstnding Yiakdhivy,

Acrountiog for operating k:ascs

Leazes in which 3 sigmaficant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are n
transferred ko the Company as lessoc ar cleagifivd pg operting iesse. Fayments made
nnder opersting | eases are recoprited ag 0o expeate over the leaze term.

. Impairvment of Mor-Financial Assets

The varrylng ameogneg of the Company™s non-financial assets are resiewsd al earh
peporting daee on determine wheth er there 12 sny indication of impairment considerieg
the prowsions of ind A3 36 ‘Impalrment of Assets’, [ aav sweh Indivanion exists, then e
axget' s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recovurable arount of an asset or eagh-genarating unic ls the higher of its fair wilue
less cngng to digposal and 112 value in wse [n asessing value in use, the enlmaled falure
gash Qows ave diseounted 4o their prasent value using 2 pre-tax disceunt rels thag
rellects cuirent markes assesanents of the sime valus of moner and the risks specille o
the asset. For the purpose of Impairment testing a=sets ol capwon D ested
lsdtdualiy are gooped together tnio the smallest group o assels That generates £ash
Iaflews fooim continuing usa that are largely independent «f Lhe esh inflews of other
asgety or groape of aesets (the “rash-generating umit’, or *CLU"),

An impairment losy is cecngnired il the carenng ameunt of ae 3ssct or its COU creoesds
its estimaled recrderalile amount Impaiement losses are recognlzed in profit o logs.
Impelrme et lusses recogaized in respect of COUs are recuced from the carcying aeou als
ol goodwill nf that €0L 1 F any and than zhe assets of the COH

Impairment bosses reengniczed (o petor penods are assessed 34 each Teporting del- e
any indicitiens thut the ligs has decreasad or no longer exists An impairment logs is
rewersed I there has boen 5 change im the estimates usesd b detersine the recaverable
amount An [mpairment loss is reversed oaly to the nilent that theeegar's camnng




7.

amount does not exceed Ehe carmydng amound that waald hiave been delenmlacd, et of
depreciation er amartization, if ne Impairment lo=s had hese recogibead,

Uperating Seguwents

In accardance with Ind AS 103 - Operating Segments, the operaking segments used io
present seamant formatton ae¢ identified oo the basis of internal reparts used by the
Company's Managcmoot to allocate resouerces to the segments &nd asseas their
performmacs, The Evard of Directors is oelloctively the Company's ‘Chief Operating
Declplan pMaker or “COLDM within Lhe meaning of lod AS 108, For management purpsss
company ls organlzed Inkg major epersiing sctivily of Bodeling in Indix The indiaters
used for intermal reporting purposes may evolve In connestion with performandce
ANSESSMANT MEdsuTes pat in pace

13. Divldends

Divid ends aad interim dividends payable to a Company’s sharcholdeors are recognized as
changes In equity in the period Ui wirleh they are approved by the sharcholders” mecting
and the Baard of Ul recior vespectiyvely

19, Matstl Poior Period Errors

Material prior pericd errars 2re commected retraspectheely by restaang the camparailve
amounts for the prior perleds preasented in which the error occucred. §F the ercar
acrurred before the eadiest prler pericd presented, the opening balances of aszets,
ikabilities and equity for the eariest prior pertnd presented, are restaked,

Z0. Extniggs Por Shanc

21,

Basic eamings per equlty share 1z compuied by dividing the net profit or loss
attribuiable to equity shareholdors af the Company by the welghtod average number of
aquity shares sutstanding during the Ainancial year.

Giloted earnings per oquily share is competed by divBdiceg e wet profic o Toss
aifribacabile v equity sharehalders of the Copopany by the weighted average number of
equity shaves consldered fr dedving hasic earmlngs per equity share and also the
wwilzhted average oumber of equity shares that could have been issued UponR CenYyEr=0n
of ail dilutve potantial equity shares

Shabameagt oF Cash Flows

Srarernicnd of cash fews iz prepared in accordance wirh the indirect mothod prescribed
in Ind AS-T “Stement of qask Huws,

22, Financizd insbrumen ks

& Tiatwial instrornsnk is 2py cortract thag glyes rise to a financial asset of one entlty and
a financlal Habdlity ar equiky lmskrament of another engiby.

L Fitatcial assets

initzl recoonibien amvd measurament

AN Anancial assats are recognbzed initisily at fair value plus or minos, in the case of
financial osscts eot recorded af Tair walye throwgh profit or loss, transaction costs

T — e ——r e ——




Subsequent neasurament
Db astrements at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the sraortized onet of both the falleadnp
conditions are met:

[#] The assct is held withio a Business model whose sbjectve is to hald aszeks for
codlesting coneractual cash Aows, and

b} Contrecial teems of the asset glve rize on ap=cified dates tocagh Tiniws that are
solely payments of princlpal and interest (SFPI} on the principsl smaounk
mtseaiing.

Alter Loitial meeasursinent, such fleancial assets are subsequenthy measured ak
amaortlzed cost wang the EIE method. Apwrglioed cost i3 calcalatod by taking into
decount any diseiunt oF pramiyin on acquigitlon #0d feez oF cests that are ao
inkegral part cf the EIFL The EIR amordzation |2 1neluded [n Bnance Income In Ehe
profit er loss. The los=es srizing from impairment are recegnized In the prafe or
luss This catocgpry perceally applics 1o trade and other recevablos,

Dbt ingtrumeni ag FVTOC] (Fair Valoe dyroupgh OCT}

£ debt instrument’ is dassificd a5 at the FYTOCH I both of the lllowing critcria s
ERbEL:

[a} The abjectve of Eba buslnass model 1= schievad both by colleching conraetual
cash flows and selling the financiat assets, and

(] The azgat's sentractual cash flewse represant SEF

Dabt msbrureents ncuded widin the FYTOG catepory are mengueed el tally az
well a2 a3t each reporting dage at falr value, Fair value move ments are recognized i
the 1. However, the Company Tecopnizes infcresk income, impatrment losscs &
reversals and forelgn exchange gaia oc loss in the profit and less, On devecoenition
of the asset, cumulative paln or loss previeusly recuveniced im OCH is reclassified
from the aguity to protit and toss, Interest carned whilsr Biodding FYTOCE debr
insorument |2 reparted as inkersst income wsinz the EIR mothosd

Dehtinnrument at FVTPL {Fair valus through profit or lossj

FYTFLis a residual catspory for dobt instretoents, Any debt instrupnen!, which does
ot mcet the criferia for ¢atoporigation a3 of amortized eoat gr ox FUWTOCO, is
clagsified a9 ot FYTEL

In aldion, the Company may slecl Lo doggify a debl insoument, whidh stherwlze
magks amortzed cost or EVTOCE criteria, 25 at EVTPL, Hawewer, such election 13
allowed anly IF doing o reduces or eliminates 3 MEasUEement or Pecogn thon
inconsieteqcy (referred fo 55 ‘accounting mismarch’). Deht nstromens neluded
vwithin the FYTPL catogoey are moasurid ag Gelr value with ali changes recogmized in
thec pendik 2nd loss,

Egmity Investments

All aquily lwedtments in entltles ather than subsidianics and joing wentuees are
measured at fair value. Eqult} ms:rumenr.s which xre held fm' H‘Ellzllng urE l.i.:ﬁ:uﬁEﬂ




same either az 4 FYTMI| or PVTPL. The {ompaay makes such electen on an
instrument by Insrrumene haziy, The classification 12 made oa inivial recognitlen and
iz irveyueable,

If the company deeides tno clasgify an eqpuity instrument az st FYTOCL then all {aic
value ehanges on the instruments, cxcluding dividends, are recognited in the OCL
There |2 na recyeling of the amounts from 0C) to PEL, even an sale of invesiment.
However, the company inay e sfer oumuelative gain or o within the equity,

Equily instrunents Incfuded within the FYTPL caregoy are measored st fair valee
with all ehangad récognited in tha proficand lags,

Equity [nyestments in subsidisries and polnk e iitared am miasired a8 cost,
De-recognition

A Rnanclal asget (or, whare opplicable, » part of & fAnancid amset o pert of »
Company of similar financlal assees) i primarily derocognized (Lo, remaved from
the Company's balance shear) when:

= The rights ti vecel ve vash lows frum the asaex have avplred, or

¢ The Company hay teanaberred [t clghts b rucibvr cagh Mews from the assct or has
aggu e an obilfgalion to pay the recoived cash Aows wn Rill wathout material delay
o o thivd porty wnder 2 ‘pasythrough’ arrangement; and either (a) the Coumpany
has transferred substantially ol (he rigks and rewards of the assob or (b) dhe
Company har neither wransferred aor rétained substantially all the risks and
ravedrds of the aset. but has tranafermad sanbeol e tha pyaet,

hapairment of fnanciad asels

in accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credip M (BEL)
trigedel for messurement and eooenbbon of impairment lass an the Follewrng
financial assets and credit risk axposura:

« Financlal azsetc that are debt instmuments, aud are preasyeed 31 atngrlised eesr
.. Inans, debt securikles, deposits, trede receivables and bank balance

¢ Trade receivables or pny conbractual fght o reegive dash o another finandsal
asset thao result fon eranszcLion s U aee within ehe scope of dnd 25 115,

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition o impairment foss
alirsatce o

Tradr receivebles oF contract zssats resulting from transactions vwithin the scope of
[rcd A% 115, if deer do mok conkain & stgnificant Brapdeg companient

= Trade recelvablas or oontract aggeds resulbing from transactlans within he seope
ef Ind A% 115 that yntalp 3 gignl ficont Anan cing cow pougnt, if die Comgany spplaes
practlesl expedieni to lgnoce separation of tine valoe of noney, and

The applicetivn of simplified appréach does it eeguelre the Company o back
changes in crodit fisk, Rather, 0 eeco2nizes impelriment loss allowspee baged an
Hfatime ECLs pt each reporilog date, vight Frong s hgbtal pecogy thor,

For respgnition of impairawnt [0us on ather findncial assetd and risk exposere, the
Company determines that whether there has brem a sienificant increas: in the




inoith BLL i5 vsed oo provide for impeirment losz. Howeser, I credil rigke lias
increased dgnpificanty, lifedme ECL iz used [F in 2 subsequent period, credit gualley
ed the instrument Improves such that shers 13 nu loorer a significant incraase in
eredit pisk sloce initial recogniden, then the entity coverts to recegnizlng
impairment lo23 allowiande baged on 12-moeth ECL

Financizl liakilitics
lnitial rerognition and measoreme st

Al Nuancial abillties are revopnieed av {2ir value and ie casc of loans, ne: of
direstly ambraclle cust, Fees of necoering naleer are dircctly recopnized In the
Statement of Proft and lLass as flnance cost,

Sehsequenl measinsaent

Finzncial liabllities are cartied ai amorelzed cost using the effective interest methed.
Amartized cost 18 aleulared by raking into ACcount any 3iEOURE BF PrermiLim sn
sequiattian and any material tran2acticn (hat are any Inbegeal part of the FIR. For
trade and ather payables makuring withln ene year fram the balance shest dabe, the
coreging amownts approsimate fie vplye doe b the shaet inpqyrity of these
Inseruments,

Derags mition

A feapocial lisbiicy is dererognized when the obligation under the liakilice iz
discharged or cancelled or cxpires, When an existing firanceal liabilis: is coplaced by
another from fhe same lender oo sobstaptially differsae terms, o the feenng of an
existing llabll gy are substantially modifled, such an exchange or modificatlon s
treated a8 the derecognitioa of the original hidhelliw and the recognition oF 2 new
ligkhlicy. ‘I'he difference in the respechive canmng amaunts is recognized in the
stateipenl of prafit oF lase

B. Major Estimates made in prepa fing Fidaadal Salemends

tgefal e of property, plant and equipment

The extimated warlul life ol projperty, plaot aied equipeneal is based on & number of
factocs includine: the effes of obsolescence. demand, owapetiton and other
econom|c factors (such as the stabillty of e ldesyy and known tech nologlcai
advances] and the b=l of awintenance emenditures requlred o obtain the
exphabad farara eash flaws iram the srset

Uschul lite of the azsets cther than Plasg and machinery are in secordance with
Schedule U of the Companics et 2014,

The Cormpany revlews sk the and of each reporting dste the gseful life of property,
plank and equlpment, and are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Post-employynenl heashil plans

Emplovee henclit obligations are measuecd no the hagiz of actuainial assemprions
which include mertalivy amd withdyawal pates 35 well 53 assumpEons Cenccming
feture developments i discewal rates, the rate af salary ingreases and the intladan
rute. The Company congicl ery that the assumptions used pefimgimg its obligations

W

.1




are appropreete and documen (ed, Hewever, any changes in thess assumptions may
have a material Impact on the resulting calen | ions.,

« Fravisinng and coniingenches

The assazsments undertaken in racognizing provitions and contingencies have baan
made in accordance with Ind AS 37, 'Provigions, Centingent Liabilites and
Contingent Assets’. The evalwation of the likclikood of the conbngent events has
requircd best judgment by management regseding e probability of exposure to
pobental loss, Should clreometances changs following unforeseeabls developments,
Clnig likelibood could alter,

i padrinest Teet of Non-Finanoiz! Ascets

The recowverable amolLint of Investment o subsidlary iz based an esdlmaies and
aggumpiisns regarding in pardoular the fusare cash flows azsoclated with the
cperations of Eke investes sampany, fay chinzes in these assumptions may hase a
matarial impact on the measurement of the recoverabile 4 mwual and ould cesull in
impairment

E. Recil fotsdilkng Pronowncemeots

Imd AL 116 Leazes: {a March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporatc Afsics hes ootified
Tnd A5 116, Leazes [nd A% 116 will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17
Leages, and related (mierprstations, The Staelard sews oul Whe principles for the
recognition, mesasurement, presentation and digclosare of leqres Jor Both pagTles o
8 contract Le, the lessee and the legzor. Ind AS 1la Infroduces a dngle lesses
armounting model amd reqoires 3 lessee 1o recognize assets and |labllioes for al|
leazes wikh a term of more Ehan twalve months, uniless Che anderbiing azse 1= of lowr
valoe Cutrently, operating |case expenscs are cherped bo the stebement of Profiz &
Loss, Thi Standsrd also contsins eahanced disclosure requircments for lessecs, ind
A5 116 gubstantially cacries Erwand b lessoc scoouting feyuiresenls in lad 45
i7,

The effectve date for adaption of Ind A5 118 iz annual perliods heginmg s or after
Aprtl B 201%. The standard permies Gwvo possikie method s of transiteos:

1} Full retrospective - Bebrospectively to each priar period presented applving ind
AS B Accounbing Pollcies, Changes kn Accounbing Estimates and Errors

2} Modified retrospective - Retrospeczively, with the cumulative effect of initeally
applying the Scendard recemnized at the date of initial applicatisn.

Ueder meodificd retrospective appeoach, the lessce reconds the lease labilivy 33 the
present valun of the remelning lease payments, discouniad at the Insrenrencal
burrowing rite aod the rieht of useassel sither as:

aj Its careying armognt 35 if the  stapedaed had Teen applled since  the
comnsencemant dake, but diseounted at lessee's incremental borrewsng rate at the
date of inltal appl leation or

b] An aimount equal to the |ease |labillty, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
acerued lease paymenks relabed to that lease rocoemezedd unl:[tr InrJ e’.& i7
immediaksly belfore the dave of inldal application. :
CerAin practical cpedicnts are 3vailable ynder both the mi‘:l'hurl

i L] e e | e e T e T D e e e
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The Company has adaepted the standsrd beginning Aprl 1, 2619, using the madifled
reffpspective approach for tensition. Accordingly, the company has not restaied
the comparative b ik mgieo,

tnd AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertalng over Income Tax Treatbvenis: Uo Marh 30,
2049, Mimistry af Corpoeate AFfalrs kag novificd Ind A% 12 Appendiz C, Uncartainty
over ineome Teax Treaiments whizh 2 40 be applied while porforming the
determination of taxsble profie {or loss], tax bazes, abuged 1oy lostes unused (ax
eredits and tax rares, when there is uncertainky over lncome kax reatmenis uhder
fnd A% 12 Accardiag o lhe appendix, companics nood te detenmine the probability
of the relevanl tax Awlhorily awepling e3ach tax teatment or groug of tsd
freaiments, Hhak the companlas have viad or plan re use In their income tax filing
which has to be considered to compute tihe maost likely amounl o Lhe experied
velue of the tax treatment when determining tazable proflt [tas fess), tye bages,
nmescd tax bosses, unosed tax credits snd tox rates

The standard pormits bwo pessible methads of eransitlon -

i] Full mtrospective approach - Under this approach, Appoadix © will be applied
relrospenively b cach prior reporting period presented in accordance whith Ind A5
8 - Acenunting Pailkcies, Clunges i Asvountiog Esumates and Erepes, withogt asing
Rindsight and

i) Ratrospeckvely with cumolative effect of initlally applwing Appendix C
recognized by adjustng equity on  isitial application, without adjusting
COaTLpArALEVES.

The cifcetive dare For adoption of ind 83 12 Appendix © #s annual perieds beginming
an Gr after Apeil 1, 2609 The Cognpany hag gdupted e slandared on April 1, 20049
and has devided o adjust the cumulative effest ia sguity on the daes of inizlal
appd leathon e April 1, 2819 vl thout sdiust ng ecanipacathves

The above amendmeant did nod have any makerial impact on the emounts recognised
im finencial statements

Amendment ta Ind AS 12 - [ncome faxes: On March 20, 2019 Ministry of
Corparate Affaire 1zsed amendments to the ruidsnes in (nd A5 12, 'income Taxes',
in connactlon with accounting for dlvidend distnbubon @xes,

e asnevad e ki Res that an encty shall eecognise the Insome o cnitequenses
o diviclends 1o praflt or loss, edher eampreheasive Inenine oF squity sconrding to
whare the entity ariginally recogalsed thage pase ransactlons orevanks

Effective date for appllcatdan of thlz amendment |5 annual perbad beplnning on or
after April 1, 2019, The above amendment did not have any material impact on the
amoun s recognised in financial stacements.

Amozdmont to Ind A5 1% = plan amchdment, eurtgidmet or setilemert. On
March 3¢, 201% Minisity of Corporate Affairs issucd amendménts to Ind A% 19,
Cemplover Dencfits, in conarcton with aceounting for ples, amemlinenls,
certaiiments and sellvments AL




The amendments require an enbty:

a) o use updated assemptions ke determine current service cost and net interest
for the remal nder of the perlod after a plan amendment, curtailment ar sattlement;
and

b} to recagnise i proflt or loze ae part of past eernce onsk or 2 goin or loss on
settement, any reduckion o0 e surplus, even if that surplus was not previonsiy
recogn |zed because of Ehe impact of the assskcailing.

Efiective date for application of 1his aneadment iz anoeal period heginning on ar
after apell 1, 2o, The sipcva amendment Jid noe have ans materlal Impact on tha
aitwounis recagnlsed in Anancal statemeants
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